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HIGHLIGHTS

> Excetlent financial > Positive reservations and
performance rental outiook for 2014/17
> Vkible eamings » Development pipeline
growth outiook remains sfrong
> Growth prospects
remain strong
Eamings par shave' 2 Dividend per shore
PROVIDING HOMES FOR OVER
49000
STUDENTS
DELIVERED BY
1,450
Net assat volue' Yol accounting retum PASSIONATE
PEOPLE
DPERATING
PROPERTIES
UJE WORK CLOSELY WITH
Profft beldore tox Loan-lo-volue ratic 60
UNIVERSITIES
ACROSS THE UK
FOCUSING ON
' The finoncial staterments are prapcredin accordance with Intermational Fnencial UN'VE RS'TV TOUJNS

Reporing Standards {IFRS]. These financial hghlights ang based on the European Public

RealEstale Associafion (EPRA} best prociice recommendotions and these perfomance AND CITIES
measunes are pubished as they are intended o heip vsers in the comparabiity of these

results across other istad real astate companees in Europa, The meirics are ako used

irternolly to rmeasure and manage he business and align to the performance reiated

condihors for Drectons' Remuneration.®

2015 and 2016 EPS is based on agjusted EPRA eamings

A full reconcifiction of the finoncial statements signed under IFRS to the EPRA
performance measures is sét oyt in note 2.2 of the financial statements,

161  Reod more on our frequently used terms: Glossary
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CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

«sus;,  WE ARE THE LARGEST AND 200
> MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER v
¢ OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT nivand”

ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. We launch oin

._‘\33 u*/
S

1992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We acquire more propertias in We ara listed on the Alternative We form Europ

in Bristol where we remain Bristol and start specialist property Investment Market [AIM) specialist stude
head-quartered and now management services investment fum
have 140 properties, housing Accommodati
49,000 studients for the 2014/17

academic year

1998 2000

We open our first London properties We gre floated on London Stock
Exchonge to expand into Manchester,
Liverpool and Portsmouth
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Wth property -

t venture with GIC

6

e'slargest unlisted

nt accommodation
d. the Unite UK Stydent
on Fund [USAF}

Found

]

tio

b

2009

We are voted one
of 'Britain’s Top
Employers’ by the
CRF Institute

2010

We open a new

London offica which

provicies a basa for
our property ana
devaloprnent teams

2011

We have grown 1o house 40,000
students in 133 propearties across 24
University 1owns and Cities every year

We are aworded the Investorsin
Paopie Siver Award

We launch our employee recognition
progrommae — the Stars Awords

2012

We found and donate £8 milion

to the Unfte Founaahion —o chority
fo suppart students without famiy
support, Our first 28 students are
recruited through four universities
and reQeive schokarships moade up
of agecommodation and a living
allowarice o support them through
their study years

We raise £20 milion after issying
Q retail bond

We aunch the London Student
Accommodation vehicle [LSAV]

We scoop the Student
Accommadation Operator of the
Yeor aword of Property week's RESI
gwords which celebrte successes
in the rgsidenikl property secCior

2014

We launch our business purposs,
Home for Success

we invest £21 million in improving
lighfing ocross all of our buildings
10 benefit our siudents and

the envronment

2016

we are awarded the Investons in People
Gokd Aword

Wa open o sales ond morketing office
n Beding

We donate a further £5 milion to the
Unite Foundation in the formm of USAF units

Cur students and employees raise
£175,000 for Sport Relief

we scoop fhe Student Accommeodation
Operator of the Year award at Property
week's RES| awards for the third time

2015

we become the first Living Wage
Empioyer in our seclor

The first four unite foundation
schokars graducite

The National Union of Students
awaords our shudents 12 Green
Impoct Awards for their sustanable
work while ving with us

™
1/2 MILLION
STUDENTS
HOUSED
SINCE 1991
e —————
WE LAUNCHED
OUR INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTION, PRISM
E——————
WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
continue to grow. In 2014, we opened five
new properiies which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK’s biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommodation we have leamnt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is critical to our 1,430 employees
that we uUse our unique experience
to continue to develop the most
supportive student experience,
which delivers for our current and
future students, cur universities and,
of course, for our employees.

Qur consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible development pipeline
and operational expertise mean
we are well positioned to deliver
susiainable eamings growth in
the coming years for our investors.

2 For more information
Strategic report Corporate governance Finoncio) statements
Financial highlights 50 Charman's intrpduction fo governance 100 independent auditor's report
2 Where we operate 54 Board of Directors 105 miroduction and table of contents
4  Qurpurpose 56 Shareholder relations 106 Corsolidated income statement
5 Business model ond strategy 57 Leodership 106 Consalidated statement of
12 Retofiorships 42 Effectivensss comprehernsive income

14 Chaiman's statement
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18 Market review
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22 Risk monagement

286 Pnncipot risks and uncartainhes
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40 Financial review
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&4 Nomingation Committee report
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4§ Audit Committee Report

70 Health & Safety Commitiee report

73  Annual statement of the Chair of the
Remuneration Commitiee

77 Directors' Remunenation Policy

B84 Annual report on remuneration
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99 Statement of Directors' respongibilifies
inrespect of the annual report and the
fircmcial staternents
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m sharehalders' equity
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111 Statements of cashfiows
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WHERE WE OPERATE

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 214

WE OPERATE ACROSS THE UK IN
24 CITIES, WITH OUR TOP TEN
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR
TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL
IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

by value

Moonrglosr Polnt. London Bedy: 474 (Wholly owned)

Top ten properties

Moonraker Point offers 147 studios and 527 rooms
inchster fiats. Stuctedin Zone | ondrext i the
Tate Modem. Meonmier Poirt provides ahome
for King's Colege. London students,

Our development and forward
funds plpeline

Th is is our devalopment pipsline until 2019.
nce complete it will bring 6,965 beds 10 the market.

® © © o

l New cpenings ‘ Opening | Opening Opening
In 2016 . In 2017 in 2018 | in 2019
. Gresthom Street, Portsmouth St Leoncwds, Edinburgh Newgadle Strest, Newcastie Skelhome, Liverpool
| (Wholly cwned)*” ‘ (Wholly owned) [Wholly owned) (Wholly owned)
836 beds ' 581 beds 575 beds | 1.085beds
Cousswaysnd, Absrdesn l MBtennium Way, Coveniry Brune! House, Bristol i Ol BRI, Brisiol
[(Wholly cwnaed) [Wholly owned) {Wholly ownad) (Wholly owned)
. 399 beds 391 beds 232 beds 706 beds
For Goslord Street, Coventry Tara House, Liverpool ‘ Chaucer House, Portsmouth Consstitution Street,
{(Whotlly cwned]* ! [Wholly owned) Aberdesn
284 beds | 77beds 484 beds {Wholty owned)
Stapleton House, London Beech House, Onxdord® $tVincents. Sheffield 600 beds
(LsAV) (USAF) 167 beds [Wholly owned)
842 bads . UMon Count, Edinburgh® . 54508
Otympic Way, London (USAF| 237 bads Intemational House, Birminghom
(LsAv) } {Wholly awnved)
699 beds ' 584 beds !
|
New beds New beds New beds New beds
3082 2152 12422 2391
» ’ ’ | =y
* Sokt ko USAF dunng 2014
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Unrte's lergest inLondon
with parcramic views
across London and the
Otympic Pork.

The Mara, Leeds

Bods: 1,500 (USAF)
Completed in two phases,
the property s convenient
for both Universihes in
Leeds. I offers a range:

of en-suite rooms in

three- fo siebedroom
fiats and studios.

Woburn Flace, London
Bedt 455 (LSAY)
Wobum Place isidealy
locoted odjocent to three
tiniversity compuses and is
at the heart of student ife
m centra! London.

S$t Pancras Wayis a short
wark from King's Cross and
§t Pancras stations. The
bullding provides a home
for 571 UCL students.

Angel Lane, London
Beds: 759

Cpenedin September
2015 with a ronge of

en suite and stucio
occommodafion, Angel
Lane s located in Stratford

Emily Bowes Court, London
Reds: 573 (USAF)
A

confempormry room
design, Zone 3 location
and gk firks into central
London make thisQ
popukar choloe for
students seeking a lower
rert offering.

ofstudio roms and

providing opack irks
to central London,

The Forge, Sheffield
Seds: 1,381

Campus-style living wilhin
a city centre environment
prowiding homes

for students of both
Universities in Sheffield.

Top len cliies in which we operate*

Rok Gty M e Mmoo whaae
) London 10,124 292,706 3.5%
€©  siminghom 4846 57767 84%
©  shetew 373 51,095 7%
© e 3479 am aa%
Q© e 3458 53,185 4.5%
Q@ ronchester 2336 65.664 3.6%
© Lverco 2239 46245 As%
© rotmoun 2222 18,628 1.8%
©  Leicoster 1.687 33,299 S51%
® Ghasgow 1.643 57.921 28%
Tolol 35,745 "M S.0%
Proporfion of Unike pordiollo 7%

* Top ten cifies in which we operote has been adjusted to reflact tho
portfoko changes in February 2017, Aston University on-campus
occpisition (3,067 beds) and the regionol portfolic dispxasal (4,175 beds)

i ; % copitalinvested in London

34 Read more: Property review
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CUR PURPOSE

Home for success
Individually and
collectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a commaoen purpose:

o provide the students
who live with us o '"Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of aur people,
great propertfies and a
deep-rooted commitment
to customer service for
both our students and
our University partners.

The best home...

We provicte a high quaiity and secure iving
amvironment where young people con develop
academicallty and soclolly.

Bacause we know that while, for most people.
University is  fime of exciternent and opportunity.

it can also be a fime of anxiety and stress. Our
resecrch shows thot students who fieel well
infegrated are more retilient and befter equipped
to navigate the ransition to University. We therefare
aim 1o provide an ervironrment, which, in every way,
helps thermn ochieve this.

for afl students...
We yndersfond thot a University education s
nowadayt o significant i nt for young peoph

and believe that no-one should miss out smply
because of thek persondd chrcomsionces.

We iherefora offer a variety of accommeodation

ot gifferent price points, ranging from rooms with
shared bathrooms, 1o Clusters of ensuite bedrooms
with shared kitchens and living spaces to seif-
contained studio apartments, In addition, the Unite
Fouyndation s cumently providing accommeodation
and a generous living alowance for 134 students
fram severely disadvantaged backgrounds ot
Universities across the UK,

helping them grow and succeed...

For many peaple, University is where the academic
foundalions of ther career are laid. But, for every
generaticn of students, University i maore than simply
a stepping stone 10 a job.

It mouids them as individuals and provides a crifical
bridge io aduithocd, wherne they Can isam the
interpersonai skills they will need for life. We therefore
Girn 10 cregke an envionment that is caring and
supportive but alsc allews our students 10 express
ther naturat desire for independance.

at university and beyond...

We beleve that where G student lives has a material
impact on their academic and social expefienoce of
University and, ultimotely, ther lives.

Through our paople. our buikdings and our focus on
customer service, we aim 1o help our studenis make
the transition rom teenagers to resiient adults,
equipped for everything thatlies ahead. We
raguiarly reasure how well we are mesting ther
needs ond are continuously looking for ways to
improve our propesition.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Delivering our purpose through our business model

Unite Students i the seclordeading
manager and developer of student
accommaodation, with a high quality,
wel-Hocated portfolio of approximatsly
140 properties in the UK's strongest
University towns and cities. We have a
customer-focused opproach and work
closely with our University partners to
provide a seamiess service 1o over 49,000
students, providing them with a safe and
secure home at a wide range of price
points and room sizes, ailoring our service
to meet ther needs.

Qur focused business model seeks o
defiver low double-digit total returns and
sustaingble, growing earnings, by
maintoining our competitive advontage.
growing and maintaining the highest
quality pertfolio and being the most
trusted brand in the sector, underpinned
by a strong capital structure.

11 Reac more: Market review
12 Read more: Redationships

We operate through two main Business Unils:
Operations and Property. Qur Operations
unit is responsitie for the portfolio, including
those owned by our co-investment vehicles,
USAF and LSAV. We aim to deliver operaling
cashfiows and eamings. delivering
sustainabie annual growth in rental ncorne:
ond profits, increasing the value of

our investment portfolio through the
srengthening of our birand. Our operating
platform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabilities, delivering
improvements o customer services,
revenue managennent ond demonstrafing
the efficiencies of scale.

The Property business unit is responsible
for our development and asset
management sirategy and oversees our
two co-investment vehicles, We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the development of operational assets
that enable us to leverage our highly
scalable operating platform.

2% Read more: Principal sks
and uncedointies

E Reud more: Operalions review

Dedivering great customer service and
buikding strong relationships with our
University pariners, the communifies in
which we operate, our custorners,
suppliers and 1,450 employees is crucial
1o our sucoass.

We work strategically with University
leaders. using our knowledge and
experience o help them with the
realisafion of their estates and residences
strategias. We invest in our employees and
support their development, helping them
achieve their personal and professional
potential. We work closely with the local
community, from the early stoges of
development and plkanning to providing
opporiunities for students living with us to
volunteer and bring positive benefits to
the areqin which they ive. Overall, we
aim o provide the homes and services
that encble and support our students’
personal and acodemic achievements,

34 Read more: Properly review
49 Read more: Ainonclol review
&4 Read more: Up to usS
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In 2016 we welcomed our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. We are the first home from
home for the majority of cur students meaning
that almost one in 10 first year students live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single University.



DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We launched our innovative
technology sclution, PRISM,
which provides a huge range
of benefits for our students.

we will be able to procass their
bookings much quicker and book
them into ther rooms fosler when
they arrive to stay with us. PRISM also
has the capacity to speed up how
we can respond to student requests
on maintengance issues,

15 For more information

Ambassador programme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
Ambassador programme,
which aimed toidentify
students fiving with us who were
wiling and passionate to share
their own first-hand experience
to help our new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 initial Ambassadors were
recruitedt across four city locations
and actively engoged in helping
new students, particularly during
the on-boarding experience. The
Ambassadors quickly became
recognised by new arrivals as the
‘go to' people to help thern to settle
in and the programme will continue
to develop.

Focus on employabiiity

As part of our Home for
Success commitment, our
Empioyability initiative identifies
ways in which we can help
students and their friends

to be successful in increasing
their employability once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassador programme
piloted in 2016 was seen as a potential
stepping stone to identifying such
future opportunities, while ouronline
Student Life Hub was also further
developed in 2016 to include
employability tips.

Meanwhile, for students who finishea
their University course in 2014, the Unite
Students Infemnship programme gave
students the space and fools to leam
mong about our business, while building
ampicyable skills. Ten students joined
ws as inferns in 2016, working in all parts
of the business.

45 For mora information
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

Our long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universities across England and
Scotiond guarantee that more than 50%
of our students are allocated rooms in our
buildings. As student numbers increase
and Universities seek fo atiract students,
they look to us to support them by
providing attractive accommodation
that fits with thelr stfudent sirategles.

Further strengthening

our University parinerships
Dedicated University
portnership team working
collaboratively with our

40 University partners,

70%

of 2016 openings are tet to
Universities under nomination
agreements

58%

of ail rooms let through
University agreemenis

-

4 For more information

First move into on-campus
in Birmingham

Aston Student Vilage

(ASV) acquisition in central
Birmingham comprises

3,067 rooms in our first move
On-compus.

EL For more information

“] just think the Unite
product is inspirational.

I think as o brand, they're
ahead of other providers
in that they've kept

the prices not at an
unreasonable level.”

Unite Students Reputation Survey,

2016 - an independent survey of
Higher Education institutes

21 For more infommation

g
9
&
g
8

SIUBIBHDIS [DDUDUL

LY DULIOJU JBUO



"

Invesiors in

People Gold

Unite Students joined the eiite
group of UK companies to
achieve the coveted Investors
in Peopie Gold accreditation
in 2016.

Developing our feams continues to
be a pricrity for us and this accolade
recognisas that by providing effactive
programmes across the company,
our leams can deliver excellent
customer sexvice, while offaring

a great place 1o work with

a clear commitment to

daveloping employess.

Living Wage

2016

‘We were proud o receive the
Living Wage accreditation

Training

We have confinued to develop
our comprehersive range of
high quality training courses and
development programmes for
our employees at all levels. In
total, 4,100 training days were
delivered 1o halp employees
evolve their skills and grow in
tandem with the company.

Our leadarship framework has also
confinued to mature, with 43 detegates
attending leadership courses
throughout the vear including

the programmes Becoming Q
Supervisor, Becoming a Manager
and leadership development.

4,100

We offered a total of 4,100 training
days in 2014

Other related content

15 Chief Executive's review

38 QOperotions review
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FOR OUR
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We have 1,450 employees at Untle

Studenis with the majority working

with our sludents in 24 fowns and

cliies, They are supported by

250 people in our Bristol support

cenire. Our property and development Q

team have a central London base. g
5
3
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RELATIONSHIPS

WE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACRQSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Qur success is founded on defivering great customer service and building strong
redationships with our University pariners, the communities in which we operate,

our cusiomaers ond employees.

We are committed to high ethical standards in the way in which we engage with
our customers, partners, employees, shareholders, suppliers and other stakeholders.
Qur reputation as the most trusted brand in our sector i founded on our achievernent

of these high standards.

THE LINETE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2815

Investors and stakeholders

We saek fo provide balanced, cleor
and fransparent communications that
ollow our shareholkders ta better
understand the business and aur
strategy, through a programme of
regular meetings, Capilal Markets Days.
results briefings and trading updates
with its institutional sharehoiders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
opportunities to discuss the progress

of the business. All presentations given
o institutional sharehalders are made
availoble on our website.

In April 2016, we hosted a Capital
Markets Day which dllowed investors
to view qur Coventry portfolio and
davelopment pipefine and the
oppertunity fo interact with our
cutting-edge operatfing platform,
PRISM, In Dacember 2014, a second
Capitat Markets Day hek in London
included damonstrations on how
PRISM improves and streamlines
our operations.

Universities

We qim to maintain the strong
relationships we have built with our
University pariners who trust Unite
Students fo provide students with a
safe and secure home thot supports
their personal and academic
achigevement. In 2014, we have
continued to grow the proportion of
beds let through University partnerships.
increasing the percentage of the
portfolio let under nominations
agreements with Universities, fo 58%.

We can boost our recruitmend by offering
assurances o students (and thelr
parents) about quality accommodation.
When we undersiood Urite wos bullding
next to Wembley Stadlum we took the
opporiunity to take the whole buliding
fot our studends of the start of the 2016/17
academic year. We belave thiy will heip
our University become part cf the
exciting regenerated cormmunlly around
the sfadlum, enhancing the experience
for our current and future students.

James Kennedy
Chlef Financial Officer,
Middlesex University

Students

Unite Students is focused on providing
Quality services to its students, at no
extra cost, to ensure that they have
the best resources and facilities
available. This includas SOMB/s Wi-Fi
access, free fortnightly cleaning
services for shared spaces, discounts
with retail pariners and allinclusive bills
and insurance, We also offer a number
of career opportunities to help them
develop thek employvability and life skills.

We have aiso continyed fo aad to
the My Unite Qpp and our online
platform, the Student Life Hub which
has impraved our ability 1o
communicate in real-time with our
students ond engage with themon
relevant. interesting and useful fopics.

Students’ welfare is o core priority for
Unite and there are a number of
initiatives in place to help better
understand and address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
resaawch and warking closely with
University partners to identify and
support struggling students.

The impact the Foundation scholarship
had on my academic abllity and my
life in general has been Immense. It
provided me with o safe, comioriobls
ond independent environment - a
spoce | could ealt my own. And, most
importantly, o space which wasn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emily Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
graduate 2016
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People

Cur people are at the heart of our
business and our engagement with
all of our stakehokders, We recruit,
develop andretain employeesin
accordance with the following key
themes: Resourcing. Reward, Talent
ond HR Policies ond Procedures,
Diversity and Cutture.

We are committed fo fostering a
diverse and inclusive workforce with

o culture that is rewarding for all of our
people and that remains engaging
and challenging. We want 1o maintain
our cuiture, which delivers high
employee retention rates and career
development,

The welfane and professional
development of our employeesisa
high priority for us. We have effective
systems through which can identify
appropriate, high quality training
programmes for cur employees 1o
evolve their skills and grow in tandem
with the company.

| have worked at Unite Students for
nearty 12 yeary, | have lsomt and
gained so much through ny lime
hare. it recily has been a great
axperience. | storded offas o
caretaker in Sirmingham but | olways
had o particulor interest in electrical
work ond my mentor at the fime,

saw polential in me. With his ond the
butiness’ help | was able go back to
college to compiete my basic English
and Numeracy exaoms and move on
to study to be an Electrcian.

Jon Cash
Unlte Students Ceniral
Compliance Team

Suppllecs

We rely on the strong relationships
that we develop with our suppliers
and pariners. We aim to ensure they
share our conporate commitment

to providing excellent service to our
custormers and wider stakeholders,
and thot they are most suited to cur
long-term stralegy. By selecting the
right suppliers through a rigarous
tender process, we can ensure that
thay enabie us to drive efficiencies
and improve margins, from both

an operafional and o development
point of view. This anables the
forming of strong. strategic and
mutually beneficial partnerships with
consistently high standards ot quality
ond inncvation.

Technology is an important resource
for Unite Students and following the
appointment of a supplier, we
conduct ongoing and regular vendor
managenent activifies through
coliaboration between the
Procurement and IT departments, This
process is designed 1o not gnly mornitor
performance against agreed levels.
but to ensure we confinue fo take &
leading role in indusiry developments,

Forbo Flooring Systems have been
working with Unfle for over four yeors
now, and # 1s o parinership we are
proud to be part of. From working
with the occommodalion designers
o ensure we get the right liooring
solutions for the applicalion, te
managing the giont logistics ond stock
conirol requirements fo efisure projects
nm smoothly, we ore pleased to be part
of the process every step of the way,

Elizabeth Bushell
Key Accounis Manager,
Forbo Flooring Systems

Charities and communitles

We appreciate the central role that
we play in fhe many communities we
oCcupy across the UK, We work closely
with the iocal community, from the
early stages of development and
planning o providing opportunities for
students living with us to volunteer and
bring positive benefits to the area in
which they live.

I 2014, in suppart of our 2016 charity,
Sport Relief, our students, people and
marathon static cycing world record
holder Jamie McDonald cycled
43,000 miles and roised £175.000 on
The World's Biggest *Virtual' Tandem.
This included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommeodation and the lohn
O'Groats to Lands End challenge.

We also continued awr nationat
volunteering programme, launched

in 2015, which aliows every empioyee

a paid day o volunteer for a good
causs, We olso encourage our students
to volunteér and support local and
national charifies. For exarnpie through
clothing donotions alone we rased
£140.000 for Cancet Resgarch, The Unite
Foundation conlinues fo support young
pecple from the most challenged
baickgrounds achieve a degree.

We are delighted that Unite Students
took on this amazing chollenge and
ralsed such a fantastic amount for
Sport Reflef 2014. The money ralsed
will help give exiremely vuineroble
and disacdvantaged people in the
UK, ond across the world’s poorest
comimunities, a helping hand to turn
their Kves around,

Anne-Cecile Barfhiar

Head of Fundralsing & Partnerships,
Comic Rellef which manages Sport
Relief, our charity for 2016
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Governance highlights

The Govemance Repoft on pages
50 to 99 (inclusive) provides
detalls of the Group's approach
o governance and how k supports
the dellvery of our strategy,

The highlights of the year included;

> Succession planning and falent
development - CEC transition
during 2014

> Governance/risk management
following Leave vote and dynamic
external market

» Substantial investrent in PRISM

» Preparation for REIT conversion
on 1 January 2017.

59 For more information

2016 has peen a landmark year for Unite
Students for several reascns: celebrating
owr 25th year, welcoming our 500,000t
customer and providing homaes for 49,000
sfudents, our largest ever intake in a single
year. We also achieved ¢ Gold
accredilation in the 'Investors in People’
pecple management standard, plocing
us in the top tier of businesses.

Performance has again been strong,
with @ fotal accounting return of 15%
and growth in Adjusted EPRA earnings
1o £61.3 million, up 24%. Profit before

tax was £201,4 million which inctudes
property revaiuations of £136.3 milfion
[2015: £388.4 million and £324.6 million
respectively). As a result of this strong
performance, we are increosing our
dividend pay-out matio to 75%, a year
aheod of schedule and decloring o final
dividend of 12.0p. This adds up toq total
of 18.0p for the full yeaor, an increase of
20% year on yeor.

Unite Students is a service brond and the
strong performance we have defivered
for our customers, University portners and
shareholders is only possible because of
the talent and hard work of our leams
across the business, On behalf of the
Board, | would ke to thank them for
another excellent year,
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On 31 Moy, Mark Allan stepped down as
Chief Executive, o role he held since 2006.
Mark pkayed o key role in the success of
Unite Studenis and on tbehalf of the Board
and everyone af Unite, | would like to
thonk him for his service and wish him

well for the future.

Richard Smith has taken over as Chief
Executive, hoving been the Managing
Director of our Operofions business for
the last five yeors, successfully leading
the transformation of our service delivery
ond implemeniation of our PRISM
operoting platform.

A core part of our recent success has
been cur consistent strategy and we

will continue fo focus on its three main
elements: 1o deliver greot service 1o

our students and University pariners,

to operate briliant buildings and fo
maintain high Quality eamings and o
strong copital structure. As a resutt of our
continging prograss in these areas, we
have successfully transitioned to become
a REIT, effective from 1 January 2017, and
wae believe this is consistent with our focus
on income and capital discipline.

The outiook fer our market remains
pasitive with structural growth being
supported by the strength of the world
rencowned UK Higher Education sector,
increasing participation rates, the
internationalisation of Higher Education
and the shortage aof housing in the UK.

The impact of Brexit is starting to become
clearer ond we do not expect it to have
a material impact on student numbers.
Our high quality portfalio, University
relaticnships and market-leading
operating plofform leave us well placed
o continue performing strongly in the
years to come.

Phil White
Cholirman
22 Fabruary 2017
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CRHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Financial highlights

EPRA earnings

£62.7m

Adjutied EPRA earnings

£61.3m

Adjusted EFRA EPFS

27.7p

Profit before fax

£201.4m

Bask: EPS

101.3p

Dividiend per shore

18.0p

Tolal accounting rehwn

15%

34%

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

In my first year as Chief Executive, lom
pieased fo report another sfrong set of
results for the year ending 31 December
2014, We have maintoined our focus on
delivering sustainable growth in recurring
profits and cash flow in the long term,
and delivering a Home far Success to all
of the students who five with us. We do
this by providing great service and
aperating briliant buildings that students
and Universitias choose. We also ensure
investment discipline to mointqin

a strong capital structure and deliver
high-quaity eamings.

Performance in 2016 was driven by
another year of strong growth in EFRA
eamings, rental growth and development
profits, combining o deliver a total
accounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
eamings {adjusted to exclude the yield
related elernent of the USAF performance
fee] increased by 24% to £61.3 milion
and now represents ane-third of the

fotal shoreholder return. As a result of

the significant growth in eamings and
the positive outlook for turther earmings
growth, we are declkaring a final dividend
of 12,.0p {2015: 9.5p). making a dividend
pear share of 18.0p for the full year (2015;
15.0p}. an increase of 20% year on year.

We are continuing to focus on growing
eamings in absclute terms and also asa
proportion of our total return. This s driven
by our ability to continue growing rental
lavels on on annual basis, the delivery of
cost efficiencies and from the completion
of our high-quality development pipeline.

Qur PRISM operating platform, which
become fully operational in 2016, provides
us with a unigue capability to drive

value from our portfokio through scaie
sfficiencies and revenue management,
supporting our ongoing income focus.

15

Since the yegr and, we hove completed
two importont strategic initiatives with the
acquisition of & 3,100-bed, on-campus
portfoiio at Aston University and aiso

the sale of a regional portfolio, which
tegether improve our portlolio quality
and focus on the best Universities.,

The business completed its planned
conversion fo become o REIT on 1 Jonuary
2017. This transition supports our continued
focus on eamings, capital discipline and
commitment to distribute eamings to
sharehokiers. As aresult of the strong
performance and posifive outiook, we
have ccceleroted our increased pay-out
ratio to 75% of Adjusted EPRA earnings
{excluding USAF performance fees)

a year aheqd of schedule.

Defivering great service to our

students and University partners
We provide a high-quality ond secura fiving
environment where young people can
develop ncademically and sccially and
make the most of their time at University,

For many pecpie, University is where the
foundations of their career are kaid. We
understand that a University education is
a significant investment for young pecple,
and believe that no-one should miss out
simply because of thair personal
cireymstances. But, for every generation
of students, University is more than simphy
a stepping stone fo a job. i moulds them
as individuals and provides a critical
bridge fo adulthood, where they con
learn the interpersonal skills they will need
for life. We believe that where a student
lives has a materialimpact an their
academic and soCial experience of
University and, ultimately, their fivas. We
therefore aim 1o create an environment
which s coring ond supportive, but also
allows our students to express their natural
desire for independence.

We recognise that offordability of Higher
Educaotion is on importont considerction
and therefore we offer a varety of
cccommodation ot different price

points to students with the majority of

our accomrmoedation focused at the
mid-range price point for purpose-built
student accommodation. 65% of our
customers are from the UK and we
continue to attract growing nurnbers of
second and third-year students, who now
make up ene-thind of our custorner base.
We will confinue to focus on providing our
customers with excelient service and on
experience that they value.

Gur focus an the student experence is
completely aligned to the aims of our
University pariners, for whom student
axperience is a key measure. With
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending mone time in their
accommeodation than on campus, we
can demanstiqle to Universities how we
can suppert thern and their ambitions,
This focus has led to 58% of our
accommodation beaing let to Universities
through nominations agreements, With
an overage rermaining fite of six years, our
nominations agreements provide income
and rental growth certainty on over half
of ourrevenuea. In turn, this provides
protection from any potential changes to
student numbers, and has helped to defiver
average occupancy of 28% and renial
growth of 3.5% over the lost five years.

Students too, expect more from their
occommadation and this year, we
maintained customer service satisfoction
levels — a key performance indicator for
ws — at high levels, placing uson apor
with some of the best European service
compahies. We also secured excellent
results in our independently assessed
employee effectiveness ond University
trust scores. The defivery of greal customer
service to students and Universities
translates into our strong financial
performance, delivering occupancy of
98% and rental growth of 3.8% in 2016
(2015 98%, 3.8%). With cur new opemating
system, PRISM we have also delivered
further improvements fo our NOI margin
and ocverhead efficiency measure.

Qur peopie, University redationships, the
quaiity of our portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating piatform set us apdrt
from the other operators in the sector
and will support the ongoing growth

in owr porifolio, service levels and
finoncial performance.

Qperating brifliant bulldings

Qur strategy is built around the quality,
location and scale of our portfolio, We
aim 10 oparate buildings that are locoted
in and around the Universitkes with the
best prospects. We believa that our focus
on high-quality Universities across the UK
is the best siralegy to achieve continued
high levels of occupancy and rentat growth,
We generaie 82% of our income from
customers altending high and mid-
ronked Universifies, Increasing to 8% on
compietion of our development pip#line.

During 2014, we opened 3,100 new beds,
invested £12 milkon in asset management
and refurbishment programmes and sold
£114 million of assets {on @ see-through
basis). Taking into account these activities
together with valuation movements, the
value of our investment portfolic {including
our share of co-investment vehicles)
increqsad by 14% 1o £2.1 billion as at

31 Dacember 2016 and is valued ot an

average portiolio yiekd of 5.45% {2015:
£1.8 bilion and 5.55% yield).

We also made excellent progress with

our development pipefine during the year,
We compieted five new buildings over the
summer and secured on addifional four
new development schemes, which
increases our secued development
pipekne to 7,000 beds for delivery over
the next three years. Construction of all
our 2017 openings is progressing in line
with plans, pkanning consents and buid
contracts are in place for all of our 2018
deliverias and planning penmission is in
place for all but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are continuing to see attractive
development opportunities in strong
University markets and we pian to invest
salactively in target maorkets to enhance
portfolic quality ond deliver target
returns. Whitst demand for student
accommaodation remains strong in
London, the foll in kand prices over the
kast 12 months has not been sufficient,
when combined with new pianning
requirements for affordable student
housing provision, to enoble us to achieve
our target returns. We will continue to
monitor the situation for opportunities.

The anticipated yield on cost of our
secured pipetine s 8.4% and prospective
returns on new schemes rermain attractive
at 8.0-8.5%, The secured development
pipeline & highly accretive and remains

a significant component of our future
eamings growth and could contribute
12-14 pence per share to EFRA earnings
once buit out.

We continue to target acquisitions of
cornpleted assets and portfolios that
enhonce the quality of cur portfolio ond
the eoarnings profile of the business. These
acquisitions are targeted through our
co-invesiment vehicies due to their lower
cost of capital, allowing us fo generate
enhanced returns through our asset
management ond acquisition fees,

USAF hos acquired two assets under
development which will be opened for
the 2017 ocademic year. These ‘forword
fund' assets represent 404 beds, in Oxford
and Edinburgh and were purchased for

o combined total of £56 million. Following
the year end, LSAV acquired g £227 million
portfolic located on the Astan University
compus. This excifing development aliows
u$ to build a stralegic relationship with a
high-ranked University and to keveraoge our
PRISM openating systern to deliver sirong
firancial returns,

Disposals remain an important part

of our strategy ond we will continue

fo recycle assets out of our portfolio to
ensure that we increqse exposure to the
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best Universities in the UK, and ako to
generate capital to invest in further
development activity and exciting
opporiunities such as the Aston Student
Villoge acquisition. During 2016, we sold
£114 mitlion of assets [on o see-through
basis) including the sale of two assets fo
USAF. These assets weare sold in line with
book valuations. We intend to sell
£150-200 mifion [Unite share} of assets on
a see-through bxasis during 2017 to take
advantage of the ongoing strengthin the
investment market and fo ensune thatwe
maintain asfrong and fiexitle balkance
sheet as we progress our development
pipeline. We have made good progress
already in 2017, having completed the sale
of a 4,175-bed regional partfolio in February
for £295 milfion (Unite shore £102 milion)

In line with book vaiue.

Maintaining high quality eamings
and a strong capital structure

we have maintained full occupancy
across our portiolio [98%) with rental
growth of 3.8%. With 58% of this income
undearpinned by nominations
agreements, we have a high level of
visibility in the ongoing occupancy and
rertal growth cutiook of the partfolio. In
addition fo revenue growth, a focus on
efficiency hasresulted in further
improvements in our NOI margin up to
73.1% {2015: 72.5%). and in our overhead
efficiency revenue which shaws that our
overheads, net of management fees,
now represents 40 basis points of gross
osset value {2015: 48 bosis points). We
remain confident about our ability to -
make further efficiency gains and to
deliver our fargets of 75% and 25-30 basis
poinis by the end of 2017,

Unite’s share of net debt grew by £45
milion to £774 million in 2014, Our capital
expanditure programme [Unite share
£144 miliion] was majority funded by

our disposal programme and retained
garnings. We maintained our LTV within
our target range in the mid-30% level at
34% {2015; 35%) as development profits
and rental growth autstripped the
increqse in net debt, Qur net debt 1o
EBITDA rafio is 6.5 (2015: 4.9). again within
our lamet level which we intend to mainiain.

Interest rates have rermained at kow levels
throughout 2016, ond we have continued
to take advantoge of these historically
iow rates both on new debt faciities and
through entering into forward starting
interest rate swaps in respect of futyre
pomrowing requiremants of aur secured
development pipaline. As aresult of these
acfivities, our average cost of debt has
tallen to 4.2% from 4.5%. We expect it to
fall a litte further over ihe next few years

| as forward starting swaps becomes
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affective. At these levels, the sprecd 1o
ungeared development yields and
investment yields remains significant.

The Group's conversion 1o REIT status
reflects the consistency and quality of the
earnings profile ond its conservative
financing strotegy. The Group will ensure
thart the balkance of business, gearing ratios
and dividend pay-out ievels remain within
ihe guideiines set aut within the REN regime.

Market and strafegy

The outlook for the student ccocommodation
seckor ramains pasifive, with structurcd koctors
continuing to drive the demand: supply
imbalance in the University markets inwhich
we opergte, The UK Higher Education sector
srecognised gicbally for the strength of its
Universiies and contribution that it mokaes to
research. innavation, falent daveioprment
and the UK econonmy more boadly. The UK
is the second most populor destination for
international students ond hoas 18 out of
the workd's top 100 Universities and 47 of
Ewrope’s 1op 200 Universities, We expect
the UK Higher Education sector fo
maintain its globa! standing and reputation.

The number of oppiicants ond the number
of students accepted into coursas in 2014
wers again at record levels at 725,000 and
540,000 respeciively (2015: 710,000 and
530,000}, driven by growth in dernand from
both UK and international students. With
applicanis outstipping the ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the sectoris
well placed to withstand any potential
reductions from UK demographics or the
impact of the UK leaving the £U,

Fallowing the removal of the siudent
number capin 2015, the Higher Education
sector i facing further change with the
introctuction of the Teaching Excellence
Framework (TEF] in May 2017, This will provide
students with greater visibility of the quatity
of teaching ot Universities and aso aliow
Universities to inCreose fees in line with
inflation if they meet certain criteric. We
expect the TEF to have a significant mpact
on the affractiveness of Universities.
particularty to UK students, and we are
well piaced to respond fo changes
rasulting from this new information.

The gap between the number of applicants
and the number of University places could
be reduced by external factors, including
the potentialimpact of the EV referendum
on student numbers, Since 2015, a
demographic frend has seen areduction
in the number of 18-2) year olds, affecting
the next four years. Early apphcations dota
in Jonyary 2017 shows o 5% reduction in
applicants for the 201718 ocademic yedr.
However, we expect that the 185,000
surpius of applicants over ploces and the

removal of the cap means the number of
students accepted onto courses will not
be maierially impacted, and we expect
ihe high and mid-rorked Universities io
recruit more students than those at the
tower end of the league tables.

The qualities of the student acoommaoaation
sector have atiracted significant levets of
capial invesiment over the last three years
with over £17 bition of investment aclivity. This
increased investment activity has also seen
the level of new supply iIncrease and the
lolal number of purpose-built beds to
increase to 250,000 beds (14% of the UK's
student population). The outiook for new
supply suggests that the rate of new supply
will continue at a similar rate of around
20,000-25,000 over the next two years.
However, o significant proportion of the new
beds are focused on the upper end of

the price range which will have a minimal
impact on our type of accommaodation.

Furthermore, our exposure 1o changes

in student numbers is mitigated by cur
high quality University relationships and
nomingtions agreements and theretore
we remain confident that well-located,
mid-ronge, direct-let student
accommaodation will be able fo maintain
high levels of occupancy and rental growth.

Outlook

Buitding on & period cf consistent strong
porformance, and suppaortive market
fundomentals, the Group remains well
placed to deliver sustaingble earnings
growth in the years anead. Qur
development pipefive and operationai
expertise provides good visibility over the
future rental growth and increasing
frecuming earnings. Our portfolio is
focused on stronger Universifies, pfus our
highty scakible operating platform and
strong brand leaves us well placed o
extend our market leading position,

Despite the broader macra uncertainties
created by the EU referendum, the
supphy/dermand outiook for student
accommaodotion remains in our

favour, and we will iook to benefit

from opportunities to extend our
development pipeline, grow an-compus
oocommodation and strengthen University
relationships. With this bockdrop, @ strong
bolance theet and our new REIT status,
we are confident thot the Dusiness
remains well placed fo deliver highly
attroctive shareholder relums.

fichard Smith
Chief Exacullve Officer
22 February 2017
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Chief Executive's QRA

Richand Smith
addresses some topical
quaestions from our shareholders

Whai has the highfight of 2018
been for the business?

Nl 1n 2016, we welcomed our
500,000th student to Unite

Students, a fantastic milestone in the
Company's 25-yexr history and
festament to the high quality service
we provide students during their
university careers. The lgunch of PRISM
was anather important achievernent
in 2014, which is delivering significant
efficiencies for the business and
considerably improving the customer
experience we can offer to students.

aQ

How will the exit from Europe
altect the business?

Following the EU referendum, the

Government has confirmed that
all existing EU students and for the
2016/17 and 2017/18 academic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses. With 9% of
our students coming from the EU. any
polential impact on student nurmbers
from the EU referendum would have
alimited impact an Unite’s occupancy
gven the continued supply/demaond
imbalance. we continue to be positive
onthe outicok for the higher education
sector in the UK which is recognised
globally for its excedence and its ability
o attract talent rom across the world,

25 Read more: Brextt

Does the board plan to expand the
exscutive managerent team?

Yl The Board, senior management
and ) remain focused on and
committed to the continued success of
the business. The Board has eskablished

Q comprehensiva senior leadaship
developmen! programme: o grow
and nurture our falent and develop
our high performers. This ensures we
have a clear talent pipeline for future
Board appointments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This yaar we are seeing another year

of student number growth with more
students accepling ploces for the 2016/17
academic year than gver before. A fotal
of 535,000 students storted at University
in 2015715, taking the total number of
full-time students to £1.8 million, up from
£1.7 million in 2014/15, ACceptances have
risen 15% snce tuition fees were infroduced
in 2012. Applications conlinue to outstrip
acceplonces. A record 723,353
applications wera received for 2016/17
which left o demand gap of 188,450
students. This numper has remained
stable for the lost five years. See Figure 1.

Demand drivers for student
accommeodation

Wae fully expect tha demand for UK Higher
Cducation to continue from both domeshic
and intfemational students. More young

Figure 1: Applicanis and acceplances (thousands)

FAgure 2 PBSA beds (thousands)

peopse in the UK one choosing fo go fo
University than ever befone, with 37%

of 18-year-olds now applying to go fo
University up from 33% 10 years ago.
Expectations continue to rise and we
expect o see school leavers continue fo
place real volue on o University education,
The UK remains the #2 desfination for
interngtional students in Higher Education,
attrocting 10% of intermational students.
The UK draws almost double the number
of international students compared

with third place Aushalic. See Fgure 3.

The UK continues fo altract intemational
students due to the high quality of the
Universities in the UK. The UK now has
three universities in the global top ten,
fourin the top 20 and seven in the top 50
in Europe, six of the lop seven universities
are UK institutions. Sewe Figure 5.
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Education agents support these rankings
a5 91% rated the UK, as o destination to
study as “'atiractive” or “very atiractive™.
This will support UK nationals’ desire to go
to university at home as well as drawing
more international students to the UK.
International numbers grew by 15,000
between 2014/15 and 2015/14.

Shycient numbers

Total student numbers in the UK have
been steadily incraasing since 2012. The
2016717 year is axpecting to see 1.8 milion
students {under-groduate and posi-
graduate] in the UK. This is a 2% increase
from 2015/16 and comfortably above 1%

. average student growth of the previous
five years, See Figure .

The number of intarnational students has
grown since 2015/16 by 1% to 428,000.

Infernational students make up a

higher proportion of demand for
accommodation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommodation,
compared with 25% of full-iime students.
See Figure 4.

Unite meintains its focus on providing beds
for those segments of the market that

suit PBSA, namely international students.
who account for 35% and first yeors, who
account for B5% of our beds.

Figwe 3: Infernctional
thudent mobiiity



THE UNITE GROUF PLC ARNUAL REPORT AND ACCOLMTS 2814

Fgure & Dernand for accommodation (%)

Supply of purpose bullt student
accommeodation

The structurl growth of the Higher
Education sector has attracted significant
levels of investmeant over the kst three
years. Thisincreased investment has seen
PBSA Heds grow from around 200.000 in
2014 to 250.000 in 201&. A further 50,000
beds are expected fo be builf over the
next two years, taking the total to around
16% of the full-time student poputation.

n amore competitive market place.

the quality of the portfolio, price point,
customer service and university
relationships are critical fo ensuring full
occupancy and ongoing rental growth.

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpact of Brexit on the UK Higher
Education sector will become Clecrer
over the next few maonins. Funding
qmangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and those starting
in 2017/18.

Following Brext, we expect 1o see EU
students join other international students
and therefore see an increase in fees.
However, given the quality of UK Univessities
ond the attractiveness of studyingin

the UK, we estimate that overall student
numbers from the EU should only fall by
around 20,000 ~ 30,000, Universities will
work hard to ensume that any fall in student
numbers is mitigated with additional
recruitment from the UK, the EU and from
other intemational destinations.

Figure §: Untversity ronkdngs (institutions)

o d

o

Figure &; Full ime student humbers [milions)

The UK's immigrafion policy for
infernafional students remains one of the
most robust in the world, compared with
ather major destinations for internationol
students. iInternationai students make o
significant contribution to the UK econamy,
generating an estimated £10.7 billion of
export earnings for the UK, and over
135,000 jobs, Imrmigration and immigration
policy remains a political issue ond the
sector will continue fo monifor ond assess
the impact of any further changes in

1his areq.

EU research funding curmently accounts

for £688 rillion or 2.5% of totatincome

for Universities and there are concerns
regarding the long-term outiook for this
tunding, Universities' exposure 1o ihis ssue
varies, with six UK institutions receiving over
50% of their research funding o the EU.

. However, the Government has stated that

| Universities will have certainty over future
funding and shoukd continue 10 bid for

I competilive EU funds while the UK remains

. ameamber of the EU, with a commitment

| that the Treasury will underwrite the

I payrments of such awards, aven when
specific projects continue beyond the

| UK's departure from the EU.
5 Read more: Our business model
and srategy
| 26 Read mome: Pincipol deks

| ond unceriainties
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KPIS

Eamings per share®

Pence

28p

Measure

Qur EPRA earnings KPlis a
measure of profil per share
in fine with EPRA guidelines.

Net asset value®

Pence per share

646p

Measure

Owur EPRA NAV par share
measures the market value of
properties and developments
less any debt used to fund
them plus any working capital

in the business.
Comments Targef Comments Target
Sustainable growthin earmings Deliver visibie and Caonslstent NAY growth has To continue delivering

has been driven by high levels  meaningful grawth

of eccupancy and rental in EPS by mainiaining
growth supported by afocus  high occuponcy renfal
on delivering operational growth and delivering the
efficiency. The growth in development pipeiine.
earnings underpins cur

been delivered through rental  strong balanced retums,
growth, yield compression, confributing fo o double-
deveiopment profifs and digif fotal return.,

retained eamings, Qur
sustainuble growth in NAY
reflects the implementation

3 Remunemtion

strategic priorifies of delivering of the business model and

great service ond growing cur strategic prionty to operate

and sustainable earnings. briliant propertias.

Allgnment to strategy 2 o Alignment lo strategy “
Tolal accounting retum Loan-to-valve ratio

% %

Measure Measure

The totalreturn fo shareholders is Qur ratio of net deot to

the ratio of growth in EPRA NAV property values,

plus dividends paid as a

percentage of opening

EPRA NAV.

Commenis Maintaining a strong tota! Comments Target

Totol return has overoged 16%  retum from our portfolio Continued to deliver reduction  To maintain LTV around

in thekast six years, driven by the  is a result of our business
growthin EPRA eamings, vield  model and defivery of
compression, rantal growth and  our strategic priorities,

perfornonce in 2016 wos Torget

i Continue o deliver
on growing rental lavels and double digit-total retums.
the delivery of our high quality

development pipeiine.

Alignmant to strotegy

00

* Resulls are bosed on the European Putdic
Rexil Estate Associotion Perfarmance meQsunes,

in LT through ongoing focus  the mid 30% level.

on disposals ond growing the

value of the property portiolio, 73 Remuneration
Qur LTV reflects our strategy fo

maintain the strongest capital

structure in the sector,

Alignment lo strategy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS
Safety

Nurnber of occidents

5

Measure

The numbar of reportabie
occidents in our Operations
business each year as a means
of assessing our success in
approaching heagith and safety.

1

Key

1 d —0

Bnliont propertes Growing and
sustannable sarmings

Grad! sarvice

Customer safisfaction

80%

Meosure

We underiake an independent
survey wilh TNS twice o year to
understand our rekationship with
aur customers, the experence
we provide and their likelhood fo
rebock and recommend Unite.

Commenis priority within our Commaeants Target
Our Accident incident business and supports While there has been We aim to reach the top
Managemeni Systemn (AIMS),  our strategic priority to improvement in customer 10% of benchmarked
has provided us with grealer offer great service. satisfoction over the priorfour  compaonies within the
visibility on our incident years our 2016 result moved nexi three years,
reporting. enabling us ‘o Target back 3% points. We need to
impiement new ways of Wae strive fo reduce the work hard though oursrategic. 72 Remuneration
working that have mproved number of reporiable priority to offer greot service so
efficiency. Safetyis o high incidenis year on year. that we put customers at the

heart of that process.
Alignmaent to strategy L2.3 Alignment jo strategy 2.3
Employee effectiveness Higher Education frust
% b 9
Measure Meature
We have on employse survey Annual qualitafive research with
ool run by the Hays Group, owr Higher Education partners to
called Employee Effectivensass. undersiand their perception of

Unite and the degree to which

we meeft ther needs.
Cormnments Target Comments focus of providing a Home
Qur new survey results provided  We aiim 1o increase the Understanding what our Higher  for Success, we need fo
detailed insight into the employee effectivengss Fduoationparinensneed o conlinue to work hord fo
motivations and drivers of our  percentage above the us, both for themselves os ensure this is reflected in
employees and positions us 5% 40% threshold. institutions and for ther students, the score.
above the General UK Industry is o vital part of improving our
Benchrriork [48%) and 1% levalof senvice o offer great Torget i
behind the High Performing service. The overall score isin line We 0im 10 reach the mid
industry Benchmark (55%) in with lastyearangwhilstour  80% level within the next
our third year. strong Universify partnerships  free years.

were supported Dy the ongoing.
Alignmant lo strategy .23 Allgnment to strategy 0 2
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RISK MANAGEMENT
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STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chris Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legal

2014 - the yeor we celebrated
ovr 25th birthday - was the most
dynamic external market the
PBSA secfor has seenio date.
With the Higher Education sector
and the broader economy facing
new chollenges such as Brexit
and political changes around
the globe. our strategic planning
and risk management Is evolving
in response fo these changes.

Being well prepared for a combination

of risk events happening at the some time
is ceniral to our readiness preparation.
Affordability ond value for money is
increasingly important and owr risk
rmanagement focus on student experience
and the efficient delivery of a guality
preduct is more impartant than evar.

The following pages provide insight nto
our kay risks and how we navigate them,

Related seclions

Assessing our risk profile and key
risk developments during 2014

As an intrinsic part of our strategic
planning, and to support the Board's
robust assessment of the Group's
principal risks and its ongoing longer term
viatdlity, the Board conducted a thorough
review of our risk profile, This review
involved both a top-down approach:

» the Board considered a wide nange
of strategic and emerging risks and
opportunities and their impact

and a bottom-up approach:

> the Board scrutinised and challenged
the risks identified in the Operations
angd Property Business Units, as well
our financing and treasury fisks.

To ensure q broader perspective, this
review Nclyded engogement with external
experts, such as property vaivers & heatth
& safety audiors, os well as senior leaders

in the Higher Education sectar. This
external engagerment was especially
important this yeor as the sector starts fo
digest the mpact of Brexit,

This risk profile review identified four
risk cateqories:

Market - supply and demond 26
Opsrotional risks 27
Froperly/development risks 28
Finoncing risks 2%

These risk categories are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with moverment in specific risks —
driven principally by uncertainty
due to Brexit - as foliows.

Mariket risks increasing uncertainty following the Leave vote and the impact
{reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK plc and immigrotion policy
n demand) uncertainty fikwing from this.
While the impact of Brexit on the UK economy and Higher
Education secior remains unclear, it has led fo greater uncertainty.
we hove focused a significant peoportion of our risk activity
5 Business model and sfrategy understanding the potentialimpact on our businass.
12 Relationships Propery/ Liquidity and uncertainty in the broader real estate sector.
~  development risks

18 Marke! overview
2 Kayperformance indicators (KPIs)
26 Principal risks and uncertainties

0 Corporate governance

The property market has been affected by Brexit ond broader

macro economic factors. We have focused risk activity on
determining how this impacts our property-reiated business
activity during the yeor.

1) Read more: Principal risia ond uncertainties on poges 24 to 29.
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Re-calibrating our risk appetite in 2014

T Group's risk appetite is considenad as o fundomental part of the Board's sirategy seffing and annual budget — it does not happen
in isolation. Our risk appetite is underpinned by our principe! financial aim 1o continue delivering double-digit tolal retums and
sustainable growing eamings. Having regard to the key risk developments in 2016 sat out on page 22, the Boord recolibrated our risk
appetite. This recaibration consicers both threats lo~and opportunities in - our business in the context of macre and minor developments,
not only in the PBSA sector, but ako ihe troader Higher Education sector, property market and econamy mote generally.

Grect service Wwith higher fee levels, the atforaability and value of Higher Education remains a risk focus.

Home for Success, PRISM and owur University relationships remain an opporiunity for us 1o ditferentiate

from competitors.

Brilliand properties  Focusing our portfolic on high guality Universities and recycling our portfolio in o compedtitive market ploce.
o_ Undertaking development activities,

Growing and During 2014. focus on becoming a REIT and ongoing compliance with REIT tests 10 engble REIT conversion
suslainable eomings  effective | January 2017,

_ _° Planning and campleting our conversion to RET stalys,
Maintaining full occupancy across our portfolic.

§
:
3
1]

Stress testing our

sirategic planning

Eaich year, the Board develops and

refreshes the Group's Strategic Plan.

This is based on detailed three-year

strategic/financial projections {with

reloted scenaric plonning) and rolls

farward for & further two years using Increase in Yield
more generic assumptions. The Board . '
raps our three strategic objectives interest rates expansion
set against our risk profile {described The influences
directly betow). Recognising that risk of multiple
events do not necessarily happen in combined
isolation, the Board then siress fests risk avenis
these projections against various

multiple combinad risk events, Through

this process. o bose case and siress

tested Strategic Plan is developed.,

S{UOWIDLOHS 10D VDU

. , . Reductionin EU/
Dyring 2014, this strass tested scenaric infernational
planning considered a material
reduction in the number of Europeaan students
and infermational students, a material
rise in fong terminterest rales and
yield expansion, together with o
combination of ali these evenfts
occuring ot the some fime.

Mapping our three strategic objectives against our risk profile

Greod service Market (supply The health, safety, wellbeing and security of the 49,000 students who make Unite Students
and demond} thei homea i the foundation of our reputation and confinuad focus on health & safety is key
Operalional 1o building and maintaining this frust,

Affordability and value for money are increosingly critical in the increasingly cormpetitive
markel place. Developing the most trusted brand in the sector continues to be critical
1o our sustainable and fonger term success.

uogouLCU IO

Srililand proparfies  Property/ Our focus on working with high and mid ranked Universities means that we will
'0‘ development recycle capital into higher performing cities, Property developrment is o higher risk,
highert return activity.
Growing and Anoncing Maintain a timety approach fo aranging new debt and extending debt maturities,
sysfainable eamings raducing the cosf of funding. diversifying our funding sources and infroducing new
B o lenders I the Group. Secure a strong balance sheet with oppropriate levels of leverage
and liquidity Yo ensure the business can withstand any property cycle.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Creating the right corporaie
culture for effective risk

management

The Group's risk management framewaork
is designed to identify the principal

risks and ensure that risks are being
appropriately monitored, controls are in
place and required actions have cleor
ownership with requisite accountability.

The organisotion hos an open ond
cccountable culture, led by a stable and
experienced leadership team that has
operated in the sector for @ number of
yeors, This culture is set by the Board in the
way it conducts its Board and Committee
meetfings and cascades fhrough the
organisation enabling the same culture
for risk management.

During 2016. this corporate cutture was
assessed o part of the Board's effectiveness
evaluation, using the key learnings from
the Financial Reporling Council {FRC)'s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards.

62 Read more: Effectiveness

The culture of the organisation recognises
-and accepts — that risk is inherent in
business and encourages an open ond
proactive approach to risk monagement
os opposed to o blame culiure. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three
strategic ohiectives, the Group is able to
ensure risk management is prooclive ond
pre-emptive and not a fick box exercise.

The Board has the ovarall responsibility for
the governance of risks and ensures there
are adequote and effective systermsin
place. It does this in various ways:

> Risks are considered by the Board as
an intrinsic part of sirategy setting and
consideration of new opportunities —
risk i recognised as an inheren! port
of each opportunity

¥ A fwice yearly formal review by the
Boord of principal risks. how they
ara changing and considering any
emearging risks

¥ Risk Commitiee reviews the principal
risks that the Group is facing or
should consider

» Specific risk management in
dedicated Board sub-commitiees
allowing focus on specific risk areas
({for exomple, the Audit Committee
and Health & Safety Committes)

» Risk Cornmittee scrutiny and challenge
of Business Unit risk monagement
activity alowing o focused forum
for risk identification and review

> Board drectors also sit on Business Unit i
boords ond thus provide the Boord with
direct fine of sight to Business Unit risk
management aCtivity

* Risk assumance through external and
intemal auditors as well as speciolist
third party risk assuronce where
appropriate (e.g. specialist
indeperdent heaith and safety
compliance in the Openations and
Property Business Units).

Robuyst assessment

of principal risks

The directors confirm that they have |
conducted a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group. The
process for how the Board determined
these principal risks & exploined above
and the specific principol risks ane set
out on pages 26 1o 29.

Our risk management framework

£

The board
Risks assessed as part > Owned by the Board ond its Committees
of strategy sefing » Twice yearly formal risk review and ongoing monitoring
and risk oversight of risk integral to Board meetings
\l s ‘J/"
vd
Risk management Policles and controls Composition
of Risk Commiittee
> Owned by the Risk Commitiee and the Underpinning risk managemenf Chiris SIpojnorowict
Business Unit boards {swech as Capital Oparating Guidelines; Company Secretary
> Monthly risk fracker raview at Business Treqasury Policy: Anti-Bnbery Policy; Major and Head of Legal and
Unit boards Invastment Approvals Commitiee and the Chair of Risk Committee
> Risk Committee review of all risk trackers infernat controls framework|
Joe Lister
o Chief Fingncial Officer
‘\\;// e and MD of People
and Communications
Q
People and culture N\ Richard Smith
Chief Executive Gfficer
Embedded risk QOpenness. fransparency and clear ownership of
management culture risk management (through risk trackers) cascades Richawd Simpson

througth the organisation Group Property Director
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Key Risk Indicators (KRis)
linked to our KPis and our
three sirategic objectives
o e ]
Greut service Custormer
satisfaction
Safety
- - Highes Education frust
% Noms v. D¥rect Let
Belifant Nei asset value
properties Age of assef
Jccupancy
& Rental growth
Grawing and Earmings pershare
sustainable Total return
samings Net deb?

Leoan-to-value rotio
Net debt : EBITDA

Viabliity siatement

The Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a \hree-year period

to December 2019, faking cccount of the
Group's curent position and the polential
impact of the principal risks. The Direclors
consider the three-yeor lookaut period to
ke the rmost appropriate as this
fundamentally aligns with the Group's
own strategic pianning period combined
with the levels of plonning ceriainty that
con be derived from the development
pipefine. Based on this assessment, the
Oinectors have a reasonabie expechation
that the Group wik be able to continue

i operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the period 1o December 209,

As exploined gbove, the Group has
developed an annual business pkarining
pracess, which comprises ¢ Strategic
Pian, @ financial forecast for the cument
year and a financial projection for the
forthcoming three years {which inCludes
stress fesfing and scenaric planning and
aiso rolls forwards for a further two years).
This pian is reviewed edach year by the
Boord os part of its strategy setting
procass. Qnce approved by the Boord,
the plan i cascaded down acrass the
Group and provides & basis for setting all
detailed financial budgets and strategic

[ actions that ore subsequently used by

the Boord to monitor performonce,

Ovr risk management in action: Brexit

One tool n our risk management
process is arisk ‘deep dive'. This involves
an in-depfh review of a specific risk with
Brexit ¢ kay focus since the prospect

of an In/Out referengum first crystalised
in 2015.

In the period through 1o June 2006, our
risk deep dive process concluded that
no specific pre-empflive actions [other
than ongoing engagement with the
Higher Education secior} should be
taken for cur business in the event of

¢ Leave or Remain vote, This decision
was driven by the anticioated impact
10 our business if there was o Leove vole
{see below)] and the minimum two-year
fransitional period under Article 50.
Engagernent with the Higher Education
sector is helping inform our thinking on
implications for the PBSA sector and
specifically our business.

Qur sk deep dive process concludes
hat Brexit should not significantty
impact our business for the
fotlowing reasons:

¥ Following a periad of initiol
uncertainty immediately after the
result in June 2016, confidence hos
returned to the PBSA rmarket with

a high volume of portfolios and assets
trading in the second half of 2016

EU resecrch funding is important 1o UK
Universities and this. together with the
immigration status of EU academics
and EU students in the UK more
generally, clearty creates uncerfainty
for the Higher Educotion sector along
with the broader uncertainty in the
widler economy. This uncertainty is
moderated by the sirangth of UK
Universities [the second largest
destinglion for international

students after the US); the ongoing
imternationgiisation of Higher
Educgtion with the global rise of the
middle closses. Sterfing depreciation
also makes UK Higher Edycation/
accammaodation more offordable
for international students

v

25

The forecast performance outiook is alsa
used by the Remunaration Commitiee to
establish the targets for both the annual
and longer ferm incentive schemes.

The financing risks of the Group are
considered 1o have the potential greatest
impact on the Group's Hinancial viability,
The two principal financing risks for

the Group are: the Graup’s ability to
arange new deblfreplace expiring debt
facilties; and any adverse interest ate
movements. The Group has secured
tunding for the comemitted future
development pipeline and prapares its
Strategic Plan on a fully funded basis in
line with the fhree-year outicok period.
Tc hedge agoinst the potential of
oadverse interest rote movernents the
Group manages its exposure with o
combination of fixed rate facilifies and
using interes! rate swaps for ils floating
rate debt. During the yeor the Group has
complied with all covenant requirements
attached o its financing fodiiities.

4@ Read more: Ananciil review

> EU students’ funding arrangements
uhder curment tuition fee arrangements
are confirmed for 2016/17 and 2017/18,
but there Is uncertainty beyond then.,
EU students represant 9% of our
customers and so any impact on

EU student numbers would have
alimited impact on our eccuponcy
Despite these broader uncertainties,
the supply/dermnand ocutiook remaing
favourabie and with the benefit

of owr development pipeline, the
strengthening of our University
relationships and our focus on high
and mid-ranked Universities, our
business is well placed to navigate
the uncertainty risk.

v

We continug to monitor the
developments and engage in the

other risk management agtions outiined
in the principal risks (see page 26).

0
g
D
o]
§
0
®

SUSWIBIDS (D1DLDULY

UOHOULIOJL 18I0



26

THE LIWITE GROLIP PLE ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2014

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Market risks

1. Demaond reduction {driven by Government policy or other macro events)

Pessible events Impact

» Brext impacting numibers of EU students coming o study in the UK

¥ Changes ir Govermiment poficy on Higher Educaton funding

» mmigration policy changes aftecting infemationalstudent numbers
and behaviour,

coming jo the UK

What happened In 2016

Shudent rumbers In the LK continue fo grow with approxinmately 3,000 more applicunts than 2015/2016

The total numiber of applicants in 2014 glso grew with 155,000 mane applications than ploces

Stronger growth (3% In acceptances) in the high and midk-tanif Universities

Unite Students accupancy of 38% |2018/2017) campared to $9% [2015/2014) but more beds 45.000

at 31 December 2004 as comparad with 46,000 of 31 December 2015 Increase in overal student

numbers continues 16 transkate 1o mere students staying ot Unie

» EUstudents flunding amangements for curaton of study Gonfirmed for 2016/2017 and 2017/2018

> Dudng 2016, we have seen on inCredde in Nommations with more cormmitied to beds than ever
before 58% beds - 2018/2017 vs. 57% 20015/2014

3l Read more' Occupancy and success of nominalions

v

> Patenfial rechuction in demaond and hence proftaibily and asset vakses
» Depariwe from EUimpacting EU raseorch grants and EU students

Risk management

Ongoing monlionng of Brewt imphcahorns.,
Govermnment policy and its impact on UK,

EU and intemational student numbers studying
in the UK. Reguiony reviewing ous portlokio 1o
ansura we have the highest quality portiolio,
approprictely szed andin the night \ocations.

Risk Miigatton in 2014
Risk deep dive into impact of Bresdt.

25 Read rmaore: Our rsic managemant in oction: Brexst

Thraugh implementation of Home for Success ~ our cofe pupose fa provide ervironments that help
students achiave more dulng their ime at Universiy — we are seeing consisiently hgh Customer
satisfaction and Higher Education frust scares.

28 Read more: Key performanc e indicators {KMs)

Focustor 2017

Shalegk: objective

Oftering graat service is key lo helping us sustain
ary reduction in demand [as wed| as ensuring
we have brillant properties and growing

and sustainable eamings to manage any
demand defict],

5 Read more: Our siategy

900

Continued engagement with the Higher Education sactor fo undentand and be ready far the impact of Brexdt and other HE pokcy changes

2. Demand reduclion (due to societal change)

Poszitia avants impoct

> Concerns aver the costs of 9 University education - affordablity and
value for money

> Alemnative course delivery (such os Massive Open Oniine Courses)

> Shorterfmore semesier igd courses.

ond asset values

What happened in 2016
Duringg 2014, roked oul PRISM, our digrtal ond sealable operating piatiorm, drving efficiency and
CUStOmMet seTvice

31 Read more: PRISM
Applications ond acceptance data continue lo provide evidence that stronger Universities are
pearforrming better.

18 Read] more: Markst Review
Enhanced sehvice lavak over the fdst tew yaars with faster wi-F speeds, free communal cleans and
enhanced common spaces.

> More compeirtion for vaiue and reduced demand for year round
sludent accommedation I the longer term msuling m lower profitabfity

Risk management

Ongoing moniorng of atfordabilty and value for
money and the evolution of digikal learnmg and
ensuing we pariner with the stronges Unversities
with properties in the best tocations

Risk mitigafion activity in 2014
Ensured the successtul il out of PRISM. enabling online and more flaxble tenancies.

Continued investment In market knowledge and bullding on our relationships with the strongest
Universifies, deven by Homme tor Suctess and our Univessity parinerships team.

Focus for 2017

sirotegic objeciive

Offering greal sarvics is key 1o emuring we

have relahorships with the higher ond medkam
tanti Universilies {the ones most Bkely to sustana
reduction in dermand). PRISM helps us defiver the
best custorner samce sificiently

5 Reod more. Oul sialegy

Using PRISM to drive enhanced customer service ond volug formoney. thtough ifs scalablity and digital efficiency.

Caontinued facus on Home lor Success ond our partnarships with the stronger Universmes.
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Greal service

Growing and
susiamncbie sofings

Briliant propérhes

3. Supply Increase (due lo Increasing interest in the performance and appeal of the PBSA sector)

Possible svens

» New supply os sustained high leves of investment demand fiter into the
development market, pimarlly vough investors praviding larwaed
commitments fo smalief developerns.,

What happened in 2014
Volume of PBSA assets iraded m 2016 moderated from record levet seenin 2015

mpact
» More compettion for the best sifes
> Potentialimpoct on rental growth ond occupancy

During 2016 confinued rolf cul of Home for Success and maintaining a strong proportion of Deds secured under nominations agreemenis al 58% (2015, 57%).

Opening of five new properhes during 2014
34 Recd mare Propeviies dellveced
Level of new supply

18 Read more' Market review

Rk Miigation In 2014

We cortinue with aur focus and steategy on:

¥ Morkats with supply/demard imbdance

> Exposwe 1o the best Universities underpnned with new developments secuned with nominations deals

30 Recd more: Operaiions review
* Investmentin ourbrand and student expenence — crealing befter environments within our new

developments through Home lor Success mnitiative
> Maintaining strong relationships with key Highar Education partners.

Focustor 2017

Sirgtegic objective

Offering greot service as wel as hoving
brilant propertles i critical to mifigating
any supply surplus,

Continued focus an our portfolio i the towns and cities with the strongest grawth prospect and using PRISM, our scalable operating platform, to ditierentiate

out brand and offer consistentty high leveis of service to studients and Universities alke
Ensunng a strong yet texible capital structure so we can adapt appioprately as supply grows.

Operaftional risks

4, Major health & safety (HLS) incident in a property or o development sife

Possibla avents
> Folaity of mojor Injury om o fire os othes Incrdent at o property
? Mulliple controctor njunes ot a development or operafional site.

‘What has happened during 2014

With fire as our biggest safety risk in our operaling portfolio, during 2014 we estobshed o Primory
Authority Agreernen] with the Avon Fire Authority 1a focus on

> The development joutney for our fire strategy decisions.

* Fire Safety Management - mproved policies and procedures, fisk assessments, training & fire records
> Maindenance - tesfing and pionned preveniaive

¥ SpecHication lor new buikis and devalkopments.

ixtemal assurance sought through.

> Appointrment of the Brtish Satety Council as our new externad satety auditor

» Physical secunty review of our propertties by WSP Parsorg Brinckerhoft.

Cantinved good e Ogainst our operationalsatety KP, with five reporiable accidents and
posiiiva resuits against our KPis In our devalopment activity.

0 Recdd mote: Key Petformance indicators (KPi)

mpoct
> mnpact to students iving with s, conractors working on-site gnd visitors
» Repuigtional domage and rust in Unite Students as G reiable parmer

Risk ma
HAS s glven direct Bocrd supervision by the HAS
Commitiee (o sub-committee of the Board)
which actively supervises H&S, ensuring robust
policies ond procedures arein place and
conmistently cormphed with,

kL Read more:, HaS Committes report
HAS is ok aclively reviewsd in the Operatiors
and Property Business Units, ensuring that HAS is
fop of mind in our day to day operatiom and
regularly assessad ond valdated.

Risk Mitigation in 2016

Regular extemal qudils and (ntermal rspections of our ploperias. Fullreview of our operations sk
assestments 1o emsure odeduate hazord conirol, fogether with Improved confractor manogerment and
et 1o wirk system for hazardous work activiies, mproved safely Iraining, vsing cugmaented realty,
tocusing on driving for work, lone working, satety sgnage. housekeepingmaintenance, harards such as
chemmicak. machinery, asbestos ond pefsondl prolechve equiprent. This mcludes an inferactve game lor
accider. incident and naar misses.

Focuy for 2017

Sirategic objectitve

Ersurinng the HAS of our Cusfomers, conitactors
and empioyees is lundamental to us offering
geeot service.

H] Read more; Qut sirolegy

Wark on the jouney fo interdependence with empowernent in day to day H&S management of the core of every thing we da.
Ongoing focus on continuous improverment (Inchuding prortising the fire sk review. crisis managerment, security review and exfernal gudlt recommendetions

ond gctions)
miegrating wellbsing into the H&S Managemenl System.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES
CONTINUED

THE LINITE GROUF PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

Possible events Impact

» Site gequbition ask - increasing competition iof the best sites pushes
up prices

3> Plannin@ rsk - delays of failure to get panning

> Constnychon mk - bulid cost inflation as the economy iImproves

What hgppened in 2014
Five sites pCcqQuiled. adding 3.082 beds to the cevalopment pipeine:

Five planning consents secured,
2014 schemes defivered. on fime and to budget.
34 RrRead more: Propeity review

> NAV ond EPS allected by aborted schemes and/of reduced tinanciol
rehums. with cash hed up in development.

Risk management

Expenenced deveiopment team with extensve
site selectionand plonning expertise, coupled
with strong track record and focus on project
delivery and strong redationships with
construcHon partners with appropnate risk
sharing. Group Board approval for commitments
abaove a cerfdin ihveshold

Francial investrment in schemes canefully
managed pricr to gront of planning

Te ersure we have the highest qualty porifollo, we
are pursung new apportunifies on a condifional
baxsls. but with a Imited number of sites contracled
not conditional on planning following a detaled
sk assessment of that opportunity

Kisk Msigotion in 2014
Reguiar development taam and property review, with Group Board director oversight to ensure foilure
to secure stes or complete on fime are managed in the budgel,

Detalted planning pre-applcafions and dus disgence betore site acqukition
2 Read mote: Development oclivity

Buitd cast inflatian regularty approised and refreshed in Property Board meetings Mid-slzed framework
contracion wed and Ionges iem relationships establshed 1o miigote cycheal swings,

Focus for 2017
Main focus will be on dedvenng multilocation developments and securing pipaline for 2020,

2 Read more Developmen pipaline

objective
Brillant propertles

3 Readrore Our siategy

Foasible events impact

» Buying orseling praperties ai the wiong pointin the cycle.

What happrenad In 2014
Yoturne of PBSA assets moderaled in 2014 following record volumes in 2015

The value of the Group's investment porticlio (including our shane of co-investment vahicles) increased
to £2,277 milion as ot December 2014 (31 December 201 5: £2,045 milken] wilh the averoge portioko
yield faling Pops to 5.4%.

During 2015 wa continued to maximise our portfolio value through @ progromme of selective
daevelopments, acquisitions, disposak and relurbishmants.

3% Rexad more, Disposals
Customer satisfaction confinues at high tevel supparling rental growth and our portfollo value.
36 Read more. Rendal growth and porifoite volue

» Reduction in asset vaives reducing financikal returns

Ritk management
Group Board and Property Board cngong
monitoring of property markel, direction
and values

Farecast rental growth and recuiring profit
olisets any yleld movement.

Ensuring we have a strong yet fiexible capitai
structure 50 wea can adapt approprigiely to
market conditions.

Clear and aclive asset managemeni sirategy

Kixk Mitiga®ion In 2014
Disposal - ongoing moniforing of our entire portiolio with selective disposals to beneht from keener

prices in the market. We sold £114 milon of assets in 2016.

Acqusitions - dkscipined acqubitions strategy exercaing caution over portiolio premiums belng paidin
the market-

Careful management of net debt and see-through LTV.
Maintainkg dscipined approaach o new development fransactions by maintaining Group hurdie rates

Focvsfor 2017
To continue lo acquire sites In ine with Group hurdie rates and to procure contracts it ine with budges.

Strategic objeciive
Brilani properties.

5 Readmore Qur sirrlegy
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Financing risks

7. Unable t¢ armange new debt or expiring debt {acilities cannot be replaced or only

af high cost, Adverse inferest rate movements

Possibie evenis impact
» uUnite breqchas o loan covenant os taiks to replace dabl on expiry
? Interest rate increase

> It upable 1o replace dabt, then possible forced sale of assets
patentiolly leading to sales below valuation. Slowdown of

development aciivity. Reduced level of prolitobity

> Adverse rate movements con lead 1o reduced profitabikty
and reduction in proparty values {fhrough resufting expansion
of valugtion ylalds ond lowes valucriions).

What hoppened in 2016
During 2014, LTV ratio mproved fo 34% from 35% af the end of 2015 and nel dett grew by £45 mition
to £774 rruikon. During 2016, £150 milion of naw debt was anonged.

100% of debt at fixed rotefswopped.

During 2014 our average cost of dabt has iallen 1o 4.2% from 4.5%: 2015 ond we expect it to iall further
by the and of 2017 as a proporhion of forward starting swaps become effective.

4 Read more: Financial mview/capii

Risk maq

Proaciively managing debt maturities to
refinonce these facilities at least 4-12 months
before maturity ond in paraliel diversitying our
sayrces of finance to repdy more axpemnsive and
less flemble bomowings.

Contro| of tutute cash commitments in line with
progress of disposal and refinancing.

inferest rates maonitored by the tunding 1eam
as anintegral part of cur refinancing ociivity
—ownaed by the CFO and with Group Boord
oversight. Georing ratios defined in our Capitat
Onerafing Guidalines.

Hedge exposure with interest rate swaps ond
refinance toclities with fixed rates.

sk Miligation in 2004
Reguiarand reliable engagement with ienders,

With benign interest rate eswirenment. have continued to toke advantage of historlcally kow rates (both
on news detl and also enterng info forward starfing interest rafe swaps kocking in rotes for oue 2017 and
2018 developmen! pipetine).

40 Read more. Debl Vdevelopnment debt and swaps

Focus for 2017

Shategic obleciive
Growing and susiginable samings.

s Read more: Our sirategy

Funding future development Goquisiions os well as 2017 funding requirements fof the Group. USAF and LSAV,
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commiiment fo providing

a Home for Success for students
and to be the most tnssted brand
in the sectar is centred around our
high qualily properties, helpful
staff and a commitment to great
customer service for both our
students and Universlty pariners.

The implementation of our operating
platform, PRISM, has brought considerable
improvements to our custorner service,
allawing us to move to o seven day
operating made|, offer online room
viewings and o adopt paperiess tenancies,
These improvements have resulted in the
time for tenoncies to be confirmed
reducing to five days from 15 days.

30%, of bockings are now done online or
through mobile bookings. enswring the
process of securing accommodation is

as easy and @s efficient as possible for
stuclents. additionally, through our Living
with Unite app, 75% of maintenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

QOur Home for Success investment
programme, which has seen us invest

£40 million ocross kay areas of the business
including physical, digiial, customer

service and people, has been complated.

We have enhanced our Wi-Fi speeds
ocross student rooms and communal
spaces to S0Mbps, complated the
instaliation of our LED lighting progromme
and our Student Life Hub continues o
prove popular with students.

We continue to build an our strong
relationships with over 60 high and
mid-rank Universitias, with nominations
agreements now representing 58%.
with rew terms agreed for a longer

THE UNITE GROUP PLL ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2016

duration, on average 10 years, compared
o seven years for existing amangements,
Our partnerships ensure that Universities
are able to provide thek students with
accormmodation close 1o compus and

a safe and secure environment in which
o live, succeed in thelr academic studies
and meet keflow students.

Qur continued focus on cusiomer service
has ted to high occupancy levels with
98% of beds let and rental growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved record high levels
of customer satisfaction and a growing
proportion of return students,
demonstrating our commitment fo
helping students grow ond sucteead

at University and beyond.
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31

BUILDING ON OUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW
OPERATING PLATFORM

Sirmon Jones
Operations Director

Related sections

3 Business model and strategy

12 Relationships

18 Markat review

22 Key performance indicators (KPis]

26 Principal risks and uncertainties

Simon Jones addresses some fopical quesfions
from our sharehokders

How has PRISM benefitted the
services Unite provides?

Nl Our operating piatform, PRISM.

which s unigue ¢ Unite, aliows

us to drive graater efficiencies of scale
while offering the best possible setvice
1o our customers. PRISM has allkkwed
us to move to @ seven day operating
mode! and offer new services such as
onling bookings and room viewings, in
addition o paperiess fenoncies. These
improvernents have not only delivered
efficiencies for the business but greatly
improved the service we provide
to our students. As we continue
o grow the portfolio, PRISM enables
us o demonstrate a different
approach 1o other operations.

Q

a Da you enwvisage growing the
proportion of your beds offersd
Hrough University porinerships?

N We pride ourselves on our
parinerships with Universities

and work with thern o ensure that
they are abile to offer high quality
accommodation and services to fhew
students, an important component

of the gverall student experience.
Nominations agreements moke up
58% of the portfolio with the remaining
beds let directly to students. We continue
10 explore future partnerships with
Universities, which lypically soon

10 years and provide visibility on future
income, We expect to remain at
areund this tevel.

How imporiant Is the affordability

of your occommeadation to your

business model?

Al Atfordabilty is important for

stuclents and therefore itis
important fo us. We offer a wide range of
price points and room sizes as part of our
focus on deliveting a more affordable
proposition for stucients, Over the past
few years, Unite has focused on
delivering o more affordoble proposition
for students, We olso reinvest each year
in the accommedation and extend our
student services 50 that students get
volue for money,

o How do you assess and value
competilion and whal do you
dote counteract i?

) We monitor the market closety and
competition for sites and property

portiokos has continued. We continue fo
nvest in our key ditferenfiators such as our
portfolio scale and the locations or our
buikdings as well s PRISM, through which
we deliver unmatched customer services,
and through our Higher Education
industry experience and relationships.
Qur expertise continyes fo be important
as nvastor interest i the sector increases.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Summary EPRA income stclerment

2014 215
m £m
Unite's share of rental income 159.1 1443
Unite's share of praperty operating expenses (42.8) 139.8}
Net aperating income (NOI) 1143 104.5
NOI margin nI% 72.5%
Management fees 14.0 120
Operating expenses (23.M) (21.9)
Finance costs (45.9) (48.1)
USAF acquisition and net perforrmance fee _ 4% =20
Development ond other costs {5.5) 7.2
EPRA garnings 87 o 6r.3_
Yield reicted slement of performance lee (1.4) [:1.8)
Adjusted EPRA samings 41.3 49.5
Adjusted EPRA EPS 27.7p Bp

* A full reconcilation of Profit before tax to EPRA eamings is set out in note 2.2 of the tinanchal statements.

The Group continues to report on an IFRS
basit and to also present fis performance
inling with best practice recommended
by EPRA, The Operations ond Property
raviews focus on EPRA measures as these
are our kay internol measures and aid
comparabifity across the real estate sector.

Sales, rental growth

and profitablity

The kay strengths of our opernating business
are aur people, our PRISM operating
platforrm, the strangth of our brond and
the strength of aur relationships with
Universities. We have continued o build on
these strengths throughout 2018, resulting
ina £11.8 milion, 24% increase: in Adjusted
EPRA eamings 1o £61.3 milion compared
lo last year {2015: £49.5 million). This growth
has again been driven by high occupancy,
rentat growth and the impact of portfolio
movements as well as further operational
efficiencies and ongoing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rentalincome has
increased by £14.8 milion, up 10%, 0sa
rasult of new openings and sustainad
rental growth. NOI margin improved to
73.1% (December 2015: 72.5%), reflecting
further operating efficiencies that were
driven by the implementation of our new
PRISM operating plotform during 2016.
PRISM provides us with the ability to
differentiate ourseives from othars, driving
efficiencies through the use of technology
which enables us to provide enhanced
levels of service to our customers, We
maintain our expectation that NOI margins
will improve towards 75%, olthough
batancing margin growth and service
level enhancement will remain our
overdding priority.

We are now managing 49.000 beds
compared to 446,000 at 31 December
2015. Alongside this increase in beds
there has been o growth in overheods of
£1.2 million, driven mainly by depreciation
costs assaciated with the new PRISM
systern, and we expect a further small
increase of depreciation costs in 2017,
Recuring manogement fee income from
joint ventures increased by £2.0 milion to
£14.0 miliion (2015: £12.0 million), os a result
of the growth of assets under management
in USAF and LSAV. In addition to the
recurring asat managerment fees, o further
£4.9 million of net USAF performance

ond acquisition fees were generated
{2015; £22.0 milion). Our key overhead
efficiency measure (totol operating
expenses less management fees asa
proportion of Unite's share of property
value} continues to improve and now
stands at 40bps (December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our target of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 based on
current yields.

The £6.5 milion USAF net performance
fee is payable in units and is based

on USAF's cumulative totatreturn at

31 December 2016. The componeant of
the fee that relates to yield movement
has been excluded from Adjusted EPRA
eamings purposes to reflect a normalised
level of earnings. The operalional element
of the performancs fee is driven by USAF's
income and rental growth performance
and is not expected to significantly add
to our earnings performance going
forward given the current valuotion yigids,
gearing levels and rental growth outlook.
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Finance costs decreased to £45.% million
{2015 £48.1 million). An increase in net
debt of £45 million to £776 millien [2015:
£731 million) was offset by a lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% (2015:
4.5%) as we have added new debt
facilities ot tower average rates, taking
advarntage of the historically low cost

of debt. In addition. the increase in net
debt has been driven largely by spend
on development activities which has in
fum lead to an increase in the amount
of interest that is copitaiised into
development schemes to £5.2 million, up
from £2.7 million in 2015. We expect the
level of interest capitalisation ta remain
at around this kevel given the ongoing
level of developmenl activity in 2017,
Development (pre-contract] and other
costs fell to £5.5 million (2015: £7.2 million).
reftecting the levels of site acquisition in
the business, the eamnings impact of shane
based incentives and our contribution to
our charitable frust, the Unite Foundation.

Occupancy, reservatlons

and rentat growth

Occupancy across Unite's partfolio for
the 2014/17 academic year stands at 98%
and like-for-lika rental growth of 3.8% was
achieved on our stabiised porifolio. We
have continued to grow the proportion
of bads let 1o Universities with 58% of
rooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5.000 beds over the Iast three
years. Enhanced service levels and our
deep understanding of student needs
have resuited in longer term and more
robust parinerships with Universities.

We expect the proportion of beds let

to Universities to rernain at or around

this levelin the future, This bolance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of having income secured
by Universitias, as well os the ability 1o
offer rooms 1o retumning students and fo
determine market pricing on an annual
hasis, On average, rents on nominations
rooms ane ¢.5% below direct let
equivalents and, based on our recent
experignce with new agreements, thera
is an opportunity fo close this discount in
tha coming yedars.

Reservations for the 2017/18 academic
year are encowaging, at 73% (7% at the
same point last year) as a result of our
confinued focus of working alongside the
UK’ est Universities as well os our iocal
presence in Ching buikding relationships
with Chinese Universities. This structural
growth within the Cities we operate,
together with our differentiated service
offering, provides us with further
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69%

Reservations for the 2017/18
acodemic year

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM UWERE DELIVERED
IN 2816, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in cccupancy ond rentol
growth for the 2017/18 ccademic year
which we expect fo be in the region of
3.0-3.5%.

Home for Success

OurHome for Success invastment
programme provides us with a real
point of differentiation to other providers
of sludent occommodation. The
programme, which was initiated in 2014,
generoted significont enhancaments in
our operating pictform, the establishment
of communal study and relaxation
spaces that our custorners have told us
that they want and the deveiopment

of a sense of home within our properties.
These factors, together with our service
levels, student insight, prime locations
and mid-market price points, make us
stand oyt for students and Universities.

Investment In people.
technology and relationships
Satisfaction with service and the strength
of our relationships with Universities has
been mainfained ot high ievels as both
students and Universities benefit from
tha investments that we are making.

The final elements of PRISM were
deiivered in 2016, providing full online
viewing and booking functionaiity
akngside enhanced maintenance
service levels and revenue manoagement
functionality. We will continue to invest
in ond evolve this plotform to mointain
our sector leading odvoniage in this area.

We have continued to invest in our
digital capabilities, focusing on the
student experiance. in 2016, this has
sean us deliver further enhancements

o our student-focused apps and our
website, a portfulio-wide communications
portol to drive engagement and to help
students access the information they
need to suppoert them during the course
of the acodemic year. Qur apps and
digital platforms provide students with

@ hassie free solution to every day
CONCHMS, provige therm with the support
they need gnd so aliow them fo focus
on their siudies and time ot University.

33

Developing our teams remains a priority
for us and we have implemented new
leadership programmaes across the
whole organisation over the past two
years. These programmes gnsura that
we are providing our teams with the
fraining required fo defiver exceilent
customer service as well as developing
their careers, and they have been an
integral part of our successful attainment
of Investars in People Gokd status in 2014,

we also continue to invest meoningfully
in our Higher Education sector
redationships, Our Universities Partnerships
ond Engogement teem is dedicated 1o
building strong working relationships
with key University pariners, and this
approach has seen us incerporate
University requirements into new
developments and driven the growth

in the number of beds under nominafions
ogreements.

In China, our marketing office is now
fully operational and our local online
presence has been established. We
have also started to create meaningful
relationshins with both local and British
Universitias In Ching, as well as providing
important support to our Chinese
custorners before they fravel 1o the UK
and ¢ their parents while their children
are overseas, We are confident that this
investment will daliver long-term benetit
to the business os wel! as to Chinese
students and UK Universitias.

Simon Jones
Operalions Director
22 February 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW

THE UMITE GROUP PL.C AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2816

BRILLIANT ~~
PROPERTIES

Stopieton House, London

In 2014, we opened five new
bulidings, adding fo our portfolic
of high quality, conveniently
located accommeodation for
students studying in the strongest
University fowns across the UK.
The new buildings Increased

our number of beds by 3,082

to a total of 51,310. The bulidings
comprise mainly cluster flal
accommodation and provide
facilities such as on-site laundry,
study space, communal areas
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2014/17 with the largest
ever number of studenfs of the
start of an academic year.

More than half of the beds, 1,551, ore
located in London at aur two new sitas:
Qlympic Way and $tapleton House,
Olympic Way, which has been let to
middlesex Untversity under a nomination
agreement, sits naxi to the iconic Wembley
Stadium and is part of the regeneration
of that area. Stopleton House, Holloway
Road, also opened its doors fo students
in Septembber 2016 and is let under

a nomination ogreement o London
Metropolitan University.

Two further complations, Greetham

Street Partsmouth and Far Gostord Street
Caventry, were acquired by USAF, recycling
capital for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
completed in Aberdeen. The acquisition
by USAF was lunded with a new

£100 miflion, five-year facilily provided

by Wells Forgo. Both properties are on
nomination agreements to Portsmouth
Uriversity and Covenitry University and are
fully let for the 2016/17 academic yedar.

We continue to progress our 7.000-bed
development pipeline which extends out
to 2019, with five schemes set lo openin
September 2017. These developments will
provide a home for students studying af
some of the UK's sfrongest Universities in
Coventry. Edinburgh, Liverpool and Oxford.

In addition o this, we ocquired five
development sites: St Vincent's Sheffield,
International House Birmingham,
Chaucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorne
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coventry and secured four planning
consents (Skelhorne Street Liverpool,
Intemationol House Birmingham,
Millennium Way Coventry and Brunel
Chaucer))

Greatham Sreet, Portsmoutt

Causewayend, Aberdesn
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COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Related saclons
5 Business model and strategy
12 Relatianships
18 Moketeview
2 Key performance indicators (KPis)

26

Principal risks and uncertaintias

Q&A
Richard Simpson addresses some topicol questions
from our sharehokders
Has investor appefite for the Q Do you envisaoge the London maviet
sector cordinued? for developmaent opeaning up?
JNl Furpose built student Wwe are starting to see signs that

accommeodation continued to opportyunities may re-ermerge in
attract high levels of investment in 2016 London. However, returms on potentiol
at £3.25 bilion, albeit at sightly iower new projects in London rermain below
levels thor seen in 2015 ot £5.5 billion. our hyrdle rate due, principally to
Transaction volumes have remained excessive planning levies and higher

healthy, supporting current valuations, atternative use values for prospective
with arange of buyers in the market. This | sites. We monitor the market closety
continued inlerest reflects the defensive | and remain afive to future opporiunities.
nature of the asset ckiss and attractive

rental growth cutiook.

Arg you seeing future cevelopment
opportunities given the levels of new
supply coming onto the market?
There is stil strong demand for
offordable, well-located and

high guality accommaodation in

leading University towns and cities.

Our development pipeline of 7000 beds

spanning untll 2017 is progressing wel.

We continue to monitar the market for

development opportunities that are in

line with our target returns for regional
deveiopment, focusing oh high to
mid-ranked Universities in towns and
cities which we expact will see the
strangest growth.
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAV growth

EPRA NAV per share increased by 12% to

446 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pence at 31 December 2015. In tofal,

EPRA net assets were £1,557 million ot

31 Decembsar 2014, up from £1,394 million

0O yeaor earlier,

Looking forward, our portiofio is well placed
o deliver confinued value growth. Our
focus on the strongest University iocations
underpins rental growth prospects ond we
will contfinue to deliver meaningful upside
from our development activity. in tofal, aur
secured pipeline is expected to deliver

43 pence per share of NAY upiift and

» Capital expenditure on developments
of £144 million and £12 million on
investment assefs relating to
refurbbishment and LED instoliations

» Disposals of £114 million

¥ Valuation increases of £136 million on
the investmant and development
portiolios, with like-for-like rental growth

The main factors behind the 67 penca per | 13 pence of eamings per share of 3.8% being generated on the
share growth in EPRA NAV per share were: | Once completed. stabilised portfotio
> Increased share of USAF of £32 million,
> The growth in the value of the Group's | Property portfolio s a result of the performance fee
share of investrent assets (+34 pence), | The valuation of our property portialio ot earned in 2015,
as a result of rental growth (+26 pence) | 31 Decemtzer 2014, including our share of
and yield compression (+8 pence) gross assels held in USAF and joint ventures,
» The value added to the development was £2,277 million (31 December 2015:
porttolio (+21 pence) £2,065 million). The £212 milfion increase
» EPRA earnings for the period (+25 pence) | in portiolio value (Unite share) was
» Dividends paid of 14 pence attributable to:
reduced MAV.
Sumnmaory balance sheet
201 2015
Wholy Share ol wnoty Shana of
owned Fund/IV Telal cowned Fund/ v Total
o T tm tm £m £€n £m
Rental properties 1,062 1,023 2,085 1,024 811 1,835
Properties under development 185 7 172 150 80 230
1,247 1.0%0 2217 1174 M 2,065
Adjusted net debi (432} (344) (778) {448) (283 (731)
Other assets/{kabilitios) (15) (14) {29) {5) (18} [23)
Convertible bond 85 - 85 83 - 83
EPRA nal assels a8s 472 1.557 B4 590 1,374

= A reconciliation of the IFRS bolonce sheet to EPRA net assets is sef out in section 2.2 of the tinancial statements

The propartion of our property portiolio that is income generating s 2%. up from 89% at Decembaer 2015, with B% now under
development. With the completion of the LSAV development pipeline, the maojority of development activity relates to whally-owned
assels. We will continue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it toremain ot around these
levels, well within our intemct cap of 20% going forward.
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Unile investment porticlio analysis ot 31 December 2014

whally Untle
USAF owned Lease tokol share
London Value (£m) 351 985 425 - 174 988
Beds 2014 5861 1.98% 240 10,124 ATR:
Maijor provingiol vaolue (Em) 1,584 44 440 -~ 2,043 824
Bads 20,656 a3t 5914 U577 29,478 40%
Provinciot Valug (£m) vyl - 197 ~ 51¢ m
Beds 4,804 - 3.253 1.059 9,116 13%
Tofal Value (£m) 2,257 1,009 1,061 - 4327 2,085
Beds 27,474 6192 11,156 3894 48,718 100%
Unite ownershin share 23% 50% 100% -
Unite ownership (Em) 519 505 1061 - 2,085

The nvestrment portfolio (see-through) is split between London [47%) ond the rest of the UK {53%). brocdly in line with previous years,
The regional focus of our development pipeline means that the London weighting is ikety 1o falk to around 35% as the portfolio is built out.

Student accommodation yields
The level of transactions in the student
accommodation sector has remained
high in 2016 following the unprecedented
lgvels sean in 2015, with over £3 billion of
ossets trading during the year. The majority
of buyers have been supported by global
institutional copital. An element of
uncertainty in the few months following
the EU referendum in June was repkaced
with canfidance in the market with a high
volume of portfolios and ossets troding

in the second halt of the vear.

As aresulf of the investor cppelite ond
subsequent transactions, there has bean
a modest level of yiekd compression
across the seclor, This yield compression
has been reflected in our portfolic and
the average yield {on a see-through
basis at 31 December 2016 was 5.45%,
aninword movement of nine basis

points over the year.
Indicotive valuation ylelds

N pec20l 3 Dac 2015
London _ 45-50% 45525%
Prime provincial  5.25-5.75%  5.35-58%
Provincial §.0-4.5% $.0-6.5%

Development activily
Development activity continues to be

a significant driver of growth in NAV and
future eamings. We are continuing 10 see
opportunitias to selectively secure sites
for defivery in 2019 and 2020 in strang
regional locations alongside high-quality
Universities within our torget range

of 8.0-8.5% yield on cost. Returns on
potential new projects in London still
remnain below our hurdle rate of 7.0%

due principally to higher aiternotive

use values for prospective sites and
planning levies, and we have not seen
the comection in lond prices that were
anticipated following the EU referendym.

201 and 2017 compietions

We completed five schemes during 2016
in line with budget ond programme. Qver
70% of these bedys ana lat 10 Universities
under nominations agreements for the
2016/17 academic year, with an overage
duration of 10 years.

The 2017 pipeling is progressing wed.

We are on track to deliver three wholly-
owned schemas in Edinburgh, Liverooo!
and Coventry and, in USAF, two forward
funded developmenits in Oxforg and
Edlinburgh, adding o fotal of 2,200 beds.
i We expect gll of the schemes to be fully
- let for the 2017/18 academic yedr.

Reglonol develapment pipellne

During the yeaor, we have continued to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regional pipeling
and have now secuned g fotal of eight
schemes which are expected o defiver
approximalely 4,800 beds in addition

to our ongoing 2017 projects. Al new
regional developments are being
undertaken whelly on bakince sheet
and prospective returns for the secured
pipedine ore very ottroctive of aon averoge
8.5% yield on cost.

Planming i now in place on all of the
schemes in the pipeline fwith the
exception of the Old BRI site in Bristol
which is expecied fo receive consent
in the first haolf of 2017}, During the yeor,
we have reorganised the phasing

of deliverias in 2018 and 2019, with
Aberdeen and Bristol being pushed
back to 2019 and Birmingham and
Shatfield occelerated #o 2018, This will
aniure a balanced level of activity
across the two yeaqrs.
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

$ecured develapment pipeline (wholly cwned)

Tolal Tolg Forecast
camplated Seveoment Caoex 1t Caoex Foracart NAY ik
Sacured beds wolue costs perod manrg ngmeng on cost
No £m £m £m £m £&m =
2017 completions
5t Leonards Edinburgh 581 64 4! 5 13 g 7.5%
Millerniurm Point Coventry 391 34 24 12 12 4 BA%
Tarq House Liverpoo! 776 &5 46 24 13 [ 9.3%
2018 completions
Newgate Street  Newcaste 575 44 ¥ 7 » 8.5%
BrunelHouse Bristol o 232 28 21 1 10 5* -—B.STG ’
Chaucer House Portsmouth 484 41 E o _Jﬁ_y 2% [ 8.0%
St Vincent's Sheffield 545 45 3% ) 35 10 8.7%
international House Birmingham 384 48 B k 37 il 80%
201% completions
Skethorne Liverpoot 1,085 92 73 14 60 16 8.0%
Oid BRI' Brisfol 704 93 74 2 58 4| 8.4%
Censtitution Street Aberdeen 400 54 40 0 a3 7 8.4%
Total (wholly owned) 6.58) 411 452 83 324 102 5%

T Subject to obigining planning consent,

Secured forward fund pipeline (USAF}
USAF has secured two assets on a forward fund basis in Onford and Edinburgh, These acauisitions are consistent with its sirategy
10 increase exposure o high quality Univarsitios and to expand its prasence in markets 1o lake advantage of scoie,

whilst USAF has fully deployed its equity, USAF is making good progress with o smal number of further acquisitians and could
expect to deploy more capital, released from porifolio recycling activities into these opportunities

Sacurea eomp!::: duvubculz':il Cormax Capex Forecas! hAY Forecost
beds vale <oy n period nerearung remanng Vieid on Cost
No. £m £m £m £m £m
usar o -
2017 complefions
Beech House Oxford 167 23 18 1 8 3 £3%
Lution Court Edinburgh 237 32 2% 18 9 4 60%
Total USAF 404 54 47 K1 17 7 6.1%
Unite share of USAF n/a 13 11 7 4 2 41%
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Our development pipeiine remains a scurce of significant future value and eamings growth and the tabie below summarisas its
potentialimpact on future NAV and sornings per share:

Wusttahive returrs tby 2019)

Future Futwe

NAVEDS EPS

Secured regional projects {wholly owned} 42 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Totol secured pipeline 43 13

Asset disposals

During 2014, £52 million of assets were soid in third-party tronsactions (Unite share: £46 million). In addifion, Unite soka two whotly-
owned assets in Porismouth and Caoventry te USAF for @ combined tofal of £88 million, taking fotal disposals on o see-through basis
1o £114 milfion, Ail of the ossets were soid in ne with bodk vaiye.

Assef disposals remain onimportant part of our strategy going forward to ensure that we align our partfolio wiltt: our strategy to work
with high and mid-ranked Universities. Disposals also provide the capital to fund furiher growth in our development pipeiine in 2019
and 2020. We remain focused on our capital discipline fo balance further growth opportunities with Gur leverage targets and
axpect to make around £150-200 million (Unite share} of disposals in 2017, In Fetruary 2017, we exchanged contracts to sell
regiong! portfolic of 4,175 beds for £295 million (Unite share £102 million] in ine with book value.

g
:
:
§

Richard §impson
Group Proparly Director
22 Februairy 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Goslord Sireet, Coventry

GROWJING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Our sirategic objective

.

Qur consistent strategy continves |
to deliver sustoinable and growing |
eamings underpinned by our
highly accretive development {
pipefine, strong University
parinerships and scolable
operational platform, PRISM.
Recurring profits increased

by 24% and our dividend is up
by 20%. We achleved rental
growth of 3.8% increasing
eamings and NAV.

Our high quality portfolio with o wide
range of price points and room sizes,
sector-leading brond and services continue
to atfract students and lo delivera
superior experience for students and
universities, driving sustainable income.

PRISM is fully implemented and delvering
improvements to customer service and
demonstrating efficiencies of scale.

EARNINGS

Our net operating income margin is
up to 73% and cur improved overhead

. efficiency of 40bps is on frock to meet
. targe of 25-30 basis points by the end

of 2017.

We continue to operate a strong capitai
structure maintaining LTV at 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced to 4,2% and

a net debt 16 EBITDA ratio of 6.5ramains
within our targeted range of § to 7 times.
Qur sirong debt position means we
have limited refinancing requirements
before 2020.

tn November 2014 at a General Meeting
for sharaholders, the Company's
conversion to Real Estote Investment

Trust (REIT) status was approved, effective
on 1 January 2017, strengthening the
earnings and dividend focus of the business.

Recycling capital through assel disposals
remains an importont part of our strategy
to maintam capital discipline and to fund

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCDUNTS 2004

Olyrmoks Way, London

further growth in our 2019 development
pipeline, in total we delivered £125 million
of asset disposals during the year including
the disposal of two properties 10 USAF

in Seplember 2014 and the disposal of
Curzon Gatewdy in Birminghom fo H52
under a compubiory purchase order
agreement in July 2016, in line with the
book value of the assef,

In May 2016, USAF ssued £125 million

of bonds under ifs existing debt funding
platform estabiished in June 2013, The
proceeads were used o repoy secured
debi and fo fund further growth in

the Fund.
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FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Director of People and Communications

QLA

Joe Lister addresses some topical questions from our shareholders

During the year, the Group
elected to be taxed as a REIT
with eflect from 1 Jonuary 2017.
The election will not change the
core business model of Untle
Students, ond we remain focused
on providing offordable purpose-
built student occommodalion.

munum?

Pl RE(Ts provicie @ way for investors to
access the risks and rewards of
holding property without having to buy
it direcily. REITs were introduced by the
Government in 2007 with the aim of
supporting investment in UK real estale
and HMRC has supportad groups
converting to REITs over the iast ten years.

REIT status means that the Unile Group
is axermpt from paying corporation tax
on profits and gains aring fromits UK
property renial business. Howaver, it wiil
stilt pay corporation tax onincome
arising from any non-property related
activities such as managemaent fees and
interest income. RE status has no effect
on VAT, stamp taxes and employment
taxes, and RETs continue 1o pay these
taxes as normal,

a What Is the impact on
dividend paymenis?
Nl There are sirict conditions set by
HMRC for grouyps to remain as REITs.
including the requirement to distribute
at least ?0% of their property profits
las calcukated for tax purposes which
may differ to the accounting profit) to

shareholaers. For UK shareholders, this
distribution is treated for tax purposes
as property rental income rather than
dividends, and overseas shargholders
suffer withhokling tax at the basic rate
of tax. The net effect is that the taxation
of property incomae s moved from

the REIT to the sharehoider thereby
ollowing tax efficiency while protecting
the UK Excheguer.

The tax-exermpt property profits that are
distributed to shareholders are known
as Property Incorme Distributions (PIDs).

A REIT can also ditribute post-tax profits
fror its other activilies, known asa
Non-Property income Distibutions
{non-PIDs). Any one distribution from

a REIT may be solely PIDs, solefy non-PIDs
or a mixture of the two,

In ling with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-out ratio will be increased to 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA eamings.

Miylsl.lrl.ﬂudemb.t'.'omlng
a REIT?

Unite Siudents holds o large
portiolo of student accommedation
and has a shong dividend. its business
is therefore aready well suited to
becoming a REIT which provides a
lax efficient environment far property
investrent groups that meet a dividend
requirement, Conversion to a REIT will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
in its property porifolio and growing
the return fo shareholders, It can do
this without needing to consder the

impacts of tox on disposals of capital
assets and while offering an effective tax
transparent environment to invastors in
refation ta its property income.

As a REIN, Unite is able to atfract g wider
pool ofinvestors, most especialty those
who are exempt from fax in the UK who will
na longer indrectly suffer tox at the level of
the group. In addition, the concept of

Q REIT is widely understood and valued
by the: global investor community.

Q What Is the impoct In 2014 for Unite
Ml Shucents of REN conversion?

The Group has historically been

required under internationar
Accounting Slondards 1o recognise
a defarred fax kability in respect of
increases o the market value of its
investment properties. This deferred fox
iiability is not tax that the Group owes,
byt instead is an accounting provision
for astimated jox thot could become
payable were the Group to sellits
investment propeftiesin the fulure
{on the excess of market value over
the amount originally pald). Asa REIT,
such gains will be exempt from UK
corporation fax and hence no provision
for defered tax is required to be
racognised. The provision at t Jonuary
2016 has therefore been released guring
the year. The Group has still provided for
the potential deferred tax kability retating
o assets that are not exempt as a REIT
{including investments in joint venlures)
at the balance sheeat date where itis
expecied gt the Himing difference wit
give rise to faxable profits as it unwinds.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Income statement and

profit measures

A full reconciliation of profit before tax
to EPRA eomings measures is sat out in
summary below and in fullin section 2
of the financial statements.

F a0 2015
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eamirgs 1.3 49.5
EPRA earnings 2.7 61.3
Valuation gains ond
profitfloss on disposal 136.3 32446
Changes in voluation
of interest rote swaps
and debt break costs {1.0} 0.3
Minority interest
and tax included
in EPRA earnings 34 2.2
Proitt before tax 2014 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eqrnings per share 27.7p ‘ 231p
Basic ecmings persbare 101.3p 1642p

EPRA eamings of £62.7 million o

31 December 2016 (2015: £61.3 million) is
stated ofter deducting tax charges. share
option cosis and cbortive/pre-contract
development spend of £5.5 million.

The significant reduction in profit belore
iy is primarily the rasult of g lower level
of unrealised valuation gains of
£136.3 miltion being recognised in 2016
compared with the £324.4 million
racognised in 2015,

Cashflow and net debt

The Operations business generated
££).3 million of net cash in 2014 [2015:
£40.8 million] and see-through net debt
increased marginally 1o £774 million
{2015: £731 milllion). The key components
of the movernent in see-through net debt
ware the operationai coshfiow and the
disposol programme (generating totol
infigws of £175 million) offset by total
capital expanditure of £158 millon and
divigends poid of £34 millian, In 2017,

wa expect net debt fo increase by

a similar level os copital expenditure

on invastrent and development acftivity
will exceed anticipated asset disposals.

Dividend

Wa are increqsing our dividend pay-out
level to 75% of EPRA earnings fexciuding
USAF performance fees) and are
recommending a fully cavered final
dividend payment of 12.0 pence per
share [2015; 9.5 pence), making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015: 15.0 pence).
Subject to approval at Unite's Annual

General Meeting on 11 May 2017, the
dividend will be paid on 19 May 2017
to shareholders on the register at close
of business on 21 April 2017,

Tax and REIT conversion

During the year, the Group elected to
convert to REIT status with effect from

\ Jonuary 2017. This has resulted in the
retaase of the provision for deferred

fax on property business assets totalling
£41,) milion os disposals of investment
property, as a REIT, will be exempt from
tax. The remaining deferred tax liability
relating to unrealised gains on joint
venture investrents of £17.2 million, which
are not exempt from tax, exceeds the
deferred fax asset relating to tox adjusted
losses caorried forward of £11.8 million.

As the iosses can be set against gains as
they arise, the deferred tax asset redating
fo the losses can be recognised in full
ogoinst deferred tax liabilities.

Certain activities, primarity the investment
management of joint ventures, whilst
axpeciad to fall within the fimits of the
bolance of business tests, willincur a tax
chorge which we expectto be in the
region of £2-3 million per annum.

Debt financing

During the period, we have rmaintained
our locus on controling gearing levels,
extending debt maturities and minimising
financing costs:

Key debt statislics (see-thraugh basls)

2016 205
Net debt £776m £73'm
LTV % 5%
Net debhEBITDA

rofic &5 49
Average debt

maturity AdFyean 5.4 yeds
Average cost of

dabt 42% 4.5%
Proportion of

invastment debt at

fixed rate 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved
to 34% at 3} December 2016, from 35%
at the end of 2015 as a result of the vatue
growth of the portfolio exceeding the
increase in net debl. We will continue

to manage our gearing proactively and
intend to maintain our LTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
currant yialds, With greater focus on the
aearnings profile of the business, we are
also now monitoring our net debt to
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EBITDA rafio, which was 6.5 times in 2016
and we plan o keep thisin line with
current levels gaing forward,

Iinferest iate hedging

arangements and cost of debt
Our see-through cost of debt has
reduced fo 4.2% (2015: 4.5%} os we have
secured additional debt on our recent
completions and refinancing in USAF at
historically low levels. The Group has 100%
of its see-through invastrment debt subject
{o a fixed interest rate (2015: $0%) foran
average termn of 4.9 years.

Convertible bond

The Group's £90 million convertible bond
is due to mature in Oclaber 2018, Under
the terms of the bond., earty conversion
of the deb? into equity could be triggered
by us from October 2016 onwards if

the share price frades over 1.3 times

the conversion price for a pericd of time.
The initial conversion price of £5.10 has
reduced 1o £4,88 following share plocings
and dividend payments and therefore
EPRA NAV has been prepared on the
basls that the bond will convertin the:
future. This hos resulied in NAV dilufion

of 15 pence per share as at 31 December
2016, Conversion would result in around

o 4% point radyction in LTV,



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2915

%3

Urute
Property Net Qihes Net shore
agsots debt assets mserts of NAY Tokal
£ £&m £m £m £m retum Matunty Urutes shiate
Vehicle
USAF 2,288 (714} {51} 1.523 352 1% Infinite 23%
LSAV 1.00% (354} {15) 640 30 15% 2022 0%
funds and joint ventures The asset management faes fram both

The fable gbove summorises the key
financials for each vehicle.

USAF and LSAV hove continved o
perform well in 2016, LSAY's totalreturn
is driven by stronger capital growth from
development relurns.

USAF cumrently does not have any
acquisition capacity tolkowing the forwara
fund acquisitions and acquisTtions from
Unite made in the year, but will continue
to manitor aequisition opportunities
funded by capital recyching.

Fees

During the yeor, the Group recognised net
feas of £21.9 million (2015; £35.9 million}
from its fund and asset manogemeant

activities as follows:

06 2015

tm £m

USAF _
Asset
managerment fee 100 8.7
Acquisition foe 0.4 1.5
Net
performance fee 65 202
LSAV
Asset and property
management fee 4.9 3.3
Development
monagement fae 1.0 19
Total teeas 21.9 359

* A full breakdown of the net pefformance
fee 5 m note 3.4(c) of the notesto the
finoncial statements.

USAF and LSAV have increased as a resull
of the growtn in the portfolios under
management during the yeor generated
by acquisitions and valuation growth.

A fotal performance fee of £8.1 million
was ecrned ond will be poid in unils
during the first quarter of 2017, The net
fer recognised of £46.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 million, which represents
the Group's share of the performance
fee paid by USAF and ofter advisory costs
of £0.5 million, The level of the fee s
sensitive o movernents in property
valuations and is theretore significantly
lower than in 2015 due 1o the high level of
yield compression in 2015. After payment
of the fee, our stoke in USAF will remain

at 23%.

Joe Lister
Chisf Financial Officer
22 Februory 2017
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Up touS

Ovur ambition is to create homes
to support the development

of future generations of dynamic
and successful graduates,
equipped to make posiive soclal
and economic contributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a valuable contribution
to society by helping our 49,000
students every yeario leam,
adopt and develop responsible
Iiving habits. The management
of, and accountabliity for,

our impact onourworld is
embedded as pard of our
day-to-day operations.

UP

uS

I has always been important to Unite fo act
as aresponsible business. Qur first buildings
were renovations of existing vacant
properties in Bristol where: thene wos a lack
of good quality student accommeodation.

In 2016 we started work on o new
responsible business strategy, called Up
o uS, addressing the key sustainability
issues affecting our business and supply
chains. Up fo us is a plon designed

to equip us for a future in which our
relevance to students will depend on our
ability to help them protect their world.

Up to us will deliver sustainable value

for our stakeholders and make us the
leading sustainabie purpose-built
accommaodation provider. However,

we want fo go further than being the most
sustainable business in our sector. Further
even than making ongoing improverrents
to what we do 0§ we grow and the worid
evolves. Utimately our gool is to use our
business to drive positive social change.
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Up to us ungderping our unique business
model to create long-term value through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. it 1s driven by the some
strategic priorities as our business model;
to be the most trusted brand, 1o have the
highast quality porticlio ond strongest
capitai structure.

Up 1o US covers four main themes:

Great workplace 45

The environment 46

Social impoct 48

Trusted poriner 48
Greaot workplace

We want 1o create an inclusive ana
positive workplace for all of our people.

Highlights and key commitments

In 2016 we received Investor in People
Goid Award and our target now is to
achieve iInvestor in People Platinum
by 2020.

We invested £110,000 into a programme
for poid interns, supporting current
students towards employability and
giving our employees opportunities to
work directly with students, gaining
valuabile insights info their worids.

WE'RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEOPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and

Managing Director of People and Communications

Our priorities in this area are:

Qiversity and incluslon

We believe that inclusivity and diversity
across the organisotion is critical 1o our
continued success. OQur employees are
from many different backgrounds and
have diverse experiences, perspectives
and skills. We aim to have a workforce
that is ruly represeniative of oll sections
ol society, where each employee feels
respected and able 1o give their best.
Unite Students will prormote a cuiture

of equality and fairness for ol ang
ensure no person acting on our

behalf shall discriminate in any
sitvation against another individual

or group, directly or indirectly.

n 2016 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will heip
inform the development of policies
and working practices.

Career enfichment

We have created a comprehersive
range of training coursas and
development programmes far our
employees ot all levels. These are
focused on technical skills, personal
development and monagement
competences. Our leadership frermework
includes prograrnmes such Qs Becoming
a Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
aleadership development programme.

Wellbeing

The health and wellbeing of ocur
empioyees s critical to creating
sustainable performance. [n 2016 we

intfroduced a wellbeing poriol on our
infranet, providing advice and tips to
enabie empioyees to look affer their
parsonal health, financial and mental
wellbeing. Creating a cohesive wellbaing
strategy will e a focus for 2017,
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Human Rights

Unite believes that human rights are
universal and recognises that the UN
Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights set a standard of conduct
expected of companies. We do our
best to ensure that everyone invoived
or associated with our business is
protected, treated fairly and subject to
our Anfi-Bribery and Corruption Poficies,
Health and Safety Policy, and various HR
policies including those covering data
pratection, disciplinary, performonce
management, fiexible working.
grievance, leave, equality and diversity.

The environment

we wani to reduce our environmenlol
impact and encourage responsiole
behaviourin our students, employees
and suppiiers,

Highligh!s and commitmants

In 2016 we achieved further
improvements across various rmetrics
including a four star rating from the
Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB}. were placed in the
98th percentile of the FISEAGood index,
and were rated B for our climate change
performance by the Carbyon Disclosure
Project (CDP). These reflect our ongoing
elforts to reduce our contribution to
climate change, and improve cur
broader environmentol performance.
wWe were shortlisted for the 2016 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awards for our behavioural change and
engagement programme,

Qur envirconmental strotegy focuses on
four main objectives, which together help
us reduce our three mabkerial environmental
impacts: energy and carbon; water: ond
resource use and waste.

in 2016 we pledged lo develop a
science-bosed carbon reduction target,
in line with the Paris Climate Agreement
10 limit warming to jess thon two degrees,
and hove been working with the Science

Based Targets Initiative (SBTI) to set
on ambitious and credible target.

We have alsa set a range of targets 1o
help reduce cur gther ervironmaeantal
impacts too:

> Wessigned up to the intemational
RE100 scheme, committing 1o buy
100% renewabie energy by 2020

> We are working to a farget of doubling
our energy productivity by 2032 under
the internationa! EP100 programme,
meaning we will halve our energy
consumption per bed

» We aim to send zero waste to kandfill
from our sites by 2025

> Al new buikdings opening from 2018 on
will achieve a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating

> By 2020 we will aim to effectively
engage 50% of our students every
yaar with sustainabilily campaigns
while living with us.

Sustainable bulldings

Building on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme [ESOS) survays and
Energy Performance Certificate update
in 2015, we are producing individual
action plans for each of our buikdings

to identify the full range of energy and
waler efficiency oppariunities. Over 2017
we will bring this into o coordinated plon
aiming to deliver significant energy and
water efficiency improvements. As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
enargy efficiency standards ond the
2019 ESOS deadiine, this wil deliver
significant carbon reductions across our
axisting estate. Ahead of this we have
continued our ongoing £21 million LED
lighting upgrade, and inslalled a range
of new technologies to understand how
best o achieve the energy and water
efficiency improvements. During 2016 we
deployed wireless networked building
controis, installed PV panels and girsource
heat pumps, ond assessed a range of
other potential technologies including
demand side response and battery
storage. This activity has helped deliver
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a 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 and g 4.8% reduction from
2015-2016.

Sustainoble behaviour

Qur Up to uS Sustainability Engagement
Programme is now in its third year, ond
seeks o deliver losting changes in
behaviour towards more environmeantally
responsible living and working habits. We
see this as a unique opportunity to help
our students adopt enduring sustcinable
living habits that stay with them after they
moave on from Unite Students, creafing a
legacy of potitive environmental impact.
Aligned with the NUS Green impact
Awards, the programme yses individual,
iocal and nafional initictives o maximise
engagement. During the 2015/16
academic year we recryited more than
120 student volurteers to help us deliver
arange of activities to maise awareness
of sustainable living choices. Going into
2014/17 we launched our Pledge for
Good campaign which includes
commitments fo follow sustainable
bahaviours that could deliver mere

than 30 tonnes of carbon reduction.

Sustainable Construction

As well as improving the existing estate,
we are also committed to making sure
our new buikdings deliver high standards
of energy efficiency and envirecnmeantal
performance, and heip our stugents
live more responsibly and sustainably.
From 2017 onwards all of our new builds
will gim for an ‘Excellent’ rating under
the widely used BREEA M environmental
assessment methodology.

Sustainable Energy

As wall as improving anergy efficiency,
we are looking al how best {o use
ranewdbia energy to further reduce
our carbon emissions. Cver 2017 we will
be locking at a mange of short and long
tevm opfions to identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy to
reduce our footprint and deliver wider
business benefits.

Calculation of market based emissions lactor for grid elechicity supplled under contract

Carbon Dixade

Suppher's resduol emisuons for each  Rescual Fuel Mecx CO,

fued mix fuel sounce SMESICNS

Sy energy source Lsed for generation (&3] {eg/kwh) {kG/W )
Coat 16 os 0.1456
Nalural Gas 46 039 02574
Nuclear 1 0 a
Renewables 14 0 0
Other Fuels 1 0.59 Q.0059

Overall emissions factor

0.4087 kgCO/kWh
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Carbon
Contributions
Changeavs Change vs
004 2015 pnor yexor 2014 priar year
Year end bed numbers 43,035 45,447 5.59% 48,637 7.02%
Carbon contributing bed numbers 39.125 43,084 10.12% 45,924 5.60%
Cartyon contributing floor area (m?} 1,097,060 1,207,904 10.09% 1,282,018 6.14%
Energy and water consumptlion e s o
C"O‘Wﬂe v Change v
Comympton Consumpiion PO year Consumplion priar pear
Electricity Absalute (kwh) 111,948911 110,948,791 089% 112,524,053 1A%
Relative 10 bed numbers [(kWh/bed) 2861314 2575154 <10.00% 2,450,108 -4.86%
Relafive 1o fioor oreq (kWh/m?) 102.045 91.840 9.98% 7. m -445%
Natural gas Absalute (kwh] 23328332 24977762 1564% 29075659 7.78%
Relative fo bad numbers [KWh/bed) 596.251 £26.162 9.52% 43209 0.02%
Relative ta floor area (kwh/m?) 21,264 22,334 5.04% 22680 1.54%
Water Apsolute [m?) 1,819,569 221820 71N%
Reiative ta bad numbers (mYbed] 42.233 £8.300 14.37%
Relative to flioor area
{m?/m?) 1.507 1.730 14.85%
Greanhouse gas emixsions . - o
Changavs Change vi.
Cornsyrmprion Cortumption Phor year Consumplion prior ye
Total Scope | Absolute ftonnes CO.e) 439376 537305 X% 570X 7.02%
m
ermissions Relative to bed numbers {fonnes COe/bed) o1 012 11.05% 013 0.40%
Relative to floar area (kg COe/m?) 4.0050 4.4484 11.08% 4.4854 0.83%
Totai Scope 2 Absclute (fonnes COe) 562597 52.382.17 -4.50% 47,352.15 -9.40%
;’&“’;ﬁ’"smm Reiative to bed nurmbers (fonnes COe/bed) 1.43 1.22 -800% 1.03 21K
aton | Relative fo floor area (kg COe/m?) 510692 433698 1S0BR 369388  -1484%
Total Scope 2 Absolute (tonnes CO.e) 48,488.98 46,997.70 -3.08%
?:'ﬁT;O o Reiative to bed numbers (fonnes CO,e/bad) 113 102 -8.38%
arketpased) o iative fo floor area (kg COe/m?) 40,1464 3.4592 267%
Totol Scope Absclute [tonnes CO.e) 60,419.73 57.755.22 -4,01% 53.102.47 -BOSR
! ;26 9:_“"“‘;:; Relative to bed numbers ffonnes CO:e/bed) 1.54 1.34 -6.14% 114 -10.51%
llocationbased) ¢ iative fo fioor area {kg CO.e/m?) 550742 478184 -1317% 41.4210 -13.38%
Total Scope Absolute (fonnes CO.ej 5386203 52,748.02 20T%
;;2 e;;;’;'g:;dl Rekative fa bed numbers {lonnes CO.e/bed] 1.25 115 LTI
ar Relative to fioor area (kg COa/m?) 445950 41,1445 7.74%
Total Scope 3 Absolute (tannes CO,a) 1480220 1548429 462% 1548629 -1.74%
9:;55;?"5 baseq  REve fobed numbers {onnes COse/bed) 0.38 0.3 -4.99% 0.3 -7.82%
tlocation ) Relative fo foor orea (kg CO.6/m?) 13.4926 12.8219 497%  12.079% -579%

= Scope ! emissions include gas consumplion and business vehicies use.

+ Scope 2 emgsions nciude grid electricity ond hea!

+ Scope 3 emissions include supply chain emissions such as water and poper use, DUsiness iravel, and energy supply chain ermissions {transmission
and distnbuhon losses and welkto-tank emissions).

Location based emissions are cakcukated using DEFRA 2016 emnissions factors.

* “perbed" emissions use pro rata bed numbers, taking into account the length of time the sile was under our awnarship.

Market based emissions are caiculated using monet based emssions factor based onsuppier's stated residual fuel mix shown below:

=
L
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RESPONSIBLE
BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

More detoils on our environmental

Scope 1 and 2 emissions have been strategy and impacts are available on
calculated in fine with the DEFRA our website and will be updoted over
Environmeéntal Reporting Guidelines 2017 along with mone details of our wider
2012, DEFRA 2015 emissions factors approach o Up o us.

have been used, except for market

cosed emissions which have been The table on page 47 summarises
coicutated using on emissions factor our carbon footprint compared o the
reflective of our electricity supplier's previous two years. Although energy
generation mix as shown below: efficlency improved, a 6% increqse in

{otal bed numbers resulied In an overall
1.4% increqse in electricity consumpstion.
$cope 112 CO,e emissions per bed Gas consymption also rose by 7.8% due
o more widespread use of gas in newer
openings compared o older properties
that typically use electricity for heating.
Despite this, howaver, our carbon
foolprint shrank: changes 1o the DEFRA
carbon emissions factors in 2016 meant
our combined location-based Scope 1+
Scope 2 carbon footprint shrank by 8% in
absolute terms, or 10.5% pef bed. The
reduction in our absolute and per-bed
market-pased Scope | + Scope 2 lootprint
was 2% and 6.8% respectively, with the
smaller reduction here driven by chonges
in our supplier's net generation mix.

Soclal iImpact

Delivering posifive Impacts fo help young
people succeed in Higher Education
and buikd sustainable fives,

Highlights and commitments

In 2016, we donated £2 million o charities,
inctuding the Unite Foundation and our
charity of the year Sport Refief. More than
33% of our employees volunteered with
local communities.

Scope 182 CO.e emissions per nv

These are our priorities:

Community

Qur students and employees have o
crucial roie in shaping thetr cormmunities.
ond hove g more enriching experience
by being infegrated with tocal residents
ond groups. Over the forthcoming years,
we are committed to doing even mona
with our commmunities through use of our
properties, giving suppart o community
proups and coliaborating further with
Universities and students' unions. we want
to use the research we comrmission in our
annual Insight Report 4o help develop
meaningtul engagement with young
people in the communities we operate
in to help prepare them for University life.

Charlty

Supporting charitabie organisations is

at the heart of our values ot Unite
students. We believe we have a unigque
opperunity 10 nelp raise awareness of
charitable giving to the fulure generation
of charitable givers, while also providing

a great opporitunity for engagement
between our employess, students and
Universities alike. We are committed fo
supporting charitable orgonisations that
are aligned to our bysiness, whather nis
is through cash or in kind donations.

Voelunteering

Volunteering provides o briliant basis for
engagement with the local communities,
giving valuable resource and expertise
to onganisatfions to really make g tangible
difference, while also developing skills,
team building and increasing motivation
for those taking part. In just two years,

our employee volunteearing schemsa has
achieved more than a 30% participation
rate and we are commitied o confinuing
to grow this in future years, with porticular
focus on skils-matched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absolutely recognise
the opportunity to develop studen!
volunteering opportunities, wWhile done
on a small scole currently through

our NUS Green Impact scheme, we

are looking to davelop this so thal

it becomes scalable, providing
opportunities for students whather

they are looking to do this fo develop
employability skills, or Just fo give their
support to a great couse.

Trusted pariner

We aim to develop frusted and open
ralgtionships with our investors as well as
Universities and other stokeholders who
partner with us. This is fundamental tc
our long tefrn sustainabifity,

Highlights and commitments

In 2016 we were recognised in the
Building Public Trust Awards for our
strategic reporting. We were also
awarded Business of the Year 2016 by
the Brisin) Post, in our home city. We are
committed to maintaining the highest
standards of ronsparency and integrity
in our reporting and our relationships.

Pricrities

» Maintaining high ESG ratings., with
indices such as FISE4Good and GRESB.
In 2016 we received a FTSE4Gooki ESG
Rating ICB Supersector Relative
Percentile Score 98, with 100 being
the highest possible. We ochieved
Greenstar status for the third
consecutive year, increqsing our
2014 scora to 71, from 66 in 2015

» Building longer term comrnerciclly
sustainabile relotionships with our
University pariners and increasing
owr Higher Educotion trust scare

» Devstoping c more susiainable supply
chain, working with suppliers certified
by the CIPS Sustainability Index,
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Affordabliity

Unite Students recognises that going

o University now reprasents o big
investment for studlants, and their
accommodation needs represent a
significant componeant of those casts. We
have a responsibliity to ensure that the
Tiving environment we offer our students
reprasents goad quality accommodation
at the best possible volue for money.

To meet the students’ needs, we offer

o choice of room types ot ditferent price
points, in punpase buill environments, which
include common spaces and, wherever
passible, a quief study room, outdoor spoce
and even o gym. Our proposition further
differs from traditional Homes of Multiple
Occupancy {HMO) properties, where
we baligve we represent better value in
a number of key areas. These inciude not
chemging booking of administration fees,
and offering a range of flexible payment
plans. Qurrents also include a range of
value-added components such as
all-inclusive ufility bills; high-speed
broadband access; a fortnighhly cleaning
service for shared spaces; best-in-class
contents insurance; on-site lcundry service;
24-hour sacutity: Q 24-howr healoline service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retailers.

Far schatars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundation was
established in 2012 to provide assistance
to those who might not otherwise be oble
o attend University, Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
provides free accommodationand is
curranity supportting 128 active schoiars.

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

In setting our rents, we will continue

to routinely work with Universities’
accommaodation services, through
nominations agreernents and mone widely,
to ensure thot the living environment

we offer our students represents the best
possibla vaiue for money.

The Unite Foundalion

Unite Students is the founder of and
amajor donor to the Unite Foundation,

a charity that helps undargraduates who
lack family support. The Foundation
provides its schokars with gccommedation
throughout their study years and
appliconts ome selecied by the Universities
1o which they apply from the 10 Universities
which part of the Foundation programme.
Estabiished in 2012, the Foundation

has supporied 179 people ta date

and currentty has 128 active scholars.

The end of the 2015/16 accdemic year
saow 18 Foundation scholors graduate.

Unite Students hosted a Foundation
Fundrgiser af the Naturol Hislory Museum
in 2014 to celebrote its 25th anniversory.,
Guests heard from 2016 Foundation
graduote Ermily Dreww about her experience.
Unite Students itself donated a further

£5 milion 1o the Foundationin 2016, The
donation took the form of an investment
in the Unite $tudent Accormmodation
Fund {USAF) in order 1o give the
Founciation greafer iong ferm securify.

Our 2014 Sirategic Report from page

1 to page 4% has besn reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 Fetruary 2017,

Joe lister
Chis! Ainoncial Officer
22 Fabruory 207
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION
TO GOVERNANCE

A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White

Chairman
I'm pleased fo present cur Corporate economy, whie ensuring we ane prepared
Governance Report on behalf of the for change in the Higher Education and
Boaord. 2015 has been a busy year. The PBSA sector. This preparation includas cur

Leave vote has led Yo a dynamic external | substantiolinvestment in technology -
market while in pargliet — as we celebrate | rolling out cur scaloble operating platiorm
Unite's 25th anniversary — we are seeing PRISM - as well as ensuring our development
a maturing PRSA sector. pipeline is wel funded.

Succestion plonning and corporate Our govemnarce framework is designed
culture has been a focus in 20146. We had to help us navigate these external and
a change in Chief Exacutive, with Richard | internal changes. it is imperative the
Smith taking over from Mark Allan after Boaord is able to provide the necessary
17 years with Unite, 10 as CEQ, os wellas oversight and challenge to secure the
the Group converting to o REIT eftective Group's long fermn sustainable success,

1 Jonuary 2017 building on all we have learnt in our 25
yaars, and the following pages provide
The Board's govermance rote has focused | insight as to how we are doing this.

on the impact of changs in the wider
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Governance overview underpinned by the Corporate Governance Code

Govermnonce framework

Qur governance framework,
underpinned by the Corporate
Governance Code, is designed to
support our strategy ond ensure
ourlong term sustainable success.
Similar to our risk management
framework {describbed on

pages 22 io 23], our govemnance
frarmework is driven by an open
and collaborative Beard and
broader Unite Students culture,
creating an environment for
people to have confidence to
challenge the norm. For example.
we now consider proceeding with
certain site acquisitions not
conditional on planning, provided
certain planning risk thresholds are
satisfied. Below and on the next
twio pages, we describe how
govermnance has supported our
strategy during 2014 and how thisis
linked tO our principal risks. We also
describe our governance priorities
for 2017.

Accountability

The internal conirpls and the
Audit Commiftee Report (pages
&4 1o 69), together with our risk
maonagement framework and
principal risks (pages 22 to 29).
dascribe how we ernsure o fair,
bolanced and understondable
assassment of Unite's position and
prospects, the assessment of our
principai risks and their alignment
with our strategic objectives and
how we maintain an appropriate
relationship with Delaitte,

our externat audilors, consistent
with the Code and statutory
requirements.

Leadership

On poges 54 and 55, we describe the
compaosition of the Board éxplaining
their skilis and expernence, On pages
57 1o 61 we expilain how the Board
operates as an eftective board,
collectively responsible for the
long-term sustainable success of
Unite, the clear division of responsibilifies
of the Board and the rote of the
non-executive directors to
constructively chalenge and
develop our strategy.

Remuneration

The Unite remuneration policy and
implementation chart {page 75)

and Remuneration at a glance

chart {page 74) provide an overview
of this complex areq, fogether with
the detailed Remuneration Repori
{pages 7310 95) describing how we
ensure Executive Director remuneration
is designed to promote the long-term
success of the Company and how we
develop our remuneration policy.

Pages 462 and 63 describbe how

our govarnance framework ensures
the effectivenass of the Board.
Recognising how critical corporate
cuiture is to effectiveness and
sustainable sucgess, during 2016
our Board evaluation focused on
{ormong other things| our corporate
culture and governgnce
leadership. In addition, in a year
when the CEQ role transitioned.
Richard Smith's induction as the
incoming CEC has been critically
important to develop his Chief
Exacytive skilk and redatianships
and ensure a smooth fransition.
The Nomination Committee
Report {pages 64 and &5) describyes
how we manage our succession
pianning, our broader lgadership
development, our approach

to diversity and inclusivity and

how we ensure we have a deep
talent pipeline.

Sharehoider relolions
and engagement

Page 56 describes how we engage
with shareholders, which during
2014 included a Capital Markets
Day in April, which aliowed
investors o see our Coventry
portfolic and development
pipeline and the opportunity to
interact with our digital operating
piatform, PRISM, and then g second
Capital Markets Day in December
in London demonstrating how
PRISM improves and slreamiines
our operations. We also describe

in our Remuneration Reporl (pages
73 to 95} how we have engaged
with shareholders during 2014

on our Remuneration Policy and
executive remunaration.

poday ifejoug
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION
TO GOVERNANCE

CONTINUED

How govemnance supported our stralegy during 2016
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Sirolegic Unk 1
oblecive Board's QOVemance Mmis Principal fisk 2018 Board octhvity
Greal service PRISM 26 Readmore  DOGTd roviaw af our digiial stafegy.
Oversight on PRISM delvery ond the relaled Maviced risi - spply Cvensight that PRISM dedivars:
enhonced customer service and operating and demand > Arobust booking systam
atficie benefits,
ey > Anmproved and scalable platiorm lor revenue
munagement ond customer engagement
*» Erhanced service levels for both Universities and students
» Marke! diftferentiation.
EL Read rmore” Cperfions raview
Affordablity and valye for money 26 Reod more Analysis of the HE accommodalion sector and ensuring we
Market risk - supply conlinue to offer an affordable and valus for money product.
and demand 31 Retxi more: Aflosdabillty
Heatth & Salety 27 Recd more The Board reviews the safety of our studenis. visitors and
As we develop our brand through the Operaticnal Rk © employees. as well s consractors at our developmant sitas,
implementation of Home for Success, the risk of _ Malor heolth & al each Board meeling.
::; : & ’:sfe;yh:mi dﬂ'd, oging Mx::::’:" safety (H&S) Incident  HES Commitiee, a sub-committee of the Board, focus on
heolth & sakety, welbelngsand security of the Ina prapasty or a > Fire, our biggest safety sk, and tha appointment of the
49,000 students who moke Unde Students thel O opman stie Avon Fire Aulhority as owr Pimary Authortty lead
home s crifical o the Group's continued success * Extemal safety amumance through the appainiment of
and frusted repuiation. the Bniish Safety Council as cur new exlemal safety audfor
> FPhysical security review of our propertias by WSP Porsons.
Brinckernott,
bl Recd mare: HES Committas report
Home Ichu::c-W 26 Read morne Board review of the ongomg Implementation of the £40 milion
Challanging the substontiolinvestmentin Home  wee g e supply Home for Success reirvestiment programme. Sirategic review
tor Success and how it is tromsiating info reai and and demand of the next phate of Home for Success ko ensure the Group
mproved customer experiences ond stronges conlinues ta daliver iImproved cusfomer expefience inon
University relcionships. increagngty competitive markelplace
30 Redd more: Operafiona review
Beilbant Developmant pipstine 28 Recamore;  Board ensured daivery during 2016 of ive new deveiopments,
properties Boord scrufiny of city and site selection for new Property/ representing 3,082 beds on programme and budget, 2,000
developrments ogainst bockdrop of Increasing Developmaent risk of these secired with long term nominations.

competiion for the best sites, Governance of
developments/acquitiions 1o ensure they run fo
budget ond schadula ond one eamings occrelve

34 Read more: Froperly review

Yielg

2016 PCs Beds on cost
Staplaton House 842 89%
Qlymple way, Wetnbloy 699 88%
Goslord Gale, Caventry 24 0%
Greetharn 81, Portsmouth 834 ?3%
Couseway View. Abardaen % ?.8%
Total s
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Key
Strotegic Lnk to
obijactive Soard's QOVEMGNCS rols: Principal Risk 2074 boword] ociivity
Briliant Proparty disposcis 28 Read Mmore: Board ermuring further growth through development activity.
properties Board aversight on dsposals - erswing value PFroperty market T During 2016. four schermes exchanged and five plonning
obtained and proceeds recycied etficiently. iy consents, 2,152 beds due lor delivery in 2017 and good
ore progress on our development and furkss pipeine.
2 Read more. Development plpeine
Yeend
2017 PCs Becs oncost
Developments
5t Leonard's Edinburgh 581 ? 5%
Millennium View, Coventry kol 88%
Tara House. uverpoot 77é 9.3%
1.748 9.3%
Forward tunds (USAF}
Beech Heuse, Oxtord 187 0%
Luton Court, Ecinburgh 7 8.1%
Todal 2152
Growling ond Cuapital sructore 29 Reodmore.  @ngoing doard ravigw of oul Copital Operating Guidelines.
susiaingble Group Board focus on ostrong and fexible B wng risk~ Conlinued forus on locking In debt al historically low rotes for
eamings capltalsiruciure, which con adapt to market Unabile o arrangs new new debt facilties and torward siarting Interest swaps for
conditions, and reducing and diversitying the debt or axpiring debt tuture borrowings for secured developrment pipefine.
cost of tunding. tocBties cannot be At the ond of 2016:
replaced or only ) Loon-to-vaiue %
athigh cosl. » Average cost of debt 4.2%.
49
rale movements Recd more. Financlal review
Tax strategy/REIT convenion Board review of the Group's tax postiion and strategy Analysls
Group Board review of tax strategy for of conversion to REIT and why this it right for the Group.
pubdcotion (n 2017 and our conversoiion Cversight of angoing RET conditions and heagroom for
1o a RELT. operating within the Bolance of Business RET tests.
41 Read more” QA on REIT conversion
2017 govemance p;lo;jﬁe; > Delivery of the develonprment Compllunce with UK Corporate
> Greok service pipeline - to budget and on time Govemance Code
Student and Uiniversity expectations ~ with continued focus in towns During 2014, our governance framework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cities with the strongest was buit on the UK Corporate

Govaemance Code [the Coda). The Code

fo ensure: growth prospects ; G C
¥ Portfolio recyeling with disposal ren'_wo\ned the rminimum stondard ggounsl
» Continued investment in Home for proceeds deployed effectively, which we meosured ourselves during

Success fransioting inte value for
money for our customers and
market differentiation

> PRISM, our scakabie digital
operating platform, delivering
improved customer service,
efficiency and thus affordability,

> Bidlllant properiles
PBSA sector maturing. Governonce
ta ensure:

¥ Growing and sustoincble eamings
In the unceriain world following the
Leave vote. Governance o ensure:

> A sfrong and flexible capital
structure to enable us 0 adopt
appropriately to market conditions
as the cycle evolves

> Compliance with ongoing RET
status following conversion on

1 January 2017

2014. we complied with all the provisions
in the Code during 2016 and expect to
be fully compliont during 2017, The Code
is published by the Fmancial Reporting
Caounchll [FRC) and is available at
www.frc.ong.uk,

Phil White
Chalrman of the Board
22 February 2017

Hoda Bejous
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From left o right
Chris Szpojharowicz, Andrew Jones;

Phil White, Joe Lister, Richard Simpson.

Richard Smith, Elizabeth McMeikan,
Tim Wilson and Manjit wolstenholme.

Boord committee key

A
H
R

Narmination Committee
Audit Committee

Health & Safety Committee
Remuneration Committee

1 PhH White

Chairman

Chair of Neminafion Commitiee
Remuneralion Commitiee

Relevant skills and expedence

Phil was appointed Chairman in May
2009, The majerity of his executive caraer
was spent in the public transport seclor,
during a period of deregulation and
privatfisation, He was Chief Executive of
National Express Group plc from 1997

o 200¢, leading the business through
considerable growth both in the UK and
oversaas. Phil is currently Non-Executive
Chairman of Kier Group pic and Leokers

ple. and Non-Executive Drector of Vp plc.

THE UMITE GROLIP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014
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2 Richard $mith
Chief Executtve Officer

Relevant skilis and experience

Richard was oppointed Chief Executive
in June 2016, Prior fo this, Richard was
Unite’'s Managing Drector of Operations
from 201). Thai MD role invelved Richard
leqding the service provided fo

our customaers, ond managing the
maintenance and facilifes manogement
across the Group's portfolio.

Richard joined Unite as Deputy Chief
Financicl Officer in 2010. Prior to this he
spent 18 yaars in the fransport industry,
working in the UK, Europe, Ausirtio and
North America. Richard spent 13 years
at Ngtional Express Group where he
heid a range of senior finance, strategy
and operations roles, including Graup
Development Director and Chief
Financial Officer, North America.
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3 Joe Lister
Chief Financlal Officer and Managing
Direcior of People and Communications

Relevant skilis and experience

Joe joined Unite in 2002 hoving qualified
as a chartered accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chief Finance Officer

in January 2008 having previousty heid
a variety of roles including investment
Director and Corporate Fingnce Director.
In addition to the Group's finance
function and investment sfrategy, Joe is
now qlso responsible for People ond
Communications. Joe is @ member of
the Council gt the University of Essex.

4 Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Relevant skiils and experience

Richord Is Group Property Dieclor ond sets
the strategic diraction for all aspects of
the property porttolio, oversees the fund
monogement of Unite's co-invesiment
vehicles and leads the property
development activities. Richard joinad
Unite in 2005 and has held a voriety

of senior roles within the Group. Ha is

a qualified chartered surveyor and

a fellow of the Rovyal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Richard has been g Non-Executive of
CityWast Homes from Janwary 2017,

5 Prolessor Sir Tim Wison
Non-Exscutive Direclor
Chair of Health & Satety Commitiee

H A R N

Relevant skills and experience

Sk Tirm was appointed Knight Bachelor
for services to Higher Education and to
business in the 2011 New Yeor's Honours
list, He is 0 strong advocate of the role
of Universities in economic deveiopment
ond s ocknowledged as one of the
leading thinkers in University business
colkboration. He is the author of the
government commissioned Wilson
Review of Business-Universify
Collaborotion, pubiished in March 2012.

Formerly Vice-Chancellor of the
University of Herffordshire, Tim served
onihe Boord of the Higher Education
Funding Council for England {HEFCE}.
was Deputy Chair of the CBl innovation,
Science and Technology Commiitiee and
a frustee of the Council for Indusiry ond
Higher Education (CIHE]. Ha has extensive
experisnce in both UK and international
Higher Education.

Tim was appointed to the Board in 2010,
He holds Honorary Degrees from London
South Bank, Plymouth and Hertfordshire
universities and is currently, as Chairman
of Arden University, a member of the
Committee of University Chairs.

& Man]k Wolsienhoima
Senior Independent Director
Chair of Audit Commitiee

A R N

Relevant skills ond experience

Manjit qualified as a chartered
accouniant with Coopers & Lybrand,
Her background includes rokes as Director
and Co-Head of Investment Banking

at Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, and
Portner at Gleocher Shackiock. She is
Chair of Provident Financial and Senior
independent Direcior and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of Future pic
as well as Chalr of Cala Group Hokifings
ond Chair of Audit at CMC Markels pic.
Manjit was appointed to the Board

ot the end of 20}1.

7 Elzabeth McMelikan
Non-Execulive Director
Chair of Remuneration Commitiee

R A N H

Relevant skifls and expetience

Li wos appointed Non-Executive Director
in February 2014, She has significant
expearignce n customer-focused
businasses Tesco and Colgate Palmoiive,
whare she wos syccessfulin driving
growin through an understanding

of customer needs and an innovotive
marketing approach.

Liz is Senior Independent Director at

FTSE 250 pub group JD Wetherspoon
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committea at FlyBa pic. She is o Non-
Executive Drector ot importfexport fruit
and vegetable company. Fresca Group
Lid, and CH & Co Ltd, 0 privotely-owned
catering company.

In November 2012, Liz was apponted
Chair of Moat Homes Lid, o leading
housing association working in the
Sauth East.,

45
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8 Andrew Jones
Non-Execufive Director

Refevont akills and experence

Andrew Jones is Chief Executive Qfficer
of LondonMetric Property. following the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Metric. Andrew was a co-founder of
Mefric and Chief Executive Officer since
ils ncepfion in March 2010. Andrew’s
previous roles include Executive Director
and Head of Retail ot British Land. He
joined British Land in 2005 following the
acquisition of Pillkar Property whers he
was on the main Beard, with responsibilities
for their retail portfolio and the Hercules
Unit Trust.

Andrew wos appointed to the
Boardin 2013,

+ Chris Szpojnarowicz
Company Secretary
Relevant skills and experdence
Chris was gppointed Company Secrelary
and Head of Legal in 2013, following
Generai Counsel roles ai GE, MTV
Networks and other multinationals and
previously an M&A /corporate and
commerciol \owyer at Clifford Chance
and Boker McKenzie. Chris yses his general
counsel ond corporale/commerciol legal
experience fo fuse our corporate and risk
govermnanos with our business activity, In
this way. Chris links his Company Secretary
and governance lkeadership roie with that
otHead of Legal.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high pricrity o
eftective communication with sharehclders
and with other providers of capital to the
business, and welcomes their views on
the Group's approach to corporate
governance. In addition to the final and
interim presentations, a series of meetings
between institutionol sharehotders/other
providers of capital and senior
management were held throughout 2016,
The Board is made aware of the views of
major shareholders conceming the
Company through, among cther means.
regular ancalyst and broker briefings, and
surveys of shareholder opinion. That
process will continue throughout 2017,

During 2016, the Remunerotion
Committee conducted a consultation
with shareholders representing around
two-thirds of the issued share copital,
as well as key UK institutional investors,
regarding proposed chonges in our
Remuneration Policy

73 Remuneration

The Boord, together with its professional
advisers, acfively anakyses the Register of
the Company with a view 10 ensuring the
long temn stabifity of the Register.

The Company maintains a corporate
website contfaining o wide range of
infermation of interest to institutional and
private investors. The Company has
frequent discussions with shareholders on
amange ofissues affecting its performance,
txath foliowing the Company's
announcements and in response to
specific requests. The Company regulcarty
seeks feedback on the perception of

the Company amongst its shareholders,
the investor community more broadly
and its stakeholders.

Sava in axceptional circumstances,

all members of the Board attend the
Company's Annuat General Meetings
and shareholders are invited to ask
questions during the meeling and to
meel with Directors prior to, and after,
the formal proceedings. At the meeting,
the Choirman reviews the Group's
cument trading.

The results of the votes at the Annual
General Meetings, logether with details
of the levet of proxy votes lodged for
each resciution is made available on

a regulatory information service and
on the Company's website ot
www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Notice of the Annuol
General Meeting

Results of 20146 Annual General Meeting

For Agaunst

% voles % voles

Reaohsrion cost onst

1 Receive Annual Reports & Accounts 100.0 Q.0
2 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 98.9 1.1
3 Annual Report on Remuneration 9.7 0.3
4 Declare a final dividend 100.0 [e14]
5-14  Appointment of Directors 938-99.9 O.1~63
15 Appoint the auditor 100.0 Q.00
16 Auditors' rermuneration 1000 0.00
17 Approve performance share plan %83 1.7
8 Approve employee share scherme .1 09
19 Authority to altot shares B8.4 11.6
] Pre-ernption rights 98.6 1.4
84.2 158

21 Allow general meeﬁrEs on 14 days’ notice

Investor days

We regularly hold investor days to
profile the totest developments in

our busingss and showcase cur new
properties and locations. During
2014, thesa events included a Capital
Markets Day in April, which allowed
investors o see our Coventry
portfolioand development pipeline
and the opportunity o interact with
our digital operating platform, PRISM,
and a second Capital Markets Doy in
December in London demonstrating
how PRISM improves and streamlines
our operations. These events allow

us to demonstrate the breadth and
depth of our monagement team
who help ensure that Unite Students
continues to evolve.

Sharehalders by geography

Top 10 shareholders
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LEADERSHIP

Corporate culture and
governance leadership

The Board has ultimate responsibitity to
Unite Students’ sharsholders for alf the
Group's activities and aiso a broader
responsibiity, extending 1o environmental
and social issues, mcognising that the
Group is home 1o 49,000 students during
a crucial stage of their personal
development and with Universities right
acrass the UK. To discharge this broader
responsibility effectively, the Group needs

1o operate in an opan, harmonious and
ransparent manner, One way in which
this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
seniof leaders. Yorious rembers of the
senior leadership team regularly present
1o the Board. During 2016, Unite"s
Operations Director, Student Experience
Director, Heod of Digitol. Area Managess,
Developrnent Director, Funds Direcior
{representing our various co-investment
vehicias], University Partnerships Director
and Head of Legal 8 Company Secretary

37

{among others) presented o the Board.
This direct access to management opens
dialogue beyond the board room itself.

Further, with Boord meetings locoted in
Gities across the UK, the Board visits our
new developments as well s existing
propertias meeting with aur Operations
teams and giving them a grounded nsight
to the implementation of our strategy.

Board shucture
- Unite Cperations
Board {?% Boord
Unilie Propedty
Nomination Audit Health & Safety Remuneration Board
Commitiee Committee Committee Committee
PHa White ~ Chair Manji! Woktenholme Sir Tim Wilson — Chai ERzobeth McMelkan
Andrew Jones - Chai Richard Semith - Chals
Erabeth McMaekan Elzabeth McMeikan Eizabeth McMelkan Andrew Jones
Sir Tim Wikson Sir Tirn Wilson Phil Wiite R omemitt
Monjit Woklerholme Sk Tim Wikon sk C e
Mangit Woktenhoime Christopher
" " 70 n Szpojnarowicz
Nomination Audit Health & Sofety Remuneration {Head of tegaland
Committee Report Commitiee Report Cormrvninea Report Cormmittee Report Company
Secratary] Chair
The Remuneration i
Commttee Report Eo‘c:f;g mith
sincorpomated N .
Into this Corporcrie Richard Simpson
Govermnance
Stalement
by reference.
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Board operating rhythm - linked
to strategy and business oversight
The Boord has an annuat operating
rhythm with a forward agenda of items
for the forthcoming yeor bwilt around our
three strategic objectives. The Board's
meelings are split between strotegy
{these consider the Group’s longer term
stratagy having regard to emenging risks
or the raview and approval of specific
investments abave certain thrasholds)
ond routine cperational, property and
financiol updotes (these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well as
governance aversight of in-year activity].

Meetings take place throughout the UK,
often at Universities in order for the Board

Board operaling rhythm

Regular vpdates from the Board
Commiiees on thedr activities
and recommendations

Opetational, propery
ond financial updates

Market anci Higher Edycation
seclorupdates

Strategy and five-year plon

Risk

New development schemes

Training

Review of Group policies

to meet Vice-Chancellors and leom
about their experiences with Unite, their
accommodation requirements more
generally and broader developments in
the Higher Education sector.

The Board is able fo oversee the setting
and impiementation of the Group's
strategy due to its flot manogement
structure; three mernbers of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
actively involved in the day to day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive perspective is balanced by five
Non-Executive Directors, including the
Chaimnan, who bring a depth and breadth
of experience in senior mancgement,
Higher Education, finance. customer
service and real estale.

Senior leaders are regularty invited fo
attend meetings and presen! fo the
Boarg, This provides the Board, and in
particular the Non-Executives, with direct
and open access Yo leaders throughout
the Group and helpsinculcate o culture
of openness and direcinass. In addition.
extermal experts are also invited to
present to the Board (such as University
Vice-Charcellors and property valuers)
to give the Directors o broader ond
independent perspective,

Details of the number of Boord and
Committee meetings held during the
year, and Direclor attendance, is
ovailabie in the fable on page &1.

Ensure that the detailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the Board as a whole

Provide the Board with the necessary information to track the Group's
performance and challenge any problemns with performance

Ensure the Board is equipped with the most up to dote knowledge and
understanding of the industry and enviionment we are operating in

Discuss, raview and aporove our strategy and fiva-year plan, and track
how we are performing against our current strategy and the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principal risks at a Group level and olso a review

of our operational level risks (the Board’s operational risk review is to verify
that risks have been properly identified and that appropriate risk mitigation
plans are being commectly managed with clear actions and ownership)

Review and challenge new development schemes being recommended
by monagement and, due to the significant capital expenditure
involved and key strategic decisions required, approve these new

devalopment schemes

A review of the Board's training needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up fo date on key legal and regulatory changes. During 2016, training
was conductad on how we are using technology and secial mediain
the business as well as govemance training on various 1opics, mcluding

the Market Abuse Regulations

Review of key Group pohcies, such as the Anli-Bribery Policy, to ensure
they are appropriate ond implemented effectively
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Board activity end annual programme

February & EeO 260 - *Q
Carporate Post completion Property - apipyoval Preliminary resulls Freasury
resporsibifityand  review - review of land ocquisiion PolCY review
Home forSuccess  of 2015 property in Liverpool

completiors
March o
E] Nominations
Cormmittes
- -
pianning
Aprll o 'S r's
m Development Approval of land Training: Market
plpeine acquisition Abuse Regulofions
In Birmingham
and construction
controgctsin
Partsmouth

May & =e = ¢ B -

m Unite Foundation Intemal gudit plan  Assess auchton Review intemal H & § Commitiee

¢ ] controlk
PRISM workshop Ee

Principal
risks roviaw

June & . & W

m Market review Half-year Acquisition Adophng

voluation opportunities riew insigde
preview —approval of Information
land acauisiion Policy and Snare
1n Sheffield Daakrng Policy

July [ Y1

m intenm results

September a8 » . . &

[2] Strategic Plon Boardevaluation  USAF/LSAV/whally Tax review and H & § Committee
and folent review owned portfoio REIT conversion

- rwage

November F Y m ry: | . Be . Y

E] Principal risks seview 2017 budgst Sales cycle Caopital operating  REIT Circular

themeas review guidelines review  approved

Dacamber 1 &y -] W & o

Eg Customer Approve Prospective whistleblowing Training: Corporate  H &S Comimitiee
sofisfaction 2017 budget yearend out-turn  review Govemance

0 Anti-pribery review
Financial ondg nsk Digatal
& StrateqQy E monggeament 'ﬁ Cpenationat h Cormmercial . Investor relgtions 6 Governance D workshap

1 Great wvloee Briant DfODBf'kﬂo Growing and sustainabie aarmmgs * No boond aclivity in January, August and Oclober
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Compaosition and appointments
The composition of the Beard during 2014
is sef out in the fable on page 57.

The Board currently consists of the
Chaoirman, three Executive Directors ond
fowr Mon-Executive Directors.

Soard composlion

Rale

In accordonce with the requirements of
ihe Code, each of the cumen| Directors
offers themselves for re-etection ot the
Annual General Meeting 10 be convened
on 11 Moy 2017. Brief biographies of all the
Directors are set out on pages 54 and 55.
Follewing the individual performance
evalyations of each of the Non-Executive
Directors seeking re-glection, itis
confirmed thal the perforrmance of each
of these Non-Executive Direciors
continues o be effective, They each
demonstrate commitment to the role,
and add value and relevant experience
o the Board.

Desaription

THE UMITE GROLI® PLC ANMUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2004

Roles

The Group's ferms of reference for the
Chairman and the Chief Executive
cleorty establish the division of
responsibility between the two roles.
Summaries of thase roles. and thot of the
Senior Independent Director, are set out
in the tabie below.

Chairman

Phil White's principal responsibilities are:

» To establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the strategic objectives of the

Group, for approval by the Board
» To organise the business of the Board

» To enhance the standing of the Company by communicating with sharehoiders,
the financiat community and the Group's stokeholders generally

Chief Executive

Richard Smith has responsibility for:

» Establishing. in conjunction with the Chairman, the strafegic objectives of the Group.

for approvai by the Board

> implementing the Group's business plan and annual budget
» The overall operationot and financial performance of the Group

Senior Independent Director

As Senior Independent Direcior, Manjit Wolstenholme’s principal responsibiities are to:

> Actas Chair of the Board if the Chairman is conflicted
» Actasa conduit to the Baard for the communication of shareholder concemns it
other channels of communication are inappropriate

v

Ensure that the Chairman is provided with effeciive feedback on his performance

Responsibility and delegation
A schedule of specific matters is reservea

for the Board. Those include:

» Approving the strategic cbiectives of
the Group and the business plan to
achieve those objectives

> Approving major investments,

acaquisitions, mergers and divestments

Approving major developmen! schemes

Approving appointments 1o and

dismissals from the Board

> Reviewing systems of internal control
and risk manggement

v v

> Approving policies reloting fo
Directors’ rermuneration.

These topics are scheduled as part of the
board's annual operating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought to the Board
on an ad hoc basis, as and when this

is necessary,
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Board and Committee atendance at meetings in 2016

&1

L

Dateof Heah 4
Cufrent Appoihimen) Auqgit  Remynergion Nomination Satety
Directors Status o 1ha goard Beord Commitee Committee Comrttes . Cinﬂnlee“
Phi White Chairman 21.00.09 9 N/A 5 2 N/A
Sir Tim Wilson independent 01.12.10 9 4 5 2 3
Manjit Wolstenhoime independent oLz 9 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jonas Independent 01,0213 g N/A 5 2 N/A
Elzabeth McMeikan Independent 01.02.14 9 4 5 2 3
Joe Lister Execufive 02.01.08 9 N/A N/A N/A N/
Richard Simpson Execufive D1.0t12 9 N/A N/A NJA N/A
Richard Srith Executive 01.01.12 9 N/A N/A N/A 3
Resigned during the year
Mark Allon
Resigned 371.05.16 Executive ITALES 4/4 NfA N/A NfA o]
Patrick Dempsey
Resigned 31.08.16 Independent 01.03.14 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 1A
Board Commitiees The graph below shows the current Protessional advice
The Board has delegated ceriain balance of enure of the Non-Executive and Board support

responsibilities to its Comrmittees, as
detaied on the following pages. The
terms of reference for each Committee
are reviewed annuatly and he current
versions are available on the Company’s
weabsite ot www.unite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of ecch Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on
page 57.

Bourd tenure

Each of the Executive Directors has aroling
coniract of employment with a 12 month
nofice period, white Non-Execulive
Directors are. subject 1o re-election by
sharaholders, appointed to the Board for
aterm of approximately three yeors. In
acrordance with the recommandations
of the Code, the Directors will all retire

at the Annual Generol Mesting and will
submit themsetves for re-election by
sharehoiders,

Directors, including the Chairmeon.

Boand denure

Directors ara given access to
independent professional cdvice at the
Company's expense when the Direclors
deem it necessory in order for tham o
carry out their responsibifities. The Directors
olso hove reguiar dialegue with, and
direct access 1o, the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who ensures
that Boqrd processes and corporate
govemnmonce prachcss ore followed,

Insurance

The Company maintaing Directors and
Officers liability insuraince, which is
renewed an an annual basis.

Hodar bainus
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EFFECTIVENESS

Induction

On appointment to the Board,
each Director tokes partina
comprehensive and personalised
induction programme covering:

> The business ond operations of the

Group and the Higher Education

sector; the role of the Board and

matters reserved for its decisions; the

terms of reference and membership

of Board Commitieas; and powers

delegated ta thase Committees

The Group's corporate govemance

proctices and procedures and the latest

financial nformafion about the Group

> Their legal and reguiatory responsibilities
as a Director and, specifically, as a
Director of q fisted company.

v

As part of the induction program, sach
Directar also visits key locations to see our
businass operatfions and properties first
hand and fhe Higher Education institutions
we partner with. Also, they meet with key
senior exacutives so from the outsat they
have access o managers throughout the
organisation 10 help them form their own
independent views on the Group and ifs
performance, and the Higher Education
sector we operate in. In additian, they
are given the opportunity to meat

with representatives of the Company’s
key advisars.

This induction is aiso supplemented with
ongoing training throughout the year ta
ensure the Board are kept up to date with
kay legal, regulatory and industry updates,

Richard Smith's CEO Induction
Following Richard Smith's appointment
as CEQ, aspecific induction pion was
developed. Richard already had
considerable experience with the
Company, but o plan was devised to
reflect his new role as CEQ. This included
meeting with various sfakeholders In fhis
new nole 6s well as building a development
plan fo help ensure Richard's transition
into his new role.

2014 evaludtion key themes
Corporate cutture and
govemnance leadership:

This year, we eéxpanded our Boord
evalyation to osk searching questions
about our corporate culture and
governance leadership {see questions
set below) using the learnings from the
FRC raport, Corporate Culture and the
Rola of Boards. The oufput was very
encouraging, with a consensus that
we have a positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governance leadership. We plon fo
puild on this for 2017, using our Home
far Success brand architecture and
ways of working o develop KPis fo
help measure performance.

Collaborative team:

The Board and its Committess operole
as a collaborative team, balancing
thetr collective responsibility
appropriatety, Comments across

the Executive Directors and
Non-Execufive Directors were

broadty similar, indicating nc real
outiiers or divergence of views.

Questions in Board Evaluation focusing on corporale cullure and govemance leadership

Does the Beard have cledr agreement on its role in shaping, embedding and ovenseeing the Group's corporate culture?

Does the Boord devote sufficient time ond resources to evaluating govemance leadenship?

Does the Board have viskility over KPIs which measure comporate value arsing from Unite Students' brand and reputation?

Are the Executive Directors aligned in Unite Students’ purpcse and vales?

Is the brooder leadership team dligned with Unite Studients' purpose and values?

Do the Non-Exacutive Drectors have appropriate iine of sight occess (o the business?

Does the Company Secretary provide independent and fransparent advice and guidance on corporate govermance matters?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high kevel of frust within its investor base. with o pasitive say/do ratio?

Does Unite Students enjay o high level of frust within ifs wider stakeholder base, with a positive say/do ratio?
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Perdformance evaluation

Each year the Board, its Committees

and Directors are evoluoled considering
[among other things) the balance of
skills, exparience, iIndependence and
knowledge on the Board, its diversity
[including gender]. how it works together
as a unit and other factors rglevant to

ity effectivenass.

During 2014, this Board evaluation
spacifically explored our corporcte
culfure and govemance leadership.

The key leamings from the FRC's recent
report, Corporate Cylture and the Role
of Baards, were used os the basis for this.
in addition, the evaluation considered
the behaviours and processes of the
Boord, its Commitiees and ecch rnember
of the Board, including the Chairman,

The Company’s policy i 10 conduct an
axternally focilitoted evaiugtion every
third year. During 2016, the evaluation
was conducted internally. The previous
axternat evaluation was 2014 and the
next external evaluation is expected

to be during 2017,

The 2014 evaluotion teok the formef a
questionnaire gsking searching guestions
of the Board and Committees. This was
conducted on an ononymous basis ~ to
encourage fronk and drect feedback
- ond the results then coliated by the
Company $ecrelary and shared with
the Group Board and each Committee.
In addition, the recommended actions
from the 2015 evaluation were reviewed
1o determine progress cgainst them,

Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors

The Boarg considers each of its four
Non-Executive Direclors ‘o be
independent, Accordingly, the Company
meets the requirement of the Code in
nalation to members of the FTSE 253 that
at leost hatt of the Board [excluding the
Chairrmnany), is made up of independent
MNon-Executiva Directors. In addition.
Phil white |Choirrnen of the Board}

was considered independent on his
appointment o that role.

The Chairman and the Mon-Executive
Diractors constructively challenge and
help develop proposals on strategy, and
bring strong, iIndependent judgement,
knowledge and experience 1o the
Board’s deliberations. Non-Executive
Directors are expected 1o commit
approximately 20 days per annum

to the business of the Group.

The terms and conditions of appointment
of the Non-Executive Directors are
available for inspection at the Company’s
registered office and ot the annual
general meeting.

43

Training

The Board reviewed iheir training needs
and considered it important #at the
Direclors have a broader perspective
of the digital ond technology needs of
the business. This fed to a Digital and
Social Media Workshop for the Board.
damoenstrating PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 2016, In
addition, the Board considered it
imporiant that the Committee Chairs
continue o receive relevont functional
fraining {such as on cccounting, UK
Corporate Governonce Code ond
exacutive ramuneration reporting
developments] and accordingly the
Commitlee Chairs attend relevant
externgl seminors, The Board receives
on-going training on corporate:
govemance developments, which in 2016
included fraining on the Market Abuse
Reguiation in anficipation of this coming
into effect during 2014,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Phil White Chairman

Nomination Committee

Chalr's overview

Earlierin the report, | explained the Board
changes during the year, with Richard
Smith appointed Chief Executive following
Mark Allan's resignation after 17 years
with Unite, including 10 as Chief Executive,

wWith succession planning and talent
development a key area of focus for the
Committee over the years, it hos been
especially pleasing that this cuiminated
in the smooth transition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an internal hire.
This focus on succession planning and
talent development has also enabled the
expansion of the roles of our Chief Financial
Officer, Joe Lister, ond Managing Director
of Property, Richard Simpson, Joe Lister's
role expanded to include People ang
Communications and Richard Simpson's
ta inciude Health and Safety, Procurement
ond Asset Manggement. This has resulted
in the number of Executive Directors on
the Board reducing fram four lo three.

This focus on succession planning and
talent development has enabled the
Executive Directors o step up, with g
corasponding stepping up in the senior
leadership team. On an ongoing basis,
the Commitiee reviews oyr talent pipeline
for future Board appointments as weall as
raviewing the skills we need in our senior
teodership team. These reviews are
measured against cur three core strategic
obiectives. The Committee's focus
extends fo devetoping high performing
individuals below Boand level, ensuring

a deep taient pipeline to secure the
business's long term sustainatoility.

Phil White
Chair - Nomination Committee
22 Feloruory 2017

|

Commitee overview

Composition

The Committee consists enfirely of
Non-Execulive Directors. The members of
the Committee are set out on page 57 of
the Corporate Governance Slatement,
At the invitotion of the Commitiee,

arry other Director or other person may
be invited to attend meetings of the
Commitiee if considered desrable in

i assisting the Committee in fulfilling its role.

Role
The role of the Committee is to!

» Ensure that appropriate procedures
are adopted and followed in the
nomination, selection, fraining,
evoluation and re-aelection of Directors
and for succession planning, with due
regard in all cases to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including gender

> Regularly review the skructure, size,

compaosition, skills and experience

of the 8oand and to make

recommendations with regord fo any

adjustments considered necessary

When it is agreed that an appointment

to the Board should be made, lead a

selection process that is formal, rigorous

and transparent

Be responsiole for identifying, reviewing

and recommending candidotes for

appointment o the Board,

Activities in 2014

Succession planning

Reviewing succession pkanning and
ensuring we have a cleor falent pipeiine
for future Board appointments — this
considers both Executive Directors as well
04 the Non-Execufive Dinectors. Spaecifically
for 2016, this succession planning ked fo
the appointrent of our former MD of
Operations, Richard Smith, as our new
CEQ, following Mark Alkan's resignation,

v

v

As an integral part of our executive
succession planning, the Committee
oversees the senior leadership
davelopment programme [part of a
broader skilis deveioprrent programmet
to ensure we are growing and nurturing
our talent and developing our high
potential, high performers.
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Review of Board composition

An ongaing review of the 8oard's
composition to ensure it has the comect
balance of skills, experdence, ndependence
and knowledge. The Committee believes
the Board has the commect balance al

the moment, but is conscious of the
developrments in digital, fechnology and
customer experience and reviews this on
an ongoing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We recognise that diversity and inclusivity
@t Board level and throughout the Group
is critical component of our long-term
sustainability, We are praud of the diversity
of the Group as awhole, an organisation
made up of employees, who like our
customers, are from many different
backgrounds and counfries and hove
diverse experiences, perspectives

and skills,

Beyond the Board roorm and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our appreach 1o diversity and
inclusion during 2014. We recognise this
as a key building block of our people
strategy and that the UK workforce ond
our students arg increasingly diverse. To
rermain competitive we need to develop
a diverse and inclusive workplace that
willin tum best represent and support our
customers in creating @ Home for Success.

During Q3 2016, we conducted an
anonymous survey of cur employees,
which has led ndt only 1) a greater focus
on female representation atf senior levels
within ihe business but also brooder
diversity and inclusion initicfives.



THE UNTE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT ANG ALTOUNTS 2816

This is translating into the foliowing
actions andt focus for 2017, being driven
by a senior ieadership working group:

> We are widening our racruitmenit
channels 10 bring in increased diversity

» We are fraining all recruiting managers

and the resourcing team on

unconscious bias 1o ensure that we are

recruiting the best person for the job

We are ensuring thot all customer

facing tearns are diverse and

appropriatety representative of our

ool community ond our students

?> We are aclively supporting our high
potentiol fernale employees

» We are ensuring that allleadership

roles have diverse candidates on the

short fist

We are activety working with

organisation such s Stonewall and

Business Disability Forum o raise

our awareness

? We are reviewing all HR policies and
procedures o be more inclusive with
reloted line manager raining

b4
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As regards the Board itlself, the Norningtion
Committee considered during 2016
whether it wanted to set specific targets
for female representation on the Board.
The Commiitee believeas the qumant

focus of diversity and inclusivity should

e on the Group as a whole with the
devetopment of a diverse and inclusive
talent pipeline incorporating the initiatves
oufiined gbave. The Committee is not
currenity considering setling diversity
fargets for the Board itself balieving thisis
not necessarily in the best inlerests of the
Group and ifs stakehaiders, but gender
diversity, along with all other aspecis of
diversity and inclusivity, will be considered
along with its more general remit 1o
consider the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowfedge when
reviewing appointments to the Board.

45

ACCOUNTABILITY

intemal control

The Board has overall responsibifity for

the Group's system of infernagi confrol.
However, such a system is designed to
achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasaonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstaterment.

The provisions of the Code inrespect of
internal controls require that Directors
review and monitor all controks including
operational. compliance and risk
managemaent, as well as financial
conkrol. Through repoerts from the Board's
Committees, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Business Units Boards
[Opetaiions Board and Property Board),
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of interna) conhols
for the period covered by the Annual
Reaport and Accounts ond has concluded
that such controls were effective
throughaut such period.

Further infarmation on the Company's
intemal control framework is set out in
the Audit Cormmittee Report on the
fotlowing pages. The Board delegates
certain of its duties, responsibilities ond
powers to the Audit Committes, so thot
these can receive suitcbly focused
attention, but in so doing the Audit
Cornmittee acts on behalf of the full
Board, and the matters reviewed ond
managed by the Audit Committee
ramain the responsibility of the Directors
foken as a whole,

Going concem

After making enquiries, the Directors
have o reasonable expeciation that the
Group and the Company have odequate
resources 10 continue in operationat
existence for the foreseeable future.

For this reason, they continue fo adopt
the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts,

Risk management

The Board, when setfing the stralegy,

also determines the nature and extent

of the principol risks and iis risk appetite

in implementing this strafegy. Each year
the Board reviews the eifeclivenass of the

Group's risk management systems and
how the Board did this curing 2014 is set
out on pages 22 to 25.

Business model
For a description of the Group's business
model, see page 5 of the Strategic Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjit Wolstenholme Choirman

Audit Commiltee Chair's overview
During 2014, the Audit Committes
continued its key oversight role for the
Board with its specific duties os set out

in its terms of reference fo reassure
shareholders that their interests are
property protected in respect of the
Group's financial management

and reporting.

The Audit Committee works to a structuned
progrormme of activities, with agenda
items focused to coincide with key events
in the annual financial reporting cycle.
The Committee reports regulorly to the
Board on its work,

During the year, the Committee has
continued to monitor the integrity of

the Group's fingncial statements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group's risk
management and internal control
systerrs in line with the enhanced
requirements under the Corporate
Govamance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
internal audit aclivity and reviewed its
findings and verfed that rmcommendations
werg being appropriately implemeantad.
In addition, recognising the value of an
effective whisfleblowing channel, the
Committee again reviewed arrangements
for the Grouyp's employees o raise
concems in confidence.

Further to the appointment of Deloitte

as the Group's cudilors during 2015 and
subsequent to the completion of their first
audit report in February 2016 the Audit
Commitiee undertook a full avaluation
of the audit approoch to ascerlain the
effectiveness of the externai audit
function. Further to the completion of the
evalugtion of the external audit process
we are satisfied with both the auditor's
independence and audit approach and
have recommended {o the Board that
they be re-appointed in 2017,

As noled in this Corporate Govemance
Statement, the Board delegates cerfain
of its duties, responsibilities and powers
1o the Audit Committee, so that these
can receive suitably focused attention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, ond the matiers
reviewed and managed by the
Committee remain the responsibility

of the Directors as a whole.

Role of the Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee has delegated
authority frorm the Board set out in its
written tenms of reference, The terms of
reference for the Audit Committee Icke
into account the requirements of the
Code ond are available for inspection
ct the registeredt office and ot the
Annudl General Meeting. and can

also be found on the Group website

at www,unite-group.co.ukfabout-unite/
corporate-governance.

The key objectives of the Audit
Cormmittee are:

> To provide effective governance and
confrol over the iregrity of the Group's
financial reporting and review significant
financial reporting judgernents
To support the Board with its angoing
monitoring of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal Controls and
risk management systems
Te monitor the effectiveness of the
Groyp's internal audit function and
review its material findings
> To oversae the relationship with the
externai auditor, including making
recormnmendations to the Boord in
relation 0 the oppointrment of the
external guditor and monitoring
the external auditor’s objectivity
ond independence.

v

v
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Composition of the

Aydit Committee

The members of the Commitiee are

set out on page 57 of this Corporate
Governance Statement. The Committee
members are allindependent Non-
Executivas and have been selected with
the aim of providing the wide range of
finncial and commercial expertise
necessary to fulfil the Committee's duties.
The Board considers that as a charlered
accountant | have recent and relevant
financial experience. In addition, in
contempiation of a change in the
Corponate Governonce Code effective
for our next Annual Report, the
Cormmittee considered whether itas a
whole has competence in the student
accommadation sector. Having regard
to the Audit Committee members’
experience in both the Higher Education
sector and their experience with Unite,
the Commitiae believes it does have the
required compeltence.

Meetings gre attended., by invitation, by
the Chief Financial Officer, the Deputy
Chief Financiol Officer and the Group
Financial Contrcller.

| also invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
o each meeting. The Committes
regularly meets separately with

Deloitte without others being present.

As appropriate, | also invite ourinterngl
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC).
to attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of management to
ensure alignment. fo update on
respective findings and consider the
impact on the relative opproaches of
thelr work.

Committee meefings

The Committee meets four times during
the year and attendance at those
meetings is shown on page 41 of this
Corporate Governance Statement.

Malin activities of the Commiitee
during the year

Meetings of the Committee generally
take place just prior to a Group Board
meeting and repor fo the Board as part
of a separate agendaitem, on the
activity of the Committee and matters of
particutar refevance to the 8oardin the
conduct of their work. At its four meetings
during the year, the Committee focused
on the activities described below,
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The Committee reviewed the naff vear
ond annual financial statements and
the: significant financial reporting
judgements_As part of this review, the
Committee supported the Board by
reviewing the financial viabifity and the
basis for preparing the accounts on a
Qgoing concem basis as outiined below.
The Commitlee glsa reviewed ond
challenged the external guditor's
report on these financiol staferments.

As discussed abova, the effectiveness of
he externol oudit function wos considered
during 2016, subsequent to the tender
and appointment precess of Deloitfe in
May 2015. During the evaluation process
the Committee consicenedt: the
indepandence and obiectivity of the
external auditor: the make-up and
quality of the audit team; the propased
audit approach and the scope of the
audit; the execution of the audit and
the auality of the audit report to the
shareholders; as well as ultimataly the
fee struciure.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC os the Group's internal auditor on
their audit and assessment of the control
environrment. The Commitiee reviewed
and proposed areas of focus for the
internal gudit progromme Of review
including the approach to ensure that
the internal audit activity is aligned to
the principal Group risks.

Financial reporting

The prirmary focus of the Commitiee, in
ralation to financiol reporting in respect of
the year ending 31 December 2016, wos
1o review with both management and
fhe external auditor the appropriateness
of the half year and annual financial
statements concentrating on:

* The quality and acceptability of
accounting poiicies and practices
¥ The clarity of the disclosures ond
compliance with financial reporting
stondards ond relavant financial and
governance reparting requirements
Material areas in which significant
judgements have been applied
or where there has been discussion
with the external auditor
Whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, is far,
balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business
rmodel and strategy.

b4
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The Commitiee's assessment of the
Annual Report 1o ensure that it is fair,
balonced and understandable tock into
account the following considerations:

% A review of what fair, balanced and
understandabie means for Unite

> The high leve! of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board ta review and comment on the
Annyal Report

» Ensuring consistency in the reporting
of the Group's performance and
management information {os
described an pages 20-21}, risk {o5
described on pages 26-29). business
model and strategy (os described
on page 5)

> A cross-check between Boord minutes
and the Annual Report is undertaken
1o ensure that reperting is balanced

¥ Whether information is presented
in @ cleor and concise manner,
ilustrated by oppropriate KPls
fo faclitcte shareholders’ access
o relevant information.

To aid ouwr review, the Commitioe considers
reports from the Group Financial Controller
and olso reports from the external quditor
on the outcemes of their halt year review
and annual audit. As a Cammittee,

we support Deloitte in dsplaying the
necessary professional scepticism their
role requires.

Significant issues considered

by the Commiliiee

After discussion with both manogement
and the extecnal auditor, the Committee
determined that the key rsk of missikatement
of the Group's 2014 financial statements
related to:

> Property valuations
» Joint venture accounting.

Property vaivations

The Group's principal assets are
investmant properties and investment
properties under development that

are gither owned on balance sheet orin
USAF or LSAV. The investment properties
are comed at fair value based on an
appraisat by the Group's extermal valuers
who carry out the valuations in accordance
with fhe RICS Red Book valuafion guide,
taking into occount transactional
avidence during the year. The valuation
of property assets invelves significant
judgement and changes in the core
assumpfions coyld have a significant
impact on the camying value of these
assets. Management discusses the

67

]

underlying perforrmance of each asset
with the external valuers and provides
detoiled performance data to them
including rents, University lease
Qgreements, occupancy, property costs
and ¢osts fo compiete (for developrnent
properties). Management receives
delailed reports from the valuers and
performs o deloiled review of the
valugtions to ensure that they consider
the valudtions to be appropriate. The
volugtion report is reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior to sign-off.

During the year, the Committeg andjfor
the Board met with members of the
Group's voluers and chakenged them on
the bas’s of ther voluations and their core
assumptions, inCluding the yieks for eoch
properly, renial growth and forecost costs.

The Commitiee questioned the external
vaksers on market trends and transactionol
evidence that supports the valuations.
The Committee was sofisfied thot the
Group's voluers were appropriately
quaified and provided on independent
assessrent of the Group's assets.

The Committee was safisfied that an
apovopriate valuation process had faken
ploce, the core assumptions ysed were -
reasanabla and hence the carrying
volue of investment and development
properties in the financial statements
was appropriote.

The auditor expkained their cudit
procedures to test the vatuation of
investment and development properties
and the Group's disclosures on the
subjact. On the basis of thewr audit work,
the auditor reportad no Inconsistencies
or misstatermenis that were materialin
the context of the financial statements
os awhole.

34 Further onalysis ond detoil
on asset valuations

poda ofeong

:

UOHDULIOJUL JBYIO



L)

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2914

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significant assets are its
investments in USAF and LSAV which the
Group has historically acoounted for as
joirt venturas.

The Group adopled iFRS 10-12 from the
2014 financiol year end which provides
guidanca on how an investor should
account for its interests in other entities,
including a definition of control ang
guidance on how to classify and accouni
for jointly controlled amangements,
During the yeor, Management undertook
a delailed review of its classification

for both USAF and LSAV, and following
that analysis concluded thot there had
been no materiol change in its originol
assessment in 2014 that both USAF and
LSAV should be traated s joint ventures.
The Committee considered this ond
agreed there was no material change
ond gccordingly it was oppropriote fo
continue o account for USAF and LSAV
as a joint venture under IFRS 11, with Unite
recording its 23% share of the resuits anct
net assets of USAF as a joint veniure using
equily cccounting. and likewise 50%

for LSAV.

Risk management

The Group's risk assessment process and
the way in which significant business risks
ane managed is a key anaa of focus for
the Committee.

Ourwork here was driven primarily

by performing an assessment of the
opproach taken by the Group's Risk
Committee. The Risk Committee is
responsitle for the delivery of the Group's
risk management ramework, which

the Commitiee has approved, and the
Group's assessment of its principal risks
and uncertainties, as set oul on pages
2210 29.

The Board also formally reviewed the
Grayp's principal risks at two meatings
during the year. Through these reviews,
the Cormmitiee considared the risk
management procedures within

the business and was satisfied that

the key Group risks were baing
appropriately managed.

The risk ossessmeant flags tha impaortance
of the internai control framework to
manage risk and this orms o sepamate
area of review for the Committee.

Intemal controls

Led by the Group's rsk assessment process,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluoted its control environment,
Management is responsible for esiablishing
and mainiaining odeguate internal
confrols. infermal controls are designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding
{among other things} the reliabifity of
financialreporting and the preparation
of the finoncial statements for external
reporting purposes. A comprenensive
strategic planning, budgeting and
forecasting procass is in plocs. Monthly
financial information and performance
insight is reported ko the Board.

The Commitfee's wark o review the
effectivanass of the internal controls was
drivan by the Group Financial Controlier's
reports on the efiectiveness of internal
canirols, supported by the work of the
nternc) puditor ond their reports fo the
Audit Committee. The feedback from the
Group's intermal auditor on specific areas
of controt is tested on a periodic bask
and they request our exfernal auditor to
provide specific feedback and assessrment
of the Group's financial controls

and highlight any areas of weakness.

No significont weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Commitiee’s reviews.

Intemal audit

The Graup engages Pw to perform
internal audit activity, with this interncl
sudit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committes.

The Committee considered and approved
the scope of the internal audit activity to
e undertaken during 2016 and looking
forward on g twelve-month basis to
ensure that the intermnal gudit approach i
more adaptable to the risk environment.
The Committee also discussed and
challenged the sutput from the internol
audit reviews undertaken in the prior year
and concluded that the reviews provided
good suppor for statements made by
manogement and thot the control
environment is solid in the areos tesied
over the last three years.

During the yeor, PwC focused their internal
audit work on corporate tax, fund
management and revenue management,
All greas of internal qudit were being
reviewed for the first time in 2016 ond
overgll PwC concluded that controls
were well designed and are aperating
effectivaly. Since PwC first reported on
internal controfs in 2071, if was noted that
in each subsequent reporting period
there has been an improvement in the
overall conlrol environment,

Externa! audit

The effectiveness of the external audit
pmocess is faciftated by appropriate qudit
risk identification at the start of the cudit
cycie which we receive from Deloitfe

in a detoiled audit plan, identifying their
assessment of these key risks.

For the 2014 financiol year the significant
risks identified were in relotion to

the valuation of properties and the
classification of joint ventures due o the
inherent management judgment reguired
in these areqs. These focus areas were
discussed at the Commitles ond it wos
agreed that they should be the principal
areas of focus as they represent the
areas with the greatest level of
judgement aond materally impoc! the
overall performance of the Group.

Thase risks are iracked through the yeor
and we challenged tha wark done by the
auditor to fest management's assumptions
and estimates around these areas.

We assess the effectiveness of the audit
procass in addressing these matiers
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte at both the haif year ond year
and and ako reports from management
on how these risks are being addressed.
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For the 2016 financial year, the Commitiee
was satisfied that there hod been
appropricte focus and chaflenge on fhe
primary areas of audit risk and assessed
the quality of the audit process to be
good. We hold private meetings with

the extermal auditor at each Committes

meeting 1o provide odditional opportunity

for open diclogue and feedback from
the Commitiea and the auditor without
management being prasent. Matters
typically discussed include:

» The cudifor’s assassment of business

and financial statement risks and

management activity thereof

The fransparency and openness

of interactions with management,

confirmation that there has been no

restriction in scope placed on them by

monagement and the independence

of thewr audit

» How they have exarcised profassional
scepticism.

v

1also meet with the external lecd audit
partner outside the formal Commitiee
progess throughout the year.

independence ond exiemal
audit tender

The Cormimitiee considers the re-
appointmaent of the external auditor,
including the rotation of the audit partner
which is required every five years, each
yetr ond qiso assesses thekr independence
on an ongoing basis. The Group tendered
the exiermnal audit in May 2015 ond
appointed Deloitte o5 the externol ouditor
following a robust review: the 2015 yeor
end was the first yoor with Deloitie as the
Group auditors.

Tha Committee reviewed Deloitie’s audit
work ond determined that oppropricie
plans are in place fo comy out an effective
and high quality audit, Deloitte confirmed
10 the Committee thot it maintained
appropricte internal safeguards to ensure
its indepandence and obiectivity. As part
of the Committes's assessment of the
ongoing independence of the auditor,
the Committee receives details of any
refaticnships between the Group and
Deioitte that may have a bearing on their
independence and receives confrmation
that they are independent of the Group.

As discussed obove, an assessment of
Deloitte’s effectivaness, its processes.

- audit quality and performance was

| underiaken in May 2016 following

| compiletion of the 2015 oudit.

| During the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the

l Statutory Audit Services for Large

, Companies Market Investigotion

] {Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender

! Processes and Audit Committee

Responsibilitiest Order 2014.

Non-aqudht services

To further safeguard the objectivity and
independence of the external auditor
from becoming compromised, the
Committee hos g formal policy governing
the engagement of the external auditor
to provide non-audit services. No material
changes have been made fo this policy
during ihe year. This preciudes Deloitle
from providing Certoin services such

as valuation work or the pravision of
accounting services.

For certain specific permitted services
{such as reporting accountant activities
and compliance work), the Committee
has pre-approved that Deloitte can be
engaged by managerent subject to
the policies set out cbove, ond subject
to specified fea fimits for individual
engagements and fee fimits for each
type of specific service. For ail ofher
sarvices, of those permitiad sexvices
that exceed the specified fee limifs,

| as Chairman, or in my absence
another member, can Pra-approve
permitted services.

Throughout 2014, no fees hove been
paid to the Group's auditor {Deloitte)

for nan-audit services, During the yedar,
Deloite charged the Growp £0.3 milion for
audit services. The Committee aporoved
the fees for audit services for 2016 after
areview of the level and nature of work
to be performed, including the impact of
ocquisitions, and after being satisfied by
Deloitte that the fees were appropriate
for the scope of the work required.

These fees ore obso benchmarked ogainst
other listed real estote companies of
comparabls size and complexity.

Commitiee evaluation

The Commitiee’s activities formed part
of the avaluation of Board effectiveness
performed in the year. Details of this
process can be found under
‘Performance evalugtion’,

Manijlt Wolstenholme
Chair - Audit Committee
22 February 2017
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

Sir Tim Wison Chairman

Health and Safety Committee
Chalr's overview

The Health and Safety Committee
ensures effective governance of the
health, safety and welibeing of our
amplovess, custarmners, contractors

and other visitors fo our properties, itis
paramount the business recognises that
health ond satety does not stand shil,
there will clways be lessons fo learn and
scope for continuous improvement. | am
committed to ensuring that heoith and
safety is ot the heart of everything that
the business does and have visited

a number of our properties this year,
accompanying the city and heatth and
safety feams, understanding and seeing
for myself how health and safety is being
impiemented within tha business and

o positive culiure is being estoblished.

Unite Students is hame 10 49.000 studenis
and their safety, welibeing ond security
is imperative. We work closely with
stakehalders including Universities and
emergency services to ensure that health
and salety is at the heart of our most
frusted brand, It is recognised thot fire

is the biggest hozord 1o the operoting
portfolio and the business is prooctive

in its approach 10 fire sofoty, setting up

a primary fire autharity agreement with
the Avon Fre Authority, which ensures
appropriate advice and guidance to
owr strategic fire prevention decisions.

A wyccasshul fine sofety campaign has
been delivered to students focusing on
cooking safely. This will directly influence

{heir behaviours and prevent fire related
ncidents. Security can be a challenge
and gn extemna! review has been
undertaken to ensura that strengths and
waaknesses ane identified and appropriate
measures designed and built in to protect
both student ond employee alike.

During the year, we appointed the British
Safety Council os our new safety auditor.
They are conducting an external review
of our HAS Management System to ensure
the oppropriate systems and procedures
are developed and being implementad.
This provides assurance that the
appropriote checks and measures are
baing camed out,

Sir Tim Wilsen
Chalr - Health ond Safety CommiHee
22 February 2017

Commitfee overview
Composition

» Sir Tim wilson {Chair)

» Efizabeth McMefkan

> Richard Smith

Richard simpson (Group Property
Director], Steve Batley (Estates Drector),
Julie Jarvey {Head of Health and Sofety)
and Anthony Amold (Construction
Director} regutarty attend mesatings

of the Committes.

Role
The rofe of the Health and Safety
Commitiee is to:

> Ensure thot the Group’s heaith and
safety policies and procedures are
reviewed annuoily and effectively
implemented fo ensure lagal
requirements are met as well Gs striving
for best practice

» Ensure that the busineass is aware of
reguictory changes and undersionds
the impaoct upon the business

» Remain updated on performance
and any major health and safety |
incioents so os 1o ensure rmanagement |
identifies and implements approoriate
corrective actions. |

Activities In 2016

There hove been positive improvements
throughout the year to embed the Keep
us Safe agenda to develop safe and
heatthy employees and customers.

The mast trusted brand is at the forefront
of our minds and our core values are at
the heart of health and safety:

> We care about the health, safety and
wallbeing of our employees and
customers and IY is at the heart of
everything we do

» We lead by devaloping robust systerns
and promofing good practice

? We unite with stokehalders to develop
positive engogement

> We dellver by alwaoys seeking confinuous
irmprovermnent ond good practice.

The H&S Management System [HSG 65}
has besn deveioped and implemanted
ta include robust policies, procedures
and hozard controts. The scope of the
system is fo implement effeclive poficies,
hazard controis, health and safety
fraining, equipmeant managament,
effective communication, aocupationat
health provision, ouditing and review,
docurnent control as well as identifying
where legol complionce s required.

The Group H&S Policy documents the
Group's commitment to o safe working
environment and ensure the sofety of
cur employees and anyone who may
be offecied by our businass Qs wal

as demonstrating compliance with
legisiotive requirerments, The poficy is a
formal mechanism for the adherence
of the principles of the H3S5 Management
System (HSG 48] and sets out our aims,
details the structure of our organisation
and how we will manage and promote
our health and safety objectives.
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Along with embedding our H&S
Management System through HSG 65,
the key improverments tis year have
included:

» The impiementation of regional heatth
ond sofety committees o ensure
effective consuliction with employees

¥ A fullreview and update of the
operafions risk nssessments 10 ensure
adequate hozard control

» Revised contractor management and
permit o work systemn to manoge
hazardous work activities

» Improved induction training platform
which encompasses host videos ond
augrmented reality leaming and an
associcled haadbaook. The videos
focus on driving for work, lone working,
safety signage. housekeeping/
maintenance hazards such as
chemicols, machinery, asbestos and
pearsonal protective eguipment.

There is on interactive game for
oecident, incident ang neor misses.
The augmented reglity technalogy

is based G hazard spofting and picks
up key areas of risk thot employees are
likely toc cOme across

¥ Updated property mspections with
monithly city and quarterty team checks
as well as odditione) development
1ite inspections

> Quarterly heath and safely reviews
with ali three romework development
contractors which inciude directors
and health and sofety reprasentatives

> Anexfemal oudit has alse been
undertaken of property development
sites and encompassed ihe principal
contractor and principal designer

? Unite branding has been introduced
on ine deveiopment sites ta drive the
messoge from o Client perspective

» Extenal benchmarking of site

inspection scores via Considerate

Construcior Scheme (CCS). and UKCG

Elevaoted Unfte health and safety profile

by Becoming a client pariner

of the CC3

Implerented a Yellow Card system

at the devekopment sites o halt works

immediately if there is significant

concefn over health and safety.

v

W

Extemal audit

The British Safefy Council was appointed
to undertoke a best practice audit of the
H&S Management System [HSG &5) and
its effectiveness. The audit focused on key
qredas including: policy and arganisational
responsibilities, stralegy ond plonning,
implementation and operation,
perfarmance measurement, evailuation
and review, leadershio and commitment.
It ako benchmarked performance
indicgtors, which formed part of the
evaluation and included: continual
improvement, ieodership, stakeholder
engagement, risk management and
health and wellbeing. The H3.S
Management System was awarded a
three-siar rating, with a number of areas
of good practice identified as well os
areaqs for continuous improvernent fo
attain best practice and strive fora
four-star rating next yaar.

The tead auditar was impressed with

the properties, commenting: “If ry child
needed studaent accommodation | would
definifely ensure they siayed with Unite,”

The British Safety Council has also
undertaken an audit for the property
development operations of their principal
contractors and principal desigher, visiting
three developmant sites and reviewing
appropriate documentation, As a result
of these audits appropriate stakeholders
are now being consulted and reguiar
meetings set up o work fogether on
taking recommendations forward.

Security

WSP Parson Brinckerhoff undertook

an external security review providing
comprehensive recommendations for
continuous improvement. A seniorievel
steering group i establishing the strategy
with a clear reoadmap for security 1o be
buitt into our projects’ design. layout and
customer impact. A business security
consultant is being appointed to take
the iead and provide the necessary
advice and guidance to ensura the
recommendations gre taken forward.

n

s

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE OUTSTANDING, IT
LWUAS 0BVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION'S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review report
WSP Parson Brinckerhoft

Crisis manggement also forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
amergency preparedness and response
plans and proceduyres, Hence, an
emergency fest fook ploce atan
openating property in London, A review
of the exercise has enabled the sharing
of good practice and lessons leomt, fo
drive further improverments and owild
on the positive engagement with the
emergency services.

Jodas xBayous
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richarg Bobruk joined us in August as
ouf Primaory Fire Authority Lead Fire
Officer [photo above with Alastair
Weston, Health and Salety Manager
on the left and Richard Bobruk, Avon
Fire cind Rescue an the right),

This will drive focus on fire security through:

> Integrating fire sirategy decisions into
the development journgy

> Fire Safety Management — policies and
proceduyres, risk assessments, fraining.
fire records

» Maintenance Regimes - testing and
planned preveniative maointenance

» Specification for new buids ond
developments.

we have completed a benchmarking
exercise and produced o fire risk review
which provides clear direction far
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire sofety strategies.

The external fire risk assessment
programme is being implemanted with
a three-year rofling cycle and internal
onnual reviews. Clearer risk ratings

have been established with prioritisation
and accountability,

Mental healtth and wellibeing
Mental health issues are of grave concemn
to the Higher Education sector and clso
to us ot Unite, especially since we are
thair home while at University, Employees
receive mental health first aid training

to look for signs ond signpos! help. The
student support services team provides
support to ermnployees and studertts

alike and works closely with the Linversity
support teams,

Incidents

Operations

Incidents involving our employees,
customers ar visitors:

» Five reportable injuries {undker RIDDOR)
to employees relating to injuring
thermselves following a fall or knock

» 314 minor {non-reporiagble) incidents
[employees 166, customer 125,
contractor 23).

Development

During 2014, there have been four
RIDDOR reportoble incidents and 20
minorincidents in owr development
activity. This performance is within our
Unite Students infernal benchmarks -
beating the industry standard - as follows:

Incicients LPr Banchmark
4RIDDOR 023 0.30
20 minor 1.13 5.00

* KPl calkcukated as: Na. of ncidents x 100,000

hours/hours worked
Development incidents tor 2016
Non-
RCDOR reportable
Projyect HOWs incdarts ncidents
Stapleton House 317.024 0 0
Qlympic Way 365810 1 i
Greetham St 281,443 0 2
Causeway End 239,090 1 4
Far Goshord 150,849 o] 1
Taro House 238,857 2 2
$YLeonards 96,544 o] 10
Millennium View 79.515 ] 8]
BRI Bristol 5780 4] ]
TOTALS 1,764,912 4 20
Priorities for 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by initiating a contractor fofum to share

Qur vision for the next three years is
the journey to interdependence with
armpowerment in day to day health
and safety management at the core
of everything we do.

Quraim s to ensure the heaith, safety
and weilbeing of employees, and have
& positive influence on customers

and contractors.

includes: prioritising and progressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
security review and external audit
recormmendations and actions.

Specific topical projects include
bespoke manual handling fraining and
ossessment, integrating weilbeing info the
management system, near miss reporting
campaign and engoging with our
stakeholders on health and safety

good practice. lessons learnt and ensure
the very best controciors work on
our properties,
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Ellzabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasuve
to presant the Directors' Remunerotion
Report for 2016.

As In previous years, this report is split into
three sections: this Annugl Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration. Ow Remuneration Policy.
detailed on pages 77 to B3, remains
consistent with that approved by
shorehoiders at the 2014 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both ease of
reference and in order to provide context
fo the decisions faken by the Committee
during the year,

As evidenced earker in this Annual Repor,
2016 has been gnother strong year for
Unite. Financial highhghts have Included
a 20% increase in adjusted EPRA EPS. o
total retum of 15%, further reductions in
see-through LTV, ¢ three pence increase
in our annual dividend, and our 3-year
TSR continuing to out perform the FTSE 350
Real Estate Index. Operationally, we have
continued o increase our number of beds,
while clso mainiaining high occupancy
rates. customer satisfaction levels and
University frust scones. More broadily Unite
has continued to deliver against its strategy,
with progress against the three piliors of
delivering great service to students and
Univenity portners, operating brilliant
buildings and maintaining high-quality
earnings and a strong capital structure,
aiding our transition 1o REIT status effective
1 January 2017,

The year also saw a change in the
executive team, with Richard Smith,
formerty Monaging Director of
Operations, taking on the Chief Executive
role further to the depariure of Mork
Allan. There were changes too for our
other Executive Directors, as both Joe
Lister and Richard Simpson ook on a
number of key additionai respensibilties
as part of an overall sreamlining of the
exgcutive teom.

Iniight of the above, the Committee’s key
decisions during the yeor reloted to the
fellowing areqs:

Salarles for Execulive Directors
During the sharehoider consuliation

that preceded the 2016 AGM, the
Comnittee set out its infention of increasing
the salaries of Exacutive Directors by
between 4% and 9% for 2014, with a further
increqase for the Managing Direclors of

up to 9% in early 2017. The first of these
plonned increqases was made with effect
from ) March 2014 for eoch of Richord
Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received a 2% increose.
consistent with general increases for
employeas across the Cormpany.

Following Mark's resignation, addifional
salary ncreases were made 1o the
remciining Executive Direclors with effect
from 1 June 2014, details of which are set
out below.

Changes in leadership

In light of his promotion fo CEQ. the
Committee reviewed Richard Smith's
sglary against arange of fackors ond
elected to set it at a level of £430,000 per
annum, representing a ¢.3% reduction to
his prodecessor, effactive 1 June 2016,

Reflecting the key odditional responsibifities
foken on by the other remaining Executive
Directors, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson,
the Committee reviewed a number

of oemnotive approaches for their
remuneration with the ultimate gim

of ensuring that they remain focussed

on delivering Unita’s stralegy during o
period of potential instabllity. Following
careful consideration of the aliternatives
permitied within our remuneration policy,
and discussions with some of our major

| The remainder of each Executive Director’s
" remyuneration pockage has slayed
conhsistent with that outlined in last year's
! report, namely efigibility for an annual
bonus of up 1o 144% of solary jwith personal
objectives updated fornew roles and/or
responsibilities). LTIP awards of 200% of
solory [made in June 2016) vesting on
Unite's performance over three years
- and sybject to a two-year holding
period, pension contributions of 20% of
salary and other applicable benefits,

Further details of our considerations in
making these changes are tet out in the
relevant section on pages 85 and 86,

Annual bonus ouicomes
for the financial yeas
Executive Dvectors witl each receive
bonuses of 62.5% of salary (ef. a maximum
of 144% of salory} in respect of 2006
pearformance. Overall bonus culcomes
reflect sofid financial performance by the
Group and the individua! contributions
made by each of the Executve Directors
over the Iast yeor, including significant
progress in their new and exponded roles,

Despite strong performance against
profit targets, the overall bonus oulcome
is just below target and is sorme way
below that received in previous years,
which the Committee considers
appropriate in the context of o more
challenging year in terms of broader
business circumstances. Financial
performonce was above larget under
both the adjusted EPS and net debt fo
EBITDA ratio elements but this was offset
by tolol return performance being below
target and a set of strefching customer

. satisfaction targets set by the Committee

| ot the start of $he yeor being missec.

I Reflecting a transitionory period,

. and despile a number of notable
achievements, the Commitiee assessed
each of the Executive Diectors’ individual
performance as ‘on target’, meriting

| 0 1.0x personal performance muttipiier

| (cf. the maximum 1,2x multiplier).

iargets, outcomes and details of personal
achievernenis are included on page B7.

|

“ Further details, including annuai bonus

shareholders, the Cormmittee determined

o increase ecch of therr base solaries
by ¢.20% to £350.000 and £325,000 per
annum respectivety with effect from

1 June 2016,

yoda oBayous
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term incentives

Executive Directors were each granted
an aword under the LTIP in June 2016
based an performance over the three
financial years to 31 December 2018,
These awards will vast to the extent thal
challenging EPS, totalreturn and relative

TSR targets are achieved over the period.

with any award vesting required to be
held for an additional two-year period.

Performance share awards made

in April 2014 vested on performance fo
31 December 2014. These owards were
similarly based on EPS, Tolal Retum

and TSR outperforrmance of the FISE3S0
Real Estate Super Sectorindex. The
Company exceeded maximum targets
for each element, rasulting in 100% of the
original award vesting. The Committee
is satisfied that the implied vesting level
reflects the undertying performance of
the Company aond the progress made
over the last three years. Consistent with
the rules of the plon at the time of grant,
these awards shares will vest in tronches
with two-thirds released on the thid
anniversary of grant in April 2017, and
the remaining one-third released after
a further year-long holding period.

Overall pay for 2018

The Committee is satisfied that overall
pay outcomes ore appropriate and
reflect Unite's cerformance across the
vorious time horizors covered. Fixed pay
levets are competitive but not excessive
when taking into accoount similar rotes at
comparable companies, individual
contribytions, experience and overall
levels of responsibility. Annual bonus
autcomes refiect a more challenging
financial year, with outcomes below
thase achieved in each of the last three
cycles, whilst the LTIP — which makes up
the majority of each Executive Director's
singte figure for the year - reflects strong
financiol and operational performance,
and significant value creation over the
three-year measurernent period.

implementation of policy for 2017
The Committee has reviewed the cument
Rermuneration Palicy and s confident
that it continues to effectively support
Unite's shart- and long-term strategic
objectives and promote managerent
and shareholder alignment. We are
satisfied also that the proposed
implementation is appropriate given the
Company's conversion to a REIT, which
baecame affective 1 January 2017,

For 2017, the annual bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two minof changes. The non-financial
efement of the 'corporate’ scorecard,
currently based entirely on customer
satisfachion, will be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12.5% in order to safisfy the
7525 financial/non-financial spfit
permitted under our Remuneration Policy.
The inclusion of University Reputation
recognises the equal importance of
Unite’s relationships with Higher Education
pariners together with the opinions of aur
student customers direclly, and hos been
used as one of our operational KPIs for

a number of years. The other change
relates to the individual performance
multiglier where it is propased that the
maoijority of cbjectives will be shored
across each of the Execulive Directors in
ornder ta reflect the collaborative ethos

of the exscutive team. As always, the
Committee wilt provide retrospective
disciosure on the key achievements

next year in order fo allow shareholders
to make an informed voting decision.

Save for these mingr changes, the
implermnentation of policy for 2017 wil

be consistent with that applied inrecent
years. Further details, including proposed

-solary and lea increasas, are included

on page 70,

Leaver arrangements for

Mark Allan

Mark Alian stepped dawn Qs Chief
Executive effective 31 May 2016 and
ceased being o director of the Company
from the same date, remaining employed
in an advisory capacity with the Company
until 31 October 2016. For the period

1 Jung 2014 to 31 Oclober 2016, Mork
continued to receive base pay, pension
and other contractuat benefits. He was
not eligible to participate in the 2016 i
annual bonus and there was no payment
in lieu of nofice.

Full details of how the Committee freated
Mark Allan’s outstanding long-term
incentives are sel out in the relevant
saciion on page 90.

Areas for future consideration
The Committee will continue to monitor
market frends throughout 2017 in order
fo assess ongoing requirements for the
Company'sremunerstion practices,
and will consult with shareholders about
rmaking changes should any significant
departures from best practice orise, We
are mindful of the confinuing debate
around Executive Director remuneration
and of the various updates to shareholder
thinking in this areq, and while we are
proposing no material changes for 2017,
this is something that we will confinue

1o fake into occount as we review the
effectiveness of our amrangements

each year.

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Commiitee
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Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implemeniation

AONOS 3509

Ovarisw of pokcy Rernuneralion n respect of 2016 implemeniation of pakey in 2077
3 Reviewed from time fo time, » Salories increased by between 2% > Sakaries increqgsed by 2% effective
with reference 10 salory levels ond 9% effective | Morch 2016 1 March 2017, s follows;

for similar roles at comparable
companies, o individuol
contribution to performance;
and 10 the experience of
each Executive

> Foliowing role changes, sakary of new
CEQ, Richord Smith, set at £430,000
effective 1 June 2016. Sakaries of Jog
Lister and Richard Simpson increased
by c.20% to £350,000 ond £325.000
respectively from the saome date,
reflecting significant increase in
responsibiities

» CEO, Richard Smith = £438,600

» CFO, Joe Lister = £357,000

> MD Property. Richard Simpson
= £331,500

L Reod more

85 Read more

91 Read more

SHBUBY UOISUD

» Pensian conitributions of up to
20% of salary or an equivalent
cash allewance

Benedits typically consist the
provision of a company car
or g cor allowance, and
private health care insurance

v

> infine with poiicy

3 No change to pension confribulion
rates or beneafits for 2017

” Read more

85 Read more

%1 Read more

sNUOQ [PNUUY

> Maximum onnugl bonus
cpportunity for all Executive
Direciors of 144% of sciary

> Perforrnance measures
typically inciude both
financial and non-financiat
melrics, as well as the
ochievemant of individua)
objectives

3> Payments Gelivered in cash.
except where an individual
has hot met their
shareholding guidelines,
inwhich cose up
to 50% s deferred in shares
for thrae years

» Malys and clawback
provisions apply

> Annuol bonuses of 62.5% of salary for
each Exacutive Director [43.4% of
maximum opportunity} based on:
> acorporate scorecard aulcome
of 62.5% of salary [out of 120%)
¥ Individual performance multipliers
of 1.Ox {cf. 1.2x meximumj
» Bonuses to be paid in coshin eorly 2007

» Maoaximum annual bonus cpportunities
to remam at 144% of salory

Payments to be determined taking into
consideration a corporate scorecard
based on 75/25 on fingncial/non-
financial performance, and ofter
applying an individual performance
mutiplier of up to 1.2x

For 2017, the non-financiol element wil
be supplemented with o measure of
Uniiversity Reputation: individua!
objectives fo ba more team focussed

b4

A 4

78 Read more

86 Reoad more

91 Read more

dn

> Maximum aword size for ol
Executive Directors of 200% of

sakary in normal crcumsiances

> Awaqrds vest subject o
performance overa
three-yaor period. Vested
shares ang typically subject
o an odditional two-yexar
holding period

> Malus and ckawback
provisions apply

¥ 2014 LTIP vested al 100% based on:

> 2016 adjusted EPS ot 27.7p vs.
astreich targel of 23.5p

3 Totgl Return over the period 2014-18
ot 21.3% p.o. vs. a stretch target of
14 5% p.a.; and

¥ Reiative TSR outperformance of the
FYSE3S0 Rec) Estate Index of 10% p.a.
vs. a stretch target of 9% p.o.

w

Awards of 200% of salary 10 be made
to each Executive Director in April 2017
Performonce fo be measured over the
period | January 2017 to 31 December
2019 against EPS, totalretum and
relative TSR

} Two-year hoiding period will apply

to vestad shares

-

v Read more

88 Read more

2 Read mone
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF

THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

2014 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single total figure of remuneration for current Executive Directors

Richard e Richord
Smath {mter Simpson
Satary 59,617 322702 298,367
Taxable benefits 15,254 15,854 15,236
Pension benefit 60,863 35979 55,604
Annual Bonus 27.083 203,385 188,802
LT 528,559 584,742 528,559
Other 0 0 0
Tolal 1,191,378 1,182,662 1,086,568
2016 Annual Bonus outcomes
Corporate fargels
‘Threshoid! Target’ Stretch’
0% % 100% 120% vast Corporote
Measwre Weignt ofsakry  of sakary of saiary of salary Actual % sakxry) vesing
Adjusted EPS 25% 24.7p 2570 27.2p 28.2p 27.7p 275%
Total Return per share 25% ?p 87p 100p 108p 83p 150% 62.5%
Net debt to EBTDA ratio 25% 6.5 6.3x 6.0x 58x 6.2x 200%
Customer sotisfaction 25% 83 84 84 a7 a0 0%
Overdl Overall bonus oulcame
Corpom'e Peonal %of %X of
Execulive o vesiing mutipher sakary maximum £
Richard Smith 1.0x 62.5% 434% 227,083
Joe Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 434% 203385
Richard Simpson 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 188,802
2014-2014 LTIP ouicomes
Targets
Thresholkd Stratch Overall
Measure Wegnt 25% vest 100% ves! Achual % vest % vest
2016 Adjusted EPS 173 18.1p 23.5p 27.7p 100%
Total Return p.a. (2014-2014) 1/3 85% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 160%
Inclex Incdex
Relative TSR outperformance 113 Index +9?%p.a. +10%p.a. 100%
Qverall vesting
Eneculm Overal’% vest Inlerests veshng Oale veshing Eshmatad value
Richard Smith 84,564 0 Apdl 207 (273 £528,559
- 10 Apxil
Joe Lister 100% 95,753 10 Apd 2018 (1/3] £584,742

Richard Simpson Bé, 066 £528.359
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Thiis report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of tha
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of
the Large ond Medivm-sized Companies
and Groups [Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (s amended). t also
meets the requirements of the UK Listing
Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the regulations, the
folliowing sactions of the Remunerafion
Report ore subyect to audit: the single
totai figure of remuneration for Directors
and accompaonying notes [poges BS

o 88}, scheme interests awarded during
e financial vear (page 90), poyments
to past directors [page 71, payments for
loss of office [page 82) and the stotemeant
of Directors’ shareholdings and share
inferasts {(page 80), The remaining sections
of the seport are not subject 1o oudit,

Unite's Remuneration Policy was approved
by shareholders at the 20146 Annuat

» References to financial years have '
been updoted where oppropricie \
> Pay for performance scendrio |
chorts hove been updated 1o retlect
2017 salaries |
Current Non-Executive Director |
appointment expiry dates have ‘
been updated !
» Section on consideration of shareholder |
views upoated to reference consutiation |
on pay increases made durng the year [
f
f

v

o refiecting chonges in responsibilfies

Direcfors’' Remuneration Policy
The Group aims o balkance the need

to atfract. retgin and motivate Executive
Directors and other senior executives of
an appropriaie colibre with the need fo
be cost effective, while ot the sama ime
rewarding exceptionct performance. the
Committee has designed a remuneration
policy that bakances thase factors, iaking
aocount of prevalling best practice. investor
expectations and the level of remunerafion
and pay awards made generally o

In gadition to the obove, the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directars and
other senior exgcutives is bused on fhe
following key principles:

> A significant proportion of
remuneration should be tied to the
achievement of specific and stretching
performance conditions that align
remuneration with the creafion of
shoreholder volug ond the delivery
of the Group's strategic plan,

» Thene should be a focus on susiained
ong-term parforrmance. with
performance measured over Clearty
specified timescales, encouraging
exgcytives to fake action in line with
the Group's strategic plan, using good
businass monagement principles and
aking well considered risks,

¥ individuais shouid be rawarded for
success, but steps should be taken,
within contractual obligations.

16 prevent rewards for ailure.

General Meeting. Tha report below employees of the Group. This section of the report sefs out the Policy
is as disciosed in the 2015 Directors' for Executive Directors, which shareholders
Remuneration Report save for a number approved af the 2016 Annual General
of minor changes os follows: Mesoting ond which come into effect
from that aate.
Policy Table
Function Operation Opporiunty Performahce mathcs
Basa salary Bose sakaries are reviewed from time fo Any base satary increases are applied in None
Torecognisethe  time. with reference to salary levels for tine with the outcome of the review os part
individual's skills  similar roles of comparable companies, of which the Committee alsa considers
and experience  to individual confribution to performance;  averoge inCreases acrnoss the Group.
and to p!qx:ode and to the axperignce of eoch executive. jn respect of exisfing Executive Directors
a competitive s by . ]
base reward., itis anrc:pare_d that sglary increases wil
generally be in line with those of saloried
employees asa whola, In exceptional
circumstancess (inciuding, but not imited
to, o materialincrease in job size or
complexity] the Commitiee has discretion
to make appropriate adjusiments to salary
fevels 1o ensure that they remoin market
competitive. This was the case for salory
increases aworded during the course
of 2016.
Pension All executives one either members of The Execulive Oireciors receive a pension None
To provige on Unite Growp Persongl Pension scheme contribution of 20% of solory or on
opportunity for or receive a cash pension allowonce, equivaient cash allowance.
executives to

build up income

upon retirgment,

Salary is the only element of rernuneration
that is pensionable.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

Funchon Qperahonr Coportunity Perlormanca metncs
Benefits Executives receive benefits that consist Benefits vory by role and individual None
To provide primarity of the provision of o company circumnstances; eligibility ond cost is
nen-cash car or a car allowance, end privole reviewed periodicalty.
benefits which heallih care insurance, although can . " N "
are competitive  include any such benefits that the The Commlﬂee_ refaing I'h_s dlscrefion
in the market in Committee deems appropriate. b approve & higher cost in ;er?c: "
wiiich the cicumstances (eg. relocation)
o or in crcumstances where factors
exacutive i : '
employed. oufside the company's oc.mtrol have
changed matenally (e.g. increqses
in insuranoe premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approvad scherme whereby Savings are capped al the prevailing None
To encourage employees [including Executive Dectors)  HMRC limit at the time employees are

the ownership mery save up to the maximum monthly invited to participate.
of shares in Unite.  savings timit (as defermined by prevailing

HMRC guidelines) over a pericd of three.

Options granted ot a 20% discount.
Functon Openation Opporturity Parformance melrics
Performance Performance measures, targets ond For Executive Performance is assessed on an onnual
related weightings are set at the start of the year.  Directors, the basis, as measuvred against specific
annual bonus D . maamum annual objectives set ot the start of each year. The
Toincentivise The schemecr"lcs two ?lt'amerll.fs. a m?‘:fm'e bonus opporiunity s measures fypically include both financial
and reward strong e:smen: c:r: thcm m:wfl?:o mu "? il 144% of base sakary, and non-financial metrics as well as the
performance slement. A', € end of 4 € ‘é:?r' e e COMPrsing: achievement of personal objectives.
against financial Remunerc fon Commitles detormines the . . .
and non-financial €xtent towhich targets have beenochieved. > A maximum Corporo_fe maasures will be weag_hfed
annual torgets Bon . delivered in cash bonus under appropriotely eoch year according fo
thus deliverin g' | s m"'"‘;e" ; url? : . Id" the corporate business priofities, Measures moy include,
value o :‘er::; ?Jsisre‘:;‘slrr:tsl:c:: nsost are nomler;gin element of but are not limited to, adjusted EPS, total
Famcom:  oicrcre o S o asons TS e oiocrie o
and being payakie 1o the relevart Director is safisfied d i of inclivi :
consistent with by an allocation of shares in the Company, on-target Weighlings o 'Td'wduq' measures rmay
the delivery of which are held in its Emplayee Share performance vary between 0%ch S0%. with the range
the strategic plan.  Ownershio Trus! warrants a of performance required under each

ership frusl. bonus eguivalent  measure callorated with reference
Awords under the pedormance rekated to 70% of salary to Unite's intermal budgets. Financial

annual bonus are subject to malus and
clawback provisions, further details of
which are included as a note fo the
policy table,

> A maximum
multipher under
the individual
elemeant of 1.2,
with arange
ofzeroto 1.2

For threshoid level
performance, the
bonus will bg 50%
of base solary.

meagsures will make up at leost 75%
of the total oppartunity under the
corporate element.

The individuol element is based on the
Committee's assessment of an executive's
personal performance over the course of
the year. os measured by the Perfformance
Devalopment Programme ravierw.

The Committee has discration fo adjust the
formulgic bonus outcomes both upwards
pwithin the plan Emits) and downwards
{including down to zero) to ensure alignment
of pay with performance, e.g., in the event
of one of the targets under the bonus
baing significantly missed or unforeseen
circumstances outsicle of manogement
control. Thae Committee ako considers
megqsuras aulside of the bonus framework
[e.g. H&S) 1o ensura there is no reward

for failure.

Further details of the measuras, weighfings
and targets applicable are provided on
page 79 86 and ?1.
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Funchon Cpearaton Opporiunuty Performance matrics
tne The LIIP comprisas a Performance Share The LTIP pravides for  Vesting of LTIP awards is subject to
To drive sustained Flan [PSP} and on Approved Employes anaward up foa continued employmant ang performance
long-term Share Option Scheme [ESOS). nommal oggregate  agoinst three equolly-weighted measures,
&ecgc;‘r"mcnce The ESOS is used o deliver a p Hon limit of 200% of ] which are currently as follows:
pparts 1 = O sakary for Executive ,
the creation of the LTIP in a tax-afficient manner, Directors, with an > Adjusted eomings per share (EPS);
of shareholder and i subject to the same performance overal fimit of » Total [eturn {TR); and
value. conditions as awards made under the PSP. 300% of salary > Reiafive total sharehoider return (TSR}
Award levels and performance conditions it exceptional The Commitiee has the discretion to adjust
are reéviewed before each award cycle circumstonces. the performance measures to ensure that
1o ensure they rémain appropricte and The current intention  they confinue ta be linked to the delivery
no kess sfrefching than the first cycle. is to award each of Company strategy.
i Executive Director
Awords under the LTIP are subject o mals  awords equivaient  Under each mecsure, thrashold
and clkawbaock provisions, further detaiis to 200% of salary. performance will result in 25% of
of which areincluded as a note lo the maximurn vesting for that element,
policy table, Awards may include (ising on ¢ staight-ine to full vesting.
a grant of HMRC
approved opfions Awards mode ungerfhe LTiPwit have a
not exceeding perfurmance period of at least three years
£10.000 per annum,  and a mirimum vesting period of three
voluad on a fair years. If na entitement has been ecrmed at
value exchange the end of the rglevant perfarmance
{currently 50-60% period, awards will lapse. A proportion of
of a PSP award). vested awards may. at the discretion of the
Committee, be subject o a mandatory
A payment equal holding period following the end of @
fo the value of three-year vesting period. The Commiittee’s
dividends which intention is thot under future LTIP cycles, alt
wovld have owards will be required to be heid for an
accrued onvested  gdditional two-year period post-vesting. 2
shares will be made e
fO“OVViI'\g the As undaer the Performance Rekated Anrual S
release of awards Bonus, the Committee has discretion to 2
to participanis; adjus! the formulaic LTIP oulcomes 1o g
sither in Ihe form ensure alignmeant of pay with performance,
of cash ot as i.8. to ensure the outcome is a true g
additionalshores,  "eflection of the performance of z
the company.
Detoils of the torgets to be used in future
LTIP grants are included in the Annual
Report on Rermunearation.
Notes lo the policy table afocus on tolai return [also used in financial measuras, fargets are
The Committee is satisfied that the above | both the short- and long-term incentive) typicatly in fine with the upperend
Remunerotion Palicy isin the best inlerests | s consistent with one of our staied of market consensys.
of shoreholders and does not promote objectives and a key indkeator of company
excessive risk-loking. perfarmance in the real estate secior. The | Remuneration PO“CY Q
user of relative TSR is stfrongly aligned w'i'h far other employees 3
Performonce measure selecton sharehalkders and ensures that exe'cuhves Unite’s approach to cnnuak salary i
and approach to target selting orte re:vt?‘rdfd c‘mvhg:lme;ikai:vee reviews Is consistent acrass the Group, g
Measures used under the parformance refums fhat an in N with consideration given 1o the leve) a
related annual bonys and LTIP are eisewhere in our sector. of experience, responsibility, individual 5
selected annually to reflect the Group's . parformance and salary levels in
main short- and I,;ng-term ob]ecﬁves%nd I:gg; appfying fo the p:r:?!;;mnce comparoble companies. The Company
reflect both financial and non-financial Jted annual bonus and LTIP are is also now a fully accredited Living
rlorities, as appropriote. reviewad annually, basad on a number Wage employer.
P ' of internai and external reference points.
Performance targets are set to be In terms of variable incantives, all

The Committee considers that EPS {used | oy i byt achievabile, with regard lo i ol
in both the shorl-andlong-fermincentive) | 10578 Cn LSRR gfgm;’b%f;'gﬁ':n:‘; Popate 1

is an objective and welllo.ccep'red economic environment in o given year. area-specific metrics incorparated

me'csure_ol the Company s.perft?rmqnoa Under the bonys, farget parfarmance pelatbtlinl Sen’aorr:l)'!?ma -

which !9|r]forces fhe sfrategic obje:_:ﬁve typically requires meaningful im ¢ o ppropriate. phel ]

of achieving profitable growth, while on the ous year's ouﬂum.pon:!al aforl en [c.1Bindividuals} are eligible to
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parficipate in the LTIP with annual awords
currently up to 75% of salary. Performence
conditions are consistent for all participents,
while award szes vary by level. $pecific
cash incenfives are glso in place to
motivate, reward and retain stalf below
Board level.

Allemployees are eligible to parficipote
in the Company's SAYE schemea on the

shareholding in the Company.
Snareholding guidelines are in ploce thot
require Executive Directors to acquire

a holding (excluding shares that remain
subject to performance condifions)
equivalent to 250% of base salary for the
Chief Executive and 200% ol base salkary
for each of the other Executive Directors.
Unfil the relevant shareholding levels are
acquired, up to 50% of the annual bonus
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Malus and clawback

Awards under the Performance Related
Annuol Bonus and the LTIP are subject

to maltus and, from 2018, clawback
provisions which can be applied o bath
vested ond unvested awaords. Clawback
provisions will apply for o period of at
least two years post-vasting. Circumstances
in which malys and clowback may be
applied include a matericl misstaternent

same tarms.

Shareholding guldelines

The Committee continues o recognise
the importance of Execuytive Directors
aligning their interests with shareholders
through building up a significant

on Remunerafion.

Non-Execuilve Director remuneration

payable to the relevant Direclor willbe
subject to delenalinto shares and are
fransferable to the Director after three
years, Details of the Exacutive Direcion’
cument personal shareholdings

are provided in the Annual Report

of the Company’s financial accounts,
gross misconduct on the part of the
award-hokder and error in calculating
the award vesting outcome.

Non-Executive Direclor Data of sarwce confact
P M White 10 January 2009
R J TWilson 1 December 2010
M Wolstenhoime 1 December 2011
A Jones 18 October 2012

E MchMeikan 13 November 2013

Subject to annual re-election by shareholders, Nan-Execulive Directors aré appointed for an initial term of approximately three
years. Subsequent tarms of three years may be awarded. Current appointments will expire at the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the case of Elizabeth McMeikan and Sir Tim Wilsor: at the 2018 Annual General Meeting in the case of Phil White and Manijit
Wolstenholme, and at the Annua! General Meeting in 2019 in the case of Andrew Jones. The appointment and re-appointment
and the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors are matters reserved for the full Board.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to parficipate in the Company's perfarmance related bonus plan, long-term incentive

plans ar pension amangements.

Dataits of the policy on fees paid 1o our Non-Executive Directors ara set out in the table below:

Funclian Opergtion Opportuntty Berformance metncs
Feus Fea levels are reviewed annually, with any  Non-Executive Director fee increases are None

To attract adjustments eflective 1 January in the year opplied in line with the cutcome of the

and netain foliowing review. annual fee review. Feas for the year

Non-Executive 5 . commencing | January 2017 are set oyt

Directors of the The fees paid to the Ch"'".““" are in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

highest calibre determined by the Commitiee, whilst

with broad the fees of the Non-Executive Directors Foe lavels will be next reviewed during 2017,

are determined by the Board.

Additional fees are payable for acting

as Senior Independent Director and a3
Chairman of any of the Board's Committess
|Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and
Hexlth and Saifety|.

Fee ievels ore benchmarked against secter
comparators and FISE-listed companias

of sirnikar size and complexity. Time
commitment ond responsioility are token
into account when reviewing lee levels.

commercial and
other experience
relevant to

the Company.

with any increase effective 1 Jonuary 2018.

It is expeacted that increqses to non-
executive director fee levels wili be in line
with sataried employees over the life of

the policy. However, in the event that there
is o material misalignment with the market
or o change in the complexity, responsipility
or fime commitrnent required to fulfil

a Non-Executive Director role, the Board
has discretion to make an appropriote
adjustment to the fee level,
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Pay for performance scenarios

The charls below provide an llustration of the patential future reward opporiunities for he Executive Directors, ond the potenticl
split betweean the differen! elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: Minimum, On-torget

and Maximum.

Patential reward opportunities are based on Unile's Remuneration Policy, applied fo the base salories effective | March 2017. The
annual bonus ond LTIP are based on the maximum opportunities set out under the Remuneration Policy for normal circumnstonces;
being 144% of salary and 200% of sakary respectively, Note that the LTIP awards granted in a year do not normally vest untit the third
anniversary of the dote of grant, and the projected value is based on the iace value gt aword rather than vesting [ie., the scenarios
exciude the impact of any share price movement aver the period).

The Minimum scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits (... fixed remuneration} which are the only elements of the

Exacutive's remuneration packages not linked to perfformance. ;5;‘
2
The On-target scenario reflacts fixed remuneration as above, pius bonus payout of 70% of salary and LTIP threshold vesting at 25% g
of maximum owaord. §
The Maximum scenario reflects fixed remuneration, plus full payaut of all incentives. §
Approach to recrutfment remuneration &
External appointment to the Board
In the cases of hiring or appointing a new Executive Director from outside the Company. the Remuneration Commitiee may make
vse of ol the existing components of remunerotion, os follows:
Maxmiumannual
Componant Approach grant vafue
Sase solary The base salaries of new appointees will be delenmined by reference to relevant market
data, experience and skilis of the individual, internal redativities and their current basic
solary. Where new oppointees have inilial basic salories set below morket, ony shorifall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two ta three years subject to
the individual's development in the role. Q
Pension New appointees will receive pension contributions ar an equivalent cash supplement §
not greater than the existing policy. )
Benefits New appointees will ba eligible to recaive benefits which may include (but are a
e notlimifed fo] the provision of a company cor or cash atternative, private medical g
SAYE insurance and any necessary relocation expenses, New appointees will also be
eligible to participate in all employee share schemes.
Performance The structure described in the policy table will apply t0 new appointees with the 144% of sakary
Related Annual  refevant maximum being pro-rated fo refiect the proporfion of employment over the
Bonus yeaor. Targets for the ingividual elemant will be toikred to acch executive.
e New appointees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the sarme terms as other 300% of salary

executives. as described in the policy able. The normal oggregote limit of 200% of
salary will apply, save in exceptional circumstances where up ta 300% of salary may be
awagrded.
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In determining appropriate
rermunaration, the Remuneration
Committee will lake into consideration all
retevant factors {including quanium,
nature of remuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the candidate was
recruited) to ensure that arangements
are in the best interests of both Unite and
its shareholders. The Committee may
make an gward in respect of G new
appointment ko buy- out incentive
arangements forfeited on leaving a
pravious employer on o fike-for-like basis,
which may be owarded in addition o
the remuneration structure outiined in the
takle above. In doing so, the Committee
will consider ralavant factors including
time to vesting. any performance
conditions attached fo these awords and
the lkelihood of those condifions being

met. Any such buy-out awards wilk
typically be made under the existing
annual bonus and LTIP schemes,
although in exceptionol circumstancas
the Committee may exercise the
discretion ovailable under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R 1o make awards using a different
structure. Any buy-out awards would
have a fair value no higher than the
awards forfeited.

Intemad promotion to the Board

In casas of appointing a new Execufive
Director by way of internal promotion, the
Remuneration Cammittee and Bodard will
be consistent with the palicy for external
appaintess detailed above. Where on
individual has contractual commitrments
made prior to their promotian to
Executive Director level, the Company

Service coniracts and treatment for leavers and change of control
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will continue to honour these
arrangarments, The Remunerction Policy
for other employees is set out on page 79.
incentive opportunities for below Board
empioyees are fypically no higher thon
Executive Directors. but measures may
vary to provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Execulive Directors

Inrecruiting a new Non-Executive
Director, the Remuneration Cornmittee
will utilise the policy os set out in the table
on page 79, A bose fee in ine with the
prevailing fee schedule would be
payahble for Board membaership, with
additional fees payabie for acfing as
Senior Independent Director and/or as
Chairman of the Board's Committees.

Executive Bate of service controct
J JLister 28 march 2002
R C Simpson 28 Septermber 2011 -
R § Smnith 28 Septermber 2011

Executive Director service contracts,
including arrangements for earty
termination, ane carefully considered by
the Committee. in accordance with
general market proctice, each of the
Executive Directors has arolling service
contract requiring 12 months' nofice of
termination on either side. Such contracts
contoin no specific provision for
compensation for loss of office, other
than an obligation to pay for any notice

period waived by the Company. where
pay is defined as sakary. benefits and any
other statutory payments only. Executive
Diractor service contracts are available
10 view ot the Company's registered
office.

The Rermuneration Committee will
axercise discretion in making aperopriale
payments in the context of outplacement,
setting legal cloims or potenticl legal

claims by a departing Executive Director,
inctuding any other amounts reasonably
due to the Executive Director. for
exampile to meet the legal fees incurred
by therm in connection with the
termination of employment, where

the Comgany wishes to enterinfo o
setflement agreement and the individual
mus} seek independent legol advice.
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when considering exit payments. ihe Commitfee reviews all potential incentive outcomes fo ensure they are fai fo both sharehoiders
and porticipants. The table below summarises how the owards under the annual bonus and LTI are typically treated in specific

circumstarices, with the final ireatment remaining subject to the Committea’s discretion:

Reason for isoving (= 30 of veshng /oy
Annual bonus
Resignation No annual bonus payable.
'Gooed' leaver Cash bonuses wilk only be paid to the extent that financial and individual objectives set
Change of confrol of the beginning of the plan year have been met. Any resulting bonus will be pro-rated
for time served during the yeor.
Lmp
Resignation Qutstanding awards lapse
‘Good’ leaver’ The Commitfee determines whether and 1o whaf extant outstanding awards vest
Change of control based on the extent to which performance conditions have been achieved and the

proportion of the vesting period worked.

The determination of vesting will be made as soon as reasonably procticat fallowing
the end of the performonce period or such eorlier date os the Commitiee may ogree

[within 12 months in the event of death).

In the event of a change of control, Unite owards may alternatively be exchanged
for new equivalent awards in the acquirer where appropriate.

' Good” leaver s defingd os a participont ceasing to be employed by the Group by reason of death, disability. ill hecith, redundancy, retirement
of any other recson that the Committee detemmines in its obsolute discretion.

The treatment of shares subject to deferral
or holding periods will be subject to the
Remuneration Committee's discretion
and will take into account the
circumstances at the time.

External appointments

Wwith the opprovoal of the Board in each
cose, and subject to the overriding
requiraments of the Group. Executive
Directors may accept exiemal
appoiniments as Non-Executive Directors
of other companies and retain ony fees
raecaived., Joe Lister is cumently a member
of the Council of the University of Essex
for which he does not receive a fee.
Richord Simpson joined the Boord of
Citywest Homes at the beginning of 2017,
Richard $mith does not currently hokd

an external gppointment.

| Consideration of conditions
elsewhere in the company

when making decisions on Executive
Director remuneration, the Committee
considers pay and conditions aocross
Unite, Prior fo the annual salary review,
the Group People Director provides the
Committee with g summary of the
proposed level of increase for ovenail
employee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consult
with employees on the executive
Remuneration Policy and Framework.

Considerglion of shareholder views
The Remuneration Commiltee maintains
a regulor dialogue with ifs major
shareholders, and is encouraged by

the support neceived at the 2018

Annual Genera! Meeting for the new
Remuneration Policy. During 2016 we
consulted with shareholders epresenting
around two-thirds of Unite's issued share
capital regarding Executive Director
saleries following the role changes orising
Qs aresult of Mark Allan's resignation

and subsequent reorganisation of
responsibilifies. The Cormmittee will
continue lo monitar frends and
developments in corporate governance
and market practice fo ensure the
structure of the executive remunenation
remains approgxiate.

yodes b
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following seclion provides datails
of how Unite's Remuneration Policy was
impilemented dufing the finoncial year
ending 31 December 2016

Remuneration Committee

membership in 20146
The primary role of the Commitiee is to:

¥ Review, recommend and monitor the
level ond structure of remunerotion
for the Executive Directors and other
senior executives
Approve the remuneration packages
for the Executive Direclors and
ensure that pay outcomes refiect
the performance of the Company
> Determine the bolonce between
base pay ond performance related
alaments of the package 5o as
to align Directors' interests to those
of sharehaolders.

v

The Committee's terms of reference are
set out on the Compoany's website. As of
31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committea comprised five independent
Non-Executive Directors.

¥ Elizgbeih McMeikon [Committee Chaolr)
» Phil white

» Sir Tim Wilson

¥ Manjit Welstenholme

> Andrew Jones

During the year, Patrick Dempsey, who
joined the Baard effective 1 March 2016
and rasigned effective 31 August 2015,
olso served on the Remuneration
Committee, Cerfain executives, including
Richard Smith [Chief Executive)].

Mark Allan {former Chief Executive)

and Ruth Gearge (Group People Director)

Srpojnarowicz, octs os secretory to the
Commiltee, No individuals are involved
in decisions relating to their own
remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee met five fimes during the year
and details of members’ attendenge at
meetings are provided in the corparate
governance section on page 6).

Key activities of the Remunerofion
Committee in 2014 included:

» Reviawed and approved the Executive
Directors’ performance against annual
objectives and LTIP targels; determined
bonuses payable {including bokance
between cash and shares), and
approved LTIP vesting
Determined leaver treatment for
Mark Allan, including freatment
of outstianding incentives
> Reviewed Execuiive Direclor
remuneration follewing role changes
and reorganisation of rasponsibifities,
and underfcok consulfation with
major shareholders on proposed
changes to Executive Director sakiries
> Confirmed treatment of Mark Allan's
incentives following end of
employmeni and reaffirafion of
duties contained in compromise
ogreement. Followed up with
shareholders summarising changes
made during Ihe yeor
Considered remuneration
market trends and corporate
governance developments
> Revigwed and approved salary
increqses for the Executive Directors
and senior management for 20017
Determined the Executive Directors’
bonus and LTIP performance targets
for 2017 in ine with the stralegic plan

v

~

v

have been, rom tima to fime, invited > Rci‘;'?’:nﬁf:;‘;’eo"pmved the
to ot [ t i 3 .
o ottend meetings of the Commitiee » Prepared fhe Directors'

and the Company Secretary, Christopher

Remuneration Report.

Summary of shareholder voling al the 2016 AGM
The following table shows the results of the binding vole on the forward-looking Rermuneration Policy and of the advisory votes on
the 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments fo the 2011 Performance Shore Plan of the 2016 AGM:

Advisers

Kepler Associates, o brand of Mercer
('Kepler') were appointed os the
Committee’s independent adviser
following a competitive fender process
in 2014, and were retained during the
year. The Commiliee undertakes due
diligence periadically to ansure that
Kepler remoins independent and that
the advice provided is impartial and
objectiva, Kepier & a founding member
and signatory of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consultants,

details of which con be found ot
www.remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.
In 2016 Kepler provided independent
advice onrevisions to Unite's
Remuneration Policy, updates on he
extemal remuneration environment;
performance testing for long-term
incentive plans: and support during
the shanehaoider consutiation prooess.
Kepler reports directly fo the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and
does not advise the Company on any
other ssues. Their total fees for the
provision of remunermation services fo
the Committee in 2016 were £64,775

on the basis of tima and materials.

Rermuneration Annual Report Amandments to
Poiley on Remune-ation 2011 PSP
For lincluding discretianary} 184,101,530 P8.9% 187,241,043 99.7% 185,285,590 98.3%
Against 2,088,144 % 591,183 0.3% 3170079 1. 7%
Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) 188.189.674 187,832,224 188,457,069
Votas withheld 300,425 657,873 33,030
Total votes cast {including withheld voles) 188,490,099 188,490,099 138,490,099
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Single jolal figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)
The table balow sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Direclor for the yeor ended 31 December 2016
and the prior year:

Richard Semvh Joa Lister Richerd Simeson Mark Allan'
201 M5 2016 015 0% 15 20% 2015
3 £ 3 £ 3 £ L £
Salary 359.617 245,692 322702 273,483 298,367 246,692 183,003 432,233
Taxabie banefits? 15,254 14,0684 15,854 15266 15,234 13.894 7,694 23319
Pension benefit? 40,863 47,336 55979 49,147 55,604 43,355 321862 75964
Annuol Bonus* 27083 314,579 203,385 348,742 188,802 314,579 V) 551180
LTIP 528.55% 748.451 584,742 828,041 528,559 748.45] ¢ 129189
Other’ 0 4,499 (1] 2,249 0 0 1] 0
Total 1,191,378 1,375,420 1,182,682 1516928 1086568 1,366970 272,060 2,381,885

Mark Alian stepped down effective 3) May 2016 ond ceasad beirg o direcior of the Company from the same date He remained employedin an
advisory capocity with the Comparny untl 31 October 2016, Amcunts above reflect remuneration received as o resulf of his rofe os Chief Execufive,
with detaik of remuneration received for the period | June to 31 Oclober 2016 disclosed under 'Exit payments' sachon on page 90.

2 Toxable benefits for 2016 corsist pnmanty of compary Cor or cor aliomance and privale health cone insurance.

The Fgues above include cor benefiss of £14,167, £14,583, £14,167 and £7,223 for Messrs. Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respeciivety.

2 Pension figuresinclude confributions 1o The Unite Group Personal Pension Scheme and cash allowances, whare appiicable.

+ Payment for performance during the year. Having akgady reached their shore ownership guideines, each Executiva Dirsctor will receive 100%
of their 2016 bonus aword in cash. Mark Akan was nof eligibie for a 2016 annual bonus payment. Sea following sections for further detaiks.

s 2015 figures: LTIP awarcds granted n 2013, and which vested bosed on performance 1o 31 December 2015, ore volued using the market prices at
Ihe date of vesting (10 April 2016) of $34p. These amounts have been revised trom last year's report o refiect the actucl share prices on the dates
of vesting.

+ 2014 figures: For the 2014 awards, tha market price on the date of vesting is currently unknown ond so the volue shown is estimated using the

average market value over the lost quarter of 2016 of 575.9p. Mark Alan's unvested 2014 awards lopsed on his resignation from the Compary.

See folowing sections for further detaiis. LTIP figures ako inciude cash payments in fieu of dividends for vested awards. é"
? '‘Other includes the embedded vake of SAYE oplions at grant. §
Single tolal figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Direclors (audited) g-
The tabie below sets out o single figure for the total remuneration received by gach Non-Executive Dikector for the year ended T
31 Dacember 2016 and the prior year: 3
BasS tes Committee Chow foey SID fere Tolal a
00 05 20% 05 20% 015 0% 215
t £ t £ [ £ [ i
P M White 129450 127,100 - - - - 129.450 127100
R J TWilson 45,000 44,100 8,600 6.475 - - 51,600 50,575
M Wolstenholme 45,000 44100 92.350 9,150 5250 5125 59,400 58,375
A lones 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44,100
E McMeikan 45,000 44,100 9,350 2,150 - - 54,350 53.250
P Demptey 22,500 - - - - -~ 22.500 -
g
' Patrick Dempsey joined the Boand on | Morch 2016 and resignad effective 31 August 2016, during which fime he served as a member of the ]
Remuneration and Heafth and Safety Commitiees. 5
g
Remuneration ovtcomes for the year ended 31 December 2015 (avdifed) a
Base salarles 9

As foreshadowed in last year's report, salary increases of between 6% and $% were made with effect from 1 March 2016 to each of
Richard Smilh, Joe Lister and Richand Simpson. Mark Adlon received a 2% increase, consistent with general increases for employees
acrass the Company. from the same date.

Following his promotion to CEO. the Committea reviewed Richard Smith's salary against a range of internal and external faclors
ond elected 1o set it ot o leve! of £430,000 per annum effective 1 June 2016. For the other remaining Executive Directors. Joe Lister
and Richard Sirpson, the Commitiee refiected on the intention to operate with @ smaller management team going forward, and
the additional key responsibilities taker on by each individuat. Specifically, Joe Lister will now lead investor relalions and has line
managemeant responsibility for the Corporate Alfairs and People directorates, whila Richard Simpsan has been tasked with heading
up Unite's Health and Safety. Maintenance and Lifecycle and Asset Management functions.
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Considering these significant role changes, and mindtul of the need fo retain successful, experienced and welk-regarded Executive
Directors in o competifive sector, the Committee reviewed a number of alternative approaches for the remuneration of Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson fo ensure they remain focused on delivering Unite's strategy during a period of potentialinstability.

Following careful considerafion of the alternatives permitied within the recently approved remuneration policy. the Committee
determined fo increase the base salories of Joe and Richard by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325,000 per annum respectively with effect
from | June 2016. In taking this decision, the Commitiee noted the attermnative of making exceptional LTIP awords but concluded that:

> Salary ievels were the element of remuneration most significantty below markst (particularty taking into occount the additional
responsibilities], whereas long-term incentive opportunities, at 200% of salary, are market competitive

> Anincreasa in long-term incentive opportunities had already been implemented for 2016 fror 150% to 200% of salary: ond

> Mainiaining the current ratio between fixed/variable pay and short-term/long-term pay is important so as not to incentivise
axcessive risk-taking.

Details of the evoiution of each Director's role and salary over the course of the year is summarised in the table betow:

3ase sakary fom
Bose saiary fo | March 2016 Bener sabary
28 Fabruany 1O Moy Percenioge trom | June Parcenioge
Exaculive Direchor Role 0% 2«16 change 218 chonge
MD, Operations £247,700 £270,000 %
R S Srmith 59%
{3% below
Chiaf Exacutive L £430,000 predeceassor)
11 Lister Chief Financial Officer £274,600 £291,000 &%
Chief Financial OHicer+ £350,000 0%
MD, £247,700 £270,000 %
R C Simpson Property -
Group Property Director £325,000 0%
MC Allan Chief Executive £434,000 £442.480 %
Total Boord £1.204.000 £1273.680 5.8% £1.105.000 -132%

Performance related annual bonus in reapect of 2016 performance

The 2014 annual banus consists of two elements, corporate and individual. The corporate element of the bonus is colculated on o
sliding scale up to @ moximum of 120% of bose salary, in accordance with which on-target performance by the Groupresultsin a
corporate bonus of an amount equivalent 1o 70% of base solary. To determine the actual bonus payment o an Executive Director,
o multiplier {being the individuol element of the scheme), ranging between zero and 1.2 s applied ogainst the corporate bonus.

Applying the maximuem individual multiplier (of 1.2). agoinst the maximum corporate bonus (of 120% of base salory), resultsina
rmaximum annual performonce reloted bonus opporiunity of 144% of base salary. However, bonus payments at that level would
only be made sublect to the achievement of extremely stretching corporate performance tangets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Director, Target performance typically requires meaningfulimprovement on the pravious year's
outturn, and for financial measures, targets are typically in line with the upper end of market consensus.

The performance reiated banuses awarded in respect of 2014 reflect corporate bonuses of 62.5% of base salary. After applying
individual multipliers, actual performance related borus payments awarded fo the Executive Directors were 62.5% of their
respective base salories (43.4% of their maximurm bonus opportunities). Further details, including the targets set and performance
against each of the metrics, are provided in the lables below:

Corporate element oulcomes
©Onginal performence targety
Thrshoky' “Taget’ "Strsich’
% of 7% of 100K of 120% ot Vst
Mgasune Wenghl! salary sakxy [Lole o salory Actual % sclony]
Financial Adjusted EPS 25.0% 24.7p 25.70 27.2p 282p 27.7p 27.5%
Total return 250% Fil= &p 1000 108p 83 15.0%
per share
Net debt to 2B0% 6.5x 4.3 4.0m 5.8y 6.2x 20.0%
EBMDA ratio —
Non-financial  Customer 25.0% a3 84 84 87 80 [¢; 4
satisfaction

Total corporate vasﬁ_nJg_ {% of salary) 62.5%
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individual elemenf oufcomes %
Executive Achievements dunng the yearincluded: Fersonal muthpler

» Successful delivery of Qperations and Group KPis covering both roles 0s Managing
Director, Operations and Group Chigf Executive.
Completed an effective fransition to the Group Chief Executive role, providing clear
ond valued leadership fo the Group in the second holf of the year.
R S Smith > Effectively delivered a realignment of roles and responsibilities across the other two 10x
Executive Directors and wider senior management team ensuring the continued
delivery against the wider Group's KPIs and the retention of the Group's key talent.
¥ Led the evoiution of the Group straiegy. focusad particuionly on the development
of our brand and eaming focus.

Successful delivery of finance related KPls and our capital operating guidelines.
Successful execution of the REIT conversion pian,
Execution and evolution of a debt financing, fundraising and hedging sfrategy alkawing
JJ Lister the Group to take advantage of low interest rates while retaining appropriate balance 1.0%
sheet strength and flexibility.
> Embraced new areqs of responsibility including the Group's Paopla and Cormmunication
agenda folowing the management change in mid-year,
All Property related KPis successfully delivered far the year.
Delivery of high quality growth thraugh a secured development pipeline in an
increasingly competitive morket.
» Oversaw product development and design innovation activifies, allowing the Group 1.0x
fo maintain attractive retums on new development, '
Embroced new areas of responsibility including the Group's health ond safety
and mainienance and procurement agenda following the management change
in mid-ye«qr.

v

VHCe G

v vV

Al

v v

Bl
P

<
'

R C Sikmpson

v

Individual objectives were updated following the changes in rolaes and responsibilifies, with additional stretching goals set to test

executives in their new rolas. The ratings above refiect a holistic view by the Commitiee of the exient to which each individua! has -
performed in their expanded role during the year, guided by these new objectives. 3
>
Overall bonus ovicomes &
Overall Bonus oulcome g
Executve Corporate vesting Personal mulipéer % of salory) % of moximurn) & §
R § Smith W= s25% 434% 227,083 3
4 4 Lister 82.5% 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 203,385
R C Simpson 1.0x 62.5% A3.4% 188,802

The Commiltee is sotisfied that the overall bonus outcomes ore appropviate. The Compony's sirong finoncial performonce,
particulary under the adjusted EPS and net debt to EBITDA ratio elements, is testarmment to both management and the broader
empioyee populafion, and while exacutives fell short of the siretching customer satisfochion targets, the 2016 result shill places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmark.

Each of the Executive Directors has been a significant contributor to the achievernent of key business objectives, while continuing
to demonsirate both strong personol progression ond exceptional teomwork despite o year of significant change. The proposed
On-target individual multiptiers of 1.0x reflect our satisfaction with the progress that each individual has made in their new roles end
we will look for this to be progressed further as we move into 2017,

Having clrecdy reached their respective share ownership guidelines, eoch Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus
awords in cash.

UOUDULION! JBYIO
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2014 LTIP vegling (vesied on perdonmance to 31 December 2016}

Awardsin 2014 were made under the new LTIP. consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Pian and the Unite Group plc
Approved Employee Share QOption Scheme, Vesting of the awords was dependent on three equally-weighted medasures over

o three-yecar performance period; folal return per shore, Earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate
Super Sactar Index. There was no relest provision, Further details, including vesting schedules and performance against each

af the metrics are provided in the toble below:

Measure Wesghhing Targets Quicoma vosl &
0% vesting below 18.) pence 27.7 pence 100%
25% vesting for 18.1 pence

100% vesting lor 23.5 pence or more:

Straight-line vesting between these points

2016 Adjusted EPS 173

0% vesting below 8.5% 21.3% 100%
TR per share p.a. 3 25% vesting for 8.5%
{2014 - 201¢4) 100% vesting for 14.5% or more:
Straight-line vesting between these points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperforms the index Index +10% pa. 100%
outperformance 25% vesting for matching the ndex {55.6% retum}
of the FTSE350 3 1J0% vesting for outperforming Index by $% p.a.
Reqi Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sactorindex
Total LTIP vesting [sum product of weighting and vest %} WO%

The performance period for the each of the elements ended on 31 December 2016, Two-thirds of awards will vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, with the remaining one-third vesting after an additional holding period of one year.

Intenests intenasts Date Agumad Eshrmerient

Exmcutive Drecior hed Vesting % vegting westing markel price %= ¥

R 8 Smith 86,566 85,566 0 AP 2017 (23} £4A9B 572
- T ac 7en 1OA 17 TTTYVE

J J Lister 95,753 100% 95.753 10 Apri 2018 (1/3) 575.9p £551,484

R C Simpson Bé.566 86,566 £498,572

In line wilh regulations, the value disclosed above ond in the single total figure of remuneration table on page B85 captures the full
numper of interests vesting (i.e. excluding the one-year holding peried}. As the market price on the date of vesting is unknown at the
time of reporting, the value is estimated using the average market value over the kast quartar of 2016 of 575.9p. The aciual value al
vesting will be trued-up in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration, Executives aso became entitied fo cash in lieu of the dividends
payable on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performance period. These payrments are included in the row entitied 'LTIP in the
single total figure of remuneration table on page 85. and amounted fo £29.987, £33.258, and £29.987 for Messrs. Smith, Lister and
Simpsen respectively.

Pescentage change in CEQ remuneralion
The toble below shows the perceniage chengs in CEQ remuneration from the prior year compored to the overoge percenloge
change inremuneration for all employees.

The CEC's remuneration includes base salory. toxable benefit and annuat bonus and for 2014 is calculated as on aggregate of the
remuneration of Mark Allon until 31 May 2016 and of Richard Smith thereatter (annual bonus relates to Richord Smith full year). The
pay for cll othar emplayees is coiculated using the increass in the earnings of fub-time employees for tax years 2015 and 2016. The
analysis excludes part-time employees and is based on a consistent set of employess, i.e. the same individuals appear in the 2015
and 2016 populations,

CEQ Al srmpicvees
014 s % change % change:
t E 015-1 W15-14
Base salary 433,837 432233 o0% 2.0%
Taxabie benefits 17079 23.31% (26 8]% 4,4%

Annual bonus 227,083 551,180 (58.9)% [58.4)%
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Relafive imporiance of spend on pay
The table below shows sharaholder disiributions (i.e. dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay expenditure for the
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, along with the perceniage change in both.

Ais 015 % change
Em £m 015-16
Total employee pay expenditure 2 437 10.31%
Distributions to shareholders 35.3 33.2 6.3%

The Diractors are propasing a fing! dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 of 12 pence per ordinary
share. Employee remuneration excludes social security costs.

Review of past performance

The folkowing graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FISE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index over the eight-year period from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2016. While there i no comparator index or graup af companies that truly reflects the activities of
the Group, the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector index (the constituent members of which are all property holding and/or
development companias or recl estate investment trusts within the UK), was chosen s it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judge the parformance of the Company. The table below
details the Chief Executive's single figure remunenation over the same period.

Historical TSR performance
EagdgvitciHt Sapesiosmim by pothetical £100 holding over the 8 years 1o 31 December 2016.
Growth in the value of o hypothetical £100 holding over the 8 years to 31 December 2016

o
3
o
3
8
[+
1
%

Q

2209 200 20 312 2013 2004 008 108 3

MC AYGr 3

MCANn  MCAlon  MCAlon  MCAIan  MCAllon  MCAlan  MCAlian RSSmith g
CEQ single figure of £272,840

remuneration (£000] £665,313 £487,175 £1,475.577 £993.754 £1.943.734 £2987,402 £2.381.885 £1,191,378 §
STl award rates against nfa
maximum opportunity 42.0% 43.4% 758% 63.4% 84.0% 89.4% 88.7% 40.4%
LTI aword rotes ogoinst nfa
maximum opportunity 0.0% 0.0% 82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0%
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Schemae interests awarded in 2014 (audited)

e

In June 2014, Executive Directon were granted awards under the LTIP with a maximum face value of ¢.200% of thek respective
salaries. The hree-year perfarmance pariod over which performance will be measured began on 1 January 2016 and will end
on 31 December 2018, Any awards vesting for performance will be subject 1o an additional two-year holding period.

Shares over whnCh Maorkst prce of
Sxmcy've Drector Date of gront owards granted’ oate of aword Foca value
RS Smrith 134,882 £845,268
J JLister 23 June 2016 109,941 641.5¢p £705,272
R C Simpson 102,147 £655,273

' Combination of HMRC approved optioms unider the ESOS (735) and nil cost options under the PSP calcuiated using a share price of 641.5p. being
the closing mid-marked price on the day the awords wera calkculated.

Vesling of 2016 owards is dependent on three equally-weighted measures over a three-year performance period, totol return per
share. earnings per share and T5R sutperforrmance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Secior index. Thera is no retest provision. The
Committee cansiders that the targets applying under each of the performonce measuras are no less stretching than in previous
years. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Maasure Wesghhng largais
2018 Adjusted EPS 173 0% vesting below 30 pence;
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% vesting for 38 pence or more;
Straight line vasting between these points

TR pershare p.a. 113 0% vesting below 9% p.a.;
{2018 - 2018} 25% vesting for ?% p.a.;
100%, vesting for 15% p.a. or more;
Straight line vesting Detwean these points,
TSR cutpearformance of the F1SE 350 Reai Estate (Super 1/3 0% vesting if Group underperforms the index;
Sector] Index (2015 - 2017) 25% vesting for matching the index;
100% vesting for outperforming tndex by 9% p.a.
Straight-tine vesting between thase points.

SAYE

During the year under review. no new SAYE awards were granted to the Executive Directors.

Exit payments made in the year (cudited)

The terms of Mark Allan's exit were set out in an agreerment ot the time he gave notice fo Ihe Company, in formalising this ogreement,
tha Committee sought 1o ensure that the culcormes were foir fo shareholders, to the Company and fo Mark Allon, taking into account
the terms of his departure and his service to Unite over his 17 years of empioyment with the Group, including almost 10 years as
Chief Executive. The agreement ako set out some addilional undertakings which inCluded remaining with the businass in an advisory
capacity until 31 October 20146 1o support the new Chief Executive, as wel as strengthened non-compete and non-poach arrangements,
all of which were conidered fo be in the interests of the Company and of our shoreholders.

For the period 1 June 2016 1o 31 October 2014, Mark Allan continued to receive base pay (201,476}, pension [£32,417) and other
contractual benefits (£7.884) totalling £241.777. He was not eligible to participate in the 2015 annuat bonus and there was no
payment in lieu of nofice.

For the purposes of outstanding long-temm incentives, Mark Allan was not considered a 'good’ leaver, with the default policy position
dictating that all of his cutstanding awards would lapse upon keaving the Company, uniess the Committee wouks determine otherwise,
Reflecting a number of considerotions set out below. the Committee exercsed discretion lo allow vasting of LTIP awards thatl had
already baen performance tasted and were within a few days of vesting at the fime he made his announcement, This use of
discretion took into atcount thot;

> The relavant awards would have ordinarily vested fnree days ofter the official announcement of the change in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2016}, but that Mark elected 10 announce s early as possible in order 1o permit an orderty handover of his duties

» The applicable performance periods had been compieted ond vesting was strong under each cycle and

> Other elements of Mark's package were minimised under the terms of the comprormise ogresment. Namely no onnual bonus
would be payable in respect of 2016, and the previously announced &% salary increase wouid instead be kept in line with general
inCreases across the group at 2%.
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As aresult, and having honoured his obligation to remain employed with the Cormpany in an advisory capacity through to 31 October
2016, the final third of Mark’s 2012 LTIP award (which vesied as to 95.22% of maximurm based on performoance 1o 3i December 2074}
and the first two-thirds of his 2013 LTIP awaord {which vasted in full based on performance ta 31 December 2015} were preserved and
became capable of exercise, tubject to maius and clawback provisions. from | November 2016 and 1 April 2017 respectively - in
both cases being an increased deferral period from the original vesting date. All other culstanding ahd unvested awards {i.e. the
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards, and each of the 2014 and 2015 LTIP owards) lapsed following Mark’s resignation, Details of the
preserved awards are inCluded in the table below:

interests Onginol Revised Market pnce
Awad CycCle vesing vashng Jate vesting dote o vasting Value
2002LTP 104,725 1 November 2016 5490 £574,940
2L 10 Apd 2018
20137 131,209 1 Aprl 2017 5759p' £755,633

' AS the market price on the dote of vesting © unknown at the fime of raporting. the vaiue k estimoled using the average market value over the kst
quaorter of 2016 of 575.9 pence.

T4 AG S

Paymenfs fo past directors (audifed)
Save for Mark Allgn's remyneration detailed above, there were ne further payments to past directors during the year.

impiementation of Executive Diteclor remuneration policy lor 2017
Base salory
The Committes has operoved the following sakxy increases with effect from ) March 2017:

=
3
‘.".‘
5
=
»
-

Base salory trom Base salory friom

1lune 20161028 1 March 2007 10 28 Porcenioge

Executive Drecion February 2017 Fabruary 2018 naease

R S Smith £430,000 £438.600 %

JJ Lister £350.000 £357.000 2%

R C Simpson £325,000 £331,500 2%
o
Proposed salary increcses are consistent with the aoverage increase opplied across the Group (€.2%). §
2.
Pension 5
Executive Directors will continue to receive a pension contribution of up to 20% of salary or an equivalent cash aliowance, T
Performance related cnnual bonus i

Corporale

I menn.ms Wgt

Financial [75%) Adjusted £PS 250%

Total retun per share 250%

Net debt to EBTDA mtio 250%

Non-financial (25%) Customar satisfaction 12.5%

University Reputation 12.5%

The performance related annual bonus for the 2017 financial year will operate on broadly the same basis as in 2016, The Committee

has appraved an unchanged maximum bonus opportunity for each executive of 144% of salkary, consisting of o maximum of 120% 2
of salary under the ‘corporate’ element and a maximum individual multiplier of 1.2x. ]
5
For 2017 the ‘corporote’ slement of the annuai bonus will continue to be based on a combination of financial and non-financial g
measures, weighted 75% and 25% respeciively. The Commitiee intends 1o supplement customer satisfaction with @ measure based a
on University Reputation, with each weighted 12.5%. The inclusion of University Reputation recognises the egual imporkance of g'

Unite's relationships with Higher Education partners, fogether with the opinions of our student customers directly. and has baen used
as an operationc! KP for o number of years. it is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individual performance
mulfipier will be shared ocross ecch of the Executive Directors. Proposed iarget levels have been set to be challenging relative

1o business plan, although specific targets are deemed 1o be commerciatly sensitive at this time. it is the Committee’s curmrent
intention io disclose these largets, ond the key achievarments by eoch Execullve Direcior, refrospectively in the 2017 Directors’
Remuneration Report,

Annual bonuses will confinue 1o be paid in cash, unless the recipient hos not met thair sharehokding guidelines, in which casa up
fo 50% of the amount paryable will be satisfiad by an allacation of shares i the Company. deterred for three years. Clawback and
malus provisions apply to all awards.
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For 2017, the LTIP will continue to operate broadly on the same basis os in the 2014 financial year. The Committee, having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant factors, intends that Executive Direchars will each receive an award
aquivalent to o maximum of 200% of salary delivered through a combination of the PSP and ESQS, with the final level of vesting
dependent on the achievement of three-yeor performance targets relating to EPS, TR and T3R, as follows:

Macasure Waighting Torgets
2019 Adjusted earnings 113 0% vesting betow 346 pence
per share [EPS) 25% vesting for 36 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or more;
Siraight line vasting between these points

Total retum (TR] per share /3 0% vasting below 7% p.a.

p.a. (2017 - 2019) 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vasting for 13% p.a. of more;
Straight line vesting between these points

TSR autperformance of the /3 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for maiching the index
Sector Index (2017 - 2019} 100% vesting for outperforming Indexby R p.o.:

Straight line vesting between these points

Targets have been set with reference 10 inlerngl and external reference points, including our strategic plan and broker consensus
estimates, and are designed to be stretching but achievable for participants. Full vesting under each element will require continued
exceptional performance over the next three years. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject fo an additional two-year
hoiding period. during which fime clawback provisions will also apply. Further details of the grant date and number of interests
awarded will be discioted in the 2017 Annuol Report on Remuneration.

implementation of Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy for 2017

Chalman ond Non-Executive Director Fees

During the finat quarier of 2016, the Board undertook its annuai review of Non-Executive Direclor fees. Following consideration of
solary increases across the Group ond indicative fee increases at sector and FTSE comparators, the Board determined that the
hasic fee should be increased from £45,000 p.a. to £45,900 p.a. and that additional fees should be increased by ¢ similor rate,

in both cases being broadly in line with increases for the broader employee population.

In respec! of the Chairman of the Board, Phil White, the Committee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
now in place, and given the significant increase in the size of the Company in recent yeors, the timing was appropriate to undertoke
Q full market gssessment of the Choirman rote. Having considered @ number of reference points, inctuding data for sector ond size
tomparators and time commitment, the Committee recommended on increase in the fee payable to the Chairman to £185.000 p.a.
which will position hirm around lower quartile against the blended market cssessment, The Commitiee considers this increase
tppropriate given Phil's significant experlence and leadership of the Company over his tenure to date.

A summary of the fee increases, which are effective | January 2017, & set out In the table below.

Posihon 2015 fvas 2014 fees 2017 feas
Base fees
Chairmon £127.100 £129,450 £185,000
Non-Execulive Drector T £44,100 £45,000 £45,900
Addifional lees 7
senior Independent Director B £5.125 £5.250 £5.400
Audit Commitiee Char £9,150 £9,350 £9.550
Remuneration Committee Chair £9.150 £9,350 £9.550

_ Nomination Committee Chair' nfa n/a nfa
Health and Safety Committee Choir £6,475 £6,600 £6,750

" As Chaimman of the Board, Mr White does nct recejve ary additicnal fee in respect of chairing this Committae.
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Directors’ interests {audited)

3

Qrdinary Shates  Ordinary Shores

ot 25p each ot of 25peachat

31 Dacamber 31 Dacembear

0% x5

RS Smith 166,286 81.313

3 ) Lster 410,936 430,981

R C Simpson 159.024 75425
P M White T2 10957
R JTWikson 6275 8275

MWolkstenholme -; L T T T 7,995 7995

A Jones T T 15000 15,000

E McMeakan 5,000 5,000

w
3
8
0
(]
g

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company Gs ot 31 December
2016 is sef ouf fo the right.

Nane of the Direclors has a beneficial intarest in the shares of any other Group company. Since 31 Decerniber 2016, there have been
no changes in the Directors’ interests in shares.

Datails of Directors' share options are set out in the jables below.

Share price information
As at 31 December 2016 the middie market price for ordinary shares in the Company was 606p per share. During the course of the
year, the market price of the Company's shares ranged from 543.5p o 463.5p per ordinary share.

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited)

The fabie balow shows fhe sharenolding of each Execufive Director against ther respective sharehoking requirement as of .g“'
31 December 2014: 2
Interasts g
Subectlo  Unvested and/or Shanghoiding Curent 1
Owned defarol/holdng subgect to per, requlrement % shorehoking % Requrement
cutnght penod’ condlions siary/fea sakory ffeg’ met?? 5
RS Smith 166,346 99,249 286,427 250%% 09% Yes Z
J JLister 410,936 43,827 277.788 200% 750% Yoy
R C Simpson 159.026 70,088 253,892 200% 366% Yeos
P M White 10,952 S51%
R JTWilson 8,275 B5%
MWwolstenhome 7995 108%
A Jones 15,000 202%
E McMeaikan 5.000 &57%

' Includes shares subjec! lo a holding penod under the 2013 LTIP and defermed bonus shares, where appicable.

2 Based on share price at gt 31 December 2014 of 804D, Shares subject to defarmai/holding penods are taken on o 'nel of tox' basa for the purposes
of the cumant shareholding colculkahion.

1 As of the date that he stepped down from the Boord, Mark Allkan had exceeded the applicable shareholding guideling of 250% of salary.

UOHOLIOP SISO
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Direclory’ inferests in shares and opfions under Unife incentives (audited)

Deferred bonus
Interests haid Inlerests held at
al 1 Januery Gronled during  Market phce per Intenests veshed intenssts lopsed 31 Decamber Defarral
Executve 008 the yaor shore ot grant cunrg the yeor Auring the yeor 06 penoa
R C Simpson 30,790 - 31000 30,790 - - 07.03.t3
-0603.14
32,277 - 442.0p - - 32277 07.03.14
~06.03.17
43,087 - - 30,790 - 32277 -
R S Smith 33,849 - 31000 33,869 - - 07.03.13
-0603.156
32,277 - 4420p - - 32,277 07.03.14
-08.03.17
29,161 - 533.50 - - 29161 240215
-2302.18
95,307 - - 33,869 - 61,438 -
LTiP awerds
Outstanaing at
Inlergsts Qwordied 31 December
durng 1he yaar X014 [ordinory
[ominary shares  Market pnce ey Interas's vestag shames of 25p Period of
Interests haid  of 250 sachin the sharewhen  1of performance IN‘erests Kopssa each inthe qudiitying
Exsrcytive a0t 16 Company] awarced dunng the ysor dunng the yeaor Company) canditions
J J Lister 125.482 - 3N72.0p 125,482" - - 100413
—-1004.16
95,753 - 428.6p - - 95,753 10.04.14
-1004.17
72,004 - 583.5p - - 72,094 024,15
-02.04.18
- 109,941 641.50 - - 109.941 230616
~2306.19
293.329 109,941 - 125,482 - 277.788 -
R C Simpson 113,432 - 319.0p 113,432 - - 10.04.13
- 100474
86,566 - 428.6p - - 84,566 1004.14
- 10.04.17
65,179 - 5835p - - 65,179 0204.15
~02.04.18
- 102,147 441.5p - - V02147 230814
. ~2306.19
245177 102,147 - 113.432 - 253,892 -
R § Smith 113,432 - 390p 113,432 - - 10.04.13
~10.04.16
84,566 - 428.6p - - 84,566 100414
7 ~1004.17
65179 - 583.5p - - 65,179 0204.15
-0204,18
- 134,882 &41.5p - - 134,882 2306.14
- 230619
255177 134,882 - 113,432 - 286,427 -

' One-thind of owards vested for performance are subject to an additional ane-year holding period, i.e. 41,827, 37.811 and 37,811 shanes n respect
of Messrs. Lister, Simpson and Smith respactively,
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Qptrons heid Oplions heid at
ot 1 jonuary Gronted dunng Exgresad Option prce 31 December
Exaculive 2008 na yeor dunrg the yeor per shave 2016 Majunty dote
. 7.299 - - 205.5p 7,299 011217
J J Lister
- 1,705 - 527.60 4,705 01128
R C Simpson 5216 - - 3M451p 5218 01.12.17
R § Smith = 3411 — 527 4p 3411 01.12.18

The highest, lowest and Closing share prices for 2016 ore shown on page 93.

Detaits of the qualifying performance conditions, in relatfion to the above refermed te awords made in 2014 ond in 2016, are set out
eariier in this report. Those details shouid also be taken as farming port of the ‘auditable part’ of this report. Deiils of performance:
conditions applying to the 2015 awards were set out in the 2015 Directors’ Remuneration Report,

Awards made in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 ook the form of a combination of nil cost options under the PSP and HMRC cpproved
options under the ESCS. No variotions have been made to the 1erms of conditions of any owards.

The fair value in respect of Directors’ share options and LTIP awards recoghised in the Income Statement is as follows:

2004 25
Execuhive £ 4
J J Lister 312,135 415856
R C Simpson JI7HYT 429956
R § Smith 407,570 470354
M C Alian {489.737} 454,775
The Directors’ Remuneration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Commitiee and signed onits behalf by: 3
o
3
Elizabeth McMelkan &
Chalr, Remuneralion Commitiee '-ﬁ'_
22 February 2017 g
3
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As at 22 February 2017 the Company had
recaived notifications from the following
companries and institutions of the voting
interests of themselves and their clients in
3% or more of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Pemcenioge
ot Share
Sharenoided Copitol
BlackRock Inc 8.0l
APG Asset Managerment NV 6.36
Cohen & Steers Inc 438
Aberdeen Assel
Management Group 395
Old Mutual plc .79
Royal London
Asset Management 340
Invesco Lid 3.50
Principal Financial Group K|
Norges Bank
309

Investment Manogement
-—

Share capital

Al the date of this report, there are
222,048,787 ordincry shares of 25p each in
issue, all of which are fully paid-up and
quoled on the London Stock Exchange,

During the year and through 1o the date
of this report, a tatal of 65,408 ordinary
shares of 25p eqch weve allotted and
Bsued pursuant to the exercise of optians
under the Unite Group plc Savings
Related Share Opfion Scheme and

o total of 72,468 ordinary shares of 25p
each were allotted and issued pursuant
to the exercise of options under the
Approved Scheme.

The rights attaching ta the Company’s
ordinary shares, as well as the powers of
the Company's Directors. ore setoutin
the Company’s articles of association.

There are no restictions on the tronsfer

or voting righis of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company {other than those
which moy be imposed by law from time
fo fime or as set out in the Company's
articles of assockation).

In accordance with the Market Abuse
Reguigtions. certain empiloyees are
required to seek approval to deal in
the Company's shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfers of
securities ond/or voling rights. No person
nolds securitias in the Company canying
special rights with regard to control of the
Company. Unless exprassly specified to
the contrary. the Company’s arficles of
association may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders,

Change of conivol

Al of the Compony’s share schemes
contain provisions relafing ¥ a change

of control. Quistanding rewards and
options would normaolly vest and become
exercisable on a chonge of control, subject
1o the satisfaction of any performance
conditions. Other than certain of the
Group's banking facilities, there are no
other significant agreements o which the
Company is a party that affect, alter or
lerminate vpon a change of control of
the Company following a takeover bid.
Nor are there any agreements between
the Company and its Directors or
employees providing for compensation
for loss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid.

Following a change of contol of the
Compary, the convertible bonds issued
by Unite Jersey Issuer Limited and
announcad on 3 Oclober 2014 become
redeemable and/or convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company (at the
apfion of ihe holdert.

The Directors have no outhority fo buybback
the Compony's shares.

Detalks of proposals to be put 0 the Annual
General Meeting in relation o the power
of Directors lo issue shares in the Company
are set out under the heading ‘Annual
General Meating'.

Golng concem and
viabllity statement

The going concem statement and
viability statement is set out on pages 65
and 25 respectively and i incorporated
into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Disclosure of Information

fo auditors

The Directors who held office at the
date of approval of the Directors’ Report
confirm that, 56 far as they are each
aware, thene is no relevant gudit
informafion of which the Company's
auditor i§ unaware; ond each Director
has taken allthe steps that he cught to
hove taken gs a Director to make himself
gware of any relevant audit information
and fo estoblish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors' confiicts of interest

The Company has procedures in place
for managing conflicts of interest, A
Director is 10 notity the Chairman (and
the Chairman notifies the Chief Executive)
if they become aware that they, or any
of their connected parties, may have

an interest in an existing or preposed
transaction with the Company o the
Group. Directors have a cantinuing duty
to updote any changes to these conflicts,

Political donations
No paolifical donations were made during
the year ending 2016.
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Ofther information

incorporated by reference

The tollowing information in the Strategic
Report i§ incarporated inte this Directory’

Report by reference:

Results and dividend Page !
Post bolance sheetevents  Poge 109
Greenhouse gas emissions  Page 47

Fingncial Instruments ond
financialrisk management  Page 29
Employment of disabled

persons/Empioyee
involvement

Page 44

The Corporate Governonce Stalement
on pages 50 to 95 and the Stafement of
Directors' responsibilities on page 99 cre
incorporafed info this Directors’ Report
by reference.

Management Report

This Directors’ Report together with the:
strategic report and other sections from
the annual report forms the Management
Report for the purposes of DTR 4.1 8R.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Mesting of the
Company will be held at 3 Rivergate,
Temple Quay, Bristol BS1 4GD, ot 10.00om
on 11 May 2017. Formal notice of the
meeating is given on pages 15510 159,

Resolution 14:

Authority to allot shares

In addition to the ordinary business of the
meating, Resciulion 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resolution to grant the
Directors authorily o aliot shares in the
Company, and grant rights to subscribe
for or to conver? any security into shares
of the Cempany, up o an aggregate
nomina! valye of £18,505,732 [reprasenting
approximately one thikd of the issued
share copital of the Company os ot the
date of this report). Inaccordonce with
guidelines issued by the Investment
Association, this resolution olso grants the
Dirgctors quthority fo allot further equity
securitios up to an oggregate nominol
volue of £18,505,732, again representing
approximately ane third of the nominat
value of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the dote of this report,
This additional auihority may only be
appiied fo fully pre-emptive rights issues,

Resolutions 15 and 14:
Disapplication of pre-empfion
rights resolufions

If the Directors wish to aliot new shares
and other equity securities for cash [other
han in connection with on employee
share scheme), company law requires
that these shares ore offered first 1o the
sharehoiders, in proportion to their existing
holdings. The: Directors consider it desirable
o have the maximum flexibiltty permitted
by corporote governance guidelines

to respond to market developments

ond 16 enable gliotments 1o toke ploce
to finance business opportunities without
moking a pre-emplive offer to existing
sharehokiers. This connot be done under
he Compaonies 2006 Act unless the
shareholders have first waived their
pre~emption rights, The purpose of
Resoiutions 15 and 15 {logether the
‘disapplication of pre-empfians rights
resolutions’) is lo enabile shargholders

1o s0 waive their pre-emption rights.

Resolution 15 outhorises the Directors to
allot new shares pursuant to the quinority
given by Resclution 14 (the alictment
resolution) for cash:

{a} In connection with a rights issue
or pre-emptive ssue; and/or

{b) Otherwise up to o nominal value
of £2.775,859, equivalent o
approximately 5% of the total
sued ordinary share capital of
the Company as of the date of this
repon, in each case without the
shares first being offered to existing
shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings.

Resolution 16 additionally authorises the
Directors to allct new shares for cash,
without the shores first being offered to
existing sharehoiders in proportion fo thelr
existing holdings, in connection with the
financing [er refinancing, if the authority
is o be used within six months after the
original fransaction) of an acquisifion

or specified capital nvestment which

is announced contemporaneocusty with
the allatment or which has taken place
in the preceding six-month period and

is disclosed in the announcement of the
gliotmeni. The authority under Resolution
16is fimited to a nominal value of
£2,775.859, eguivalent to approximately
5% of the nominal voiue of ihe ordinary
share capital of the Company in issue

as at the date of this report.

Taken fogeiher, these disapplication of
pre-emption dghts resolutions will allow
fhe Direcfors fo issue new shores for
cash without offering the shares first

fo existing sharehoiders in proportion io
thew existing holdings under the
following chcumstances:

» In conneciion with a righfs issue or
other pre-emptive issue, with G normingl
value equivaient to fwo-thirds of the
presant issued share copital (which will
qliow the Direciors to make exciusions
or such other arangements as may be
appropriate to resolve legat or
practical problems which, for example,
might arise with overseas sharehoiders);
For any other purpose, with a nominal
vaiue equivaient 1 5% of the present
issued share capitak and

in connection with the financing
orrefinancing of an acquisition or
specified capifal investment which is
announoed contemporanecusly with
the ailofrment or which has laken place
in the preceding six-month period and
is dlisclosed in the announcement of
the allotment, with a norminal value
equivalent o 5% of the present issued
shore capital but subject to an

overall aggregate limit equivaient

o two-thirds of the present ssued
share capdal,

v

v

The Directors intend to adhere to the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Staternent of Principies, as updated in
March 2015, and not to allot shares for
cash on a non-pre-emptive basis
pursuant to the authority in Resolution 15
aitherirr excess of an amount equai to 5%
of the total issued ordinary share copital
of the Company orin excess of an
amaunt equal to 7.5% of the total ssued
ordinary share copital of the Company
within a roliing three-year period, withaut
priar consuitation with shangholders.

Even though adherence to the principles
wouid not preciude issuances under the
authority sought under Rasolution 14, the
Directors curtenily do not infend to use
such authority without prior consultation
with teading sharehoiders.

The allotment and the disapplication

of pre-emption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Capital Managemeant
Guidelines issued by the investment
Association in july 2016 and the
disopplication of pre-emption rights
resolutions lollow the resolution templates
issued by the Pre-Empfion Group in

May 2016,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

1f the resalutions are passed, the authorities
will expire ol the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company
o, if earfier, 10 August 2018, this being the
dote 15 months from the passing of the
rasolutions, whichever is the earlier.

Resolution 17:
Amend Article 94 (Directars’ fees)

of the Articles of Assaciafion
Resolution 17 s a proposal o amend
Aricle 94 of the Articles of Association

to increase the limit on Directors' service
fees [as distinct from salary, remuneration
and other poyments to the execulive
directors) from the current £500,000 to
£750.000 per annwm. This i to allow the
Company some headroom in relation 1o
any further appointments of Non-Executive
Directors or increases in Directors’ fees.
There is no current intention to ufilise the
proposed increased limit and the level of
tees paid to the Non-Executive Directors
will conlinue to be manitored by the
Board, which intends that gll such fees
should be in line with market practice,

Resolulion 18:

Nofice of General Meelings

The Companies (Shareholders’ Rights]
Regulations 2009 (ihe Shareholders’
Rights Regulations}, increased the notice
pefiod for general meeatings of the
Company lo 21 days unless shoreholders
appfove a shorter notice period, which
connot be less than 14 clear days. Al the
annual general meeting of the Company
helkd in 2015, shareholders authorised the
calling of general meetings, other than
an annudl general meeting, on not iess
than 14 cleor days’ notice. Rasolution 18
seeks the approval of shareholders to
renew thae authority to be able to call
general meetings (cther than an annual
general meeting) on 14 clear days'
notice. The flaxibility offered by Resoiution
18 wif be used where, faking info account
the circumsiances, the Directors consider
this appropriate inrelation fo the business
of the meeting and in the interasts of the
Compony and shareholders 0s o whole.
The Company undertakes to meet the
requirements for electronic voting under
the Shareholders' Rights Regutations
before calling o genergi meeting on 14
claar days’ notice. If given, the approval
will be effective until the Company's

next annual general meeting, whan itis
intended that a similar resolution will

be proposed.

By order of the Board
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary
22 February 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annuol Report and Accounts and the
Group and parenf company financial
sicterments in occordance with oppicable
law and reguiations.

Company law requires the Directors

lo prepare Group ond parent company
financiol statements for each financial
yeor. Under that low they ore required to
prepare the Group financial statements
in gcoordance with IFRSs as odopted by
the EU and applicable law and have
elected to prapare the parent company
financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law, the Directors must
not approve the financial siatements
uniess they are satisfied that they give

a true and fair view of the state of offairs
of ihe Group and parent company and
of their profit orloss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and
parent company financial siatements,
the Directors ane required fo:

> Select suitabla accounting policias
and then apply them consistently

2 Make judgmenits and estimates that
arg reasonable and prudent

» State whether they hove been prepared
in cccordance with IFRSs as adopted
by tha EU

¥ Prepare the financial sictements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The Ditectors are responsibie for kaeeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient fo show and expigin fhe parent
company's fransactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial pesifion of the parent company
and enable them fo ensure thatits
financial siatements compily with the
Companies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for toking such sleps as are
reasonQbly open 10 them to sofeguard
the assats of the Group and to prevent
ong detect froud and other imegulorities,

Under applicoble kaw ond regulations,
the Diractors ore olso rasponsible for
preparing a Directors’' Report, Directors'
Remuneration Report ond Corporote
Govemance Statement that comply
with that law and those regulations.

The Direciors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website.
Legisiation in the UK goveming the
preporation and dissemination of
fironclal statements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Fach of the Dirgctors, the nome of whom
are set out on pages 54 and 55, confirms
that to the best of his or her knowliedge:

» The Annual Report and accounts taken
as a whole is foir, balanced and
understandable and provides the
infarmation necessary for shareholders
o assess the Company's position
and parformance, business modei
and strotegy

» The financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standords, give a rue and
fair view of the cssets, kabilities,
financial pasition and profit and loss
of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken
as a whole

» The Direclors’ Report includes
a fair review of the development
and performancs of the business
and the position of the issuer and
the undertakings included in the
consofidation taken Gs a whole,
together with ¢ description of the
principal risks ond uncertainties that
they foce.

R Smith J Lister
Director Director
22 Februory 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial siatements of The Unite Group plc

Our cpinion on the financial statements is unmodified
In our opinion;

> the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's ond of the parent company's affairs as
at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's profit for the yeor then ended:

> the Group finonciol statements have been properly prepored in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union;

> the porent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Ewopean Union and as opplied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; ond

> the fingncial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20046 and,
as ragards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial statements comprisa the Consoldated and Company balonce sheets, the Cansolidated income staternent, the
Consokdated siatement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity,
the Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows and the related notes. The financial reporting frarmewaork that has been
appied in ther preperation  appicobile kw and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in occordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Golng concem and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would fiweaten the solvency

or iquiiity of the Group

As raquired by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors' statement regarding the appropsiateneass of the going concem basis
of occounting contained within the Regulatory disclosures section of the Govemonce report 1o the financial statements and the
directors’ stalerment on the longer-term viabiity of the Group contained within the stratagic report on page 25.

We have nothing malerial to odd or draw attention to in rekation 102

> the directors’ confkmation on page 99 thal they have canied out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, inclkuding those that woukd threaten ifs business modei, future performance. solvency or liquidity;

> the disclosures on pages 26 1o 29 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated:

> the directors’ statement in section ! to the financial staternents about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and ther identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's
ability to continue 6 do so over a period of ot least twelve rmonths from the date of approval of the finoncial statements;

> the drector’s explanation on page 99 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they considler that period te be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasanable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its likabilities as they foll due over
the period of their assessrment, including any rekated disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or assumplions,

We agreed with the drectors’ adoption of the going concem basis of accountng ond we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all futwre events or condifions can be predicled, this statement is not o guorantee as to the
Group's ability fo continue as o going concem.

independence

We are required to comply with the financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standords for Auditors and we confim that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsioilities in accordance with those standards. We also confim
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services refemed 1o in those standards.

Our assessment of risks of malerial misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstaternent described below are Ihose that had the greatest effect on our qudit strategy.,
the allocation of resources in he oudit ond directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Last year our report ncluded a risk around the recogniion of defered fax assets, which & not included in our report this year. We have
identified a new risk relating fo the impact of the Group becoming a RET on 1 January 2017 as the REIT transition has had a sigrificant
impact on the measurement and preseniation of defemed tax assets and iabifties.

The description of risks below shaukd e read in conjunclion with the significant ssues considered by the Audit Committee discussed
on page b5.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financicl statements as a whole. and in forrming our opinion thereon,
and we Jdo not provide a seporate opinion on these rmatters.



THE UNITE GROUF PLE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 1@
o s L]

podas 2Baj015

Risk: investment and development property valuation {£2,276.6 miflion)

The Group's principal assefs are investrment properties and invesfment properties under development that are either gwned on
bakance sheet of through the investments that the Group holds in LSAV and USAF, The investment properties are camied at fair value
based on an appraisal by the Group's independent external valuers who canmy oul the valations at six-monthly intervats for the Group
in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professional Standards (the 'Red Book’), taking into
account transactional evidence dunng the year.

Management conduct a detailed exercise in the assessment of the valugation of the Group's preperty porifolio. The valugtion of thase
properties 5 underpinned by a aumber of judgements and assumplions, such as property yields, renial growth, occupancy and
property management costs. A small change in these assumptions could have a significant mpact on the valuation of propertfies
and, with respect to the voluation of the USAF properties, coukd ako have a significant impact on o key input to the calculation of
the pexformonce fee recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014 as this s based on the net asset value of the fund.

With regards to the investment properties under development. additional judgement is required to forecast discounted ceash fiows
with a deduction for construction costs to complete.

Reter to Section 3.1: Wholly owned property assets
How the scope of our qudit responded to the risk

We performed testing on the property valsations ond crificaly assessed the judgements and estimates ihat had been made.
This work inchyded:

8ounuIBA0b ajuadios

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

>  uUnderstonding ond challenging the assumptions laken in relotion to key drivers such os rental income and growth,
occupancy, viekds and costs with reference fo the frends at the end of the yeor and the loliowing year's budget and
Graup's strategic plan;

> Meeting with the Group's valuers 1o understand the assumptions being taken and consistency of the judgemaents
with prior year:

>  Working with our valuotion specialists within our Deloitte Real Estate team fo validate the assumptions used against
market data;

> Assessing the Group's development appraisal process through meeting with the development feam and Qassessing
the forecast cost fo complete against budget and substantive testing of costs incured to date; and

> Use of dota analytic tools to determine whether there were any anomalies in the valuation spreadsheet datg sent
to the valuers.

Key observations
We are sofisfied with the approach and methodology adopted in valuing the properfy portfolio and consider the valuations 10 be
suitable tor inciusion in the financial staterments at 31 Decernber 2016.

Risk: accounting for joint ventures {(£5692.9 milllon)

A significant proportion of the Group's assets are held within USAF and LSAV which are jointly owned entities that are accounted for
as joinf ventures. At 31 December 2016 Unife had a 23% ownership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAV, and acts as manoager of both
joint vanture vehicles.

Due to the complexity of the confractual arangements, and the Group's role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the
assessmeant of contral involves judgements around a number of significant factors, parficularty with regards to USAF given that itisa
multi-investor fund and the Unite ownership stake & subject to change. In occordance with IFRS 10, there & a need fo assess control
with regards to the ability to direct relevant aclivities, have exposure 1o variable retumns and the obiiity to use power to affect retums
at each reporting period.

Refer to Section 3.4: investments in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

How the scope of our gudil responded to the risk

Qur audif procedures on this area focussed on assessing the activities of the businesses, understanding the confractual agreements
in place and identifying the methodology opplied by management in reaching ther business decisions in order to consider the
appropriateness of the classification of these arongements as foint ventures in accordance with the requrements of IFRS 10.

With regards to both USAF and LSAV. we have:

> Undernstood and documented the underlying business process and evaluated the design, determined implementation
and tested operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

» crifically assessed the key activities and how they impact the returns to the Group from the Funds and chalienged
Management's own consideration of these foctors in their application of IFRS 10: and

» asiessed the Group's monitoring of its role and the three key factors reiating to confrol and ifs exercise iIn accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the particular focus on USAF, we have:

» assassed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee (which represents the interests of all unitholkders) on an on-going basis,
including obtaining evidence as to how it has carried out its duties and evaluatea where decisions were faken thaot did
not involve the Commiltee as to indications of the ability of the Group to exercise control; and

> critically evaluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a regular basis,

Key observations

There has been no change to the structure and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
period and the role played by Unite as investor and asset/devetopment manager.

‘We consider the treatment as joint ventures to be appropriate.

Risk: REIT fransition

The Group possesses significant potential defered tax liabilities in relation to futura gains on investment properties and unit frusts
ond also significant potentia! defered tax assets in respect of tax losses. The recognition of both liabilities and assets depend
on an assessment of forecas! taxable profils, forecasts themselves primarily dependeant on the conversion to REIT status on

1 Januory 2017. The recognition of both deferred tox assets and fiobilities in this period therefore invotves judgements regarding
their appropriate tfreatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certointy of conversion and ongoing maintenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Secticn 2.5; Tax

How the scope of our audit responded fo the rsk
Our audit proceduras included:

> Understancing and documenting the underlying business process and then evaiuating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

» warking closely with our tax audit specialist team, including newly infroduced REIT specialists, o ensure that the key
judgements relating to REIT transition are understcod:

> considering the clarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tax balances and effective tax rate reconciliation;
and

> testing the Group's current and forecast compliance wilh the REIT regime rules.

Key obsetvalions

We are satisfied with Management's assessment of the impact of REIT conversion on the deferred tax position of the Group and agree
with the resulting credit of £39.8m on the derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised on revaluation of investrment properties,
accelerated capital alowances and property business tax losses. We consider the presentation of the disciosures of the tax balonces
and effective tax rale reconciliation to be approprniate.
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Our appilication of materiality

We define matericity 0s the magnitude of missiotement in the financial stotemenis that mokes it probable thot the economic
decsions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

We determined materiality for the group 1o be £14.8 milion [2015: £9.3 million). which i 1.0% of net assets [2015: 1% of net assets).

In addition to net assets, we consider the EPRA earnings measure to be a critical financiol performance measura for the Group and
we have opplied a lower threshoid of £3.0 milion [2015: £3.1 milion} based on 5% of EPRA eornings (201 5: 5% of EPRA eamings| for
testing of revenue, cost of soles, operoling expenses, koan interest and simiar chorges. finance income, share of joint venture profit
and toxation.

We ogreed with the Audit Committee that we woukd repart 1o the Committee off audit differences in excess of £153,000 {2015:
£186.000}, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report
fo the Aydiit Committes on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financiol statements,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Owr group cudit was scoped by obtaining an undersionding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide confrols, and
assessing the risks of material missiaternent at the Group level. The Group is audited by one audit team, led by the Senior Statutory
Auditor. The audit is performed centraly. as the books and records for each entity within the Group are maintained ot head office.
We aiso testedd the consolidation process and camed out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no
significant risks of material misstaterment of the aggregated financial informafion. We oudit al of the Group’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures which are subject to oudit at statutory materigiity level, which in many cases is substantially lower than Group materiality'.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compaonies Act 2006

In Sur opinion:

> the port of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006; and
> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year tor which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Maiters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explonations recelved and accounting records
uUnder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion;

> we have not received ali the information ond explanations we require for our Qudit; or

> adequate accounling records have nat been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

> the parent company financial stotements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matiess.

Directots' remuneration

Under the Comparnies Act 2006 we ore also required to report if in owr opinion cestoin discloswres of direciors’ remunerotion have not
been made or the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report 1o be oudited i not n agreement wilh the accounting records and
returns. We have nothing to report arising from these matters.

Cormporate Govemance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we ore also required to review part of the Comporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with certain provisions of the UK Corpoarate Govemnance Code. We have nathing to report arising from our review.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

Our duty o read other information in the Annual Report
Under Infemational Standards on Auditing (UK and reland). we are required o report fo you if, in our opinion, nformation n the
annualreport i:

> materally inconsistent with the informgtion in the audited financial stotements; o

> gpparently materially incomect based on, or materigily inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of performing our audit; or

> ofherwise misleading.

In particuiar, we are reguired to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report s for, batanced and understandable and whether the
annual report appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit commitiee which we consider should have
been dclosed. We confirn that we have not identified any such inconsistencies of miskeading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fuly in the Directors’ Responsibilities Staterment, the drectors are respansible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give o frue and for view. Ourresponsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicabie kaw and intemational Standards on Audifing (UK and reland}. we also comply
with Intemational $tandard on Quality Control 1 UK and Irekand}. Qur oudit methodology and toois aim to ensure that our quality
confrol procedures are effective, understood and apphed. Our quality controls and systems inchude owr dedicaled professional
stondards review teom and independent partner reviews,

This report is made solely to the company's members. as & body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Ouwr audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members these matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fulest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsioility
1o anyone other than the company and the company’s mermbers as a body, for our audit work, for this report, of for the opinions we
have fofmed.

Scope of the audit of the financial sfatements

An audt involves oblgining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient te give reasoncidle
asswrance that the financiol staterments are free from material misstoterment, whether caused by fraud or error, This incCludes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to ihe gioup's and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied ond adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
annual report to kientify material inconsstencies with the audited financial staternents and to identify any information that is
apparentty materially incomect bosed on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acguired by us in the course of performing
the audit. if we beacome aware of any apparent material misstaternents or inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report,

N

Judith Tacon (Senlor statulory auditor)

for and on behal of Delolite LLP

Chortered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2017
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These financial siaements are prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Board of Direclors aiso presant ihe Group's pedormance
o on the basis recommended for real esiale componles by the Europeon Public Real Estate Associalion (EPRA). The reconcRalion
between [FRS performance measures and EPRA performanice measunes can be found In Section 2.2 b) for EPRA eomings
and 2.3 ¢) for EPRA net anet value {NAY), The adiustiments to the IFRS resulls are intended to help users in the comparablitty
of these results across other isted real estale companies in Europe and reflect how the directors monitar the business.
We have grouped the noles to the financial statements under six main headings:
> Resulls lor the yes, including segmental Informalion, EPRA somings and EPRA NAY
> Asset monagement
> Funding
>Worldng copital
> Koy managemet and smployee benelits a
>Company subsidiaries and joint ventures
Each saction sefs oul the relevont accounting policies opplied n these finoncial stolements together with the ey §
Judgements and edimoles used. %
Q
Primary sialements §
Consoldataed income statement a
Consolidated staterment of comprehensive ncome: 2
Consoldated balance shest o
Company baiance sheet

Consolidated statement of changaes in shareholders’ equity
Company statement of changes in shareholders™ aquity
Statements of cash flows
Section 1: bash of preparation
Section 2 Resulls for the year

2.1 Segmental infermation

2.2 Fomings

2.3 Net ossets

2.4 Revenue and costy

2.5Tax

2.6 Audit fees
Section 3: Asset manogement

3.1 wholly owned property assets

3.2 Inventories

3.3 Cther noncurrent assets

3.4 Investments in joint ventures

3.5 Investments n subsidiaries
Section 4 Funding

4.) Borowings

4.2 Interest rate swaps

4.3 Net financing costs

4.4 Georing

4.5 Financial risk factors

4.6 Operating leases

47 Capital management

4.8 Equily

4.9 Dividends
Section 5: Working capliial

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

5.2 Trade ond other receivables

5.3 Credit risk

5.4 Trade and other payobles

5.5 Transactions with other group companies
Section §: Key management and amployes benaefils

6.1 Staff numbers and costs

6.2 Kay maonagement personnel

4.3 Share based cormpensation
Saction 7: Events after the balonce shest dote
Seciion 8: Company subsidiaries ond joint venthues Pr——
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

oD DI5
Nole £m £m
Rental ncome 24 $7.1 930
Property sales and other income 24 234 1158
Totol revenue 120.7 2008
Costof sales 24 (44.9) {1149}
Operafing expenses (25.0) {28.5}
Results from operating acfivities 508 65.4
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of property 04 0.6}
Net voluation gains on property an 172 1648
Profti beltore net financing costs 128.4 prs X3
Loain interest and similar charges 43 {20.9) {22.4)
Mark o market changes in nterest rate swaps 4.3 - (0.8}
Swap caoncellation costs 4.3 {1.0) -
Finance costs 4.3 (21.9) [23.2)
Finance ncome 43 0.1 0.2
Net financing costs 4.3 {21.8) (23.0)
Share of joint venture profit 3.4 4.8 181.8
Profit before tax 2004 3884
Current tax 25 (2.3) [V.4)
Deferred tax 2.5 273 (31.1}
Proftt for the year 2244 355.7
Proftt for the year alibulable to
Owners of the parent company 22c 224.0 3519
Minority interest 2.4 38
2264 355.7
Eomings per share
Basic 2.2¢ 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted 2.2¢c ¥4.7p 150.3p
All results are derived from continuing activites,
For the year ended 31 December 2016
2016 F-HE
Note £ £m
Profft for the year 244 355.7
Movemaents in effective hedges 42 (9.2) n.e)
- Deferred lax in relation to movements in eflective hedges 25d (r.7n 1.0
Gains on hedging instruments fransferred to income statement within mark to market
changes in inferest rate swaps - 0.3
- Defemed tax in relation to hedging insruments transfemed to ncome statermant - 10.1)
Share of joint venture movements in effective hedges 34b {1.4) 0.6
- Deferred lax in relation to shore of joint venture mavernents in effective hedges 2.5d {0.5) {0.1)
Qther comprehensive ncorre for the yeor (12.2) {0.2)
Tolol comprehensive income for the year 214.2 355.5
Atibutable o
Owners of the parent compony 218 35146
Minority interest 24 3.7
2142 3555

All other comprehensive income may be classified s profit and koss in the future.
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ampmn
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
At 31 December 2016 g
Q.
a
w016 2015 §
Nole tm £m
Assels
Investrnent property 343 1.061.6 1.024.4
Investment property undler developrment 3 184.5 149.8
investment in joint ventures 34b 8929 6106
Cther non-curment assets 33 .8 245
Detemed tax asset 2.5d -~ V0
Total non-current ayels 1,948.9 1.810.3
inventories 3.2 29 346 o]
Trade and other receivobles 52 779 830 %
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 42.7 270 2
Totol cumrent assets 1235 1134 3
Totol cssehs 20924 19239 %
a
Uablitles §
Bomowings 4.1 (v3) (31.3)
Trade and other payobles 5.4 {123.7) [115.5)
Curent tax iabilty (2.4} (2.3}
Total curent Robililes {127.4) (149.1)
Borowings 4.1 {471.5) |443.8)
Interest rate swaps 42 {11.8) (2.3)
Defered iax iablity 2.5d {4.4) 31.0)
Total non-cument Rabities (489.5) {477.1)
Total Babliiles {616.9) (6262}
Mot assets 1.475.5 1.297.7
Equity
Issued share capital 48 B85 555
Share premivm 48 493.4 4933
Merger reserve 40.2 402
Retoined eamings B862.9 6795
Hedging resarve (15.0) [28)
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1 1.4 9.4
Equity aliribytable to te owners of the parend company 14514 12751
Minovity interest 239 224 o
Total equity 14755 12977 Z
=
These financial siaterments of The Unite Group plc. registered nurmber 31991560 were approved by the g
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalt by: 3
RS Smih J ) Lister 2
Director Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016

2016 s
Note ' £m

Assais
Investrments in subsidiaries as 7254 6483
Tolgl investments 7254 648.3
Loan to graup undertaking 3.5 179.9 179.9
Total non-current atsads 905.3 828.2
Amounts due from group undertakings 52 686.4 £39.3
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 - -
Total curent assets 686.4 6393
Total ssels 1.50M.7 1447.5
Current Rabiities
Bomrowings 4. (0.1) (1.4
Amounts due to group underiakings 5.4 13 {58.2
QOther payables 5.4 (3.0) 12.7)
Tolal current lcbilfies (4.4) (42-3)
Borrowings 4.1 (175.5) {173.0
Total non-cument kcbitie: (175.3) (173.0)
Tofal Nabiies (179.7) (235.3)
Neat assels 141290 12322
Equify
isswed share capital 555 555
Shane premium 4934 4933
Mergex reserve 402 402
Retoined somings 8133 433.8
Equity portion of inlercompany ioan 4 2.4
Total equity 1,412.0 1,232.2

Total equity is whaolly ottributoble to equity hoklers of The Linite Group pic.

Thesea financial statements of The Unite Group pic, registered number 3199160 were approved by the Board of Directon on
22 Febryary 2017 and were signed on its beholf by:

RS Smih J 1 Lister
Director Director

T A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

la¢

Eqully poriion: Alsbautable
b Shere Margat Aedained Hadging  of comvaribie 10 ownees. Minorly
shexe caplia premiurm reserve sanings L ] ralrument of e parwnk L Tobd
tm tm m tm £m £m m em tm
Al 1 Jonuary 2016 555 4933 402 &79.5 (2.8) 9.4 1,275.1 224 1.297.7
Profit tor the yeor R - - - 2240 - ~ 240 24 2264
Moverments in effective |
hedges (net of ! '
associated defered fax} . - - - - 122) - (12.2) ~ (122).
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 224.0 (12.2} - 218 24 2142
Shares issued - a3 - - - Q.3 - Q.3
Deferred tax on share
based poyrments - - - {0.1) - - 1) - {0.1)
Far value of snore based
payrments - - - 12 - - 12 - 12
Own shares acguved - - - (2.5) - - (25 - (2.5)
Dividends paid to aowners
of the parent company - - - {34.2) - - (34.2) - {34.9)
Dividends to minority
interest - - - - - - - (1.1) {1.1)
Al 3) December 2014 555 4934 402 847.9 {15.0) .4 1.451.6 23.9 14755
Equety porhion, Aty kible
Issoed Shorg: Morger Retomec Heagng  of convaribie o owners Mnonty
shore capdol premium resenve ATt Teserae Insrurnent of the parent itenes) Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m

Al 1 Jonuary 2015 504 3858 402 3592 (2.5) 9.4 842.5 17.8 862.3
Profit for the year i . - z 3519 - - B8 38 3557
Other comprahensive
income for the year ~ - - ~ (0.3} - 0.3} 0.1 0.2
Total comprehensive
ncome for the year - - - 351.9 Q.3 - 351.6 39 355.5
Shares issued &1 107.5 - - - - 1124 - 1124
Defemed fox on share
based payments - - - 08 - - 0.8 - [oF:]
For value of share based
payments - ~ - 29 - - 29 - 29
Own shares acquired - ~ - 13.4) - - {3.4) - (3.4}
Dividends paid o owners
of the parent company - ~ - 319 - - 131.%9} -~ [31.9)
Dividdends to minority
interast - - - - - - - .y {1.1}
Al 31 December 2015 555 493.3 402 679.5 (2.8) 7.4 1,2758.1 2.6 1.297.7

The notes on pages 112 ko 153 form port of the financiol statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the yeor ended 31 Decermber 2015

pd Shewe Merper Awicinad Equily porfion of
thire coplial premiam L samings  Indercompany loan Tokad
tm tm m £m &m £m
Al 1 Jonuary 20146 55.5 493.3 0.2 6338 9.4 1,2322
Profit for the yeaor & other comprehensive income - - - 2137 - 0n3.7
Shares ssued - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Dividends to shareholders - - - (34.2) - (34.2)
Al 31 Decemnber 2014 555 493.5 402 813.3 4 14120
Isued Shere Marger Rekango oty porton o!
share coptal premum essnee SaTINgs  NKITOMEany loon To'al
i#m £m £m £m £m £m
AL January 2015 50.4 3854 402 37s.a .4 8516
Profit for the yeor & other comprehensive income - - - »9.9 - 289.9
Shexes ssued 5.1 107.5 - - -~ 112.8
Dividends to shareholders - - - [31.9) - {31.9)
Al J1 December 2015 55.5 4%32.3 402 433.8 7.4 12322

The nalas on poges 112 to 153 form part of the fnancial stalements,
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

111

Grovp Compony
por 15 018 015

Nogte fm £m &m £m
Cash flows from opardling acfivities 5.1 70.3 120.8 (2.8) {2.2)
Cash flows from taxalion (22 (0.3) - -
Investing cctivities
Procaeds from sake of invesiment property 124.1 (G.6} - -
Paymaeants to/on behalf of subsidianes - - {157.4) {194.9)
Payments from subsidiores - - 59.1 54.4
Repayment received of joint venture investment ioan - - - -
Loan 1o joint ventures - {30.5) - -
Dividends received %2 229 13%3 55.7
Interast recaived 0.1 0.2 - -
Investment in joint ventures - (52.4] - -
Acquisition of intongible assets 8.2) 7.7} - -
Acquisition of property {131.0) {96.3) - -
Acquisition of plont and equipment 3 (g 1} - . _ =
Cash flows from Investing aclivities 131 {148.5) 41.0 (84.8)
Financing aclivities
Interest paid in respect of financing activities (23.7) {21.8) (5.5) {5.5)
Ineffective swap payments - (2.3} - -
Swap canceldation costs {1.0) - - -
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 0.3 124 0.3 124
FPayments fo acquire own shores {25} {3.4} - -
Proceeds from non-curent barowings 9.0 17.4 23 1.8
Repoyment of borowings 102.3) [{36.1) - -
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company (34.2) (31.9) (34.2) {3.9)
Dividends paid to minority inferest {1.1) {v.1) - =
Cash flows from financing activilies (45.5) 33.4 (37.1) 7.0
Nel (decreass)/Increcse in cash and cash equivalents 1687 {14.4} 13 (oo}
Coshand cash equivalents ot startofyeer 2706 0 414 0 04 86
Cash and cash equivolents at end of year 5.1 27 7.0 (X)) (1.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

poficy s specific fo a parficuiar nole to the finoncial statemenis, the policy Is described in the note to which # refates and has

o This section lays out the Group's accouniing policlies thal reiale o the finoncial satemenis a3 o whole, Where an accounfing
been clearly ideniiied In a box.

The financial statements consolidate those of The Unite Group pic, {the Company) and ils subsidianes (fogether refamed 1o as
the Group) and include the Group's interests in joinlly controlied entities. The parent company financiol statements present
infernation about the Company as a separate entity and not as a group.

Both the parent company financial stalements and the Group financial statements have been prepoared in accordance with
International Fnancial Reporting Standards at adopied by the EU [Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors. On publishing
the parem! company financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company & toking advantage
of e exernplion in 5408 of the Compaecnies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement ond refoted notes.

The accounting policies have been applied consistantly to all periods presented in these consalidated financial statements.

The Company is domicked in the Uniled Kingdom.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, fogather with the factors fkety fo affect its Future development and position are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 1 to 49. In addilion, section 4 of these Motes to the financial statarments includes the Group's objectives, policies ond
processes for managing its capital; detais of its borrowings ond interest rate swaps: and in note 5.3 its exposwre to credit rsk.

The Group has prepared cash flow projections three years forward to Decemper 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroorm

to meet all its commitments. The Group added £100m to an existing fachity duing 2014 and this together with existing facikties will

be sufficient fo fund the Group's commitments over the next fhree yean. The Group mainiains positive relafionships with ifs lending
banks and has historicaky secured new faciffies before maturity dales and remcined within its covenant leves. The Group & in full
compliance with is caovenants gt 31 December 2014, Ouwr debt faciities nclude loan-to-value, interast cover and minimum net worth
covenants, ait of which have a high level of headroom. In order to manage future financial commitments, the Group operate a
tormal approval procass, through its Major Investment Approvals commitiee, (o ensure oppropriate review is undertaken before

any transactions are ogreed.

The Direclors consider that the Group has adequate resowrces to confinue in operational existence for the foreseeabie future,

Meaqsurement convention
The financial stalements ore prepored on e historical cost basis excepl for mvestment property, investment property under
development, investments in subsichanes and interest rate swaps all of which ore stated at thei for value.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidicries ore those entities controlled by the Compony. Confrol exists when the Company has an axisting nght thot gives il the
current abilty 1o drect the relevant activities of the subsidiary, has exposure of nght to varable retums from its invotvernent in the
subsidicry and has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns. The financial statements of subsidiarias are included in the
consoliciated fingncial staterents from the date that control commences untl the date that control ceases.

Infra-group bakances and transactions, and any urreciised gains and losses arising from intra-group ransactions, such as property
diposals and management fees, are eliminated in praparing the consolidated financial statements. Unvrealised goins arising from
transactions with joint ventures are eliminated fo the extant of the Group's retained interest in the entify. Urvedlised losses are
ebminated in the same way s urrealised gains excep! where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net reglisable
value of curent assets of animpaimment in value of fixed assets.
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Section 1: Basis of preparation confinued

Impact of accounting standards and interpretations in Issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financicl statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yel effective and in some cases had nof yet been adopted by the EU:

IFRS 9 *Financial instruments’;

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’;

IFRS 14 'Leases’;

IFRS 2 {amendments) ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction”

I1AS 7 famendmentsj *Disclosuce initigtive*

1AS 12 [amendments) ‘Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

IERS 10 and 1AS 28 (amendments) *Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture':

YVVVVVVY

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the stondards listed above will have a material impact on the financial staterments
of the Group in fulure perods, except that IFRS 2 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments, IFRS 15
may have an impact on revenue recognition and ralated disclosures and IFRS 16 wil irpact the reatment of leases. Duing 2016 the:
Group continued to monitor the petential impact of these chonges. Beyond the infomalion above, # s not practicoble to provicde
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 2, IFRS 15 and IFRS 14 until g detolled review has been completed.

@ououenot aypiodior

Accouniing estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial siaterments requires management to exercisa judgemant in applying the Group's accounting policies.
It also requires the use of estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liobities, Income ond expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
recasonable under the crcumstances. the esults of which form the basis of maoking judgements about canying values of assets
and kabifties that are not readiy apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from fhese estimates.

Estimates ond assumptions are reviewed on an ongong basis with revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The areqs involving o higher degree of judgement of complexdty ore set out below ond are explained in more detail in the related
notas to the finoncial staternants.

=
z
3
W

The areas involving the most sensitive estimotes and assumptions that are significant to the financial statements are set out below and
in rore detail in the relkated nates:

> valugtion of investment property and invesiment property under development (note 3.1]
The occounting poficy descriptions set ou! the arecs where judgement heeds exercising, the most significant of which is Qs follows:

> chassification of joint venture vehicles {note 3.4)

UOHOUIONS 1O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2; Resulis for the year

This secHon focuses on the results ond pedarmance of the Group and provides a reconcilialion beltween the pimary
o stalements and EFRA performance measures. On the following pages you will ind disclosures sxplaining the Group’s

results lor the year, seagmental Informalion, taxallon, somings and net asset value per share.

The Group zes EPRA samings and NAY movement as key comparable indicalors across other real estate companies

In Europe.

Pedormance measures

e 6 xis
Eamings basic 22¢ £224.0m £351.9m
Earnings diuted 22c E227.7m £351.9m
Basic eamings per share (pence) 2.2¢ 101.3p 144.2p
Diuted eamings per share (pence) 2.2¢c 94.7p 150.3p
Net assets Basic 2.3c £1,451.4m £1,275.tm
Basic NAV per share (pence) 2.3d 453p 574p
EPRA performance medasures

Note 014 nis5
EPRA ecmings 2.2a £42.7m £41.3m
EPRA eamings per share (pence) 22¢c 28.4p 28.6p
Adjusted EPRA eamings 2.2a £561.3m £49.5m
Adjusted EPRA eamings per share [pence| 22c 21.7p 2Alp
EPRA NAV 23a £1,557.3m £1,374.4m
EPRA NAV pey share (pence) 2.d &ép 579p
EPRA NNNAY 2.3c £1,517.3m £1.330.2m
EPRA NNNAV per share [pence) 2.3d 630p 552p

2.1 Segmental information
The Board of Directors monitor the business akong two activity lines, Operations and Property. The reportable segments for tne years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are Opergtions and Property.

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property aclivities directly and thvough joint ventures with third porties. The joint ventures
are an integral part of each segment and are included in the information used by the Board to monitor the business.

The Group's properties are kocated exclusively in the United Kingdtom. The Group therefore has one geographical segment.

2.2 Eamings

EPRA eamings amends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuahion gains and losses such
that users of the financiak are able to see the extent to which dividend payments [dividend per share} ore underpinned by eamings
aring from purely operational aetivify, The reconciiation befween Profif athibuloble fo owners of fhe parent company and EPRA
eamings s available in note 2.2 {b).

Tha Operations segment monages renfol properfies, owned directly by the Group or by joint ventures. Ifs revenues are derived from
rental income and asset management fees eomed from joint ventures. The way in which the Operafions segment adds vakse to the
business i set out in the Operations review on pages 30 1o 33. The Operations segment is the main contributor to EPRA eamings and
EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key ndicators which are used by the Boord to monitor the Operations business.

The Board does not manage or monitor the Oparations segment through the balance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets ond liabilities is provided for the Operations segment.
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Section 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.2 Eomings continved
a) EPRA eamings
2018
Group on
BRA
WNITE Lharw of joint veniues banis
Tolal USAF LAY Totdl okl
tm [ tm tm im
Rental income 71 359 251 42.0 1521 Ia)
Property operating expenses {29.3) (10.7} {2.8) {13.5) (42.8) g
Net operaling incorne 478 26.2 23 485 63 d
@
Q
Managernant fees 208 (2.8) (4.0) (4.8) 140 2
Operating expenses (22.4) (0.4) (0.3} 0.7) {23.1) §
=3
I}
Opertating lease rentals” {(13.5) - - -~ (13.5) ®
Net financing costs {20.8) (5.7} (5.9} {11.4) (32.4)
Qperctions segment result 39 17.3 121 294 §1.3
Property segment result (1.0} - - - {1.0)
Unaliocated 1o segments 24 - - - 24
EPRA samings A3 172.3 1211 29.4 §2.7
Yield relaled USAF pedformance fees 1.4} - - - (1.4)
Adjusted EPRA aamings 31e 173 12 29.4 613

* Operafing lease rentals arse rom properties which the Group has sold and & now ledasing back. These properties were sold to generate inancing ond
ey now contribute to the Group's rental income and incur property operating expenses, Therefore the Group consider these ledse costs fo be o fom
of financing.

Included in the above is rental income of £18.5 milion and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relating fo sale and
leaseback properties.

The unoliocated fo segments bakince includes the fair value of share based payments of (£1.2 milion). UNITE Foundation of
[£1.0 milion). tees received frorm USAF relating to acquisifions £0.4 milion, net USAF performance fee of £6.5 milion. deferred tox
ot (£0.3 mi%on) and curent tax charges of [£2.0 million).

o]
Ed
2
=
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.2 Eamings continued
a) EMRA samings conlinued
215
Grous oh
EPRA
UNITE Share of ot veniures bexsis
fotal SaAr LSav Tolal Total
£m ) £m ) Em £m £m
Rental ncome 930 318 19.7 513 144.3
Properly operating expenses 128.2) (9.3 (2.3) {11.8) {39.8)
Net opecaling income 4.8 23 17.4 n7 104.5
Manogement fees 17.5 (2.2} {3.3) {5.5) 120
Opergling expenses {213} 0.3] (0.3} 0.6} {21.9)
810 128 13.8 33.6 94.6
Operaling lease rentals” {14.5) - - - (14.5)
Net financing costs |23.6) (5.6} (4.4] (10.0} {33.6}
Operctions segment resull ny 142 .4 236 465
Froparty segment resutt {1.8) - - - (1.8}
Undlocaled 1o segmenis 184 - - - 16.6
EPRA samings 7.7 142 9.4 236 61.3
Yield reialed USAF peformance fess {11.8) - - - (1.8
Adjusted EPRA eamings 259 142 7.4 234 49.5

* Opergting lease rentak anise from properties which the Groun has sold and 1s now leasing back. These properhes were sold to generate financing and
they now contribute to the Group's rental mcome and incur property openahng experses. Therefore the Group consider these kecte costs to be a form
of financing.

included in the above is rental income of £20.3 milion and property operating expenses of £4.6 mion relafing to sale and
fgasetack properties.

The unallocated to segments balance includes the fair vaiue of share based paymenits of (£2.9 milion), UNITE Foundation of
[£1,0 milion ), fees received from USAF relating 1o acquisitions £1.8 mifion, net USAF performance fee of £20.2 miflion, defered fax
of {£0.1 mifion] and current tax charges of (£1.4 mitlion),
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Section 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.2 Eamings conlinued

b) 1IFRS ceconcBiolion o EPRA eamings

EPRA eamings excludes movements relating o changes in values of mvestment properties and interest rate swaps, profits from the
disposal of properties ond property impaiments, which are inciuded in the profit reported under IFRS, EFRA eomings reconciie fo the
profit otributoble to owners of the parent cornpany s follows:

201 015

Note e £m

EPRA romings 22a 627 413
Net valuafion gains on investment property KN T2 1648
Property disposals and write downs 0.3 68
Share of joint venture gains on investrnent property d.4b 58.8 1827
Share of joint venture property disposals and wiite downs - 0.3
Maork fo market changes in nterest rate swaps* 43 - 0.6}
interest rate swop payments on ineffective hedges® - 1.2
Swap cancelation costs (rL.O) -
Share of joint venture swop conceliction costs 3.4b - 0.3}
Deferred tox refafing to nterest rate swap movement ~ 02}
Defarred tax reloting to properties 27.6 130.9)
Minority inferest share of reconciling iterms™ {1.8) (32}
Profft aifribulable to owners of the parent company 2240 351.¢

* Swops are designated as hedging instruments within hedge relationships conciuded to be effeciive for the year ended 31 Decerriser 014 and so arg
reponed within Other Compnehensive incorme for the vear. In the prior vear centain hedging reialionships were concluded 1o be ineffective ond hence
the far volue movemen of the swaps desgnated os hedging instruments in those relationships were recorded within the Income siaterment rather than
Cther comprehenive income.

** The minority interest share. or non-controling interest. anises as a result of the Company not owning 100%, of the share capliol of one of its subsdiories.
USAF (Feeder] Guemsey Lid. More datall s provided in note 3.4,

podal 2iBaoys
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.2 Eamings confinued

<) Eamings per share

The Basic EPS calculation is based on the eamings atiributable to the equity shareholdens of The Unite Group plc and the weighted
average number of shares which have been n ksue during the year. Basic EPS 5 adjusted in ine with EPRA guidelines in order to aliow
users to compare tha business perlformance of the Group with other listed reql estate companies in O consistent manner and to reflect
how the business is managed ond measwred on a day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA EPS pre yield related USAF performance fee
ore calcukated using EPRA eomings.

The calculations of basic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 5 as follows:

201 5
Mot tm £m

Eamings
Basic 240 351.9
Dited 227.7 asre
EPRA 22a 62.7 613
Adjusted EPRA (excluding yield related USAF perfomance fee) 22a 413 49.5
Weighled average number of shares (thousancds)
Basic n1.m3 214,304
Diutive potential ordinary shares [convertitle bond and share options) 19.315 19,877
Diluted 240,328 234,181
Eamings per share (pence)
Basic 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted 4.7p 150.3p
EPRA EPS 20.4p 28.5p
Adjusied EPRA EPS (exciuding yvield reiated USAF perlomnance fee) 27.7p 23.1p

Moverments in the weighted averoge number of shares have resutted from the issue of shares arising from the employee share based
payment schemes.

Exciuded from the poltential divtive shares (share options), in 2014, are 16,838 (2015: 191,000} options which do not affect the dilufed
waighted average numibar of shores,
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Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.3 Net assets

EPRA Net Asset Value per share makes adjustments 1o IFRS measures by principally removing some items that are not expected to
materiolise in nomal circumstances fike iterns of deferred tax and the fair value of financial derivatives. The reconciiiotion between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is available in note 2.3 (¢).

The Group’s Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segment’s revenue comprises
revenue from development management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segment adds value to the
business & sef out in the property review on pages 34 to 39,

O

o) EPRA net Gusels g

2016 2015 g

Wholly owned Share of Vs Tokal ‘Wholy owned Shaxe of Jvs Total o

m £m £m £m £ £m :8

Investment properties 1,061.¢ 1.023.2 20848 1,024.4 alos 1.835.2 g

Investment properties under development 184.4 7.2 191.3 1498 802 2300 3

Total property poriolio 1.246.2 1,030.4 22764 11742 a0 2,0652 §
Debt on properies (474.8) (3565.8) {841.6) 1475.,1) {304.6) (779.7)
Cash 2.7 231 45.8 270 220 490
Net dabt {432.1) (343.7) {775.8) {448.1) {2B2.4) {730.7)
Other assets/{liabiities) (14.8) (14.3) (28.9} (4.9) {18.3} {23.2)
EPRA net assets {pre converible) 799.5 6724 14708 7212 590.1 13113

Converiible bond* 854 - 85.4 83.1 - 83.1

EPRA nef assels 884.9 4724 1,557.3 304.3 590.1 1,394.4
Locn lo value 5% % 4R 38% 2% 5%

* Under the temns of the Convertible Bond, earty conversion of the debt into equity can be nggered if the share price frades over 1.3 times the
conversion pace for a period of time, see more detalin Nole 4 5b).

Q
g
g
3
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulfs for the year confinued

2.3 Net assets confinved
b) Movement in EPRA NAY during the year
Conftributions to EPRA NAV by each segment during the year is G5 follows:

2004 Group on
EPRA
UNITE Share of joint veniures bemis
Tord usar uav Tokal Tokal
em Im tm £m £m
Operations
Operafians segment result 3.y 17.3 121 294 8.3
Propesty
Rentat growth 358 148 120 268 62.6
Yiekd rmovement 49 72 7.5 14.7 19.4
Dsposals and acquisition gains 1.0 - - - 10
Investment property gains 417 220 195 415 832
Develbpment property gains 34.5 04 4.5 14.9 514
Pre-contract/other developrment costs {1.0) - - - (1.9
Tofaf property 712 22.4 3.0 564 1336
Unallocoted
Shares issued 0.3 0.3
Invesiment in joint ventures 33 73 (10.6) 3.3) -
Convertible bond 23 - - - 23
Dividends paid (34.2) - - - {342}
USAF performance fee 6.5 - - - &5
USAF property acquisition fee 04 - - - 04
Swap cancelation costs 1.0 - - - {1.0}
Other (6.3 - - - {8.3)
Total undllocated 28.7) 7.3 {10.6) (3.3 {32.0})
Tolal EPRA NAY mavement in the year 80.8 468 55 a3 1829
Total EPRA NAV Drought forward 804.3 5.3 204.8 590.1 13944
Total EPRA NAV conied forward 884.9 3521 3203 6724 1.557.3

The £5.3 milion charge that compxises the other balance within the unaliocated segment includes a tax charge of £2.3 miflon,
fair value of share options charge of £3.0 milion and £1.0 milkon for the UNITE Foundation,
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Section 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Net ossets continued
b} Movement in EPRA NAV during the yeor confinued

Groupon
EPRA
2015 UMTE Share of jont veniures Dok
Total USAF LSAV Total Total
£m £m £m £m £
Operalions
Operalions segment rasult 29 142 9.4 238 4.5
O
Property 3
Rental growtn 214 58 2.2 280 49.6 g
Yiekd movement 92.6 370 411 78.1 175.7 g
Disposats and acquisition costs (17.3) 0.1 0.2 0.3 N7.0 g
Investment property goins 101.9 499 63.5 104.4 208.3 g
Development property gains 457 - 36.1 341 818 %
Pre-contract/other development costs {1.8) - - - 1.8} [ 4
Total property 1458 42.9 12 XY 1425 288.3
Unolloccled
Shares ssued 112.6 - - - 112.6
Investment in joint ventures (57.8] 41.6 162 57.8 -
Convertible bond 83.1 - - - 83.}
Dividends paic 31.9) - - - (319
USAF performance fee 9.8 - - - 19.8
USAF property ocquisition fee 1.7 - - - 1.7
Swap losses and debt exit costs (i 03) - 10.3} {1.4}
Other (5.4) ~ - - (54)
Tofal unollocated 121.0 41.3 162 575 1785
Total EPRA NAY movemnent in the yeor 289.7 8.4 1252 236 5133
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 4.6 2069 1596 386.5 881.1
Total EPRA NAY carded lorword 804.3 3053 284.8 5%0.1 1,394.4

The £5.4 milion charge that comprises the other bakince within the unalocated segment includes a tax charge of £1.5 miion,
Far vale of share options charge of £2.% milhion and £1.0 miion for the UNITE Foundation.

Q
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.3 Net assels continved

<) keconcilalion to IFRS

To determine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS are cmended 10 exclude the mark to market valuafion of swaps, deferred fax
kgbilities ond to recognise ol properties at market valus.

The Group also manages NA YV using EPRA NNNAY, which adjusts EPRA NAY to include the far value of swaps and debt. Under EPRA
best practice guidefines this s considered 1o give stakenolders the most relevont comparable information on the cument far volue of
all the assets and hakilites in the Group.

The Net Assets reportad under IFRS reconcie to EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAY as folows:

216 18
_ Note m £m
Net assel value reported under IFRS 1.451.8 12753
Mark to market interest rate swaps 14.9 43
Deterred tax 54 319
EPRA NAY (pre converfible) 23a 1.471.% 1.3113
Convertitie bond a5.4 83.1
EPRA NAV 1.857.3 1,394.4
Mark fo market of fixed rate debt (1%.7) {28.0)
Merk to market inferest rate swaps {14.9) {4.3)
Deferred tax {5.4) {31.9)
EPRA NNNAY 1.817.3 13302

d} NAV per share

Basic NAY s based on the net assets attibutabie to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group pke and the number of shares in issue
at the end of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAV to monitor the performance of the Property segment on aday
to day basks.

0 015

Note im £m
Net assefs
Basic 2.3c 1.451.4 1.275.1
EPRA 230 15573 1,344
EPRA diluted ] 1,559.9 1.396.7
EPRA NNNAV (dilufed] 1,520.0 1.3325
Number of shares (thousands)
Basic 22258 222061
Convertible bond shares 18,424 18,124
Quitstanding shore options 782 1027
Diluted 241 456 241,202
Net asset volue per share (pence)
Basic 453p 574p
EPRA &47p 581p
EPRA {fully cited) s48p 579

EPRA NNNAV {fully diuted) 630p §52p
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Secfion 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.4. Revenue and cosls
The Group eoms revenue from the following activities:

2016 15
ofe tm £m

Rental income Opergtions segment 220 7.1 Ecly]
Management fees Operations segment 160 152
Devslopment fees Property sagment 10 19
Property sales Unalocated - 770
USAF pertormance fee Unallocated 7.0 22.4
2.1 2095

Impact of minority interest on management fees (0.4) 0.7}
Tolol revenue 120.7 208.8

The cost of sales included in the consokdated income stalement inciudes property operating expenses of £30.3 milkon (2015:
£28.9 miliion), operating lease rentak of £13.5 milion [2015; £14.5 millon). costs associated with development fees of £1.1 milion
{2013: £1.2 milion} and the camying value of property sales of £nil (2015: £49.6 milion).

adunWweAeS ginIodD

There were no disposals of properties held as frading propedies during 20146 and therefore no revenue was recognised. During 2015,
Stratford One. 0 ading asset. was soid 1o LSAY resulting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounting policies
Revenve s recognised on the following boses:

Rendd Income

Rental income from property leased out under operating leases (comprising direct lets to shudents and leases 1o Universities and
commercial tenants} is recognised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis aver the term of the lease. Lease incentives are
sometimes granted on commercial ynits; these are recognised as on integral port of the 1ofal rental income and spread over the
term of the lease.

Properfy soles
Income reiating to the sale of trading properties s recognised once contracts for sake have been unconditionally exchanged.

Manogement and perdormance fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives managerment fees in relafion o these services.
In addition, the Group is entitied to perfarmance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures cutperform certain benchmarks.
The Group receives an enhanced equity interest in the Vs as considerafion for the perforrnance fee.

Management and performance fees are recognised, in line with the management contracts, in the period 1o which they relate
as services are provided.

g
g
]
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the yeor confinued

2.5 Tax
The Group has not paid any coporation tax in the recent past due 1o the avoilabilty of capital alkwances, indexation and orought
forward losses. However, it does pay UK income tax on rental ncome that anses from investments held by offshore subsidiiaries.

Accouniing policles
The tax charge tor the year is recognised in the income stalement and the stalerment of comprehensive ncome, according lo the
accounting treatrment of the rekafed ransaction. The fax charge comprises both curent and deferred fax.

Current tax is the expected fax payable o reCeivable on the taxable Income or koss for tha year and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. The curent tox charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted ot the year end.

Deferred tax arses due to certoin tempaorary differences between the camying amounts of assets and Rabiities for financial reporting
purposas and those for taxation purposes. Temporary diferences rekating to investments in subsidianies and joint ventures are not
provided for to the extent that they will probobly not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferrad tax provided is based
on the expected manner of racfsation of settiement of the camying amount of assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group elected to become a REN with effect from 1 January 2017. As a RE, renfal grofits and gairs on disposal of
rvestment properties wil be axempt from corporation tax. As a result, no deferred tax provision has been recognised at the balance
sheet date in respect of property assels (revaluation and capitol alowances), and the provision for delered tax kiobiity on property
business assets of £41.1m at 31 December 2015 has been fuly releqased,

The Group's investments in unit trusts are not exempt from tax as a REIT and, where they remain within Ihe charge o tox, o deferred tax
kabikty hos been recognised as appropricte. The Group wil be able to utiise its tax adjusted losses against gains arsing on the disposal
of its investrnents in unit trusts. As the defarred tax liabilty on non-property business investments exceeds the assel refating to the losses,
the defemed tax asset in respect of the tax adjusted losses has been recognised in ful.

a) Tex - income stalement
The total taxafion chorge/(credit) in the income statement is analysed gs follows:

0% 015

£m £m

Incorme tax on UK rental ncome arking in non-UK companies 2.3 1.6
Cument tax charge 23 1.6
Reversal of deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assels {37.8) -
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 137 27.2

Effect of change in tax rale {1.2) 4.1)
Recognition of previously unrecognised asset - 80
Deferred iox charge/(credit) {27.3) 311
Tolal tux [credlt)/charge in income statement (25.0) 27

During the vear, the Group eiected to be taxed as a REIT with effect from 1 January 2017, As o result of this, the Group’s
investment properties are exempt from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheet. Accordingly the Group's
defered tox now only relates 1O non-property investments (being primorily its interests in joint ventures} and historic tax losses.
The removal of the deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets is comprised of credits of £29.2m in relation
‘o investment properties and £11.3m in resation 1o accelerated capital allowances, and a debit of £0.7m tor tax adjusted kosses
extinguished on conversion.

The movernent in defemed tax provided is shown in more detail in note 2.5 d} below.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year continued

2.5 Tax continued

) Tax - income stalement conlinued

In the income staterment, a tax credit of £25.0 millon arises on a profit before tax of £201.3 milion, the toxafion charge thaf woukd anise
at the standard rate of UK coporation 1ax s reconciéd to the actual tax charge os follows:

2014 8

£m £

Profit befors hax 2014 388.4
Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%) 403 78.7 o]
Release of defered tox bokances due to REIT conversion (37.8) - g
Property revaluations not subject to tax {20.4) (28.4) g
Effect of indexation on invesiments (21} (3.4} g
Effect of statutory tax reliefs (1.5} (2.9} 2
income due to Unite Foundation [1.0} -~ §
Effect of tox deduction ransfered 10 equity on share schemes 04 1 A
Rote ditterence on defered fax (1.2) {4.1) ©

Movement on unprovided defered tax asset - [0.6)

Recognition of previously un-recognised defered tax asset - (7.4}

Prior yedrs adjustments 0.3 G.3}

Total tax charge in income siatement {25.0) 7

The main rate of corporation tax reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apddl 2015, Accordingly, the reconciliotion apove has
been caicuigied ot a rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%).

Following the Group's election 1o become a REI {effective | January 2017}, deferred tax on its REIT property business assets is no
longer required. Accordingly. the Group has recognised a aredit of £39.8m in the Income Siatement reversing the provision for
deferred tax fsbilities and assets recognised at 31 December 2015 rekating to the revaiuation of invesiment properly. accelerated
capital alicwances, and property businass tax losses.

NN

=

|
H

Defered tax s an accounting adjustrent infended 1o reflect kax that the Group may have to pay in the future i certain events occur,
and is disfinct from the Group's cument tax charge (the kaher being the lax aciually payable to HM Revenue & Customs for the year).
Accordingly. the release of the deferred tax provision is an accounting onty adjustment, and does not result in the Group recewing a
tax credit or refund. The qurent tax chavge for the year anded 31 Decemnber 20146 is unaffected by the election to becorme a REIT.

b} Tax ~ other comprehensive income
Wwithin other comprehensive income @ fax charge totaling £1.6 milion (2015 £0.8 milion credit] hos been recognised representing
deferred tax. An gnalysis of this § included in the defered lax movement on page 126.

<) fax = shatement of changes in equity
Within the statement of changes in equity a fax charge totaling £0.1 rilion {2015: £0.8 milion credit) has been recognised
represenfing defered tax. An analysis of this is included in the deferred fax movement on page 124.

UCHDULIOM JOUO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.5 Tax continved

d) Tex - balance shest

The table below outlines the defered tax liobilities/(assets) that are recognised in the balance sheet, together with their moverments
in the yeor

2016

Al 31 Decermber {Cracited! Charpaa AY31 Decambes

. o1k Transiers nncome n equity a1

£mn £m im £m £m

Investments 14.7 - 25 - 172
Investment property (REIT property business assets) 41.1 - {41.1) - -
Property, plant and mochinery (0.3 - 0.2 - [OR))
Share schemes 1.8) - 0.1 0.5 (0.9}
Interest rate swaps (1.1 - 1.} -
Interest rate swaps relating to joint ventures {0.5) - 0.5 -
Tax value of conled forward iosses recognised [22.3) - 11.0 [0.4) {11.89)

Net tax (assels)/Fablitles 30.0 - {27.3) 1.7 44

2015

Al 3] December [Craditec Charged At 3! Becember

014 Transfers mincome: ineguily 5

£m £m £m Em £m

Investment property 17.3 - 16.7 - 340
Property, plant ond machinery 0.6} - 0.3 - 0.3

Investmenls in joint ventures 10.7 - 1.1 - 218
Share cptions 1.5) - 0.2) 0.1 (1.6}
Intevest rate swaps 0.3) - 0.2 (1.0 (1.1
Inferest rate swops rekating 1o joint ventures 0.5} - - 0.1 (0.5)
Tox value of camed forward losses recognised [24.4) - 30 6.9 [22,3)

Net tax (assets)/Mabliftes 0.6 - 3 (.n 30.0

A reduction in the UK corporation fax rate from 19% 1o 17% (effective 1 Aprl 2020} was substantively enacted on 26 September 2016,
This will reduce the Group’s future curent tax charge accordingly. The defered fax labilty at 31 December 2014 has been calculated
based on the rale at which it is expecied to reverse.

Following the Group's election to bacome a REIT, disposals of nvestment property will be exempt from tax and as a result no deferred
fox linibility has been recognised in rekation o these assets. The movemeant of £41,1min the yecr s made up of a combination of in
year movaement and reversal of the rermnaining provision. The Group’s investments in property unit frusts (being pramorily its inferests

in joint ventures) are not exerrpt from ax as o RET. Where the interest in joint ventures rernains subject 16 1ax, o defered tax fiabiity
has been recognised on the excess of the maorket value of these assets over their histonc tax base cost. At 31 December 2014 the
defered tax fiabilty in reiation lo these invesiments was £17.2m.

Company
Defered tax has not been recognised on temporary differences of £118.9 milkan (2015; £104.9 mifion) in respect of revaluation of
subsidianies and nvestment in joint ventures as it is probobile that the termporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

2.6 Audh fees
Disclosures in respect of feas paid to the auditors con be found in the Audit Committee Report, page 66.
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Seciion 3: Asset management

The Group holds ifs property portfollo directly and through ifs joint venlures. The performance of the propedy portfolio

o whaliver wholly cwned of I joint venfures ik the key focior thot drives net assef volue (NAV), one of the Group's key
periommance indicalors. The following pages provide disclosures about the Group's investmends in property assets
and joind venhures and thelr performcncae aver the yeor.

3.1 Wholly owned property assels
The Group's wholly owned property portfolio is held in two groups on the balance sheet ot the comying values detalied below.
In the Group's EPRA NAV, all these groups are shown at market value.

1) rvesimend propery (fixed assels)
These are assels that the Group intends 1o hald for 0 long pericd to eom rentalincome or capital oppraciction. The ossels are held
at for value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken 1o the income statement.

1) Investrent property under development (fixed assets)
These cre assets which are cumrently in the course of construction and which will be fransferred to Investiment property”
on campletion. The assets are hekd at far value in the bakance sheet with changes in for value taken to the ncome statemens.

Accounting policles
Properties held under operating leases are not ncluded in assets, but the fulure payments due in respect of these properties are
disclosed in hote 4.6a.

Investment property and investment property under development are held af for value.

Completed properties, properties under development and inventones are shown at the lower of cost and net realisabie volue.

Net reclisable value is the estimated seling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and seliing
expenses. Al costs drectly pssocioted with the purchose and construction of o property. ond ol subsequent quolifying expenditure
is capitalsed.

The recognition of acquisitions and disposals of invastment and ofher property occurs on unconditional exchange of confracts.

Bomowing costs are caphtalsed if they are directy atiributabie to the acquisition and construction of a property asset, Capitalsation
of borowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and bomowing costs are
being incuwed. Capitalisafion of borowing costs continues unt the assets are subsiantially ready for therr infended use but stops if
developmen! activities are suspended. If the resulting camyng amount of the asset exceeds il recoverable amount, an impasment
loss is recognised. The capitosation rate s amived at by reference to the actuat rate payable on borowings for development
purposes o, with regord 1o that part of the development cost financead out of general borowings, to the average rate. Durng the
vear the average capitalsation rafe used was 6.4% (2015 6.4%).

The vaksation of property assets involves significant judgement and changes to the core assumptions; market conditions, rentat
income, occcupancy and property management costs, could have a significant mpact on the canying value of these assets.

Yalyailon process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of valuation reports preparned by exlemal, independent
valyers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The fair values are based on market values as defined n
the RICS Approisal and Valuation Manual, issued by the Royal institution of Chartered Surveyars. CB Richard Eis Lid. Jones Lang
LaSalle Ltd and Meswrs Knight Frank, Chartered Surveyors weare the valuers in the years ending 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The valuations are based on both:

> Information provided by the Group such as cumrent rents, occupancy, aperafing costs, terms and conditions of keases and
nomingtion agreements, capital expendilure, etc. This information is derived from the Groyp's financial systems and is
subject to the Group's overall confrol enviconment.

> Assumptions and valuation models used by the valuers — the assumplions are typically market related, such as yield and
discount rates. Thess are based on their professional judgement and market observation,

The information provided to the valuers — and the assumptions ond the valuation modets used by the valuers - ore reviewed by the
Property Boord and the CFO. This includes a review of the far value movements over the year.

jiodal BeIoNS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management confinued

3.1 Wholly owned propeily assels confinued

The movements in the canying value of the Group's wholly owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 Decembear 2014
are shown in the table below. While completed property i held ot cost on the balance sheet, the Group manages the assets
based on ther market value (fair value). These properfies are included in EPRA NAV at ther far value, valued on the same basis
as for nvestment property and investment property under development. by external valuers. The fair vakee of the Group's wholly
owned properties of the yeur ended 31 Decernber 201 6 are ako shown below.

2018
Invastmont
mvesiment  propery under Compisted
Property development propery Toa

[ £m tm L
At 1 Januaty 2014 1.024.4 149.8 - 1,1742
Cost capitalised 7.4 101.7 - 1093
Interest capitalsed - s - 59
Transfer from investment property under development 346 (34.8) - -
Transfer from work in progress - 80 - 80
Disposals M0 (B4 - (34
Valuation gains L 409 a2 - 861 |
Vahsation kossas (7.9) (1.0 - &ﬂl
Nei vatuation gains 37.0 40.2 - 772
Canrying value ot 31 December 2014 1.051.4 184.4 - 1,244 .2
Valuation gains not recogrised under IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - - -
Brought forward - - - -
Mariket volue at 31 December 2014 1.061.6 18446 - 12442
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Seciion 3: Asset management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned properly assefs confinued
The movements in the camying value of the Group's wholy awned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 ond
the fair value of the Group's whoty owned property portfolio ot the yeor ended 31 December 2015 & O3 follows:

2015
rrvesiment
invesiment uncler & d
party darveh ¢ y Tokdl
tm m tm £m
At Jonuary 2015 850.5 4%.2 701 2698
Cost copitofised 86 97.4 - 106.0
Interest copitalised - 27 - 27
Transfer from iwvestment property under development 41.2 (41.2} - -
Transfer from work in progress - 1.0 - 1.0
Disposak - - {70.0) (70.1)
valuation goins 126.4 41.0 - 147.4 |
Valuation losses (2.3) 0.3 - (2.6) |
Net valuation gains 124.1 407 - 1648
Carrying value ot 31 Decembaer 2015 1,024.4 149.8 - 1,174.2
Valuation gains not recognised under IFRS but includied in EPRA
NAY
Brought forward - - 312 312
Disposals - - 312 (31.2)
Market volue of 31 December 2015 1.024.4 147.8 - 1.174.2

Included within investment properties at 31 December 20146 cre £31.5 milion (2015: £41.6 mition] of assets held under a kong leasehold
and £8.% million (2015: £10.5 miion) of assets held under short leasehold.

Tolal inlerest capitalised in invesiment and development properties at 31 December 2016 was £34.9 milion (2015; £35.4 mifion)
on a cumulative basis. Total intemal costs rekating to construchon and devalopment costs of Group properties amount fo £51.1 milion
af 31 December 2016 (2015: £49.6 milfonj on o cumulafive basis.

foir volue measuremend
Allinvestment and deveicpment properties are classified as Lavel 3 in the fair value hierarchy. While completed property and property
under ggvelopment arg hetd at cost in the baiance shaet, the Group discloses the fair value of these assets and includes therm at fair
value in EPRA NAY, Completed property and property under development far value measurements are categorised as Level 3in the
far vakse hierarchy and ther Iair value is measured wsing the same lechniques as for investment properties and investment properties
under development.

podas oiBasyons
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3; Asset management confinued
3.1 Wholly owned propery assets conlinued

204 1%
Class of asset £m £m
London - Rental properties 424.9 409 4
Maojor provinciat - Rentol properhes 4402 431
Other provincial - Renial properties 194.5 1839
Maijor provincial - Development properties 158.4 942
Other provincial — Development properfies 25.2 55.6
Mariet value 12462 1.174.2

The valuafion technique for investment properties s a discounted cash flow using the following inputs: nét rental income, estimated
fulwre costs, cccupancy and property management ¢osts.

Where the asset i keased to a university, the valuations ako reflect the length of the lease, the dllecation of maintenance
and insurance responsibitiies between the Group ond the ledsee. ond the market's generol pesception of the lessee’s
credit worthiness.

The resutting valuations are cross-checked against the initial yields and the capital vakre per bed derived from actual
market ransactions.

For development properties, the far value is usually caicuiated by estimating the fair valye of the compileted property
fusing the discounted cash How method) less estimated costs Yo completion.

Falr value using unobservable inputs (Level 3)

0% D15

£m £m

Opening far value 11742 1.001.0
Gains and losses recegnised in ncome statement 77.2 1648
Gaing and losses not recegnised on properties under developrment - -
Acquisitions - -
Capital expenditure 1241 109.7
Diposak {129.3) (101.3)

Closing foir valve 1,2456.2 1.174.2
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Secfion 3: Asset management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned property assels continved
Guandtitotive information about falr value measurements using uncbsetvable inputs (Level 3)

2016
Fal vae Vohxtiion Waighted
£m hectriue Unobervoble Inputs Range overape
London Discounted Net rental income (£ per week} £179 - €327 €249
-rental properties 4249 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 1% - 6% %
Discount rate (vield} (%} 4.5% -52% A4.7%
Mgjor provincial Discounted Net rental incorme (£ per week] £105-£152 £129 Q
—rental properties 4402 cash fiows Estimated Future rent (%) 1%=-7% 4% ]
Discount rate {yielkd) (%) 52% - 1.0% 5T% g_
Other provincial Okcountsd Nt remiglincome (£ per week) £95-£153 £126 a
—rantol properties 1965  cashflows Estimoted future rent (%) 2% - 8% 3% 2
Discountrate [vield) (%) 55%-120% 5% §
Major provincial Discounted  Estimated cost to complete (£m} £10.5m-£59.5m  £34.1m a
- development properties 1584 cash flows Estimated hsture rent {%} = % ®
Discount rate {yield) (%} 48% -5.9% 5.4%
Other provincial Discounted  Estimated costie complete {£m) £12.3m-£26.5m  £20.1m
- gevelopment properties 2.2 cash fows Estimated future rent (%) X% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%} 5.7% -~ 583 5.T%
Fole volue af 31 Decembaer 2015 12462
2015
Far vole Vigughon weighted
£m ftechrwue {inobsenvabie inputs Ronge average
London Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week) £190 - £326 £244
~rental properties 409.4 cash fiows Estimated future rent (%) 2%~ 4% 3%
Discount rate (yietd] (%) 4.6% - 52% 48%
Maijox provinciat Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week| £95-£146 £120
~rental properties 43).1 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 1%- 6% 4%
Discount rate {yieid) (%) 52%-70% 5.8%
Other provincial Discounted Net rantal income (£ per week] £77-£135 £117
-rental properties 1839 cash flows Estimated fulure rent (%] 2% - 6% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 58% — 4% 63%
Major provincial Discounted Estimated cost 1o complete (£m]  £9.4m - 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties 4.2 cash flows Estimated fubre rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.2%- 58% 5.6%
Other provincial Discounted  Esimated cost to complete {£m) £8.9m —£10.5m £10.m
- development properties 55.6 cosh flows Esfirmatad future rent (%) 3% I%
Discount rate (vield) [%) 5.8% - 59% 59%
Folr volue ot 31 December 2015 11742

A decrease in netrental incoma, estimated future rents or cocupancy will resuitin a decrease in the fair value, whereas o decrease in
the discount rate (yield) or the estimated costs to complete will result in an increcse in fair value. There are interelationships between
these rates as they ore partially determined by market rate conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfiion 3: Asset management confinved

3.2 Inventoiles
M6 ms
£m £m
Interests inland 0.8 0.9
Qther s10Cks 21 2.7
Invenlories 9 3.4

At both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Groue only has interests in one piece of land.

3.3 Other non-curent assels

Accounfing policles

Property. plont and equipment

Other than iond and buidings; property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulcted depreciation and imparment
losses (see below). Land and buidings are siated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, clant and
equipment manly comprise leasehold improvements at the Group's heod office and London office 0s wel s computer hordware
and software at these sites.

Depreciation is charged ta the incorme siatement on a straightdine bxasts over the estimated useful lives of items of property,
pkant and equipment. Freehcld land is not depreciated. The eslimated useful lives are as folows:

>  Leaseheld improvements Shorter ie of lease and economic e
>  Other assels 4-20 yeors
Intangible asels

Intangible assets predominately comprise intemally developed computer software which allows customers fo book onfine and
processes ransactions within the soles cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materiak, drect labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Expenditure on réseorch activities i recognised in the ncome statement as on expense
incurred, 2014: £NI, {2015; £Nil). The assets are omaised on a stright-ing basis over 4 to 7 years being the estimated useful lives
of the intangitke assets, from the date they are available for use. Amortisafion is charged to the incorme siatement within
opecrting expenses.

The Group's other non-curent assets can be analysed as follows:

16 15
Property, phant Inbangiie Propety . piont tenguibie:
ard aqeiprmant caewts Tokdl  ong equpment assols Toicd
£m tm tm £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At T January 18.% 331 520 148 25.4 40.2
Additions k8 | 82 1.3 4. 1.7 11.8
At 31 December no a3 43.3 189 331 520
Depreciation, amortisalion and
Impairment losses
At 1 January 9.4 181 275 82 14.7 249
Depreciation/armortisation charge
fox the year 1.6 28 44 12 1.4 24
impainmment® 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 2.6 2.9 335 9.4 18.1 27.5
Camying vakue at 1 Jonuary 9.5 15.0 4.5 6.6 87 153
Camying amount of 31 Dacember .4 204 2.8 2.5 150 24.5

* Being wiite down of laasehokd mprovements on vanahon of lease.

Intangible assets include £3.9 mikion (2015: £10.1 milion) of assets not being amortised as they are not yet ready for use. Property, plant
and equipment assels include £1.1m (2015: £ni} of assets not being depreciated as they are not ready for use. At 31 December 2016
fhe Group had capitol commitrments ameunting to £1 0 mifion relating 10 intangibke ossets ond £1 8m refafing to Property, Plant &
EqQuipment.
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Seclion 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 Invesimends in joint ventures (Group)

Accounting policies

Joint venhures org those entilies over whose aclivibies the Group hos joint confrol, establshed by confractuol ogreement. The
corsoliddated financial statements include joint venturas initiclly ot cost subsequentty increased or decreased by the Group's share of
lotal gains and losses of joint veniures on on equity bass. Intarest free joint venture investment loans are inifially recorded of far value
~ the difference between tha nominal amount and for value being freated as on nvestment in the joint venture. The implied
discount & amortised over the contracted life of the investment loan.

The Directors consider that the agreements integral to its joint ventures result in the Group having joint confrol; a significant degree
of judgement is exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the contractual arangements.

USAF and LSAV are jointly owned entities that are accounted for as joint ventures, Due to the complexity of the controctual
arangements ond Unite s role as manoger of the joint venfure vehicles, the assessment of joint control following changes o
accounting stondards (IFRS10) involves judgements around a number of significant factors. These foctors include how Unite as fund
raanager has the abilty fo drect relevant acfivities such as acquisitions, disposals, capifal expenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through delbt or eguity. This assaessment for USAF s complex because of the number of unitholders and how ther rights are
represented through an Agvisory Committee. For some of the activities it is not clear who has definitive control of the aclivities, in
some scenanos the Group con control, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the activities which are considered to have
the greatest impaoct on the retums of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing, it has been determined thot the Group and the
Advizory Committee has joint power in drecting these activities and that on balonce. it is oppropriate to account for USAF as a joint
venture. The assaessrment for LSAV s more straightforword because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venture and there
is therefore much clearer evidence thot contol over the key activities i shored by the two paorfies.

S0unuIEA0B aiiodicD

The Group has wo joint ventures:

Groyp's share
o asseiyfresults Legat entity w1 whech
Joint veniure X4 D15 Qggectve Pariner Group has interes)
The UNITE UK Student 24.6%"* [23.0%) invest and operote Consortium of investors UNITE UK Stugent
Accommodation Fund student accommeodation Accommodation Fund,
{USAF) throughout the UK a Jersey Unit Trust
Londion Student 50% (50%) Deveiop and operate GIC Redl Estate Pte, Lid  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommadation Venture student accommeodation in Realestate  Trust and LSAV (Hoidings|
{LSAV) London investment vehicle  Lid, incorporated in Jersey
of the Govemment
of Singopore

* Porl of the Group's Inferest s held Hrough a subsidiary. USAF [Feeder] Guemsey Lid. in which there is an exdemal investor. A minarity interesi therefore
oGCus on consoidaton of the Group's resulls representing the extemal investor's share of profits and assets relafing to s nvestmentin USAF,
The ordinary shareholders of The Unite Group pic are beneficiolly nterested in 23.0% (20135: 21 4%) of USAF.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures (Group) continued
o) Net assets and resulls of the joint venhures
The summcrised balonce sheets and results for the yeor, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as foliows:

2014
USAF LAY Tokal
Eon £m . tm

Gross Share Grom Share Groes Shove
Investment property 2287.% 542.1 1,009 5045 3.296.9 1,066.6
Cash 418 10.3 270 135 48.8 238
Debt {755.5) (185.6) (381.4) (190.7) (1.135.9) {3756.3)
swop labifties 07 0.2 7.1 (a5 (6.4 (33)
Other curent assels i5 0.8 08 04 43 1.2
Other curent kabiities (55.3) (.7 (14.8) (7.4 (70.1) (1%.1)
Net assets 15231 3761 6335 3s8 2,156.6 &92.9
Profit/{loss) for the yeor 184.7 46.3 7.0 48.5 261.7 4.8
EPRA net assefs 1,567.1 52 840.6 320.3 2,207.7 8724
2015

usaF L5AY Tokal
£m £m in

Gross Sham Cioss Share Gross Share
Investment property 20742 477.4 B94.4 4472 2.968.6 924.6
Ccash 36.6 8.4 28.4 14.2 650 2.6
Drebt {638.3) {146.9) 1336.0) (168.0 974.3) {314.9
Swaop kabilities - - 3.9} {2.0} 3.9) (2.0}
Other curment assets 1.9 05 1.0 a5 2.9 10
Other cument liabiifies [66.2) {11.6} (18.2 [9.1) {84.4) {20.7}
Net assets 1,4082 3278 S65.7 2828 1.973.9 610.6
Profit/{loss) for the yeor 2343 63.7 2351 1181 A470.4 181.8
EPRA net assets 1.408.2 305.3 5576 284.8 1.977.8 590.1

Net assefs ond profit for the year above inciude the minority interest, whereas EPRA net assets exclude the minority mterest.
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Secfion 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures (Group) confinued

b) Movement in camying value of the Group's invesimants in joinl venhxes

The camying value of the Group's investment in joint ventures has increased by £82.3 milion during the yeor ended 31 December 2016
(201 5: £226 8 milion}, resulting n an overal canying value of £672.9 milion {2015: £610.6 milion}. The fokowing table shows how the
ncrease has been achieved.

201 o5
Em £m

Recognised In ihe iIncome sialement:
Operations segment result 294 234 a
Minority interest share of Operations sagmenf result 12 .2 g
Management fee adjusiment related to trading with joint venture 54 4.1 3
Net revaluation gains 588 1527 -3
Deab! exit costs - - %
Loss on canceliafion of interest raite swaps - 0.3} §
Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 g
Other - 02 3

9438 1818
Recognised in equily:
Movement in effective hedges (1.4) 0.4
Other odjusiments to the canying value:
Profit adjustrnent related to trading with joint venture (6.3) {11.9)
Increase in loan 1o USAF ~- 0.5
Additional capital invested in USAF -~ 2.1 :
Performance fee units issued inUSAF 256 - =
Additional capital invested in LSAY - 233 o
USAF performance fee (w2 3.7 o
Distributions received (292) {229] ;
Increase/(decrease) in comying value 823 2248 =
Carrying vaiue at | Jonuary 4104 3838
Canying value ot 31 Decembaer 692.9 $10.6

|
]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Assel management confinved

3.4 invesiments In joint ventures (Group) continved

b} Moveament In camying vaiue of the Group's invesiments in joint ventures conlinued

In addition 1o its equity shares, ihe Group has ako provided interest free investment loans to some of the joint ventures. These were
primarily provided on the setfing up of the joint venture 1o provide copital 1o ocquire Investment praperfies. As a result of being
provided inferest free. the koans were discounted on recognition to reflect the fair volue, the unwinding of the discount i reflected
in the Group's finance income.

<) Tranmsactions with joint verihuwes

The Group acts as asset and property manoger for the joint ventures and receives managemenl fees in relation to these services.
In addition, the Group is entitled 10 performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform cerain benchmarks,
The Group receives on enhanced equity inferest in the joint veniures as consideration for the performance fee. The Group has
recognesed he following fees in its results for the year.

e w15

tm £m

USAF 128 8.5
(SAV 80 4.7
Asset ond property management fees® 2048 132
LSAV . 1.0 14
Development management fees 1.0 14
USAF performance fee a1 254
USAF acguisition fee 0.5 21
Invesiment managemant fees™ as 7.7
Tolal fees 30.3 2.3

* 2016 Asset and property management fees are shown gross. 2015 Asset ond property management fees are shown as reporied. net of frading
with jcant veritures. The equivialent gross fgures in 2015 wene £10 7m for USAF ond £6.4m for LSAV.

™ Included in the movement in EPRA NAV i a USAF performonce fee of £6.5 mition (2015: £20.2 milkon), This is the gross fee of £8.1 mikon (2015:
£25.6 milion) paid by USAF net of advisory fee costs of 8.5 milion 2015 £2.2 millom) and a £1.1 milion (2015: £3.2 miion) odfustrment related to
fradng with jomt ventures. The USAF performance fee will be seftied in unifs in The UNITE UK Student Accommaodation Fund rather than cash.
Futt detaits of the USAF performnance fees are set out in the Strategic Repart on pages L 1o 49,

Inciuded in share of jpint venture profit in the income statement is a thare of joint venture property management fee costs of

£1.6 rilfion (2015: £1.4 milion). On an EPRA bxsis these costs are deducted from the praperty management feas shown above, plus
an adjustment for the minorty interest of £0.4 millon (2015: £0.2 mon}. This resuits in the net fees included in the Operating Segment
result (note 220} of £14.0 mdlion [2015: £12.0 milion). Development management fees are included in the Property Segment result
[note 2.2a). Investment management feas are included within the unaliocoted to segments [note 2.2a],

includied in the movement in EPRA NAV is a USAF property acquisition fee of £0.4 mikon (2015: £1.7 milkon). This is the gross
fee af £0.5 milion (2015: £2.1 million] paid by USAF net of a £0.1 mllion (2015: £0.4 milion) adjustment related to rading with
joint ventures.

During the year the Group hos poid opercting leose rentais 1o USAT reketing to two properties under a salke ond leasebock
agreement ormounting to £2.2 milion {2015: £2.7 milion}.
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Section 3: Assel management confinued

3.4 investments in joint ventures (Group) continved
<) transactions with joint venhures conlinued

During the year the Group sold two properties to USAF for £88.4 miflion. Both properties were held on the balance sheet as investment
praperty under development within non-curent assets, the proceeds and canying value of the property are therelore recognised in
profit on disposal of propenty and the cash flows in investing activities. One property waos sold to LSAV in 2015. The profits relaling to

sakes and associated disposal costs and related cash flows are set out below:

Frolt and loss Profy and loss

w16 o5

LAY 154w

£m im

Included in property soles and other income (net of joint venhure troding odjustiment) - 77.2

Included in cost of sales - (70.1)
Prof on dispasal of property - 71
Profit atvd toss PYoft and loss

01 15

USAF USAF

gm £m

Incleded in profif on disposal of property (nef of joint venture froding adjustmentf 32 -
Profit on disposal of property 32 -
Cot ow Cath fow

018 5

LSAV LAV

£m £m

Proceeads - 843
Net cash flows included In cash flows from operaling activilies - 84.3
Canhllow Conh fow

2016 015

USAF USAF

tm m

Gross proceeds 88.4 -
Net cash flows included In cash flows from investing activiles 884 -

podas aBayons
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secftion 3; Asset management confinved
3.5 invesimenis in subsidiaries (Company}

Accouniing policles .
In the financial statements of the Company, nvestrments in subsidiaries are hekd at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Canying value of invesiment in subsidiaries
The movemnents in the Company's interest in unlisted subsidianes and joint ventures during the year are s foliows:

rvasiment i SUDsChanes
s x5

tm im
At 1 sonuory &48.3 4120
Revaluation 771 2363
A 31 December 725.4 448.3

The comying vale of investment in subsidicnes has been cak-ukated using the equity atiributabie 1o the owners of the parent
company from the consolidated bolance sheet adjusted for the far value of fixed rate loans and properties under devetopment. This
includes investment property, investment property under deveiopment and swaps at o fair volue colcukated by o thind party exper.
Allinvestment properties and nvestrment properties under daevelopment are classfied as Level 3 in the IFRS |3 fair value hierarchy and
have been discussed on poge 129. The fixed rote loans range between Level 1 and Level 2 in the iFRS 13 far value hierarchy and
have been discussed further on poge 129,

in addition to the equily investment in subsidiaras and joint ventures, the Company hos provided @ loan with inferest chargeable of
6.125% to LDC (Hokdings) pic. The camying value of the loan to LDC (Holdings) pic was £90.0 mition (2015: £20.0 milion). A further loon
of £89.9 milion (204 5: £89.9 mitkon} was provided to LDC (Hokings) pkc with interest chargeable at 5.0%.

A full st of the Company's subsidiaries and pint ventures can be found in note 7.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finances is development ond invesiment octivities through a mixture of refoined eamings, borawings ond
o aquily, The Group confinuously moniiors its financing arangements to manage s gearing.

interest rale swaps are used to manage ihe Group's risk lo fluctualions in inferest rate movements,

The following poges provide disclosures about ihe Group's lunding posilion, including borrowingn, gearing

ond hedging Instrumenis; lis exposure 1o mariet risiks; ond i3 capltol monagement policies.

4.1 Bomowings

Accounfing policies

interest bearing borowings are recognised initially ot fair value, less attributable fransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest beoring bomowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost ond redemption vaiue being recognised
in the income stalement over the period of the bomowings on an effeclive interest bass.

On 10 October 2013 the Group issued a convertible bond. The unsecured instrument pays a coupon of 2.5% until 10 October 2018.

In accordance with IFRS, the equily and debt components of the bond are accounted for separately and the for value of the debl
component has been determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-Convertible bond. As a result. £80.3 milion was
recognised os o ioblity in the balonce sheet on sue and the remainder of the proceeds, £9.6 milion, which represents the equity
componeant, was credited to reserves, The difference between the far value of the liability and the principal value is omortised
through the income statement ko the date ol issue. Issue costs of £2.0 milion were allocated between equity and debl and

the element redating to the debt component is being amortised over the life of the bond. The issue Costs apporfioned to equity

of £0.2 milion are not amortised.

The table below analyses the Group's bomowings which comprise bank and other loans by when they fal due for payment:

Group Compony
Wi 2015 200 DS
Canying Camng Camying Carying
valuy T value vale Fow volue volus o
&m #m £m £m m £m
Cunent

In one year or less, or on dermand 13 12 313 31.2 a1 1.4

MNon-current
In more than one year but not more than two yeoss 108.1 1322 1.5 1.4 853 -
In move than two years but not more than five years 126.3 1258 202 240.4 90.0 B30
In more fhan five years 239.1 2230 2401 2255 - 900
471.5 481.0 4438 4673 175.3 1730
Tolal borowings 4748 4682.2 475.1 498.5 175.4 174.4

In addition to the borowings curently drawn as shown above, the Group has avaicble undrerwn facilities of £245.0 milion
{2015; £174.0 milion). A further overdroft kacility of £10.0 milion (201 5: £10.0 mifion] i5 olso avaikable.

The camying vaiue of borowings is considered to be approximate to fak value, except for the Group's fxed rate loans camied

at £330.3 million {2015: £331.4 milion) and the convertible bond comied at £84.2 milion {2015: £84.3 milion), The convertible bond and
£90.0 milon (2015: £90.0 milion) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 1in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy and have a fair value
of £212.5 million (2015: £218.4 milion). The IFRS 13 Level cotegorisation redates 1o the extent the far value can be determined by
reference to comparable market vales. The classifications range from Level 1 where instrurments are quoted on an active market
through to Level 3 where the assumptions used fo ariva at far vaive do not have comparable market dota.

The remaining £240.3 milfon (2015: £241.4 milion} of the fixed rate kbans are classfied as Leve! 2 in the IFRS 13 fair vakse hisrarchy.
The fair value of these fixed rate loans has been calcuioted by a third party expert discounting estimated future cash fiows on
the bash of market expectations of future interest rates. The far value of these loans & £215.1 million (2015: £2246.4 milion).

Properties with a camying value of £998.0 million {2015: £993.4 million) have been pledged as security against the Group's drawn
down bomowings.

Hodas H6e,Dig
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 4: Funding continued

4.2 Interest rate swaps

The Group wses interest rate swaps 1o manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In accordance with the
Group's freasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue nterast rate swaps for rading purposes and only holds swaps which
ore considered to be commercially effective.

Accourfing policies
Interest rate swaps are recognised initiolly and subsequentty at fair value, with mark to market movements recognised in the income
statement unless cash flow hedge accounting s applied.

Hedge accounting, as defined in iFRS, & when the interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the
varability in cosh flows aftibutoble to the interest risk of borrowings. The effective portion of changes in far value of the interest rate
swop & recognied in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective porfion of
changas in the far value of the interest rale swap s recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group only opplies hedge
accounting when the hedge s expecied to be highly effective,

When o hedging insfrument or hedge relationship s terminated but the hedged fransaction s still expected to occur. the cumulative
gain or koss at that point remains in equity with any subsequant movements in far value taken to the income statement. If the
hedged fransaction is no longer probable, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity i recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

The tar vaive of interest rate swaps s the astimated amount that the Group woulkd receive or pay 1o terminate the swap at the
balonce sheet date, taking inte account curent interest rates and the curent credit worthiness of the swap countemarties.

The following tabile shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

214 218

£ £m

Current - -
Non-cument , . 23

Fair value of interest rate swaps 11.6 23

The far values of interest rate swaps have been calcukated by a third parly expert, discounting estimated futwe cash flows on the
basi of market expectations of fulure interast ratas, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.

4.3 Net financing cosis

Accounting policles
Net finoncing costs comprise interest payable on bomowings less interest receivable on funds invested (both calkculated using the
effective interest rate method) and gains and losses on hedging instruments thot are recognised in the income staterment.
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Section 4: Funding confinved

4.3 Net financing costs continued

2014 015

Recognised in the income sialement: tm £m

Finance income

- Interest income on deposit (0.1) {0.2)

Rnance income (0.1) (0.2)

Gross interest expense on kbans 4.8 253

interest capitalised ) o . 5.9 (271 8

Loan nterest and similar charges 20.9 226 ‘§

Chonges in mark to market of interest rate swops not accounted for as hedges - Q.6 8

Swap cancellation costs 1.0 = g

Finance cosh 219 232 3
=1

Nel financing cosfs 218 230 3

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment dett ot 31 December 2016 s 4.4% (2015; 4.7%). The overall average cost
of investment debt on an EPRA basis is 4.2% [2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Geoaring

The Group's adiusted gearing ratio s a key indicator thot the Group vses to manage its indebtedness. EPRA net asset value [NAY)
and adjusted net debt are used to calkculote adjusted gearing. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rate swaps
as shown belaw.

The Group's gedrng ratios are calcuiated as follows:

214 05
Nobe tm £m
Cash and cash equivalents 5.t 427 27.0
Currant bowowings 4.1 {1.3) {31.3)
Non-curent horowings 41 (472.5) [443.8)
Interest rate swaps labilities 4.2 (1.8} (2.3
Net dett per balance sheet (443.7} (450.4)
Mark to market of interest rate swaps .6 23
Adjusted nat debt (432.1) (448.1)
Reported net asset volue [atibutabie 1o owners of the porent company) 2.3¢ 14516 1.275.)
EPRA net asset value 23c 1,557.3 1.394.4
Q
Gearing §-
Basic (Net debt/Reported net asset value) 31% 5% g.
Adjusted gearing (Adjusted net debt/EPRA nef asset value| 8% 3% g
Gedring (EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value) 2.3a 0% 52% &F
Logn to value (EPRA net debt/Total propedty portfalio) 2.3a 4% 35% >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4. Funding confinved

4.5 Anancial risk factors

The Group's activifies expose it to a variety of financial rsks: market risks — primarily interest rate risk, credit risk and kquidity risk.
The Group's freasury policy focuses on the unpredictabiity of financial morkets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Details on credit risk can be foundin note 5.3.

a} Interast rate risk
interest rate nsk s the risk that the Group s impacted by significant changes in interest rates. Borowings ssued at or swapped !
to Roating rates expose the Group to interest rate risk. The Group's policy s separated into two main areas:

[} Development and refinancing
The Group had no specific development bomowings as at 31 December 2014 (2015: £nl).

The Group's principal exposure 1o interest rate fluctuations duing development rekates ta movernents inlonger term inlerast ratas
which affect the cmount of debt the property income is capabie of servicing at completion. Significant adverse movernents
undermine the Group's obiity fo release equity from its developments.

The Group wil continue to review the lavel of its hedging in the ight of tha curent low interest rate environment, The Group's palicy
aHows this exposure to be managed through the use of forward starting swaps.

) Madium and long-term finance

The Group holds its medium and long-term bank finance under both flooting and fixed rate arongements. The majority of this floating
debt is hedged thvough the use of interest rate swap agreements, atthough not all these amangements qualify for hedge accounting
under IAS 39. During 2015, the Group's policy guidefine has been {0 hedge 75% and ?5% of the Group's exposure for terms of
approximatety 2-10 years,

Al 31 December 2014, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group™s medium and long-term investment
borowing was held at fixed rates. Excluding the £92.9 milkon {201 5: £1.7 milion} of swops the fixed investrnent borowing is at an
average rate of 4.6% [2015: 4.6%) for an average period of 5 years [2015: 6 yeaors}, including these swaps the average rate s 4.2%
(2015: 4.6%).

The Group holds interest rate swaps at 31 December 2014 against £92.9 milion (2015: £1.7 milion) of the Group's bomowings.
The maturity of these swaps and the applicable interest rates ore as follows:

ms e 05 015

Neominal Appicable Nomnal Apphcable b
amount hedged Inferast rabes  crount hedgeod interest rales
e L3 im %
within one year - - - -
Between one and two yvears - - - -
Betwaen two and five yeors 47.6 1.8 - -
More than five years 45.3 22 1.7 5.6

During the yecx, if interest rates had increased/decreased by | %, pre-tax profit for the year would have been £0.6 milion
{201 5: £0.7 milkon) kower/higher,

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 5 the risk that the Groug will not be able 1o meet its financial obligations os they fall due. For development aclivities, the
Group hes a policy to inject substantially the full amount of equity required for eoch development before drawing debt against the
specific foclity for the development, The funding requirements of each scheme ore therefore subsfantialy Ting-fenced’ and secured
at the outset of works.

The table below analyses the Group's financial kabilties and interest rale swops info relevant maturity groupings based on the perod
remaining until the confroctual mafurity date. The amaounts disciosed in the tabie are the confraciual undicounted cash flaws
fincluding interest), so wil not alwoys reconcie with the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet,
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Section 4: Funding confinved
4.5 Financilal risk factors continued
b) Liquicity risk confinued
2016
Tolal conaciual Laes than Ratween Betwesn Crowe
canh ows 1yor 1 o 2 years 2and 5 yeors Sywons
tm £m £m tm tm
Bank and other ioans® 4902 1%.7 0.9 1728 2568
Convertible bonds 938 22 9.6 - -
Trade and other payables 1237 123.7 - - -
O
Interest rate swaps - effective 157 0.8 27 82 4.0 §
Interest rate swaps — ineffective - -~ - - - g
7234 1464 1352 181.0 240.8 fé’
b
2015 g
Totol confractu o5 than Betwean Betwisen Over %
e fiows Ty 1 and 2 years 2and 5yeas Syears
£m £rn & £m £m
Bank and other loans* 505.3 503 19.4 171.5 2679
Convertible bonds 96.1 22 22 91.7 -
Trade and other payables 115.5 1155 - - -
Interest rate swaps - eHective 21 03 Q.4 48 34
Interest rote swans - ineffective - = - - -
730.0 168.3 4 268.0 271.3

* The confrociual undiscaunted cashllows nchide £108 8m (2015 £1 14 3mj in redahon to the Company,

During 2013 the Group issued £89.9m of convertible bonds. The bonds have a maturity date of 10 October 2018, Under the tenms

of the Convertible Band, etrty conversion of the deb?t into equity can be figgered if the share price frades over 1.3 times the
conversion peice for a periad of time. As at 31 Decernbex 2016 this theeshold has not been tiggered. This threshold wos friggered as ot
31 December 2015; the bondholders had the ight to exercise untl 31 March 2014: no bondholders exercised during this penod. The
bonahoiders may exercise the Conversion Right in certain creumstances discussed above but this s contingent on a number of
factors ond theretore the bonds are shown to maturty in the above disclosure.

<) Covenart compliance

Many cf the Group's funding laciities camy covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headroom available on
an ongoing basis, At 31 December 2016, the Group was in full compliance with al of its borrowing covenants. The Group s able to
use availoble cash to reduce debt fo increase headroom on ifs loan to value [LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom position
& oufiined below and assumes that the Group is able fo use g mixfure of available cash and odd addifional property o banks’

security pools.

31 Dacamber 14 3' December 1015 g.
weighin weighted Weghied Waghled @
eovenant i covanant aciud =9

Loan fa value 74% 5% 74% 29%* g
intarast cover 1.5 4.04 1.47 4,47 3
Minimum net wordh - - £250m £1,394 ]

* Colcuiated on the boss that avolloble cosh s used 1o reduce debt and available property can be used as adctional secuity.
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Section 4: Funding confinued

4.5 Operdling leases
a) Payable

Accounting policies

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income staternent on a straight- ine basis over the term of the lease.

! Lease incentives received are recognised in the ncome staternent as an integrat part of the total lkease expense. Where the property
. Interest under an operating lease is Classified as on investment property, the property interest s accounted for as if it were a finance

| lease and the fair value model s used for the assel recognised.

The Group has a number of sale and leasebock properties which are accounted for as operating leases.

The total Future minimum lease rentals poyable under non-cancellabie operating eases fall due for repoyment gs follows:

2014 5

£m £m

Less than one yeor 138 147
Between one and five years 58.2 57.2
More than five yeors 171.0 154.5
Tolal 241.0 244

These keases primnarily relate to properties which the group has sokd and leased boack and on which rental income s eomed. The leases
are generally for periods between 13 and 18 years and subject to annual RPHbased rent review, The total operating lease expenditure
incumed during the yeor wos £15.3 milkon (2015: £15.4 milion).

b) Recetvable
The Group accounts for its tenancy conlracts offered to cormmercial and individual tenants as operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments recetvable under non-cancelioble operafing leases are as (ollows:

2016 a5

£m £m

Less than one year 71 854
Batween one and five years 1404 1243
More than five years 2472 267
Tolat 484.7 23564

4.7 Caphtal management
The capital sfructure of the Group consists of sharehoiders’ equity and adjusted net debt, including cash held on deposit. The Group's

equiy & onolysed into its various components in the Stolement of Changes in Equity. The components and calkculation of adjusted net
debt i set out in note 4.4, Capital s managed so as to confinue as a going concem and to promote the long-tenm success of the
business and to maintain sustainabie retums for shareholders and joint venture partners.

The Group uses a number of key metrics to manage its capital structure:

odjusted net detst (4.4}

adjusted gearing [4.4)

LTV (2.3q)

weighted average cost of investment debt (4.5aii)

vVYyy

In order to manage levels of adjusted gearing over the medium termn, the Group seeks 1o deliver NAY growth and to recycle capital
invested in lower performing assets nfo new assets and property developments. £132.4 milion of property assets were sold in 2014 and
we plan o sell on average of £150— £200 milion of property each yeor. The Group targets a yvield on cost of approximately 9%. The
Group does not commit to developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding to fulfil the full cost of the developrnent is secure.

The Board monitors the ability of the Group 1o pay dividends out of availeble cash and distibutable profits. The Operations Segment
generated cash of £61.3 milkon {2015 £40.8 million] during the year, thereby covering the proposed dividend of £40.0 mitlon. 1.5 fimes
{204 5: £33.2 million, 1.2 times).
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Secfion 4: Funding confinued
4.8 Equity
Accounting policies
Ordinary shares are clossified as equity. External costs directly attibuiable 1o the ksue of new shakes, other than on a business
combinalion, are shown as a deduction, nel of tax. in eguity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incured directly in connection
with a business combination are deducted fram the proceeds of the issue.
Tha Company's issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: o
I 20 R ﬁlL _ §
Shexe Crclinary Shae
Called up, ofiofted and fully paid ordinary shares of £0.25p °'m Premium shores Premwm %
each No. of shares tm £m Mo of shavers €m £m Q
At start of year 2.,930.911 55.5 493.3 201,541,803 50.4 3358 §
Share placing - - - 20,137.326 50 107.3 3
Sharg optionsexercised 116906 - 0.3 251,782 0.1 0.2 8
Atend of year 222,047,814 55.5 493.6 22193091 55.5 4933

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied 1o receive dividends as deckared from time to fime and are entitied to one vote per share
at meeatings of the Company. A# shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

4.9 Dividends

Accounting poficles
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.

During the vedr, the Compony deciored and poid an interim dividend of £13.2 milion - 6.0p per share [2015: £12.§ mikion - 5.5p per
share) and paid 6 £21.0 milion finot dividend — 9.5p per share reiating to the yeor ended 3t Decembber 2015 (2014; £19.8 millon -~ 9.0p
per shore).

After the year end, the Directors propased a final dividend per share of 12.0p {2015: 2.5p), bringing the total dividend per share kx the
yeor to 18,0p (2013: 15.0p). No provision has been made in relation to this dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital

This secfion focusesz on how the Group generales ik operating cash flows. Careful manogement of working caplict —‘

o s vital fo ensure that the Group can mest its rading and financing obligations within s ordinary operaling cycle.
On the following pages you will find disclosures around the Group's cash posliion and how cash is genercied rom
the Group's fradiing activiles, ond disclosures around rade receivables and payabiles.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policles

Cash and cash equivalents compise cash balances and call deposits. Cash eguivalents tre short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readiy convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue. Bonk overcrafts
that ara repayabie on demand and form an infegral port of the Group 's cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the pumase of the siaterment of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 20146 was £42.7 million (2015: £27.0 miliion],
At 31 December 20146 the Company had an overdraft of £0.1 milion [2015. overdraft £1.4 million).

The Group's cash balances include £13.4 milion (2015: £8.5 milion) whose use ot the balonce sheet date s resincied by funding
agreements to pay operating costs and loam interest retating to specific properties.

The Group generates cash from its operating octivities as follows:

Govp Compaay
% 015 20 M5
Noke £m £m Em £m
Profit/ [\ass) for the year 2264 as55.7 2138 2899
Adjustments for.
Depreciation and amortsation a3 a4 26 - -
Far volue of shore based payments 6.1 12 29 - -
Dividends receved - - (132.3) {55.7}
Change in value of nvestmeant property 31 (77.2) {164.8) - -
Change in value of investments 3.5 - - {71.1) {236.3)
Net finance costs 43 e 230 {0.3) {0.3)
{Profit) Ioss on disposal of investment property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b {74.8) [181.8) - -
Trading with joint venture adjustment 75 15.5 - -
Tax charge/(credit) 2.5q {25.0) 27 - -
Cash flows from operaling aclivilles before
changes in working capfial &3.9 8.4 (v X)) 2.4
{Increase)/decrease in frade and other receivaties (20.4) (39.6) - -
Decrease/(increqse) in completed property and property
under developrnent - 70.1 - -
Decreasa/(increass) n inventories a7 03 - -
increase/(decrease) in frade and other payables 7 28.1 34 0.3 02
Cash flows from operating activitles 70.3 120.8 (2.6) (22)

£25.4 milion of the brought forward frade and other receivables was settied in units in the USAT rather than cash.

Cash flows consist of the following segmentat cash inflows/{outfiows): Operations £61.3 milion [2015: £40.8 milion}, propetty

[E6.0 milion} {2015: [£48.3 milion)) and ynallocated (£39.6 milion) [2015: £6.9 milion). The unallecated amount includes Group
dividends {£34.2 milion) (203 5: {£31.9 milion)), tox payoabke of [£2.2 milion] {20135: (£0.3 milion}), investment in joint ventures {£ni)
{201 5: (£52.4 million}). contrbbutions to UNITE Foundation {£1.0 milhon) (2015: (£1.0 -nilion)} and amounts received from shares issued
£0.3 milion {2015: £812.6 rrilion).
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Secfion 5: Working capital continued
5.2 Trade and other receivables
Accounling poficies
Trade receivabies are nitially recognised at the amount invoiced 1o the customer (fair value) and subsequently at the amounts
considered recaoverable ({amortised cost]. Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will nod, in the opinion of
the Boord. be collected. These estimates inchede such factors as historicol expenence and indusiry specific foctors, A provision for
impaiment of trade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to collect al amounts
due, The camying value of rade receivabies is considerad fo approximate fair value.
g
Trade and other receivables can be analysed as follows, all frade and other receivables are curent. g
G Company o
04 05 014 015 4
m £m m £m i
Trade receivables 178 23 - - 2
Amounts due from group underiakings - - 685.4 639.3 §
Amagunts owed by joint ventures 3.3 41.7 - -
Prepayments ond accrued income 84 7.i - -
USAF performance fee 8.1 25.6 - -
Other recaivabies 73 6.3 - -
Trade and other receivables 779 83.0 686.4 639.3

The USAF performance fee will be settled in units in USAF.

The Group offers tenancy contracts to commercial (Universities and retall unit tenants) and individual tenants based on the acodemic
year. The Group monitors and manages the recoverabiity of its receivables based on the academic yeor to which the amounts
relate. Rental income is payable immediately, therefore Gl receivables relating 1o lenanis are past the payment due date.

2016
Ageing by aoademic yeor
Tolal 2117 2181 Pricr poext
£m £m £m m
Rental deblors
Commercial tenants (post due and impaired) 04 0.3 0.1 -~
Individuad tenants (post due and impaired;| 188 174 0.9 0.5
Prawvisions comied (1.4} (6.1} {0.8) (0.5}
Trade receivables 178 17.4 02 -
2015
Ageing By Gcadennc yedr o
Tolal 518 415 Bricy years F
£m Em £m __ &m T
Rental deblors %
Commescial tenants {past due and impaired) 08 0.8 [¢N] a.i g
Indiviclua! kenants [past due ond impared) s 19 07 1.0 5
Pravisions coried 2.1) [0.4) [0.4) (1.1} ?
Trade receivables 23 21 02 -

Armounts receivatie from joint ventures are not past due or mpaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital confinued

5.2 Trade and olher receivables confinued
Movements in the Group's provision for impaiment of rade receivables can be shown as folows:

W14 218

tm £

Al Jarnury 21 1.7
Impaimment charged to ncome statement in year a7 0.4
Receivables written off during the year [utiisation of provision) {1.4) -
Al 31 December 14 21

§.3 Crediil risk

Credit risk i the risk of financial loss 1o the Group it a customer or counterparty to a financial instument faik to meet its contractual
obiigations. It arses principally from the Group's cash balances, the Group's recetvables from custormers and joint ventures and loans
provided to the Group's joint venhues.

At the year end, the Group's exposure 10 credit risk was as folows:

s 018

pole £m £m

Cash 5.1 42.7 270
Trade receivables 52 178 23
Amounts due from joint ventures (excluding loans that are capital in nature) 52 343 41.7
248 710

a) Cash
The Group operates investrnent guidelines with respect to surplus cash. Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely based upon
long-term ratings published by credil rating agencies and credit default swap rates.

b) Trade receivables

The Group’s customers can be split into two groups — {i) students (individuals) and (i cormmercial organisations including Universities.
The Group's exposure fo credit sk is influenced by the choracteristics of each customer. The Group holds tenant depaosits of

£8.5 milion {2015: £7.8 million) as collateral against individual customers. Based on the Group's expenence and historical low level
of bad debt the Group views these receivables as recoverabla bakances with o low risk of default.

<) Joint ventures
Amaounis receivatile from joint ventures foll nto two categories - working capital balances and investrnent ioans, The Group has
strong warking relaficnships with its joint venture partners therefore view this as a low credit risk balance.

5.4 Trade and other payobles

Accouriing policies
Trade payables are initially recognised at the vale of the invoice received from a suppber {far value} and subsequently at amaortised

cost. The canying value of frade payables s considered approximate to fair vaiue.

Trade and other payables due within one year can be analysed as follows:

Goup Cormparny
2015 015 1Y 015
£m £m tm £m
Trade poyables 148 207 - -~
Retentions on construction confracts for properties 58 44 - -
amounts due to group undertakings - - 13 58.2
Other payobles and accrued expenses 45.8 52.5 o 2.7
Deferred income o o sk 377 - -
Trade ond other payables 123.7 155 43 60.9

Other payable and occrued axpenses include £8.5 rrilion {2015: £7.8 milion) in retation to custorner depaosits. These will be retumed ot
the end of the tenancy subject to the condition of the accommaodation and payment of any outstanding omounts. Deferred income
teiates lo rentalincome that has been caflected in aavance of it being recognised as revenue.
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Secfion 5: Working capiial confinved
5.5 Transactions with other group companies
During the year, the Company entered info various interest ree loans with its subsidianies, the aggregate of which are disclosed in
the cash flow staterment. in addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions pic for corporate costs of £2.5 milion
[2015: £2.3 milion).
As a result of these inlercomipany fransactions, the following amounts were due (to)/from the Company's subsidiones at the yecr end.
ms s
tm £m
Unite Holdings plc 70.7 103.7 o
LDC [Holdings) pic 6157 5346 o
UNITE Jersey bssuer Lid - 16 3
s}
Amoynts due from Group underdakings 685.4 4373 &
[te]
2
Unilodge Holding Lid - 158.2) b
Unilodge Holdings [UK) Lid - - §
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ltd o (1.3) - ]
Amounts due to Group undedaldngs (] {58.2}

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures. which ore disciosed in nofe 3.4c.

Tha Company has guaranteed £121 milfon of its subsidiary companias’ bomowings (2015: £121 milion). The guarantees have been
entered into in the normal course of business. A liobility would onty orise in the event of the subsidicry faling to fulflits contractual
abligatians. These guarantees are accounted for in accordance with [ERS 4.

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section é: Key management and employee benefits

F The Group’s grealest resource ks fis stall and # works hard fo develop and relain iis pecple. The remunerdation policies
i o In place are almed to beip recognise the conbibution that Unlfe"s peopie make fo the performance of the Group.

Over the next couple of pages, you will find disciosures on wages and solarles and share opfion schemes which allow
l employess of the Group to take an equity interest in the Group.

6.1 Staff numbers and costs
The averoge number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the yeor. analysed by category, was as follows:

Mumber of ermpioyses
014 15
Managerial and administrative kri 330
Site operatives 881 758
1.204 1,088

The oggregate payrol costs of these persons were as follows:
2018 5
tm £
Wwages and salanies 380 375
Social security costs LY 3.5
USAF perfomance fee bonus - 2.2
Pension Costs 12 1.1
Fair value of share based payments 1.2 29
44.0 472

The woges and sakxies costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 milkon [2015: £0.7 milion).

Full detais of the USAF perfornance fees are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 10 49,

—— e — — o —

Accounting policles
The Group operales a defined confribution pension scheme. Chiigations for contributions to defined conribution pension pians are
recognised as an expensa in the income sialermen? as incured.

6.2 Key management personnel

The Board considers that the key management persannel within the Group cre those appointed to the Board. As such, the
remunergtion of key management personnel is contaned within the Rernuneration Report on pages B4 to 95, which covers
the requirements of schedule 5 of the relevant legisiation.
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Section é: Key management and empioyee benefits confinued
4.3 Share based compensation

A transaction is classified as a share based fransaction where the Group receives sefvices from employees and pays for these
in shawes or sirmilar equity instruments. The Group operates @ number of share based compensation schemes allowing employees
o acquire shares in the Company.

q} Share schemes
The Group operates the following schermes:

Executive share option scheme - ‘The Approved Scheme’ } Details can be found in the Directors’
Exacufive share option scheme - ‘The Unapproved Scheme’ Rermuneration Report
Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Save As You Eom Scheme [SAYE) Open to employees, vesting periods of three
to five years, service condition

Employee Share Ownership Trust [ESOT) Used to award part of Directors’ and senior
managers’ bonuses N shores, vest affer three
yeors’ confinued service

b) Ouistanding share options
The table belaw summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and ther average
exefcise price:

Nurmber of Nurnber of
Weighled avesage opliont  yeonied overage optons
exmCive price {Wvouscnds) BreTCas price {thousonds)
0% 204 215 015
QOutstanding at 1 January £0.9 2,174 £0.57 3818
Forfeited during the year £0.860 {495} £1.13 {148}
Execcised during the yeor £0.40 (345) £0.35 (1.337)
Granted duing the year £1.47 479 £1.76 6841
Outstanding at 3] December £1.52 2113 209 2774
Exercisabie at 3! Decembar £0.58 109

For those options exercised in the year, the average share price dunng 2014 was £6.24 (2015: £5.93).

For those options sl outstanding, the range of exercise prices al the year end was Op 1o 647p (2015: Op to 584p) and the weighted
average remaining coniractuat ffe of these options was 1.6 years (2015: 0.4 years).

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the "Employee Share Ownershio Trust” 10 meet the obligations of the LTIP and
executive banys schamae. The purchases are shown as *Own shares acquired' in relained eomings. As at 31 December 2014 the
number of shares held by the ESOT was 1,145,592 (2015: 1,589.285).

The accounting is in accordance with the ralevant standards. No further information is given as the amounts for share based
payments are immoterial,

Secfion 7: Events after the balance sheet date
In the nommal cowrse of business subsequent 1o the year end the Group completed one acquisifion transaction on ¢ February 2017
and one disposal ransactions on 17 February 2017 within Investment Property and Investment Property held within its investment in

joint ventures,

Hode: aiBeaus

a2unuIRroB Spouodio
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 8: Company subsidiaries and Joint ventures

In occordance with Section 409 of the Companias Act 2006, a full st of subsidiaries and equity accounted investments as at
31 December 2016 is disclosad below. Unless otherwise stated, the Group's ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares,
units or porinership capital held indirectly by Unite Group pic. No subsidiary undertakings have been excluded from the consolidation,

Registered office: The Core, 40 St Thornas Streef, Bristol, BS1 6JX

Branchirm Limitad

Atzhardinge Properias Lirded

Hremax Urrded (031282941
Infodorth Lmect (043342

(DT [AIB Warehouse] Limfled

LDC {Akcot Road) Limted

LDC {Bruned Housa) Lamdedt 09740628~

LDC (Camden Coul Lagsehokd] Lirried (5] 406201
\DXC (Camden Court} Limitad (05082471

LDC (Capited Crheas Nomires o, 1) Limtsd

LDC (Caprtal Ches Nommmea no, 2) Lmued!

LIDC (Capstal Crives Normnes ik 31 Limsad

LOC (Capxtal Cies Nominee na, 4] Lrmied

LDC {Capxtal Cities) Urmited

LDC [Causewayend) Lmited

LDC (Chantry Cout Lsawshokd) Urrexd (051402587
LDC [Chaucer Howse) Limshex? (0F856020 =

LD (Conshtubon Sheet) Limited 092109981

DT (Corsruchon Twa] Limied (DM347268)™

LD (Curzon Shmet} Limitac! (045282711

LDC |Ewro Loan} Lermded

LDC [Far Gasford)) Lamdted (091501491

LDXC (Ferry Lane 2 GF 3Lmvedl

LDC (Femy Lane 2) GP 4 Limileq)

LOC (Fenty Lane 2} Hodings umited

LDC (Anonce) irmited

LDC {Frogmons Street] Lrnted™ (03387535)™

LDC [Greetharn Skeet) Limsted

LDC (Gt Suffolk 5t Lmitedd Portnarthip

LDC (Gt Suffok St Manngement Livilad Parnensnip
LD (Gt Suffok Sheet] GP1 Limdted

LDC (G Suitolk Street) GP2 Limited

LDC (G Suitalk Shreet] Hoidngs Limited

LDC [t Suffolk Simet) Managemernt GF1 Limiteg
LDC (G Sultole Street) Manogement GP2 Lmited
WDC (Hampion Skeet] lmited [04415998)™

UDC (Hihead) Lmited

LOC (Hoidings) PLC*

LBC {Holoway Rood 3] Umited (063338091

LDC {irmpencl Whef) Limited (045414781

LDC fintemational House) Limitedt {E0131352)™
LDC [Jarmes Watson Leasehokd) Lrmited (03926026}
LDC ifetham kand) Umbed 051 52229)*

WDC (Lecsahold Al imited (00669331

LDC {Lemsehold B) Urited [05978242)™

LOC Loughboroughs Limited

LBC (Mognet Cour Lacsehold) Limded [05140255)™
LDC {Mansfield) GP1 Lirited

DG (Marshekd] GP2 Lmited

LDC (Mansfiekd) GP3 Lrmited (07434025

LDC {Mmansheld] GP4 umited (07434017

LDC Mansield) Urnited

LGC tManshekt) Lenvted Partnership

LDC (Marsield) Manogemant Lmited Partnershup
LDC {Morgoret Ruie Freehokd) Lrmited [(36641255)
1D {Margeret Rule Leasehok) Lmvted (06641261~
LDEC {pennium View| Limited [OFE90375)™

LDE (MIF Portfohic)] Limited

LDC {Nam Sireet) GP 3 Limated

LDC {Narn Sreet) GP 4 Linded

DG {Mam Streel) Holdngs Limitedt

LG (Newgote] Limied ([DB375869)"

LDC | Maw Wakefaid) mied

LDC (O Hospitey) bimided (DP702143)

LDC [Cutord Rocd Boumemaouing Limided 04407300

LDC (Piwines) Lomted (05918624)™

LOC {Parttoko 100) Lmded

LIX [Porticlio 20) Lrmvted

LOC (Portfcdo Fve Momenea] Limiked

LDC {Portioho Five) Levwted 1060795311

LDC [Portiaho Four Lmted

DG {Portioss One) urmted

LDC (Portioso Ten) Limded 068775171

LOG (Perttolo) Lrmited

LDZ (Progect 110} usted

LDC {Progect 111} bimited

LDC (Rodmarsh Road) Limited

LDC {Skeihome| Limidec (08981324

LDC {Smutiiiekd) Linited {0X373095)

LOC {5t Leeonands) Lemited {C8BYSEX0)™

LDC {5t Pancres way) GP Lirsted

LDC (5 Pancres Way) GP2 Umited

LEC {51 Panares Wary) GP3 Limdted

LOC {81 Pancros Way| GP4 Limeted

LDC {5t Pancres way) Hoktings Umited

LD {5t Poncres way) Umited Partnersnip

LDC (St Pancras Way) Management bmited Porinersh
WELDC (St Vincenis) Livited (10218310)= 227

LDC (Swindon IHS) Livated

LDC (ara Howse) Lmsed 092141 77)™

LDC (hurso Strest] GP1 Limied 01199022)™

LDC iThurso Street) GP2 Unted {071 98979)~

LDC {Thurso Street) GPA Limited {07434001)™

LD {Thurso Strwert) GP4 Limited {074341337™

LDC {Thurso Street] umited Parinersi

L {Thursa Street] Management Umited Parinestwp

LDC {ventura) Lrmited

1DC {vemncn Squarel Limied {05444 132

LOC (wilkarm: Moms 1) umited

LDC Coptal Cikes Two (G} mited

Leadmil Road GP Limied {04018429)

Lennen Stuchos Sludent Accommedation Lmited

Partnership

LSAV [Angel Lane| GPQA Lmiled

LSAY [Angef Lane| GF4 Urmiled

LSaV (Stratfond) GP3 urmided

LSAV (Stratfond) GP4 Lirmded

LSAY [Wembiey} GP3 Limted

LSAV {Wembley} GP4 Limited

LSAV Rent Colachon Limted

LSAV [Stopeton) GPI Umited

LSaV (Stapkaton) GP¢ Lmited

Retyard GP Uruted [04016485]™

Ratyord Student Accommaodafion Limited Parfrersnip

Stardesart Lined

The UNITE Founaanon

Urvle ACcommodaticn Manapement 16 Limiad
070613141

Unids Accommodahon Managenent 17 mited
(081 6328

Urete Accommodahon Manogament *8 bmited
{0B32R484) ™

Unile Accomimodiahon Managemen! 19 Limied
Urvle Accommodianan Management 2 Liratad
Unite: Accommodation Management 20 Limited
Ur e Accommodafion Management 4 Lmvtad
{06486 225

Uniie Accormumodaton Managemant 6 Lmined
Uniie Acoommodation Managemant 8 im_fed
Unde Accommodanon Management 9 Lirmrted
06190863

Ui ACCOmMadaion Maragemen! amited
Urwte Accommpdation Monogement Ong
Hundred pUmiied

UMIE Capital Cives HadINgs Unniad

UNITE Consiruchon (Anget Lone) imiled (0B792704)=
UNITE Consiruchan (Slopheton) Lirmited (05022406
UNBE Corsiruchon (Wemnbiey| Lirded (0023474}
Unte Anonce imted™ @4353305)™

UNITE Anance One |ACCOI modchon Senicas) Lmited
Unvie Fnance One (Holdngs) trmaed (04318207,
UNITE Anarce One [Property| Limited {043X3331)*
LINITE FM Limeed (068075621

UNTE For Sucxass mited

Unde Hokdngss |1d® (031 48448)*

UMITE Hormes Limied (051 40242)

Linde Integrated Soutions pic

Unde London umited

Urite Moduiar Solutions Limded

Unite Rent Collacton Urriied (05989351

LIMITE Studen? Liang Lirmvect

USAF GP No 11 Management Lmited

USAF LP Lirnrled (0584087.0™

USAF Monagarment GP No |4 Limiled

USAF Management GF No.1 § Lrmiked

USAF Manogemert GP No.1 4 Lirmihec

USAF Management GE NG 17 Limited

USAF Nomenee No 7 Lrmied

USAF Mormines iNo 7A Urvled

Zervth (Two} Limied

USAF Monogement 10 Lmded

USAF Monagemert || Limded

USAF Monagemert |2 Lmsted

USAF Managemen |4 Lmied

USAF Managerment 18 Lmiled

USAF Marogement 6 timied

USAF Managemant 8 Unmiied

USAF Monogerment Jmited

LDC {Fery Lane 2} GP | umited {S0.00%)

LDC {Farry Lane 2; GP 2 mited [S0.00%)

LDC {Ferry Lane 2 Limied Parinership (SO CO%)
LDC [Farry Lona 2) Managemen! Lirmited Sartneanhics
[S000°%)

LDC {smaffor; GP) irnded (S0.00%)
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Section 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures confinued

Registered office: The Core. 40 5t Thomas Sheel, Bidstol, BS1 4JX

O [Skatford) GP2 Lmited (S0.00%}

LDC (Siratford) Lmided Partnershe {S0.00%)

LSav fangel Lane) GP ) Limited [S0.00%)

LSAY {Angel Lane) GP2 Limited (S0.00%)

LSAV [Angel Lane} Limited Partnershep {SC.00%)

LSAV {Angal Lane} MOnagermnent Limiled Parmnensp
(S0.00%)

LSAY {Stopiekan] Leried Porthershiss 150 00%)

LSAY {Stapleion} Managemen Umited Partnershnip
15000%)

L5AY (Skratford) mManagemeant Limited Partnarshp
15000%)

LSAV (Wembley) GP | Lrmied (S0.00%)

LSAV {wemibley) GP2 Lrmiled (50,00%)

LSAY {iwambiey) Lrmied Partnarship [5000%]

L5AV (wemnblay)] Managermen|! emtled Pamnersid
150.00%)

LSAV(Stapeton) GP1 Lrmited {S0.00%}

LSAV(Siapketon] GP2 Lrnied {50.00%)

Unite Coprial Cines Ureted Partnership (50 00%)

Urwte Capral Cifies Two Limited Parinerstw (50 00%)
USAF Management Mo 15 Lmited Partnershp (23.20%}
USAF Management No, 16 Limited Partnearshp (23.20%)
USAF MOnagerment Na. |/ Uimitedt Parinernshep (23.20%)
USAF No 15 Umiled Portnersni [23.20%)

Fioer! villoge Siudent Accommaedcikaton Limited
Partnershigy (22.90%)

Fersier Hal Limed Parinership (22.90%)

Sludent Hall Nommess Linvled (22.90%)

USAF Management No 18 LP (222.90%)

USAF NG 1 Lrmvledl Partnershep (22.90%)

USAF No 10 Limited Partnersnipd [22.90%,)

LSAF Ne 1) Lrmatad Parinersing [22.90%)

LSAF e || Manogement Limeted Partnershp [22.90%]
USAF No 12 iimited Partnarshyp (22 90%)

USAF NG 14 limited Partnershp [22.00%)

USAF Np 14 Mcnagerment Limied Partnershin (22 0%
USAF No 18 Lrnited Partnership [22.90%%)

USAF No & Umited fortnershep {22.90%)

USAF Mo 8 Unniked Parnerstup (22 90%)

LDC {Nom Strsef) Limiled Parnershe (72.80%)

LOC ko Sieeet) Manogemend Limited Parinershic
[2280%)

Fbert Vikige GF Uned (14 40%}
Forsher Hal GFP Lrmiled (14 40%)

LDC (Newn Shreed) GP 1 Limited [14.40%)

LOC (Naam Street] GP 2 Umited {1 4.40%)

USAF Financs R Lmoed (14.40%)

USAF GP No | Lrmaact {14, 40%)

USAF GP No 10 Limvted (1 4.40%)

USAF GP No 1| Lrreted (14.40%}

USAF GP No 12 Umiled {14.40%]

USAF GP Na | 4 Urnitedt {14 40%)}

USAF GP No 4 Limited {14.40%)

USAF GP No 15 bimvtea {1 4 40K}

USAF GF Na 18 Lrvte (1 4.40%)

USAF GP NG 5 Lirwtad { | 4.40%)

USAF GP NO 6 Limetad (1 4.40%)

USAF GP No 8Umsed [14.40%)

Regisiered office: 13 Caslie Street, St Heller, Jersey, JE4 SUT

LEC Gt Suifok St Ut Tust

LDC {Manseld) Unit Trust

LDC (St Pancros Way) Unit Tnust
LDC (Thurso Street) Unit Tust

LSAV (Jarsay mManoger) Limiied
Unite {Copliar Cites) Jarsey Limeed
UNAE Jorsey Isuer Limited™

USAF sasay invesMmenls mrted
USAF Jersey Manoger miled

LDC Ferry Lane 2) Und Trust [S0.00%)
LDC (Swatlord) Unit “rust (SO.O0%)
LSAV [Holdirgs) Limted (S30.00%)
LSAV [Trustes) Limited (50.00%)
SAV Urwt Trust (SC.00%)

Registered office: Third Floor, Lo Plalderde Chambars, §t Peler Pord, Guemsey, GY1 1TWG

USAF Feeoer GuelTsty Lirmwed (45.20%]
USAF | 5F Und Trust {23.2%)

Registered office: Third Floor, Borclays House, Victoria Skeet, Dougios, Isie of Man, M1 ULE

Leadimd Roads Student Accommodofion Und Trist
Lannon Studics Student Accommodahon Urt Trust

USAF Porffolo 15 Linit Trusf [23.20%)
USAF Poettolo 16 Lnit Trust {23.20%)

The Roiyard Student Accommodation Unit rus

Regisiered office: Saltre Court, 20 Castie Terace. Edinburgh, EHT 2 EN

LSAV {5P) Limdedt {50 CO%)

* Held directly by the Company,

LSAY (Property Holcngs) LP {5000%)

USAF Hoidings B Limdterd (14.40%)

USAF Hoklings C Lrmited {14.40%)

USAF Holcngs FLmited 14 40%)

USAF Hotdings G Limited {14.40%)

USAF Holdings H Limiterd {14,47%)

USAF Holdngs | imibed {14 40%)

USAF Holings J Limited {1 4.40%|

USAF Holdings Lrmited {1 4,40%)

USAF Normwnae No 1 Limided ({14.40%)
USAF Nominge ko 10 Lmited (14 7%
USAF Norminee o 104 Limded {14.40%)
USAF Norminee No 11 mided {14 40%,)
USAF Nominee No 1 1A Lmited {14 40%)
USAF Norminde No 12 omled (14 40%;
USAF uormines No £24 Limited | 14.40%)
USAF Norminas No 14 Lrrekerd! (14,40%)
USAF Nomnee No 1 4a Limied (14.40%)
USAF Nominae No 18 Lmited {1 4 40%)
USAF Nomunes No 18A Limided {14 40%)
USAF Nominee No | & Limited] (14.40%)
USAF Nominee NO 5 Limited [14 40%)
USAF Nominse N 54 Lirded {14,40%)
USAF Norminee NG & Linded (14.40%)
USAF Nomiree No &4 Limied {14.40%)
USAF Nomnee No 8 Lrmeted (14.40%}
USAF Nominee No 8A umied (14.40%)
USAF RCC Limybecd {14 40%}

UNTE Copltesl Cities tine Trust (50.00%)
Shoaent Hals Long Lease | Und Trust {22 90%)
USAF Portfoko 18 Lint Trust (22909

LDC (Naim St} Urst Trust (22.80%)

UMNITE UK Siudert Accommodahon Fund (14.40%)

USAF Porifollo 17 Unif Trust (23, 20%)

Filbar Sree! Sudent Accommosahon Und Trus {22,70%)

* The company is exampt fom the requirements of the Cormpanies Act relating 1o the oudit of indvidual accounts by vitue of s479A for the inancial year

ended 31 December 2016,
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FINANCIAL RECORD

F 205 D14 013 2012
EPRA NAY per share [pancsj &6 579 434 a2 350
IFRS NAV per sharne [pence) 453 574 416 370 21
EPRA net assets [Em) 1,587 1,394 a8t 482 567
IFRS net asseats {(Em) 1,452 1,275 843 &53 814
Managed portfoiio value (£m) 4,327 3827 2951 2,736 24688
LTV adjusted see-through (%) k- 35% 43% AT% 52%
EPRA eornings (£m} 41 30 B 3 16
Profit{loss) befors tax {£m) 201 B8 108 77 126
EPRA earnings per share [pence} 28 o 17 18 10
Adjusted EPRA earnings per share (pence) m ) 17 14 10
IFRS eamings per share [pencej 0N 1éd 53 46 78
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group plc {the Company] will be held at 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay, Bristol BS1 6GD at 10.00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resolutions 1 1o 14 o5
ardinary resolutions and Resolutions 15 to 18 as special resolutions.

Ordinary Resoiutions

Annual Report and Accounts

1. Toreceive the audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the yeor ended 31 December 20146 logether with the Directors’
Report, the Strategic Report and the auditors' report on those annual accounts {the annuai Report and Accounts).

Diractors’ Ramuneration Reporf
2. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Report and Accounts,

Fingl dividend
3. Todeciore a final dividend for the year ended 31 Decembier 2016 of 12.0p per ordinary share payabie on 19 May 2017
to shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of businass on 21 April 2017,

Re-election of Directors
4. Tore-eleci Mr P M White as a Director of the Company.

5 Tore-elect MrR 5 Smith as a Director of the Company.
6. Tore-slect Mr ) ) Lister as g Director of the Company.
7. Tore-elect MrR C Simpson as a Director of the Comparty.
8. Tone-elect Mrs M Walstenholme as a Director of the Company.
9. Tore-elect Sir Tim Wilson as a Director of the Company.
10. Tore-elect Mr A Jones as a Director of the Company.
1. Tora-elect Ms Elizabeth McMeikan as a Director of the Company.
AydHors
12, To reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts are loid before the Company.
13. To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.
Authority fo allot shares
14. That, in substitution for any equivalent cuthorities and powers granted to the Directors prior 1o the passing of this Resclution, the
Direciors be and are generally and uncondifionally outhorised pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 [the Act):
{al To exercise all powers of the Company fo aliot shares in the Company, and grant rights fo subscribe for or to convert any
security into shares of the Company {such shares, and rights 1o subscribe for or to convert any security info shares of the
Cornpany being “relevant securities"), up 1o an aggregate nominal armount of £18,505.732 (representing approximately one
third of the nominal value of the ssued ordinary share copial of the Comparny as gt 22 Feloruary 2017), such omount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under poragroph (b} below in excess of £18,505.732
{b] To aliot equity securities (as defined in Section 560(1) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal arount of £37,011,464
{representing approximately two-thinds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017 (such amount 1o be reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under
paragraph (a) above) in connection with an offer by way of rights issue:
{l  Infavour of holders of omdinary shares in the copital of the Compony. where the equity securities respectively

ottributable to the interests of such halders are proportionate (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number
of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company hekd by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

il To hoiders of any other equity securities as requirad by the rights of thase securnifies or as the Directors otherwise
consider necessary

but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Direclors may deem necessary or expedient fo deal with

in relation to treasury shares, fractonal entitlements or legal, regulkatory or practical problemns arising under the iaws or
requirements of any averseas territory or by virtue of shares being represented by depository receipis or the requirements
of ony relevant regukaiory bady or stock exchange or any other matter whatscever. provided that this authority shall expire
{uniless previously renewed, vanad, extended or revoked by the Company in generalmeeting) on the date falling 15 months
From the passing of thisresalution o, #f earliar, af the conclusion of the next Annuol Genero! Meeting of the Compony e be
hela foliowing the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or
enter into an agreament which woukd or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors
may cllot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this cuthority had not expred.

Special Resolutions
Authority to disapply pee-emplion rights

i5,

That if Resolution 14 {Authority to aliot shares) s passed, the Board be authorised to allot eguity securities {as defined in the
Companies Act 2006] for cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or 1o sell ordinary shares held by the Company
as treasury sharas for cash as if Section 541 of the Companies Act 2004 did not apply 1o ony such aliotment or sale, such
authority to be limited:

(o] To cllatments for rights issues and other pre-emptive issues. and

() Tothe allotment of equity securities or sale of reasury shores {otherwise than under porogroph (o] obove) up to o norminot
ameount of £2,775,859 (this amaount reprasenting not more than 5% of the ssued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017).

such authority to expire ai the end of the next Annual General Maeting of the Company [or, if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fiftleen months ofter the date of this meeting} but, in each case, prior to its expiry
the Campany rmay make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities to be allotted {ond
treasury thaores 1o e sold) after the aulhority expires and the Board may atiot equity securities [and sell treasury shares) under
arny such offer or agreement as if the authority hod not expired.

. That if Resokstion T4 [Authority to allof shares) is passed, fhe Board be authorised in additicn o any authority gronted under

Resclution 15 to alkot equity securities (a3 defined in the Companies Act 2006) for cash under the outhority given by that
resolution and/or to sall ordinary shares held by the Company os treasury shares for cash as if Section 58! of the Companies
Act 2004 did nat apply Yo any such aliotment or sale. such authority to be:

fa] Umited to the allotment of equity securities or sale of freasury shares up to a nominal amount of £2,775,859 {this amount
rapresenting not more thon 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Campany as ot 22 February 2017); ond

[b) Used only for the putpeses of financing (ar refinancing, if the authority is ta be used within six months after the original
transaction) a transaction which the Board of the Company determines o be an acquisition or ather capital investmant
of a kind contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group priof to the dafe of this notice,

such authority 10 expire ot the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {or. if earlier. at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fileen months after the date of 1his meeting) but, in ecch case. prior ta its expiry
the Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities to be alloted {ond
freasury shares 1o be sold) afier the authority expires and the Board may allot equity securities jana sell treasury shares) under
ony such offer or agreement as if the authority had not expired.
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To amend Article %4 (Directors’ fees) of the Articles of Asscciation +
17, That, Article 94 [Directors' fees] of the Articies of Association be amanded by delefing the existing Articie 94 and replacing it
with the following:
“The Directors {other thon allernate Directors) shall be entitied to receive by way of fees for their services as Directors such sum
as the Board may from time to time determine {not exceeding £750,000 per annum in aggregate or such other sym as the
Company in general meeting shall from time 1o time determine). Such sum [unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted) shall be divided among the Directors in such proportions and in such manner as the Board may
determine or in default of such determination, equally (except that in such event any Director holding office for tess thon the
whole of the reievant period in respect of which the fees are paid shall only rank in such division in proportion ta the fime during
such period for which he hoids office}. Any fees payabie pursuant to this Articie shall be distinct from any solary, remuneration
or othar amounts payoble to a Director pursyant to any other provisions of these Articles and sholl accrue from day 1o day.”
O
Notice of general meaetings Q
18. THAT, a general meeting other Ihan an Annual General Meating, may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ nofice. g
8y order of the Board g
Christopher Szpojnarowicz §
Company Secretary 1
22 February 2017 2
Registered office:
The Core
40 51 Thomaos Sire-ef Bristol
BSY &)X

Registered in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

Notes
I

A member of the Company who wishes 1o attend the meefing in person shouid arive at 3 Rivergate, Tempie Quay., Bristol BS1
6G0 in good lime before the meeding, which will commence at 10.00am In order fo goin admittance to the meeting, members
may be requined o produce their attendance card, which is attached 1o the form of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their identity.

A member of the Company who is entited to otlend, speck ond vote at the meeting and who is unable or does not wish 1o
atlend the meeting is enlitled to appoint a proxy to axercise all or any of his/her rights 1o attend and 10 speck and voie on his/
her behaff ot the meeting. A member may appeint mare than one proxy pravided aach proxy s oppointed to exercise rights
atiached io ditferent shares [so a member must have more than cne shore to be able lo cppoint rmore thon one proxy). A
proxy need no! be @ member of the Company but must attend the meeting lo rapresent his/her appointing member, Appointing
a proxy will not prevent o mernber from attending in person and voting a$ the meeting although voting in person at the meeting
will terminate a member's proxy appointment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member
by whom the proxy is cppointed. A form of proxy which moy be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice. You can only oppoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes to the

proxy form,

To be valid, eny form of proxy. and the origingi or duly certified copy of the power of attorney or other authority {if any) under
which it is signed or authenticated, must be received by hand or by post ot Computershare investar Services plc, The Pavilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS99 42, no kater than 10.000m on ? May 2017

CREST members who wish 1o appoint g proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appeoiniment service may do so
for the meeting and any adjiournment(s) thereof by following the procedures described in the CREST manual, CREST personal
memoers or other CREST sponsored mermbars, and those CREST members who have appeinted a voting service provider,
should refer fo their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able o fake Ihe appropriate action on ther bahalf,

in order for @ proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST 1o be valid, the appropriate CREST message {0 CREST
Proxy Instruciion) must be property authenticated in accordance with Eurociear UK & Iretand Lirnited's [Eurocieaor) specifications,
and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The massage, regardless of
whether it canstitutes the appointment of a proxy, the revocotion of a proxy or is an amendment fo the instruction givento a
praviousty appointad proxy must, in oraer fo be a valid, be fransmitted so as to be received by the Company's agent (CREST ID
3RAS50) by tha latest time for receipt of praxy appointments specified in note 3 above. For this purpose., the time of receipt will
be taken to be the time (as defermined by the imestamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host] from which
the Company's agent is able 10 retrieve the message by enquiry 1o CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this lime
any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST shouid bae communicated fo the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, wheare applicabie, their CREST sponsors or voling sarvice providers, should note that Euroctear does not
make available special procedures in CREST for any particuiar message. Normal system timings and imitations wilt, iherefore.,
apply in relation to the input of CREST praxy instructions, It is the respansidility of the CREST member concermned to take (o, if the
CREST member is 0 CREST persanci member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider, fo procure
that nis/ner CREST sponsor or voling service provider(s} iakels)) such oction as shall be necessary 16 ensure inat a message is
fransmitted by means of the CREST systern by any paniicular lime. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsofs or voting service providers are refermed, in particulor, o those sections of the CREST monual conceming
practical imitations of tha CREST systern and timings.

The Company may treat as invaiid a CREST proxy instruction in the circumstances set outin Regulation 35{5) [c) of the Uncertificaled
Securities Regulotions 2001 {os amended).

If you would like to submit your proxy vote via the internet, you can do so by cccessing our regisirar's website
(www.eproxyappointment.comy, You will require the control number, your unique PIN (which will expire at the end of the voling
period) and your Shareholder Reference Number {SRN). printed on the proxy card, in order 10 log in and submit your proxy vote
elecironically. You can access this site rom any internet enabled PC. If you submit your proxy via the internet it should reach the
registror by 10.00am on 9 May 2017. Shouid you compiete your praxy formn electronically and then posi a hard copy. the form
thaot arrives kast will be countad to the exclusion of instructians received earlier. whether slectronic or posted. Please refer to 1he
terms and conditions of the service on the website.

In the case of joint holders of shares, where more than one of the jaint holders purports to appoint a proxy, onty the appointment
submitied by the most senior holder will be acceptad. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company's register of members in respect of the joint halding [the fist-named being the most senior).

. §f you submit more than ane valid proxy appointment in respect of the same shares, the appointment received last before the

latest time for the receipt of proxies will 1oke precedence.
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Any person to whom this notice has been sent who is o person nominated under Section 146 of the Act to enjoy information
rights (a Nominated Person) may, under on agreement batwean him/her and the shareholder by whom he/fshe was nominaied,
have aright 1o be appointed (or to have someone else appointed] as a proxy for the meeting. If a Nominated Person has no
such proxy appointment right or does not wish o exercite it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right fo give
instructions o the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.

The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies above does not Spply to Nominated
Persons. Thesa rights can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to Part 13 of the Companies Act 20046 and Regulation 41 of the Uncerfificated Securities Regulations 200! {as amended},
the Campany specifies that only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 5.00pm on ¢ May
2017 [or, if the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the timed fixed for the adjourmned meeting) shall be entitied 1o attend or
vote ot the meeling in respec! of the number of shares registered in their nome ot thot fime. In each cose, changes to the
register of members of the Company after such time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of ony person to attend

or vole af the meeting.

As at 22 February 2017 (being the last practicoble busingss day prior io the publication of this Notics), the Company's issued
share capital comprised 222,068,787 ordinary shares carrying one vote each at a generat meeting of the Company. No
ordinary shares wene heid in treasury and therefone the totai vating rights in the Company as at 22 February 2017 are 222.068.787.

You may not use any electronic address provided aither in this notice of meeting or any reiated documents fincluding the proxy
form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

Members attending the meeting have the right to ask and, subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause o be
answered, any quasfions relafing fo the business being dea't with at the meefing.

The fallowing information is ovailable at www.unite-group.co.uk (1) the matters set out in this notice of Annual General Meefing:
{2) the total numbers of shares in the Company in respect of which members are entitied to exercise voiing rights of the meeting:
(3} the totals of the voting rights that members are enfitied to exercise at the meeting: and (4) members’ statements, members’
resolutions and members’ matters of business received by the Company after the date on which notice of the meeting

was given,

it is possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may
be required 10 publish on a website a statement satting out any matter relating to: (o} the audit of the Company's accounts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the qudit) that are to be laid before the meeting: or (b} any circumstance
connected with an guditor of the Compaony ceasing o hold office since the pravious meeting ot which annual accounts and
reports were laki in accordance with Section 437 of the Act. The Company may not require the members requesting any such
website pubiicotion 10 poy its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required to
place a statement on a website under Section 527 of the Act, it must forwand the statement to the Company's auditor not later
than the time when it makes the sialement avoilable on the website. The business which may be deolt with of the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required under Section 527 of the Act to publish on a website.

In accordance with Section 338 of the Act, a member or members of the Compony may {provided that the criteria set out

in Section 338(3] of the Act are met} requira the Company to give o members notice of a resolution which may property

be moved and is intended o be moved ot the meeting, provided that: {a] the vesolution must not be. if passed. ineffective
{whether by reason of inconsislency with any enactment or the Company's constitution or otherwise); and (b} the resoiution
must not be defamatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it must identify the resciution of which nofice is fo be given and must
be received by the Company not iater than six weeks before the meeting, or, Flater, the time at which notice is given of the
meeting. (in fhe foregoing sentence, the ferms “hard copy form”. "electronic form’ and ‘avthenficaled’ bear their respective
meanings set out in the Act in relafion to o communication. of a document or information sent or supplied, o a company.}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20.

21,

22,

In accordance with Section 338A of the Act, a member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out

in Section 3384 (3j of the Act are mel) requine the Company fo include in the business fo be dealt with at the meeting a matter
{other than a proposed resolution) which may properly be included in the business of the meefing, provided that the matteris
noi deformatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or efectronic form, must identify the
matter 1o be included in the businets, must ba cccompanied by o statemant setting out the grounds for the request, must be
authenticoted by the person or persons making it and must be received by the Compaoany not kater than six weeks before the
rmeeling, o, if later, he fime at which notice is given of the Annual General Meefing. [In the foregoing sentence, the terms *hard
copy form', ‘electonic form' and ‘authenticoted” bear the respective meanings set out in the Act in relation fo a communication,
or a document or information sent or supplied, fo o compony.)

A member that is @ company or ather arganisation not having a physical presence cannot atlend in person but can cppaint
someone 1o represent it. This can be done in one of two ways: either by the appointment of @ proxy {0s described in the notes
above] or of a corponate reprasentative. Members considering the appaintment of a corponate representative shouid check
their own legal position, the Company's articles of association and the relevant provisions of the Act.

The following documents are available for inspection a the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours
on any weekday (Saturday. Sunday or public hotidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the conclusion of the meating
and will oo be avaikable for inspection af the place of the meeting from 2.15am on the day of the meeting until its conclusion:
lo) copies of the Executive Directors' service controcts with the Company and any of its subsidiary undertakings: ond

(o) letters of appointment of the Non -Executive Directors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA earnings

Adjusted EPRA earnings ore prepaned
on the bosis of EPRA eomings excluding
the yieid related element of the USAF
periorrmaonce fee.

Adjusted EPRA eamings per share
The eamings per share based on adjusted
EPRA eamings.

Adjusted net debt

The Group's debt, net of cash and
unamortised debt raising costs, excluding
the mark to market of interest rates swaps.

Adjusted net debt

to propertty asseis

The adjusted net debi as a percantage
of the value of Unite properties.

Basis points (BPS)

A basis point is a term used to describe a
smoll percentage, usuaily in the context
of change. and equates to 0.01%.

Direct jet

Properties where shori-hold fenancy
cgreements are made drectly between
Unite and the student.

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA earnings before
charging interast, tax. depreciation ond
amartisation. The profit number is used to
calculate the ratio 1o net det.

EPRA earnings

EPRA e0mings are prepored on the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the Ewropeon Public Rec| Estate
Association. This excludes movemenis
relating to changes in values of
investment properties and interest rate
swaps and the related tax gffects.

EPRA earnings per share
The eamings per share based on
EPRA eamings.

EPRA NAV

EPRA NAV is prapared on the basis
recornmended for regl estate companies
by EFRA, the European Public Reol Estate
Association, This includes all propery

at market value but excludes the mark

to market of interes! rote swops. Thisis
recommended by EPRA as @ measure

of net assets.

EPRA net asset value per share
The diluted NAV per share figure based
on EPRA NAYV.

EPRA NNNAV

As EPRA NAV but includes both debt

and interest rate swaps caried at market
value. This s recommmended by EPRA

as a 'spol’ foir value net assel measure.

Financing casts

Gross financing costs nat of interest
capitalised into developrments and
inferest raceived on deposits.

Gross assef value

The Group's wholly owned property
portfolio together with the share of the
Joint Ventures property portiolic.

Gross financing cosis

This includes all interest paid by the
Group, including thoss copitolised
into developments and operating
lease rentals.

itincludes all receipts and payments
under interest rale swaps whether they
are gffective or ineffective under IFRS
as aconomicalty they all hedge interest
rate exposures.

interest cover ratio (ICR)

Tha interest cover ratio is the income
generaled by a property as a muttipke of
the interest charge on the debt secured
an the property.
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Lease

Propertias which are leased to Universities
for anumber of years and have no Unite
management presence.

LSAV

The London Student Accommadation
Joint Venture (LSAV) is o joint venture
between Unite and GIC, alongside UCC.
Both Unite and GIC have a 50% stake
and LSAV has the some maturity date as
UCC {September 2022). It is the primary
vehicle through which Unife undertakes
development activity in London and it
has right of frsf refusal over Unite’s London
development pipeline projects until such
time as its capital investment targets are
met. LSAV and UCC were merged during
2012 end the new combined enfity is
referred 16 Qs LSAV,

Net debi: EBITDA

The Group see-thraugh debt, net of cash
and unamortised debt rolsing costs and
excluding mark to market of intarest rote
Swops as a proportion of EBITDA.

Net inllial yield (NIY or yield)

The net operating income generated by
a property expressed C5 o percentage
of Its value, taking into account national
acquisition costs.

Net operaling income (NOI)

The rental income from rental properties
less those operating costs directly reiated
1o the property. therefore excluding
central averhead.

Net rental growth

The annual growth in net operating
income (measured on g like-for-like
basis, ie excluding impact of compietion
and disposals).

Hoda Sifejong
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GLOSSARY

CONTINUED

Nominatlons Total income from |
Properties where Universities have managed portfolio

entered info a contract to guaranfee This measure indicates the overallscake |
occupancy. The Universities naminate of the property portfolio thot the Group
studenis fo five in the building and Unite manages. It comprises rentol and related i
enters into shart-hokd tenancies with income. totalling £304.9 miflion from |
the students. properties owned by Unite and its

co-invesiment vehicles.
Non-core assets
Properties that do not fitwith the Group's | The Group’s share of this gross income
long-tarm investment siratagy because of | is shawn in note 2.2(a).

their location or their size,

USAF/THE FUND
Overhead efficiency The Unite UK Student Accommodation
The Group's overhead efficiency Fund [USAF} is Europe’s largest fund that
measures $hows operating expenses, purety focuses on completed income
net of management feas, as a proportion | providing student accommodation
of the gross asset volue. investment assets. The fund is an
open-ended infinite fife vehicie which
Rentel properiies nos unique buying occess to Unite's
Investment and completed properties development pipeline. Unite acts as

whose construction has heen completed fund' monqge_r for the fund as well as
anc are used by the Operafions segment | owhing a significant minority stake,
to generate net porifolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Properties that hove been soid to

a third party invastor then leased
back to the Company. Unite is also
respornsible for the management of
these assets on beholf of the owner,

See-through

See-through refers to the Group's wholly
owned assets or kabilities in addition

to the share of the joint veniuras (USAF
and LSAV) assets or liabilitics.
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COMPANY INFORMATION
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Unlle Group Executive Team
Richard $mith
Chief Executive Cfficer

Joe Uster
Chief Financial Officer

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Registered Office
The Core

40 5t Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 &JX

Registered Number in Engiand
3199160

Company Secretary
Christopher 3zpoinarowicz
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Auditor

Delalite LLP

2 New Street Square
London EC4 387

FAnanclal Advisers
J.P. Morgon Cazenove
25 Bank Street

London El4 5)P

Nurnis Secyrities

The London Stock Exchange Buikding
10 Paternaster Square

London EC4M 71T
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Registrars

Compufershare Invesfor Services pic
PO Box 82

The Pavilians

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Financial PR Consultants
Ball Foltinger

Holborn Gate

26 Southampton Buikdings
London WC2A 1PB
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT IS COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

WHERE TO
FIN DM 0 RE  wwwunire-sroupcoux
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40 §t Thomas Stnesat
Bristol BSY 6JX

+44(0) 117 302 7000
info@unite-students.com

www.uhite-group.co.uk
www.unilestudents.com



